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Chapter 1. Letter to Shareholders
Dear Shareholders:

In 2019, our three major businesses, driven by the passionate contributions of our team members,
have achieved a combined revenue increase of 6.17%, from NT$ 14.436 billion in 2018 to NT$
15.327 hillion, creating a new milestone. The three major businesses that are drivers of growth are
the development segment, construction segment, and department store segment of the Company and
that of its subsidiaries. More than 50% of the revenue was driven by the development segment,
through the sales of constructed homes, which had progressed smoothly due to accelerated selling
strategy and the "Kindom Qing Pu Hui " was handed over the owners on schedule. The construction
segment, accounted for about 40% of the revenue and had increased due to the contracts from external
customers. In the department store segment, the introduction of new brands and other diversifying
activities were implemented to sustain and develop our customer base. Such initiativesin all three of
our segments have yielded a net profit after tax attributable to the owners of the parent company in
2019, at NT$ 1.284 billion. This was an increase of 153.25% from the NT$ 507 million net profit in
2018; the after-tax earnings per share increased from NT$ 1.03 in 2018 to NT$ 2.60 in 2019.
Currently, some of the main construction projects in the development segment that have been
completed, under construction or in the pre-sale process include the following: "Kindom Xinyi B,"
"Kindom Xinyi C," "Kindom Xinyi F" "Kindom Hushui Ying," "Kindom Wel Shan Jiu,” "Kindom
Qing Pu Hui," "Kindom Chuangzindian,” "Kindom Shizhengting," "Kindom Ta Ji," "Kindom Tai
Jing," "Taichung G8 Project," and so on. These projects, amounting to more than 10, have acombined
number of about 1,200 total saleable households. The construction segment has been successful in
securing contracts with nearly 20 external customer projects. These mainly include construction for
the government's transportation infrastructure, medical buildings of public hospitalsand projectsfrom
electronics companies that are listed on the stock exchange, amounting to a total contract value of
more than NT$ 25 billion. The department store segment manages the following two types of
shopping centers. One of typesis the independent full service shopping mall like: "Xinbei Zhonghe"
and "Pingtung.” The other one is the station associated shopping mall like: "Nangang Station,"
"Bangiao Station,” "Taoyuan A8," "Linkou A9" and "New Zuoying Station." These seven shopping
mall have atotal business area about 1,780,000 square feet. With 640,000 members and benefit of the
mass transportation, the number of visitors coming to the mall are very stable.

The ongoing US-China trade war and the overall market condition in 2019 have prompted overseas
Taiwanese businessmen to invest back into Taiwan, and thus have driven up the demand for land and
commercia office buildings in industrial areas. In response to this, certain county and city
governments have lowered property taxes and have maintained lower mortgage rates, leading to the
increase in the volume of transaction in the domestic real estate market. The total number of
househol ds sold was 300,725 compared to 277,967 in the previous year, indicating agrowth of 8.03%
for the fiscal year, 2019. Thiswas the third consecutive year of growth in the industry. The increased
demand in the construction industry has encouraged Taiwanese businessmen to return hometo expand
factories and the government has aso launched policies to promote futuristic infrastructure
developments. These factors have driven up the demand for construction and civil engineering

1



projects in Taiwan. The turnover in 2019 increased to NT$ 2.48 trillion and the annual growth rate
has increased by 6.44%, creating a new record in terms of growth. Through various policies of the
government, the department store segment has stimulated domestic demand and lead to the recovery
of consumer confidence. The turnover in 2019 increased to NT$ 355.2 billion, with a growth rate of
4.44%, an improvement when compared to the 1.64% growth rate in 2018. However, in 2020, the
COVID-19 epidemic is expected to impact the overall demand in the domestic market. The rate of
growth in the three segments might be impacted in the first half of 2020, due to lowered rate of
consumption and dampened consumer confidence.

Aspiring for abetter performance in 2020, the Kindom Group continues to make steady progress with
three critical operating principles: "strengthening of corporate governance," "efficient resource
allocation within the group,” and "participation in social welfare," with the ambition to provide
exemplary productsand services. We aim to devel op operating strategiesthat are sensitive to market
trends and customer requirements, to develop a strong and reliable brand image. The building of
exemplary construction siteswill continue to be the priority of our development segment. As changes
in family structure and regional developments occur, various products with be positioned, taking
advantage of the big data and precision marketing strategies will be implemented. Accelerated
demolition will also be carried out, in accordance with changing requirements of the markets, to
enhancethe overall competitiveness of the company. The construction segment aspiresto secure high-
tech and high-value added engineering bids, with a comprehensive supply chain management system
in place, and strives to accurately manage the implementation schedule. This, along with regular
review of the trends in supply and demand of bulk building materials, is performed to meet the
schedule and cost estimates. We aim to provide high quality products and services, while keeping our
suppliers and the customers satisfied. The department store segment, continue to introduce unique
and locally appealing brands to create a niche market with personalized and innovative services, in
response to changing customer requirements. They also strive to devel op creative digital applications
to provide convenient and diversified membership services to develop brand loyalty among the
customers.

Kindom Group will continue to lead with the business philosophy of "Integrity, Service, Innovation
and Sustainability,” to integrate real estate development, construction, shopping centers and
foundation to develop a comprehensive rea estate development business. This will enable us to
achieve the aim of integrating "investment and development, construction, life and entertainment” as
we move forward. We aspire to uphold the original intention of serving customersin an eco-friendly,
sustainable, and innovative manner to create "exquisite homes." We integrate social welfare activities
into our daily operations, with the vision of becoming a "leading brand of comprehensive real estate
developers,” and we continue to work towards enhancing our competitiveness, branding and the
competitiveness of sustainable developments, build sustainable developments, while creating

impressive profits, for the benefit of our shareholders.

Sincerely

Wish you and your family safe and all the best.
Kindom Development Co., Ltd.
Chairman: Mike, Ma



Chapter 2. Company Profile

Company Introduction:

(1)
(1)

()

(V)

V)

Date of Incorporation: Nov. 23rd, 1979

Company History:

The Company was established in November of 1979 at No. 10, Ln. 165, Sec. 1, Xinsheng
S. Rd., Da’an Dist., Taipei City 106, Taiwan (R.O.C.), with the registered capital and
paid-in capital both in an amount of NT$ 1 million.

In 1982, the Company was restructured and increased its capital to NT$ 30 million.

In March of 1984, the Company increased its capital to NT$ 50 million.

In August of 1988, the Company relocated to 1/12F, No.237, Sec. 1, Fuxing S. Rd., Taipei
City (R.O.C)).

In June of 1989, the Company increased its capital to NT$ 170 million.

In December of 1990, the Company increased its capital to NT$ 390 million.

In October of 1991, the Company increased its capital to NT$ 420 million.

In July of 1992, the Company increased its capital to NT$ 525 million.

In April of 1993, the Company relocated to No.131, Sec. 3, Heping E. Rd., Da’an Dist.,
Taipei City 106, Taiwan (R.O.C.).

In July of 1993, the Company increased its capital to NT$ 656.25 million.

In October of 1993, the Company had its shares officialy listed for trading.

In April of 1994, the Company increased its capital to NT$ 1 billion.

In July of 1994, the Company increased its capital to NT$ 1.25 billion.

In September of 1995, the Company increased its capital to NT$ 1,562,500,000.

In August of 1996, the Company increased its capital to NT$ 1,953,125,000.

In August of 1997, the Company increased its capital to NT$ 2,441,406,000.

In October of 1997, the Company increased its capital to NT$ 2,741,406,000.

In July of 1998, the Company increased its capital to NT$ 3,426,758,000.

In June of 1999, the Company increased its capital to NT$ 4,283,447,000.

In June of 2000, the Company increased its capital to NT$ 5,140,137,000.

In April of 2001, the Company reduced its capital to NT$ 5,043,767,000.

In October of 2001, the Company reduced its capital  to NT$ 4,894,037,000.

In January of 2011, the Company increased its capital to NT$ 4,922,736,000.

In April of 2011, the Company increased its capital to NT$ 4,926,189,000.

In October of 2011, the Company increased its capital to NT$ 4,933,453,000.

In July of 2012, the Company increased its capital to NT$ 4,965,081,000.

In October of 2012, the Company increased its capital to NT$ 4,987,221,000.

In April of 2013, the Company increased its capital to NT$ 5,015,102,000.

In July of 2013, the Company increased its capital to NT$ 5,037,910,000.

Events of merger & acquisition, reinvestment in related companies or restructuring in the
most recent year as of the date of thisAnnua Report: None.

Events of major equity transfer or exchange involving directors, supervisors or major
shareholders holding more than 10% of the Company's shares in the most recent year as
of the date of thisAnnual Report: None.

Changes in the right of management, material changes in the operating procedures or
businesses, and other material events of significant impact on the shareholders' equity in
the most recent year as of the date of this Annua Report and their implications for the
Company: None.



Chapter 3. Corporate Governance Report
Organization:
)] Organization Chart:
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(I Maor Department Functions:

1. Auditing Office: Responsible for establishing and implementing the audit system,
evaluating the business performance, inspecting and reviewing the interna control
system of the Company and its subsidiaries, and in a timely manner providing
suggestions for improvement thereof.

2. Chairman's Office: Responsible for the research, analysis, planning and execution
of the projects assigned by the chairman.

3. Operations Management Office: Responsible for management of the Company's
operation-related matters, premise transfer and mortgage registration with the land
registration department, land and building restoration, records preservation and
other filing-related matters.
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Development and Investment Department: Responsible for land development,
evaluation of new business undertakings, management of investment and shift in
investment.

Planning and Design Department: Responsible for the planning and design in
individual construction projects.

Sales and Marketing Department: Responsible for sales, AD planning, customer
service and other related businesses.

Information Technology Department: Responsible for planning and promoting of
the Company's computerization, scheduling and maintaining the Company's
computerized hardware resources and supervising the information technology-
related matters of the related companies.

Department of Administrative Services. Responsible for handling the Company's
human resources and genera affairs, and supervising the administrative affairs of
the Group's related companies.

Department of Finance: Responsible for accounting, stock operations, planning and
management of funds, as well as supervising the financial affairs of the Group's
related companies.

Department of Legal Affairs: Responsible for the discussion on and development
of various contracts for the Company, the review and management of both internal
and external documents, profit risk control, overall enforcement in variouslitigation
cases, compliance with laws and legal risk control, and supervision of the lega
affairs of the Group's related companies.
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Organization Chart of Related Companiesin Investment (Note 1):
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Electromechanical Investment Co., (GLOBAL MALL Investment Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd. (GLOBAL MALL

Co., Ltd. Ltd. NANGANG STORE) ZUOYING STORE)
Shareholding ratio: Shareholding ratio: Shareholding ratio: Shareholding ratio: Shareholding ratio: Shareholding ratio:

99.96% 99.98% 100% 100% 100% 96.3%
(Note 2)
70.00% 30.00%
\ 4
N Global Mall(Tianjin)
Dingtian Co., Ltd.
Construction Co., Shareholding ratio:
100%

Ltd.

y

ReadyCom Information
Technology Service
Co., Ltd.
Shareholdir}g ratio:
46.67%

Note 1. Inaccordancewith Article 369-2 of the Company Act, it is presumed that acompany holding
the majority of the total number of the outstanding voting shares or the total amount of the
capital stock of another company is considered the controlling company, while the other
company is considered a subordinate company.
Note 2. Uniga Internationa Co., Ltd. completed liquidation on Nov. 5th, 2018.



Information about Directors, Supervisors, the General Manager, Vice Genera Manager, Assistant Managers and All Department and Branch

Executives:
()] Directors and supervisors:
Apr. 21st, 2020 (Unit: Share)
If the spouse or any family
A ; ) ] member within the second degree
) Nationality/ Dae | Term Date first |Shareholding when elected|  Current shareholding (Current spouse & minor Sharetolding by nominee Education and . of kinship also serves as
Title place of Name Gendel elected of lected shareholding arrangement working experiencel Other position concurrently held at the executive. director or SUpervisor Remarks
(Note1) registration (taking | office (Note?) {Eotepa) Company or other companies ! P | (Noted)
office) |(vear) Number of | Shareholding | Number of | Snareholding | Number| Shareholding [Number of Shareholding Tite | Neme [REEIONSN
shares ratio shares ratio of shareq] ratio shares ratio p
Chairman and general manager of Global
Mall Co., Ltd.
Chairman of Guan Cheng Co., Ltd.
Master of Statistics Chairman of Guan Hua Co., Ltd.
. Republic of | U-D8 Investment Co. 3 06,304,670| 1912  |96,304670| 19.12 ; ; ; ; Department, Chairman of Guan You Co., Ltd. . Mei-Chu | Mother
Chairman China Re&’i‘f:m,\j‘;’e Male |2019.06.10 | ., (20160628 g 35045 | 186 | 9,000000| 179 . . 5491454 109 Columbia Director of Yu-De Investment Co. Director | iy | and son
! University Director of KGM International Investment
Co., Ltd.
Director of Kindom Y u San Education
Foundation, a corporate body
Department of
. Yu-De Investment Co. - .
. Republic of N 3 96,304,670 19.12 96,304,670 19.12 - - - - Chinese Language Chairman of Yu-De Investment Co. . . Mother
Director China Representative Femalq2019.06.10 |\ |2017.12.22 ) /765333 889 |61104811| 1213 ) ) ) ) and Literature, | Director of Kedge Construction Co., Ltd. | Chairman | Mike, Ma| .y o
! Tamkang Universit;
Department of Civil
. Yu-De Investment Co. } } } R Engineering,
Director | REUNCON | pepresertative: | Male [2019.06.10( 3 0040629 %030670) 1912 1963046701 1912 - o : : National Taipei General Manager ; ; .
Ching-Chin, Hung ¥ / - University of
Technology
Vice General Manager
Director | Republicof |V Ivesmen Co 100610 3 bo17.09.3d 96304670 1912 [96304670  19.12 - - - - |epartment of L&) Director of Global Mall Co., Ltd. _ ) )
China <P . T years| e 7,968 - 7,968 - - - - - agement, "G | \ice President of Kindom Y u San Education
Sheng-An, Chang Chia University .
Foundation, a corporate body
. Y u-De Investment Co. Department of Director of the Chairman's Office and
Director | RYPICON | Representative:.  [Femalg2019.06.10 3 0019.06.19 O5000T0 1942 | 96301ET0) 1912 : . i : Economics, | Manager of the Department of Administrative| - - .
Ching-Fen, Chang ¥ ! ) ! ) Soochow University| Services
Department of
. Y u-De Investment Co. Business
Director Re‘éﬁg; of Representative:  [Female2019.06.10 :ars 2004.06.25 (‘:’265’&4368390 1:5102 (‘:’265’&4368390 1:5102 Documents, Ming None - - -
Ming, Chen ¥ T ) T ) Chuan Commercial
College
Chief Investment Officer of APP-China
Independent Director of Kedge Construction
Independent | Republic of 3 MBA, National Co.,, Ltd.
ep epub Shen-Yu, Kung Male [2019.06.1Q 2016.06.28 - - - - - - - - Chengchi Independent Director of Donpon Precision - - -
Director China years| I
University Inc.
Independent Director of Ever Power IPP Co.,
Ltd.
Pr'\gfaesgiro(:al CPA, Henghui Lianhe Accounting Firm
Independent | Republic of 3 Accounting, Assistant professor from Department of
X N Hung-Chin, Huang | Male [2019.06.10 2016.06.28 - - - - - - - - LY Accounting, Fu Jen Catholic University - - -
Director China years| Shanghai University| . 4
- Independent Director of Kedge Construction
of Finance and Co.. Ltd
Economics v
Independent Republic of 3 g;n';%\gl Distinguished professor from Department of
Director China Kuo-Feng, Lin Male |2019.06.10 years 2019.06.1Q - - - - - - - - University of Civil Englneﬁr:]ri]gég?tlonal Taiwan - - -
Pittsburgh Y
Notel. Inthe case of institutional shareholders, the names and representatives should be indicated respectively (for representatives, the names of institutional shareholders they




represent should be indicated) and filled in the following table.

Note 2.  Fill inthe time as the company's director or supervisor for the first time. Any interruption period during the term shall be noted.

Note 3.  For experiences relevant to the current position, if the person held a position in the accounting firm providing audit services to the Company or in any affiliated companies
during the above-mentioned periods, his/ her title and job responsibilities shall be specified.

Note4. If the chairman of the Company isthe same person as, spouse or relative within first degree of kinship of the general manager or the person holding equivalent position (top
manager), he/she shall explain the reasons, rationality, necessity, corresponding measures (such as increasing the number of independent directors, keeping more than half
of the directors not concurrently serving as employees or managers, etc.) and other related information.

(I Major Shareholders of the Institutional Shareholders:
Apr. 21st, 2020

Name of institutional
shareholder (note 1)

Y u-De Investment Co.

Major Shareholders of Institutional Shareholder (Note 2)

Account Specid for Estate under Trust with Cathay United Bank (43.70%), Mike, Ma (29.92%), Shau-Ling Ma

(13.19%) and Ming-Nai Ma (13.19%).

Note 1. If the Director or supervisor is arepresentative of an institutional shareholder, his’her name shall be specified.

Note 2. Pleasefill in the name and the shareholding percentage of the major shareholders of institutional shareholders (shareholders with the 10 highest shareholding
percentage). If the major shareholders are legal entities, information shall be additionally provided in the following table.

Note 3. For corporate shareholders who are not under the organization of the Company, the name and shareholding of the shareholders shall be disclosed (i.e. name of
theinvestor or donor and their investment or donation ratio).

(1) Major shareholders of institutional shareholders who are representative of institutional shareholders: None.




(V)

Expertise and independence analysis of directors and supervisors:

Apr. 21st, 2020

Meets one of the following professional qualifications, with at |east Independence criteria (Note 2)
five years of work experience
An msg;gtg; Ior: 2|gher Nurmber of
dp artment of Currently serving asa other public
e P ; y g Work experience companies
Qualification commerce, law, judge, prosecutor, ) .
i . required for business where the
inance, accounting, or| lawyer, accountant, or S S
) . administration, legal individual
Name other academic other professional S
) . affairs, finance, 1,234 |5|6| 78| 9]10|11] 12 |concurrently
(Note 1) department related to | practice or technician .
. accounting, or other serves asan
the business needs of | that must undergo ; . ;
i . oS business related field independent
the Company ina | national examinations ;
. : S S . of the company director
public or private junior|and specialized license
college, college or
university
Y u-De Investment Co. None
Representative: Mike, Ma v v v
Y u-De Investment Co. None
Representative: Mei-Chu, Liu v v v v
Y u-De Investment Co.
Representative: Ching-Chin, None
Hung v v | v |V v | v |V | VY
Y u-De Investment Co.
Representative: Sheng-An, None
Chang v v | v Vi iv I v i]v
Y u-De Investment Co.
Representative: Ching-Fen, None
Chang v v v |V v iviv |y
Y u-De Investment Co. None
Representative: Ming, Chen v vivi|v |V v v v |v|Ivi|vy
Shen-Yu, Kung v vivi iv IV IV I IVI IV IV IV VIV | IV 2
Hung-Chin, Huang v v v vivi iv IV IV I IVI IV IV IV VIV | IV 1
Kuo-Feng, Lin v v Vi ivi ivI iV IV IV IV I IV IV IV |V |V None
Note1l. The number of spaces shall be adjusted subject to the actual circumstances.

Note 2.
v

(1) Not employed by the company or an affiliated business.
(2) Not aDirector or Supervisor of the Company or any of its affiliates. Not applicable in cases where the person is an Independent Director of the Company, its parent

Directors and supervisors who meet the following qualifications two years before the assumption of office and during the office term shall put a "V" in the appropriate space.



©)

(4)

©®)

(6)

()
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©)

company, or any subsidiary as appointed in accordance with the Act or with the laws of the country of the parent or subsidiary.

Not a natural-person shareholder who holds shares, together with those held by the person’s spouse, minor children, or held by the person under others’ names, in an
aggregate amount of 1% or more of the total number of outstanding shares of the Company or ranking in the top 10 in holdings.

Not a spouse, relative within the second degree of kinship, or lineal relative within the third degree of kinship, of any of the personsin the preceding three subparagraphs.

Not adirector, supervisor, or employee of ainstitutional shareholder that directly holds 5% or more of the total number of issued shares of the company or of a corporate
shareholder that ranks among the top five in shareholdings or designated as an representative under subparagraphs 1 or 2, Article 27 of the Company Act. Not applicable
in cases where the person is an independent director of the Company, its parent company, or any subsidiary as appointed in accordance with the Act or with the laws of
the country of the parent or subsidiary.

Not adirector, supervisor, or employee of another company that the majority of itsdirectors or the shares with voting rights are controlled by the same person (excluding
independent directors appointed by both the Company and its parent company, subsidiary or subsidiaries under the same parent company pursuant to this regulation or
the local regulations).

Not a director, supervisor, or employee of another company or an institution who is concurrently a chairman, general manager, or holding equivalent position of the
Company or a spouse thereof (This excludes concurrent independent director positions held within the Company and its parent/subsidiary, or in other subsidiaries of
the parent company that are compliant with the Securities and Exchange Act or local laws).

Not adirector, supervisor, manager, or shareholder holding 5% or more of the shares of a specified company or institution which has afinancial or business relationship
with the Company (This excludes concurrent independent director positions held within the Company and its parent/subsidiary, or in other subsidiaries of the parent
company that are compliant with the Securities and Exchange Act or local laws).

Not a professional individual who provides commercial, legal, financial, accounting and other related services to the Company or to any affiliate of the Company with
atotal compensation below NT$500,000 in the most recent two years, an owner, partner, director, supervisor, or manager of a sole proprietorship, partnership, company
or ingtitution, nor a spouse thereof. However, members of the committee on remuneration or public acquisition review, or the special committee on merger and
acquisition who perform their functions and powers in accordance with the provisions of the Securities Exchange Act or Business Mergers and Acquisitions Act and
other relevant regulations shall not be subject to this provision.

(10) Not having amarital relationship, or arelative within the second degree of kinship to any other director of the Company.
(11) None of the circumstances in the subparagraphs of Article 30 of the Company Act applies.
(12) The person is not elected in the capacity of the government, a juristic person, or arepresentative thereof as provided in Article 27 of the Company Act
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Information of the General Manager, Vice General Manager, Assistant manager, Directors of Departments and Branches:

Apr. 21st, 2020

If the spouse or any
family member within

. Spouse & minor Shareholding by . the second degree of
Title d[;;t:d Shareholding shareholding nominee arrangement Edl\jvcgﬂ(?z and Other position kinship also servesas  |Remarks|
Nationality] Name |Gender : ng concurrently held at manager (Note 3)
(Note 1) (taking experience .
) other companies
office) Number Number Number (Note 2)
of Sharehgldmg of Sharehpldmg of Sharehgldlng Title [Name|Relationship
shares ratio shares ratio shares ratio
Department of
. Civil
General | Republic Ching- Engineering
X Chin, | Mae [2015.01.21] 144 - 47,358 0.01 - - > . |None - - -
Manager [ of China H National Taipei
ung L
University of
Technology
Construction
Engineeringand
Senior Management,
Vice Republic | Ai-Wei ) ) ) ) ) . Department of  |Director of Kedge ) ) )
General | of China | Yuan Male |2014.03.01 Civil Construction Co., Ltd.
Manager Engineering,
National Taiwan
University
Director of Global Mall
Department of
Vice . Land Co, Ltd. .
General | Republic \Sheng-Anl o 1o615.10.01| 7,968 - - - - - Management, | CePresident o - - -
Manager of China | Chang Feng Chia Kindom Yu San
0 Uni\g/]ersi ¢ Education Foundation, a|
y corporate body
Vice Department of
Republic | Si-Han Management,
Genera of China | Chen Male |2015.10.01| 8,000 - - - - - National Taiwan None - - -
Manager . X
University
Acting Department of
Vice Republic [Hua-Peng . . . ) ) ) Architecture, Supervisor of Kedge ) ) )
General | of China | Long Male |2013.08.16 Feng Chia Construction Co., Ltd.
Manager University
Department of
Senior . Business . '
Assigtant| REPUDIC |ShU-Yuan| o olo016.03.01] - - - . : - |Administration, |Director of Jequn |- :
of China Lin Investment Co., Ltd.
Manager Tamkang
University
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If the spouse or any
family member within

. Spouse & minor Shareholding by . the second degree of
Title d[;;t:d Shareholding shareholding nominee arrangement Edl\jvcgﬂ(?z and Other position kinship also servesas  |Remarks|
Nationality] Name |Gender : ng concurrently held at manager (Note 3)
(Note 1) (taking experience .
office) Number Number Number (Note2) other companes
of Sharehgldmg of Sharehpldmg of Sharehgldlng Title [Name|Relationship
shares ratio shares ratio shares ratio
Department of
Senior Accounting and [Supervisor of Guan Hua
. Republic [Shu-Lian, Statistics, Co., Ltd. (GLOBAL
fisasiant of China | Chang Femde2016.0901) 5124 - - - - © |chihlee MALL NANGANG o -
0 University of STORE)
Technology
Senior [B)Sgirgem of Director of Guan Cheng
. Republic | Yi-Hwa Co., Ltd. (GLOBAL
Assistant of China | Chen Femae|2019.12.01| - - - - - - M anagement, MALL BANQIAO - - -
Manager Soochow
S STORE)
University
. Institute of . .
. . ian- . Director of Guanging
Assistant| Republic Q Architecture, ;
Manager| of China Fang, | Male |2014.03.01| - - - - - - Tamkang Electromechanica Co., | - - -
Hwang L Ltd.
University
Department of
. . Architecture,
Qﬁ:}lﬂagrt E{e‘é‘;ﬁ'r:g D%&”u”g Male |2015.08.03] - - - - - - George None A -
0 Vocational High
School of Taipei
Department of
Sung- Civil
Assistant) Republic | o o | e [201806.01] - - - . . - |Engineering, - iyone - - .
Manager [ of China Lin National Taipei
University of
Technology
Department of  [Director of Guan Hua
Assistant| Republic [Hsiu-Hsia| . . . ) ) ) Architecture, Co., Ltd. (GLOBAL ) ) )
Manager| of China | Chu | oma€2019.12.01 ChengShiu.  |MALL NANGANG
University STORE)
Department of
Land
Assistant| Republic | Li-Jen Administration,
Manager| of China | Chou Male (2020.01.01| 8,000 - - - - - National None - - -
Chengchi
University
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If the spouse or any
family member within
. Spouse & minor Shareholding by . the second degree of
Title d[;;t:d Shareholding shareholding nominee arrangement Edl\jVCg:L?ﬂgand Other position kinship also servesas  |Remarks|
(Note 1) Nationality] Name |Gender (taking experience concurrently he]dat manager (Note 3)
office) Number Number Number (Note2) other companies
of Sharehglding of Sharehplding of Sharehglding Title|Name|Relationship!
shares ratio shares ratio shares ratio
Judicia Section,
. . Chu- Department of
Qﬁ:}‘g"gf 'gf‘é‘ﬁ]ﬁ"r:g Sheng | Mae |202001.01] - - - - - - |Law, Nationd |None - ;
Wu Taiwan
University
Institute of
Acting reousiic | cn Grghitelgture and
: epublic uan- rban Design,
Qﬁ:}ggagrt of China |Hung Wu Male 2017.0801) - ) ) i i ) National Taipei None i i i
University of
Technology
ACing | peublic | Ta-Hs Piic Rasie f
) epublic | Ta-Hsin, ic ions,
Q?nztgag of China | Chou Mae |2018.06.01 - - - - - - Shi_h Hs_in None - - -
University
Department of
Acting Republic Heng- Architecture,
Assistant of China Chia, Male |2019.11.01| 2,000 - 4,000 - - - Chung Yuan None - - -
Manager Chang Christian
University

Note 1. Information regarding General Manager, Vice General Manager, Assistant Vice Presidents and managers of departments and branches, or equivalent positions shall be disclosed
regardless of the job titles.
Work experience of anyone in the table above that is related to their current positions, e.g. previous employment at the Company's CPA firms or affiliates, shall be disclosed
with detailed job titles and responsibilities.
If the general manager or person holding the equivalent post (top manager) is the same person as, spouse or relative within first degree of kinship of the chairman of the board,
information concerning the reasons, rationality, necessity and corresponding measures (such as increasing the number of independent directors, and the way that more than
half of the directors are not employees or managers) shall be disclosed.

Note 2.

Note 3.
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1.
(1)

Remuneration to directors:

Remuneration Paid during the Most Recent Fiscal Year to Directors, Supervisors, Genera Managers, and Vice Presidents :

Unit: NT$ Thousands

Remuneration to directors Relevant remuneration received by directors who are also Total
Total remuneration employees remuneration
under items A, B, under items A, B,
. . Allowance for CandDasa . C,D,E,FandG
C&T?ﬁ:ﬁgn S:n\/grsgggggy dﬁﬁggezg'%ge pr_ofonal percentage of net Siﬂpirc'.? g?g;?sz;d Severance pay and [ Employee remuneration | as apercentage of Any
(®) 3) practice (D) (Note| income after tax (E) (Note5) pension (F) (G) (Note 6) net income after | remuneration
4) (Note 10) tax from ventures
(Note 10) that are not
All subsidiaries
Title Name (Note 1) companies of the
All All All All All All All The listed in this All Company or
S [companies| 5! [companies| S |companies| ! |companies| I |companies| I |companies| IS |companies| Company | Financia 5 [companies| from the
g listedin g listedin g listedin g listedin g listedin g listedin g listedin Report g listedin parent
% this % this % this % this % this % this % this (Note 7) g this company
1§ Financial § Financial -§ Financial -§ Financial -§ Financial -§ Financial -§ Financia > > > > '§ Financial | (Note 11)
2| Report |2 | Report 2 Report 2 Report 2 Report 2 Report 2 Report I EIREINELRES Report
(Note 7) (Note 7) (Note 7) (Note 7) (Note 7) (Note 7) (Note?) (B €8S BE(] S (Note7)
21X 2 21X 2
5 5 5 5
Y u-De Investment Co.
Charman |Representative: Mike, Ma
(Note 12)
Y u-De Investment Co.
Director Representative: Mei-Chu Liu
(Note 12)
Y u-De Investment Co.
Director Representative: Ching-Chin,
Hung (Note 12)
Y u-De Investment Co.
Director Representative: Sheng-An,
$:alg)?e(llr\1‘\?£i12;1t o - |- - |- 30,433| 30433 | 1,965 2,781 2.52% 2.59%| 13,925 17,675 - - 5,624 - |[5624) - |4.05%|4 .40 %) None
Director Representative: Ching-Fen,
Chang (Note 13)
Y u-De Investment Co.
Director Representative: Ming, Chen
(Note 13)
ndependent| shen-yu, Kung (Note 12)
gicgze;dent Hung-Chin, Huang (Note 12)
g‘ﬁg‘g"e’“ Kuo-Feng, Lin (Note 13)

recent year: None.

1. Please state the policy, system, standard and structure for payment of remuneration to the independent director, and the relevance of the responsibilities, risks, time devotion and other factors with the amount of remuneration received: In

accordance with the Articles of Incorporation, independent directors receive remuneration on amonthly basis and do not participate in the annual distribution of directors' remuneration.
2. Other than disclosure in the above table, Directors remunerations received by providing services (e.g. providing consulting services as a non-employee) to the Company and all consolidated entitiesin the financial statements of the most

Note: The Company provided Mike, Ma, the Chairman, with acar at a monthly rent of NT$125,000 and paid NT$216,000 to his driver in 2019.

The Company provided Ching-Chin, Hung, a director and the general manager of Sales and Marketing Department acar at an original cost of NT$ 2,170,000.
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Range of remuneration

Range of remuneration paid to directors

Name of directors

Total of (A+B+C+D)

Total of (A+B+C+D+E+F+G)

The Company (Note 8)

All companies listed in this
Financial Report (H) (Note 9)

The Company (Note 8)

All companies listed in this Financial
Report (1) (Note 9)

Lower than NT$1,000,000

Mike, Ma, Mei-Chu, Liu,
Ching-Chin, Hung, Sheng-An,
Chang, Ching-Fen, Chang,
Ming, Chen, Shen-Yu, Kung,
Hung-Chin, Huang and Kuo-
Feng, Lin

Mike, Ma, Mei-Chu, Liu,
Ching-Chin, Hung, Sheng-An,
Chang, Ching-Fen, Chang,
Ming, Chen, Shen-Yu, Kung,
Hung-Chin, Huang and Kuo-
Feng, Lin

Mei-Chu, Liu, Ming, Chen, Shen-Y u,
Kung, Hung-Chin, Huang and Kuo-
Feng, Lin

Mei-Chu, Liu, Ming, Chen, Shen-Y u,
Kung, Hung-Chin, Huang and Kuo-
Feng, Lin

NT$1,000,000 (inclusive)~ 2,000,000
(exclusive)

Ching-Fen, Chang

Ching-Fen, Chang

NT$2,000,000 (inclusive)~ 3,500,000
(exclusive)

NT$3,500,000 (inclusive) ~ 5,000,000
(exclusive)

NT$5,000,000 (inclusive) ~ 10,000,000
(exclusive)

Mike, Ma, Ching-Chin, Hung and
Sheng-An, Chang

Mike, Ma, Ching-Chin, Hung and
Sheng-An, Chang

NT$10,000,000 (inclusive)~ 15,000,000
(exclusive)

NT$15,000,000 (inclusive) ~
30,000,000 (exclusive)

NT$30,000,000 (inclusive) ~
50,000,000 (exclusive)

Y u-De Investment Co.

Y u-De Investment Co.

Y u-De Investment Co.

Y u-De Investment Co.

NT 50,000,000 (inclusive)~ 100,000,000
(exclusive)

Over NT$100,000,000

Totd

Number of legal
representative(s): 6
Number of natural person(s): 3
Number of institutional
shareholder(s): 1

Number of legal
representative(s): 6
Number of natural person(s): 3
Number of institutional
shareholder(s): 1

Number of legal representative(s): 6
Number of natural person(s): 3
Number of institutional
shareholder(s): 1

Number of legal representative(s): 6
Number of natural person(s): 3
Number of institutional
shareholder(s): 1

Note 1.

The names of directors (names of institutional shareholders and representatives shall be listed separately) as well as the general directors and independent directors shall be

listed separately and all payment amounts shall be disclosed as aggregate amounts. If a director concurrently serves as the general manager or vice general manager, his/her
name and the amount of remuneration paid to him/her shall be listed in this table and Table (3-1) or (3-2) below.

Note 2.
Note 3.
Note 4.
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The amount of the remuneration paid to directors in the most recent year (including director's salaries, allowances, severance, bonuses, and incentives, etc.).
The amount of the remuneration paid to directorsin the most recent year as approved by the Board of Directors shall befilled out.
Allowances for professional practice paid out to directors in the most recent year (including transport, special expenses, various alowances, accommodation, vehicles, and




Note 5.

Note 6.

Note 7.

Note 8.
Note 9.

Note 10.

Note 11.

Note 12.
Note 13.

provision of physical goods and services). If housing, vehicle or other means of transportation, or personal expenses are provided, the nature and cost of the asset provided,

the rental calculated based on the actual cost or the fair market value, fuel, and other payments shall be disclosed. If adriver is assigned, disclose compensation paid to the

driver in a note; however, do not include it as part of executive compensation.

Salary, job-related allowances, separation pay, various bonuses, incentives, transportation allowance, special allowance, various allowances, accommodation allowance and

driver allowance received by directors who concurrently serve asemployees (including as General Manager, Vice General Manager, other managerial officer and an employee)

in the most recent fiscal year. If housing, vehicle or other means of transportation, or personal expenses are provided, the nature and cost of the asset provided, the rental

calculated based on the actual cost or the fair market value, fuel, and other payments shall be disclosed. If adriver is assigned, disclose compensation paid to the driver in a

note; however, do not include it as part of executive compensation. In addition, any salary listed under " Share-Based Payment” of IFRS 2, including the warrants obtained

by employees, new shares with restricted employee power and subscription of shares for cash capital increase, shall aso be included in remuneration.

For directors who concurrently serve as employees (including general manager, vice general manager, other managerial officers, and employees) and receive remuneration

as employees (stock and cash) for the past year, disclose the amount of remuneration distributed to employees after being approved by the Board for the past year. For

amounts that are unable to be estimated, propose the distribution amount for the year based on the actual distribution made last year, and fill out the Table 1-3.

Please disclose the aggregate amount of the remuneration to the Company's directors from the companies included in the consol idated financial statements (including the

Company).

When the aggregate amount of the remuneration to the Company's directors is disclosed, the name of the director shall also be disclosed in the relevant range.

When the aggregate amount of the remuneration paid to the Company's directors from all companies in the consolidated financial statements (including the Company) is

disclosed, the name of the Director shall also be disclosed in the relevant range.

Net income after income tax refers to the one in the most recent year. Where IFRSs are adopted, net income after tax refers to the net income after income tax recorded in

the entity's or individual financial statements.

a. The amount of remuneration received from investees other than subsidiaries by the company's directors should be listed clearly in this column.

b. If the directors of the Company receive remuneration from non-subsidiary companies invested by this Company or the parent company, the amount of remuneration
received by thedirectorsfrom  non-subsidiary companiesinvested by this Company or the parent company shall be combined into column | of the Table of Remuneration
Brackets and this column shall be renamed as " The Parent Company and All Invested Companies”.

c. Remuneration refers to rewards, compensations (including compensation to company employees, directors or supervisors) and allowances for professiona practice
received by the Director from other non-subsidiary companies invested by this Company or the parent company for their services as directors, supervisors, or managers.

Serving for another term of office by reelection from Jun. 10th, 2019.

Serving for another term of office by reelection from Jun. 10th, 2019.

*The remuneration disclosed in this table is different from the concepts stipulated in the Income Tax Act. The purpose of thistableis for information disclosure, not taxation
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(1)  Remuneration to Supervisors:

Unit: NT$ Thousands

Remuneration to supervisors Tota remuneration
Allowances for und:rr] clitgnaz': B Any
Compensation (A) Rewards professional practice ercentage of net remuneration
(Note 2) (B) (Note 3) ©) Fi’ncom eagﬂer | from reinvested
(Note 4) businesses other
. Name (Note 8) than
Title (Note 1) Al Al Al All - | supsidiaries or
companies companies companies companies| o parent
The “Ste.d In The I'Steq in The I'Ste.d n The l'Steq In company (Note
company| . 1S lcompany| - 11 company| _. 1S company| _. IS 9)
P! Einancial PAY) Einancial PAWY| Einancial PAVY! Einancial
Report Report Report Report
(Note 5) (Note5) (Note5) (Note 5)
S UDErViSO Ming-Nai Ma
" (Note 10) 212 320 0.02% 9
. Ming. Chen - - - - .02%| 0.02% None
Superviso 9
(Note 10)
Range of remuneration
Name of supervisors
Compensation brackets for supervisors of The combined compensation of (A+B+C)
the Company All ieslisted in thi
companies i inthis
The Company (Note 6) Financial Report (D) (Note 7)
Lower than NT$1,000,000 Ming-Nai Maand Ming, Chen | Ming-Nai Ma and Ming, Chen
NT$1,000,000 (inclusive)~ 2,000,000
(exclusive)
NT$2,000,000 (inclusive)~ 3,500,000 - -
(exclusive)
NT$3,500,000 (inclusive) ~ 5,000,000
(exclusive)
NT$5,000,000 (inclusive) ~ 10,000,000 - -
(exclusive)
NT$10,000,000 (inclusive)~ 15,000,000 - -
(exclusive)
NT$15,000,000 (inclusive) ~ - -
30,000,000 (exclusive)
NT$30,000,000 (inclusive) ~ - -
50,000,000 (exclusive)
NT 50,000,000 (inclusive)~ 100,000,000 - -
(exclusive)
Over NT$100,000,000 - -
Tota Number of natural person(s): 2 | Number of natural person(s): 2
Note 1. Thenames of supervisors (names of ingtitutional shareholdersand representatives shall be listed separately) shall
be listed separately and all payment amounts shall be disclosed as aggregate amounts.
Note 2. The amount of the remuneration paid to supervisorsin the most recent year (including supervisor's salaries, job
remuneration, severance, bonuses, and incentives etc.).
Note 3. Theamount of the remuneration paid to supervisorsin the most recent year as approved by the Board of Directors
shall befilled out.
Note 4. Allowances for professional practice paid out to supervisorsin the most recent year (including transport, special

expenses, various allowances, accommodation, vehicles, and provision of physical goods and services). If
housing, vehicle or other means of transportation, or personal expenses are provided, the nature and cost of the
asset provided, the rental calculated based on the actual cost or the fair market value, fuel, and other payments
shall be disclosed. If a driver is assigned, disclose compensation paid to the driver in a note; however, do not
include it as part of executive compensation.

17



Note 5.

Note 6.

Note 7.

Note 8.

Note 9.

Please disclose the aggregate amount of the remuneration to the Company's supervisors from the companies

included in the consolidated financial statements (including the Company).

When the aggregate amount of the remuneration to the Company's supervisors is disclosed, the name of the

supervisor shall also be disclosed in the relevant range.

When the aggregate amount of the remuneration paid to the Company's supervisors from all companies in the

consolidated financial statements (including the Company) is disclosed, the name of the supervisor shall also be

disclosed in the relevant range.

Net income after income tax refers to the one in the most recent year. Where |FRSs are adopted, net incoOme

after tax refers to the net income after income tax recorded in the parent company only or separate financial

statements.

a This field should clearly indicate the amount of remuneration received by the Company’s general managers
and vice general managers from a reinvested business other than a subsidiary or the parent company (if not,
please fill in “None”).

b. If the general managers and vice general managers of the Company receive remuneration from non-
subsidiary companiesinvested by this Company or the parent company, the amount of remuneration received
by the general manager or vice general manager from non-subsidiary companies invested by this Company
or the parent company shall be combined into column | of the Table of Remuneration Brackets and this
column shall be renamed as " The Parent Company and All Reinvested Companies'.

¢. Remuneration refers to rewards, compensations (including compensation to company employees, directors
or supervisors) and allowances for professiona practice received by general managers and vice genera
managers from other non-subsidiary companies invested by the Company or the parent company for their
services as directors, supervisors, or managers.

Note 10.0n Jun. 10th, 2019, an audit committee was duly established to act in the capacity of the supervisors, so only the

remunerations to supervisors during their term of officeis disclosed.

*The remuneration disclosed in thistable is different from the concepts stipulated in the Income Tax Act. The purpose of
thistableisfor information disclosure, not taxation
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() Remuneration to General Managers and Vice General Managers:

Unit: NT$ Thousands

Job-leaving and Tota remuneration An
. >aving Bonusand special | Amount of employeerewards (D) | under itemsA, B, C y
Compensation (A) retirement remuneration
expenses (C) (Note (Note 4) and D as a percentage
(Note 2) payment : from
3) of net income after tax .
(B) (Note 8) reinvested
Tide Name All All companies businesses
(Note 1) 3 | All companies| 5 | All companies| I companies listed irFl)this 3 | All companies| other than
° lisedinthis |® | listedinthis | ® compani € The Company ) X e listed inthis | subsidiaries
S . : @) . . O | listed inthis Financia Report [ O . :
S Financial 8 Financia g Financial (Note5) 8 Financial or the parent
° Report o Report o S Report company
) (Note5) ) (Note5) 3 Report  |Amount|{Amount| Amount [Amount| 2 (Note 5) (Note 9)
< < < (Note5) |in Cash|in Stock| in Cash |in Stock| =
Manager of Sales and Marketing . .
Department Ching-Chin, Hung
Development and Investment
Department Mike, Ma (Note 10)
General Manager
Senior Vice General Manager Ai-We Yuan 12,963 15,963| - - 7,260 8,010 11,412 - 11,412 - 2.46% 2.76% None
Senior Vice General Manager Ho Chin-Fu (Note 11)
Vice General Manager Sheng-An Chang
Vice General Manager Si-Han Chen
Acting Vice General Manager Hua-Peng Long

Range of remuneration

Range of compensation paid to each general manager
and vice general manager of the Company

Name of general managers and vice general managers

The Company (Note 6)

All companies listed in this Financial Report (E) (Note 7)

Lower than NT$1,000,000

NT$1,000,000 (inclusive)~ 2,000,000 (exclusive)

Ho Chin-Fu and Hua-Peng Long

Ho Chin-Fu and Hua-Peng Long

NT$2,000,000 (inclusive)~ 3,500,000 (exclusive)

Ai-We Yuan and Si-Han Chen

Ai-We Yuan and Si-Han Chen

NT$3,500,000 (inclusive) ~ 5,000,000 (exclusive)

NT$5,000,000 (inclusive) ~ 10,000,000 (exclusive)

Mike, Ma, Ching-Chin, Hung and Sheng-An, Chang

Mike, Ma, Ching-Chin, Hung and Sheng-An, Chang

NT$10,000,000 (inclusive)~ 15,000,000 (exclusive)

NT$15,000,000 (inclusive) ~ 30,000,000 (exclusive)

NT$30,000,000 (inclusive) ~ 50,000,000 (exclusive)

NT 50,000,000 (inclusive) ~100,000,000 (exclusive)

Over NT$100,000,000

Total
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Note 1.

Note 2.

Note 3.

Note 4.

Note 5.

Note 6.

Note 7.

Note 8.

Note 9.

The names of the general managers and vice general managers shall belisted separately and all payment amounts
shall be disclosed as aggregate amounts. If a director concurrently serves as a general manager or vice general
manager, hisher name and the amount of remuneration paid to him/her shall be listed in thistable and Table (1-
1) or (3-1) above.
Please specify the salaries, duty allowances and severance pay paid to the general managers and vice general
managers in the most recent fiscal year.
Cash and non-cash compensations to the general managers and vice general managers in the most recent year,
including bonus, reward, reimbursement of expenses, special allowances, various subsidies, housing and use of
vehicle. If housing, vehicle or other means of transportation, or personal expenses are provided, the nature and
cost of the asset provided, the rental calculated based on the actua cost or the fair market value, fuel, and other
payments shall be disclosed. If adriver isassigned, disclose compensation paid to the driver in anote; however,
do not include it as part of executive compensation. In addition, any salary listed under " Share-Based Payment"
of IFRS 2, including the warrants obtained by employees, new shares with restricted employee power and
subscription of shares for cash capital increase, shall also be included in remuneration.

Fill in the compensations to general managers and vice general managers (stock and cash) subject to approval of

the Board of Directorsin the most recent year; if such compensations cannot be estimated, an estimation for this

year shall be calculated in proportion of the compensations paid last year and the amount shall be listed in Table

1-3. Net income after income tax refers to the one in the most recent year. Where IFRSs are adopted, net income

after tax refers to the net income after income tax recorded in the parent company only or separate financia

statements.

Please disclose the aggregate amount of the remuneration to the Company's general managers and vice general

managers from the companies included in the consolidated financial statements (including the Company).

Total remuneration paid to each general manager and vice general manager by the Company shall be disclosed

and the names of the General Managers and Deputy General Managers shall also be disclosed in the proper

remuneration range.

Total compensation of various items paid to every general manager and vice general manager of this Company

by all companies (including this Company) listed in the consolidated statement shall be disclosed. The name of

the general manager and vice general manager shall also be disclosed in the proper compensation range.

Net income after income tax refersto the onein the most recent year. Where |FRSs are adopted, net income after

tax refersto the net income after income tax recorded in the entity's or individual financial statements.

a  Thisfield should clearly indicate the amount of remuneration received by the Company’s general managers
and vice general managers from areinvested business other than asubsidiary or the parent company (if not,
please fill in “None”).

b. If the general managers and vice general managers of the Company receive remuneration from non-
subsidiary companies invested by this Company or the parent company, the amount of remuneration
received by the general manager or vice general manager from non-subsidiary companies invested by this
Company or the parent company shall be combined into column | of the Table of Remuneration Brackets
and this column shall be renamed as " The Parent Company and All Reinvested Companies'.

c. Remuneration refersto rewards, compensations (including compensation to company employees, directors
or supervisors) and allowances for professional practice received by general managers and vice general
managers from other non-subsidiary companies invested by the Company or the parent company for their
services as directors, supervisors, or managers.

Note 10. Resigned on Dec. 30th, 2019.

Note 11. Retired on Dec. 31st, 2019 and resigned on Jan. 1st, 2020.

*The remuneration disclosed in thistable is different from the concepts stipulated in the Income Tax Act. The purpose of
thistableisfor information disclosure, not taxation
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(1) Employee Remuneration Distributed to Managers and Distribution Situation:
Unit: NT$ Thousands

Title Name Amount in| Amount in Total Total as a percentage of
(Note 1) (Note 1) Stock Cash net income after tax (%)
Sales and Marketing
Department Ching-Chin, Hung
General Manager

Development and
Investment Department Mike, Ma (Note 5)

General Manager
Senior Vice General Ai-Wei Yuan
Manager
Senior Vice Generdl | chin-Fu (Note 6)
Manager
Vice General Manager Sheng-An Chang
Vice General Manager Si-Han Chen
§ Act n?\/l\z/ih(;zgeneral Hua-Peng Long
& |[Senior Assistant Manager Shu-Yuan Lin B 15150 15150 1.18%
@

Senior Assistant Manager Shu-Lian, Chang
Senior Assistant Manager | Shih-Jung Li (Note 7)
Senior Assistant Manager | Yi-Hwa Chen (Note 8)

Assistant Manager Qian-Fang, Hwang
Assistant Manager Da-Gung Chou
Assistant Manager Chin-Cheng Chang
Assistant Manager Sung-Chuan, Lin
Hsiu-Hsia Chu

Assistant Manager (Note 10)

Acting Assistant Manager| Chuan-Hung Wu

Acting Assistant Manager Ta-Hsin, Chou

Heng-Chia Chang
(Note 11)

Notel. Individual name and title must be disclosed, but the profit sharing awarded may be shown as an aggregated
number.

Note 2. Employee remuneration amounts (stock and cash) paid to managers in the most recent year as resolved by the
Board shall be listed. If such compensation cannot be estimated, the distribution amount of this year shall be
determined by the actual distribution ratio of last year. Net income after income tax refers to the one in the
most recent year. Where |FRSs are adopted, net income after tax refers to the net income after income tax
recorded in the entity's or individual financial statements.

Note3. Managers subject to the rewarding (per Letter TCZ-111-N0.0920001301 of the Financia Supervisory
Commission, Executive Yuan of the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation on Mar 27th, 2003) are:

(1) general managers and their equivalents;

(2) vicegeneral manager and their equivalents;

(3) assistant managers and their equivalents;

(4) chief financid officer;

(5) chief accounting officer; and

(6) other persons authorized to manage affairs and sign documents on behalf of a company.

Note4. For directors, general managers and vice general managers who received employee remuneration (including
stock and cash), this table must befilled out in addition to Table (V1) and Table 1 above.

Note5. Resigned on Dec. 30th, 2019.

Note 6. Retired on Dec. 31st, 2019 and resigned on Jan. 1st, 2020.

Note 7. Newly elected on Aug. 21st, 2019 and resigned on Jan. 16th, 2020.

Note8. Newly elected on Dec. 1st, 2019.

Note9. Resigned on Dec. 9th, 2019.

Note 10. Newly elected on Dec. 1st, 2019.

Note 11. Promoted on Nov. 1st, 2019.

Acting Assistant Manager
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(V)

The analysis of the ratio of the total remuneration paid to the Company’s directors,
supervisors, general manager and vice general manager by the Company and all
companies listed in the consolidated statements in the most recent two years to net
income, and the relevance of remuneration payment policies, standards and combination,
procedures of determining remuneration, business performance and future risk shall be
compared and stated:

1.

In accordance with Article 20 of the Company's Articles of Incorporation, the
remuneration to directors and supervisors shall be decided by the Board of
Directors based on the involvement in and contribution to operations of the
Company by such directors and supervisors, and in reference to the general peer
levels. In 2019, the total amounts of remuneration paid by the Company and all
companies included in the consolidated financial statements to the Company's
directors as percentages of the net income after tax were down to 4.05% and 4.40%
respectively from 7.18% and 8.53% in 2018, mainly due to the substantial increase
of the net income after tax, which is reasonable. In 2019, the total amounts of
remuneration paid by the Company and all companiesincluded in the consolidated
financial statementsto the Company's supervisors as percentages of the net income
after tax were both down to 0.02% respectively from 0.09% and 0.12% in 2018,
mainly due to the substantial income in net income after tax. In June of 2019, the
Company set up an audit committee to act in the capacity of supervisors, so only
theremuneration to supervisorsin their term of office of 2019 isdisclosed, however,
the remuneration paid to supervisors in the recent two years is reasonable asiit is
all used to cover transportation expenses.

The remuneration to the Company's general managers and vice general managers
shall be verified by the chairman in accordance with the table of remuneration
brackets, the calculation methods of business performance-based bonus and
assessment methods, and submitted to the Remuneration Committee and Board of
Directors for review. In 2019, the total amounts of remuneration paid by the
Company and al companies included in the consolidated financial statements to
the Company's general managers and vice general managers as percentages of the
net income after tax were down to 2.46% and 2.76% respectively from 4.91% and
5.89% in 2018, mainly due to the substantial increase of the net income after tax,
which is reasonable.

Correlation with future risk exposure: None.
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V. Implementation of Corporate Governance:
()] Functionality of the Board of Directors:
A total of 10 meetings (A) of the Board of Directors were held in the most recent year.
The attendance of director and supervisors was as follows:
Attendance
i Attendancein | Attendance | Rate (%) Remarks
Title Name (Note 1) Person (B) by Proxy [B/A]
(Note 2)
Yu-De Investment Co. Serving for another term of office
Chairman Representative: 10 0 100.00% by reelection from Jun. 10th,
Mike, Ma 20109.
Yu-De Investment Co. Serving for another term of office
Director Representative: 2 8 20.00% by reelection from Jun. 10th,
Mei-Chu, Liu 20109.
Yu-De Investment Co. Serving for another term of office
Director Representative; 10 0 100.00% by reelection from Jun. 10th,
Ching-Chin, Hung 2019.
Yu-De Investment Co. Serving for another term of office
Director Representative; 10 0 100.00% by reelection from Jun. 10th,
Sheng-An, Chang 2019.
Yu-De Investment Co. Newly elected on Jun. 10th,
Director Representative: 5 1 71.43% 2019, and atotal of 7 meetings
Ching-Fen, Chang were held from the election.
Yu-De Investment Co. Newly elected on Jun. 10th,
Director Representative: 7 0 100.00% 2019, and atotal of 7 meetings
Ming, Chen were held from the election.
Independent Serving fqr another term of office
Director Shen-Yu, Kung 6 4 60.00% by reelection from Jun. 10th,
20109.
Independent _ Serving fqr another term of office
; Hung-Chin, Huang 10 0 100.00% by reelection from Jun. 10th,
Director
20109.
Independent _ Newly elected on Jun. 10th,
; Kuo-Feng, Lin 7 0 100.00% 2019, and atotal of 7 meetings
Director i
were held from the election.

()
(i

(1)

(I

()

Other mentionable items:

l. With regard to the functionality of the Board of Directors, if any of the following circumstances arises, the dates of
the meetings, sessions, contents of motion, all independent directors’ opinions and the company’s response thereto
snall be specified:

The Company set up an audit committee on Jun.10th, 2019, pleaserefer to (11) Functionality of the Audit Committee
for the items listed under Article 14-5 of the Securities Exchange Act. As of the date of this Annual Report, al
matters resolved by the Board of Directors have been adopted by all present directors.

I1. Ininstances where adirector recused himself/herself due to a conflict of interest, the minutes shall clearly state the
director’s name, contents of the motion and resol ution thereof, reason for not voting and actual voting counts:

Items listed in Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act.
In addition to the preceding matter, other resolutions of the Board of Directors on which independent directors
have dissenting opinions or qualified opinions, and that are documented or issued through written statements.

On Aug. 12th, 2019, at the 3rd meeting of the 12th Board of Directors, the motion on the remuneration to the
managers subject to a promotion and salary adjustment upon approval of the Remuneration Committee, and
the adjustment to the remuneration to directors who also serve as employees upon the approval of the Audit
Committee, Ching-chin, Hung and Sheng-An, Chang, both directors recused themselves due to a conflict of
interest, while al other directors present at the meeting adopted the motion.

When discussing and voting on the proposal for organizational adjustments to the Company adopted by the
Remuneration Committee at the 5th meeting of the 12th Board of Directors on Dec.30th, 2019, Mike, Ma, the
Chairman, as an interested party, and Mei-Chu, Liu, a director, as a relative within the first-degree kinship to
Chairman Ma, recused themselves. Chairman Ma appointed Hung-Chin, Huang, an independent director, to
take the chair temporarily. All other directors present agree to adopt the proposal .

On Dec. 30th, 2019, when discussing and voting on the proposal for the year-end and specia performance-
based bonus for managers in accordance with the " Assessment Measures' of the Company as adopted by the|
Remuneration Committee at the 5th meeting of the 12th Board of Directors, Mike, Ma, Ching-chin, Hung and
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(IV) On Dec.30th, 2019, when discussing and voting on the proposal for a donation of NT$ 5.5 million only to

Execution of Board Performance Evaluation

Sheng-An, Chang, all directors, asinterested partiesand Mei-Chu, Liu, adirector, asarelative within the first-
degree kinship to Chairman Ma recused themselves. Chairman Ma appointed Hung-Chin, Huang, an
independent director, to take the chair temporarily. All other directors present agree to adopt the proposal.

Kindom Yu San Education Foundation, a corporate body, in 2020 at the 5th meeting of the 12th Board of
Directors, Mike, Ma, the chairman, as a director of the fund, and Mei-Chu, Liu, adirector, as arelative within
the first-degree kinship to Chairman Ma, and Sheng-An, Chang, a director, as the vice president of the fund,
recused themselves. Chairman Ma appointed Hung-Chin, Huang, an independent director, to take the chair
temporarily. All other directors present agree to adopt the proposal.

Assessment cycle | Assessment duration Scope of Assessment Assessment details
assessment method

The evaluation shall | From Jan.1st, 2019 to | It includes Internal self- The evaluation shall
beconductedona | Dec.31<t, 2019 performance evaluation onthe | be conducted in
yearly basis, evaluationonthe |Board of Directors, | accordance with
completed before the overall Board of directors and Article 7 of the "Board
end of the first Directors, functiona Performance
quarter of the individual directors | committeesis Evaluation Measures'
following year, and and functional included. asrevised by the
submitted to the committees. Company on Mar.
Board of Directors 20th, 2019.
for review and
improvement.

(1)

(I

Enhancements to the functionality of the Board of Directors in the current and the most recent year (e.Q.
establishment of an Audit Committee, improvement of information transparency etc.), and the progress of such
enhancements:

The objective to improve the functions of the Board of Directors: The Company sets up an audit committee on
Jun.10th, 2019 and informs all directors and supervisors of the proposal details before the board meeting to
ensure implementation. The opinions of all directors were fully taken into account when discussing the
proposal and the minutes were sent to al directors and supervisors within five days from the meeting,
representing effective and good functionality.

Evaluation on functionality of the Board of Directors. In accordance with the "Board Performance Evaluation
Measures' adopted as revised at the board meeting on Mar.20th, 2019, the overall functionality of the board,
and the performance of individual directors and of the functional committees shall be conducted and the
evaluation shall be completed by the end of the first quarter of the following year. The Company's board
performance evaluation in 2019 provided good results which were submitted to the Board of Directors and
disclosed on the Company's website on Mar.23th, 2020.

Note 1.

Note 2.

(In

Where the director or supervisor is an institution, the name of the institutional shareholder and the name of its
representative shall be disclosed.

(1) Where directors or supervisors resign before the end of the year, the Notes column shall be annotated
with the date of resignation. Actual attendance rate (%) shall be calculated using the number of board
meetings convened and actual presence during the term of service.

If any director or supervisor was re-elected before the end of the year, the incoming and former directors
and supervisors shall be both listed in the table. In addition, please specify in the Remark column the re-
election date and whether the director or supervisor are re-elected, newly elected, or Directors or
Supervisors who won a by-election. Actual attendance rate (%) shall be calculated using the number of
Board meetings convened and actual attendance during the term of office.

@)

Operation of the Audit Committee or Supervisors participation in the operations of
Board mestings:
1. Functionality of the Audit Committee:

(1) On Jun. 10th, 2019, three independent directors were elected and appointed,
and an audit committee was duly established to act in the capacity of the
SUpervisors.

(2) Atota of 5meetings (A) of the audit committee were held in the most recent
year. The attendance of independent directors was as follows:
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Attendance
. Attendance |Attendance| Rate (%) Remarks
Tide Name (Note 1) in Person (B)| by Proxy [B/A]
(Note 2)
Independent | - oy vy, Kung 4 1 80.00% | Newly elected on Jun.10th, 2019
Director
'”g?r’:c”tgf”t Hung-Chin, Huang 5 0 100.00% | Newly elected on Jun.10th, 2019
Ing?[r)scnt((j)?nt Kuo-Feng, Lin 5 0 100.00% | Newly elected on Jun.10th, 2019

Other mentionable items:

[. If any of the following applies to the operations of the Audit Committee, the date and session of the Board of
Directors Meeting, as well as the resolutions, resolutions of the Audit Committee and the company's actionsin
response to the opinions of the Audit Committee shall be stated.

(1) All conditionslisted in Article 14-5 of the Securities and Exchange Act.

(I Asidefrom said circumstances, resol ution(s) not adopted by the Audit Committee but receiving the consent
of two-thirds of the Board of Directors: No such event was experienced through the year in functionality
of the Audit Committee, so no disclosure is to be made.

Itemslisted in Resolution Company’s
Article 14-5 of &0 .. | response to
Board of Resolutions the Securities of the Audit the Audit
Directors Committee . ,
and Exchange Committees
Act opinions:
It was proposed to add "Management Procedures for the
Discussion in the Audit Committee” to the Company's internal All the
The 2nd ; . : . All the
. control system and revise some articles of the five procedures, committee .
meeting of |. -0 ) ) directors
including "Operating Procedures for Loan of Funds to Others”, members
the 12th |, . . present
Endorsement and Guarantee Operating Procedures’, v present .
Boardon |, . O . e . unanimously
Operating Procedures for Derivative Commodities Trading", unanimously
Jun.18th, "Handli eduresf - ; ing of Real ed approved
2019 andling Procedures OI’.ACQL.III’I ng or Disposing of Real Estate, approv the proposal
Equipment or Assets with Right to Use" and "Management the proposal. '
Procedures for Discussion in the Board of Directors'.
The 3rd Allthe | Al the
meeting of . . . committee directors
1. Themotion ontheremuneration and rewardsfor professional members
the 12th . . . present
practice to the 12th Board of Directors. 2. The Company's v present .
Board on : . . . unanimously
salary increase plan for Directors also serving as employees unanimously
Aug.12th, approved
2019 approved the proposal
the proposal. '
1. It was proposed to revise some articles of the three
procedures, including the "Quality Control Manua",
"Document and Data Control Procedures' and "Internal
Audit Procedures’, included in the Company's internal
control system.
Th‘? Sth 2. It was proposed to raise the construction cost for " Sanchong All the All the
meeting of : : N ) . committee .
Dist. Project F " which the Company appointed Kedge directors
the 12th d members
board on Construction Co., Ltd. tq construct. _ v present pr_eaent
3. It was proposed to appoint Shengde Construction Co., Ltd. e unanimously
Dec. 30th, g X ) . unanimously
to construction " Sanchong Dist. Wuguwang St. Project J', a approved
2019 : ; approved
new project of the Company, instead. the proposal the proposal.
4. The Company has signed an investment contract with Taipei Proposal.
City Urban Regeneration Center, a corporate body, for the
"Public Urban Renovation Project on 5 Plots including the
one Numbered 363-1 Spanning Four Subsections at Dunhua|
Section, Songshan District, Taipei City.
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5. It was proposed to evaluate the independence and suitability
of the CPAs appointed by the Company.
6. As Ho Chin-Fu, the Senior Vice General Manager of the
Company's Department of Finance would retire on Dec.31st,
2019, it was proposed the two positions as finance director
and acting spokesman to be respectively taken over by
Shu-Yuan Lin, a senior assistant manager at the Treasury
Section of the Company's Department of Finance and Shu-
Lian, Chang, a senior assistant manager at the Accounting
Section of the Company's Department of Finance.
The 6th 1. It was proposed to appoint Kedge Construction Co., Ltd. to All the All the
meeting of " : S committee .
construct "Sanchong Dist. Erchong Bu Project”, a new directors
the 12th ; members
Board on project of the Company. . present present
2. It was proposed to appoint Kedge Construction Co., Ltd. to ) unanimously
Jan.20th, b ! e : £ th unanimously
2020 construct "Wanda Line LGO08 Project”, a new project of the approved happrovegaI
Company. the propo ﬂ_t e proposal.
1. It was proposed to draft the Company's " Statement on the
Internal Control System" of 2019.
2. It was proposed to prepare the Company's operation report
Th‘? /th and financial statements of 2019. Al the All the
meeting of - . committee .
3. It was proposed to develop the Company's "Earnings directors
the 12th C M members
Board on Distribution Plan (_)f 2019. _ _ present pr_esent
4, In accordance with the internal rotation of KPMG . unanimously
Mar.23th, : L S unanimously
2020 Internatlongl Cooperat!ve, it is proposed to engage Yi-Lien approved approved
Han and Di-Nuan, Chien as contracted CPAs for financial the proposal.
the proposal.
statements of the Company.
5. It was proposed to evaluate the independence and suitability
of the CPAs appointed by the Company.

I1. In regard to the recusal of Independent Directors from voting due to conflict of interests, the name of the
Independent Directors, the proposal content, reasonsfor recusal due to conflict of interests and voting outcomes|
should be specified: None.

[1l. Communications between the independent directors, the Company's chief internal auditor and CPAs (shall
include the material items, methods and results of audits of corporate finance or operations, etc.).

(1)

(1

The Company's chief auditor delivers the audit report (including the follow-up audit items) to all
independent directors for inspection and communication on a regular basis in the following month, and
attends the Audit Committee to discuss the audit proposal.

The CPAs shall report the Company's financial position and audit results to the independent directors at
least on the yearly basis, and communicate with them on major adjustments, amendments by law and
suggestions on internal control.

Note: (1)

)

Where a specific independent director may be relieved from duties before the end of the fiscal year, specify the
date of discharge in the “Remark” section. Actual attendance rate (%) was calculated based on the number of
board meetings held during each director’s term and the number of meetings actually attended by that director.
If an independent director is elected before the end of the year, incoming and outgoing independent directors
shall be listed accordingly, and the Remark column shall indicate whether the status of an independent director
is "outgoing", "incoming" or “re-elected”, and the date of election. Actual attendance rate (%) was calculated on
the basis of the number of meetings held by the audit committee during each independent director’s term and the

number of meetings actually attended by that independent director.
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2. Involvement of supervisorsin functionality of the Board of Directors:
A total of 7 meetings (A) of the Board of Directors were held prior to the reelection
on Jun.10th, 2019. The attendance of supervisors was as follows:

: Actua
Attendancein
Title Name person attend(%zgze rate Remarks
(B) [B/A] (Note)
Supervisor|  Ming-Nai Ma 5 71.43%
Supervisor Ming, Chen 0 0.00%

Other mentionable items:
I.  Composition and Responsibilities of the Supervisors:

Il. Opinionsstated by a Supervisor while attending Board of Directors meetings, the date, session, contents
of the case discussed, resolution of the meeting, as well as the Company's disposition of opinions stated
by the Supervisor: None.

Communication between the supervisors and employees and shareholders (e.g. channel and

method of communication):

The Company communicates with employees and shareholders through the Company's annual

review meeting and shareholders meeting and can a so contact by phone or e-mail.

Communication between the Supervisors and the internal audit manager or CPAs (such as

matters, methods, and results of communication on the finances and state of business of the

Company):

1. The audit supervisor shall attend the audit of the board report as a nonvoting delegate and
distribute the interna audit report to all supervisors for review. The supervisors have no
objection.

2. The supervisor shall meet with the accountant quarterly or occasionally to discuss or
communicate with him or her about his or her financial position by telephone and e-mail, etc.

Note: (1)

@)

Where Supervisors resign before the end of the fiscal year, the remark column shall be annotated with the
date of resignation. Actual attendance rate (%) shall be calculated with the actual attendance during the term
of service.

If asupervisor has been reelected before the end of the year, the names of the new and old Supervisors must
be filled in and the resignation, new appointment, second term appointment, or reelection dates shall be
specified in the remarks section. The attendance rate (%) is calculated by attendance in person during the
term of service.
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an

Implementation of Corporate Governance, and Deviations from the Corporate

Governance Best-Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEX Listed Companies and the

Reasons Thereof:
I mplementation status Deviations from
the Corporate
Governance Best-
. Practice Principles
Evaluation Item vedNo Summary for TWSE/TPEX
Listed Companies
and reasons
thereof
I.  Doesthe company establish and |v/ The Company and our subsidiaries (hereinafter referred Compliant
disclose the Corporate to as "the Consolidated Company™) have established the
Governance Best-Practice Code of Best Practice for Corporate Governance based
Principles based on “Corporate on “Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles for
Governance Best-Practice TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies”. The information has
Principles for TWSE/TPEx been disclosed and published in the Market Observation
Listed Companies™? Post System (MOPS) and on the Company’s website.
Il.  Shareholding structure &
shareholders’ rights
() Doesthe company establishan |v/ () The Consolidated Company has dedicated Compliant
internal operating procedure to personnel from the accounting section of the
deal with shareholders’ Department of Finance to handle all stock affairs.
suggestions, doubts, disputes The spokesman receives suggestions, doubts and
and litigations, and implement disputes of shareholders and involves no litigation
based on the procedure? with shareholders.
(1)  Does the company possessthe |¥' (I  The Consolidated Company maintains close ties Compliant
list of its major shareholders as with its mgjor shareholders and keeps track of the
well as the ultimate owners of shareholding status of and the ultimate controllers
those shares? of the magjor shareholders through the register of
shareholders provided by the stock affairs agency.
(1) Does the company establish and |/ (1) The Consolidated Company has devel oped Compliant
execute the risk management "Operating Procedures for Loan of Fundsto
and firewall system withinits Others’, "Endorsement and Guarantee Operating
conglomerate structure? Procedures’, "Handling Procedures for Acquiring
or Disposing Real Estate, Equipment or Assets
with Right to Use" and "Procedures for
Supervision and Management of Subsidiaries’ and
other procedures, establishing a control mechanism
and firewall between itself and the related
enterprises.
(IV) Doesthe company establish v (IV) Initsinternal major information processing Compliant
internal rules against insiders procedures and the " Code of Best Practice for
trading of securities with Corporate Governance", the Consolidated
undisclosed information? Company clearly stipulates that insiders are
prohibited from buying and selling securities with
unpublished information on the market. It also
provides insiders with education and publicity
information on relevant laws and regulations and
restates the Code from time to time in accordance
with the regulations.
I11.  Composition and
Responsibilities of the Board of
Directors
() Doesthe Board develop and v () Article 20 of the "Code of Best Practice for Compliant
implement a diversified policy Corporate Governance" of the Consolidated
for the composition of its Company stipulates that the composition of the
members? Board of Directors shall consider diversity. The
current Board of Directors of the company consists
of 9 directors, including 6 directors and 3

28



Implementation status

Deviations from

the Corporate
Governance Best-
. Practice Principles
Evaluation Item vedNo Summary for TWSE/TPEX
Listed Companies
and reasons
thereof
independent directors. The members have rich
experience and expertise in the fields of finance,
commerce and management. In addition, the
Company also focuses on gender equality in the
composition of the Board of Directors, the targeted
ratio of female Directors is more than 25%,
currently there are 9 directors, including 3 female
director, hitting the target. Please see Note 1 for
details of the implementation of the board diversity
policy.
(1) Isthe Company, in addition to ¥ |(I)  The Consolidated Company has set up a Compliant
establishing the Remuneration compensation committee and an audit committee
Committee and audit in accordance with the law. In the future, other
committee, pursuant to laws, functional committees will be set up based on the
willing to voluntarily establish needs of operational development and regulatory
any other functional requirements.
committees?
(111) Hasthe Company established a |v (1) The Consolidated Company has decided on the Compliant
set of policies and assessment 12th meeting of the 11th Board of Directors on
tools for evaluating board Mar. 26th, 2018 to set out the performance
performance, and conducted evaluation method for the Board of Directors. On
performance evaluation on a the 19th meeting of the 11th Board of Directors on
yearly basis? Are performance Mar. 20th, 2019, it was revised in accordance with
evaluation results reported to the latest resolution. Its evaluation indicators were
the Board of Directors and used revised in accordance with the laws and actual
asreference for compensation, operation requirements. The evaluation shall be
remuneration and nomination carried out every year according to the latest
decisions? resolution and shall be completed before the end of
the first quarter of the following year for the
overall operation of the Board of Directors, the
performance of individual directors and the
performance of functional committees. The Board
performance evaluation of 2019 was reported at the
7th meeting of the 12th Board of Directors and
disclosed on the company's website on Mar. 23th,
2020. The Board of Directors of the Consolidated
Company is functional well. Please see Note 2 for
the relevant evaluation results.
(IV) Doesthe Company conduct v (IV) Inorder to implement corporate governance and Compliant

regular assessments regarding
the independence of its financial
statement auditors?

evaluate the independence and competency of
certified public accountants, the accounting section
of the Department of Finance regularly evaluates
the independence and competency of certified
public accountants every year and makes written
records. After the end of each year, the evaluation
results are summarized and submitted to the audit
Committee and the Board of Directors after being
approved by the competent authority. The
Consolidated Company proposed at the 5th
meeting of the first Audit Committee on Mar.23rd,
2020 and at the 7th meeting of the 12th Board of
Directors that based on the internal rotation of
KPMG International Cooperative, from the first
quarter of 2020, the Company would contract with
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Implementation status

Deviations from

the Corporate
Governance Best-
. Practice Principles
Evaluation Item vedNo Summary for TWSE/TPEX
Listed Companies
and reasons
thereof
CPAs Di-Nuan, Chien and Shu-Ying Chang, were
replaced by Yi-Lien Han and Di-Nuan, Chien. An
assessment report on the independence and competency
of the CPAs was submitted at the same time. Please see
Note 3 for the results of the independence and
competency assessment. According to the assessment,
the personal qualifications of two CPAs, Yi-Lien Han
and Di-Nuan, Chien of KPMG International Cooperative,
arein line with the executive accountant business, and
they involve no direct or indirect financial interest
relationship with the Consolidated Company or directors.
All the assessment items such as the auditing, tax service
quality and timeliness of the accountants arein line with
the standards, which is adequate for them to serve as
CPAsin 2020 for the Consolidated Company.
IV. Hasthe TWSE/TPEX listed v The accounting section of the Department of Finance Compliant
Company allocated adequate shall be responsible for handling various corporate
number of competent corporate governance-related matters, providing information
governance staff and appointed required by directors and independent directorsto carry
a Chief Corporate Governance out their business, assisting them in complying with laws
Officer to oversee corporate and regulations and taking up their duties, arranging
governance affairs (including education and training for their continuing education and
but not limited to providing handling relevant matters of the Board of Directors and
directors/supervisors with the shareholders meeting in accordance with the law,
information needed to perform making minutes of the Board of Directors and
their duties, assisting shareholders meeting and other matters, and disclosing
directors/supervisors with relevant information on corporate governance,
compliance issues, convention stakeholders and corporate social responsibility on the
of board meetings and company's website.
sharehol der meetings, and
preparation of board/shareholder
meeting minutes)?
V. Has Company provided proper |v The Consolidated Company has a spokesman and a Compliant
communication channels and shareholder service agency to communicate with the
created dedicated sections on its stakeholders. In addition, "Corporate Social
website to address corporate Responsihility Section” and "Investors and Stakeholders
social responsibility issues that Section" are set up on the company's website to disclose
are of significant concern to the implementation of corporate social responsibility and
stakeholders (including but not give appropriate responses to important and relevant
limited to shareholders, issues of concern to stakeholders.
employees, customers, €tc.)?
VI. Doesthe Company appointa |V The Consolidated Company has appointed the agency  |Compliant
professional shareholder service department o Chinatrust Commercial Bank asthe
agency to deal with shareholder shareholder service agency to assist in handling all
affairs? relevant affairs of the board of shareholders.
VII. Information disclosure
()  Doesthe company have a v () The Company has built awebsitein accordance  |Compliant

corporate website to disclose
both financial standings and the
status of corporate governance?

with the applicable laws and regulations to disclose
information regarding the Company’s financials,
business and corporate governance status, updates
and maintainsit on aregular basis for the reference
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Implementation status

Deviations from

the Corporate
Governance Best-
. Practice Principles
Evaluation Item vedNo Summary for TWSE/TPEX
Listed Companies
and reasons
thereof
of all audiences.
(1) Doesthe company have other |v/ (I1)  In addition to having a person in charge of Compliant
information disclosure channels collecting and disclosing company information in
(e.g. building an English the accounting section of the Department of
website, appointing designated Finance, the Consolidated Company has also
people to handle information designated its business and finance directors to act
collection and disclosure, as spokesmen and deputy spokesmen respectively
creating a spokesman system, to implement the spokesmen system and to make
webcasting investor immediate statements to the public. It also holds
conferences)? "Corporate Briefing" from time to time every year
to achieve transparency of company information,
and also discloses information about the corporate
briefing in MOPS in accordance with the
regulations of the stock exchange.
(111) Does the company publishand |v/ (1) The Consolidated Company's annual financial Compliant
make officia filing of annual report, the financia reports for the Q1, Q2 and Q3,
financial reports within two and monthly operation reports are all announced
months after the end of an and reported within the prescribed time limit.
accounting period, and
publish/file Q1, Q2, and Q3
financial reports plus monthly
busi ness performance before the
specified due dates?
VIII. Isthere any other important v Employee Rights and Interests and Employee Care: Compliant

information to facilitate a better
understanding of the company’s
corporate governance practices
(e.g., including but not limited
to employee rights, employee
wellness, investor relations,
supplier relations, rights of
stakeholders, directors’ and
supervisors’ training records,
the implementation of risk
management policies and risk
evaluation measures, the
implementation of customer
relations policies, and
purchasing insurance for
directors and supervisors)?

Please refer to the Labor Relations under " Chapter V
Operationa Highlights" of this Annual Report.

Investor Relations. The Consolidated Company has an
Investor Section on its website to fully disclose
information and update it regularly for investors
reference.

Supplier Relationship: The Consolidated Company
conducts transactions with suppliersin afair and
transparent manner based on the principle of integrity
management, and ensures that the contracts signed are
performed.

Rights of Stakeholders: The Consolidated Company has
a"Stakeholder Section" on its website through which
stakehol ders can make feedbacks.

Status of Directors and Supervisors Continuing
Education: The Consolidated Company has regularly
disclosed relevant information on the status of directors
and supervisors' continuing education and their
attendance at Board meetings in the MOPS,
Implementation of risk management policy and risk
measurement standard: Please refer to " Chapter 7
Review and Analysis of Financial Position and Operating
Results, and Risk Management" of this Annual Report.
Implementation of customer policy: The Consolidated
Company has a customer service department to serve
customers, and a dedicated person will handle customer
complaints to maintain long-term stable and good
relations with customers.

Purchase of liability insurance by the Company for
directors and supervisors: Since Jun.10th, 2019, the
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Implementation status

Evaluation Item

Yes|No

Summary

Deviations from
the Corporate
Governance Best-
Practice Principles
for TWSE/TPEX
Listed Companies
and reasons
thereof

Company has been purchasing liability insurance to
protect itself against the liabilities of directors,
supervisors and managers. The important details of the
insurance, such as the insured amount, coverage and
premium rate, are submitted to the Board of Directors for
reporting purpose.

The connection between directors' performance
evaluation and remuneration: The Company allocates 2%
of the annual profitsto directors and supervisorsin
accordance with the Articles of Incorporation, and
authorizes the Board of Directors to negotiate the
remuneration of directors and supervisors according to
the degree of their participation in the operation and the
value of their contribution, and in accordance with the
usual standards of peers. The remuneration to the
Company's managers shall be verified by the chairmanin
accordance with the table of remuneration ranges, the
calculation methods of business performance-based
bonus and assessment methods, and submitted to the
Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors for
review. In the future, the rationality of the remuneration
system will be reviewed in atimely manner based the
actual operations and the salaries paid by peers, so asto
strike a balance between the Company's sustainable
operation and risk control.

IX. Please provide information on the status of improvement regarding the results of Corporate Governance eval uation
published by the TWSE Corporate Governance Center in the most recent year. For improvements that are yet to be
implemented, state the areas and policies the Company has set as priority for improvement:

No. Item Improved Description
or not
1.9 |Doesthe company upload the English No It is expected to be implemented by the Company in
version of the meeting notice 30 days 2020.
prior to the annua shareholders
meeting?

1.10 |Does the company upload the English No It is expected to be implemented by the Company in
version of the meeting handbook and 2020.
additional references 30 days prior to
the annual shareholders’ meeting?

1.11 |Does the company upload the English No It is expected to be implemented by the Company in
version of the annual report 7 days prior 2020.
to the annual shareholders meeting?

2.10 [Does the company set up an Audit Yes |It has been established. The Consolidated Company
Committee that meets the requirements? was established after the shareholders meeting on

Jun. 10th, 2019. All its members are independent
directors.

2.12 |Has the company set up a Remuneration Yes It has been established that more than half of the
Committee with more than half of the members of the Consolidated Company are
members being independent directors? independent directors after the shareholders meeting

on Jun. 10th, 2019.
2.15 |Has the Company disclosed the Yes |The Company has disclosed the communication
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Implementation status

Evaluation Item
Yes|No

Summary

Deviations from
the Corporate
Governance Best-
Practice Principles
for TWSE/TPEX
Listed Companies
and reasons

thereof

communication status between the
independent directors and the internal
audit supervisors and certified public
accountants (such as the ways of
communication, items and results of the
Company's financial reports, financial
and business conditions) on the

status of independent directors, internal audit
supervisors and CPAs on the Company website.

Company's website?

2.25 |Have the Company's independent Yes |All directors of the Company completed their study
directors completed the hours of hours in accordance as required in 2019.
continuing education required by the
"Directions for the |mplementation of
Continuing Education for Directors and
Supervisors of TWSE/TPEX
Companies'?

3.5 |Doesthe Company upload the English No It is expected to be implemented by the Company in
version of the annual financial report to 2020.
MOPS 7 days prior to the annual
shareholders’ meeting?

3.6 |Does the company website or MOPS No It is expected to be implemented by the Company in
disclose interim financial reportsin 2020.
English?

3.18 |Has the company built an English No It is expected to be implemented by the Company in
company website that includes 2020.
financial, business and corporate
governance related information?

4.15 |Does the company's website or annual No |The Consolidated Company has disclosed the
report disclose the business integrity established code of business integrity management
management policies and specify on the company's website and has actively
specific practices to prevent dishonest publicized it to its employees and partners for full
conducts? communication.

4.2 |Hasthe Company established a No The Company has disclosed the relevant promotion

dedicated (adjunct) unit for promoting
corporate socia responsibilities and
corporate ethics management, and
disclosed in its annual reports and on
the Company's website about the
operation and implementation of the
unit, and reported regularly to the Board
of Directors?

plans and implementation results of corporate social
responsibility in its annual report. A CSR Section
has been set up on the Company's website to
explain the relevant operation and implementation
of corporate social responsibility. The plan will be
reported regularly to the Board of Directors.
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Note 1.The composition of the Board of Directorsis diversified, as shown in the following table.

Diversification Basic Composition Professional Competence Background
Core Ade Independent Director's
Item 9 Years of Service o s Iz o - w
) 2la|2|8 ] 8|1 9o|s a.
also serving as - = g. é a g |-8 © s s |2 » i
o Gender (Parent Alg g g w 3 & 5 |3 |BE g |23 % 8
Nationality Company) als|g = b = = g 5 21231 %5 |€|3|¢ g
mecomays| 81218\ £\ 21 818|888 \52\0 |7 |8 |E |5
Nare oo (BI85 5 % |F B8 &5 |E|e|E| |3
g1 g g8 |~ |39 |3 & S g
% » Q@
Mike, Ma Re'éﬁlr:; of Male v v v v v v
Mei-Chu Liu Re'éﬁlr:; of Female v v v v v v
Ming, Chen Re‘éﬁg; of Female v v v v v
Ching-Chin, Hung Re‘éﬁg; of Male v v v v v v
Sheng-An Chang Re‘éﬁg; of Male v 44 v v v v v
Ching-Fen, Chang Re’éﬁlr:; of Female v v v v v v v
Hung-Chin, Reput_)lic of Male v v v v v v v
Huang China
Shen-Yu, Kung Regﬁlr:; of Male v v v v v v v
Kuo-Feng, Lin Re%;:'ﬂ'; of Male v v v v v v

Note 2.The results of performance evaluation of the Board of Directors and functional committeesin
2019 are detailed in the following table.

l. Overall Performance Evaluation Results of the Board of Directors:

Iltle(;'.] Evaluation Item Compl(al))o nrate
1 Degree of participation in the Company's operations 95
2 Improvement in the quality of decision-making of the Board of Directors 98
3 Composition and structure of the Board of Directors 100
4 Election and continuous education of Directors 97
5 Internal control 96

Il. Results of Directors Self-evauation:

IILE(T Evaluation Item Compl(al))o nrate
1 Control over the Company's Goals and Tasks 100
2 Understanding of Directors Duties 100
3 Degree of participation in the Company's operations 93
4 Internal Relationship Management and Communication 96
5 Directors Professional Skillsand Continuing Education 93
6 Internal control 97

Results of Performance Self-evaluation of Compensation Committee:

Ilzle? Evaluation Item Compl(al))o nrate

1 Degree of participation in the Company's operations 100

2 Understanding of the responsibilities of afunctional committee 100

3 Improvement in the quality of decision making by the functional 100
committee.

4 The composition of the functional committee, and election and 100
appointment of committee members.

5 Internal control Not applicable
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IV. Resultsof the Audit Committee's Self-evaluation of Performance:

Ililecr)r.] Evaluation Item Compl((oe;:))o nrate

1 Degree of participation in the Company's operations 100

2 Understanding of the responsibilities of afunctional committee 100

3 Improyement in the quality of decision making by the functional 100
committee.

4 The composition of the functional committee, and election and 100
appointment of committee members.

5 Internal control 100

Note 3.The results of the evaluation on independence and competency of CPAs in 2020 are detailed
in the following table.

Item . Areth
No. Evaluation Item Results independent/c%petent’?
1 Does the CPA have a close business relationship and potential No Yes
employment rel ationship with the company or related enterprises?
5 Doesthe CPA hold or broker shares or other securitiesissued by the No Yes
Company or affiliated enterprises?
3 Does the CPA act as the defender or representative of the Company No Yes

or related companies to resolve conflicts with other third parties?
Is the CPA afamily member or relative of the Company's director,
4 |[managerial officer or person holding ancther position that has| No Yes
significant influence on the audit?

Istheformer CPA of the Company from the same firm of the current
CPA, within a year after stepping down, not serving as the

5 Company'sdirector, manager or any position with significant impact No ves
on audit results?
Has the CPA provided audit services for the Company for 7

6 . No Yes
consecutive years?
Has the CPA complied with the Statements of the Code of

7 Yes Yes

Professiona Ethics No.10 on independence?

Does the CPA and audit service team make appropriate suggestions
8 |and keep records on the company's management systemand internal|  Yes Yes
control system?

Does the CPA and audit service team take the initiative to provide
the company with updated laws, revised information and courses?

Yes Yes
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(IV)  Composition, Responsibilities and Functionality of the Remuneration Committee
1. Information and Qualifications of the Remuneration Committee Members:

Qualification At least five years of work experience
Meets one of the following professional | Independence criteria (Note 2)
gualification requirements,
Aningtructor |Currently  [With work
or higher serving asa |experience
positionina |judge, in the areas
department of |prosecutor, |of Number of
commerce, lawyer, commerce, other public
law, finance, |accountant, (law, companies
accounting, or |or other finance, or where the
| dentity other professional |accounting, individua | Remarks
(Note 1) academic practiceor |or concurrently
department  [technician |otherwise |1|2(3|4|5|6|7|8]|9|10[ servesasa
related to the |that must necessary remuneration
business needs|undergo for the committee
of the national business of member
Name Com_panyina examinations|the
public or and Company
private junior [specialized
college, license
college or
university
Independen| Hung-Chin, v v v vlv|vivlviviviviviv] 1 [(Noe3)
t Director Huang
Independen| - Kuo-Feng, v v |v|v|vlvlvlvivlv|v|v]  None | (Note3)
t Director Lin
Other | THNg-Hisuan v v |v|v|vlvivlvlv|v|v|v] None | (Note3)

Notel. For thetitle column, pleasefill in Director, Independent Directors, or others.
Note2. “v*is marked in the space beneath a condition number when a member has met that condition during the two

years prior to election and during his or her period of service. The conditions are as follows. v/

(1) Not an employee of the company or an affiliate.

(2) Notadirector or supervisor of the company or an affiliate.(This excludes concurrent independent director
positions held within the Company and its parent/subsidiary, or in other subsidiaries of the parent
company that are compliant with the Securities and Exchange Act or local laws).

(3) Not anatural-person shareholder who holds shares, together with those held by the person’s spouse, minor
children, or held by the person under others’ names in an aggregate amount of 1% or more than the total
outstanding shares of the Company or ranked in the top-10 holdings.

(4) Notamanager or aspouse, relative within second or third-degree kinship or closer to any personnel listed
in the preceding three subparagraphs.

(5 Not a director, supervisor, or employee of any corporate shareholder that: 1. holds 5% or more of the
Company's outstanding shares; 2. isatop-5 shareholder; or 3. appoints director/supervisor representative
inthe Company according to Paragraph 1 or 2, Article 27 of The Company Act. (Thisexcludes concurrent
independent director positions held within the Company and its parent/subsidiary, or in other subsidiaries
of the parent company that are compliant with the Securities and Exchange Act or local laws).

(6) Not adirector, supervisor, or employee of any other company that controls directorship in the company
or where more than half of total voting rights are controlled by a single party (This excludes concurrent
independent director positions held within the Company and its parent/subsidiary, or in other subsidiaries
of the parent company that are compliant with the Securities and Exchange Act or local laws).

(7) Not adirector, supervisor, or an employee of a company where the chairman, president or any equivalent
position are held by the same person or by hig’her spouse separately (This excludes concurrent
independent director positions held within the Company and its parent/subsidiary, or in other subsidiaries
of the parent company that are compliant with the Securities and Exchange Act or local laws).

(8) Not adirector, supervisor, manager, or shareholder with more than 5% ownership interest in any company
or institution that has financial or business relationship with the Company (however, this excludes
concurrent independent director positions held within companies or institutions that hold more than 20%
but less than 50% outstanding shares of the Company, or in the Company's parent or subsidiary, or in
another subsidiary of the parent that is compliant with the Securities and Exchange Act or local laws).

(9) Not a professiona individual who is an owner, partner, director, supervisor, or manager of a sole
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proprietorship, partnership, company, or institution, or a spouse thereof, that provides commercial, legal,
financial, accounting services or consultation to the Company or its affiliated companies, or those made
an accumulated profit of less than NT$500,000 over the last two years. However, members of the
committee on remuneration or public acquisition review, or the specia committee on merger and
acquisition who perform their functions and powers in accordance with the provisions of the Securities
and Exchange Act or Business Mergers and Acquisitions Act and other relevant regulations shall not be
subject to this provision.
(10) Where none of the circumstances prescribed under the subparagraphs of Article 30 of the Company Act
applies.

Note 3.

According to Article 4 of the organizational rules for the Remuneration Committee of the Consolidated

Company, the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee members are as follows:
(1) Set and review performance evaluation and compensation policies, systems, standards, and structures
applicable to directors and managers.

@)

Regularly assess and determine the achievement of the performance goals of directors, supervisors and

managers, and determine the content and amount of their individual remuneration based on the assessment
results obtained from the performance assessment standards.
The performance evaluation method, remuneration brackets, business performance bonus method and
assessment method of the Board of Directors of the Consolidated Company have been reviewed and approved
by the salary compensation Committee and the Board of Directors.

Information concerning functionality of the Remuneration Committee:

D
)

The Company’s Remuneration Committee consists of 3 members.
Term of these committee members: From Jun.10th, 2019 to the date of

reelecting directors and supervisors in 2022. The Remuneration Committee

held 3 (A) meetings in the most recent year; members’ attendance records are

as follows:

Title

Name

Attendance in person

(B)

Attendance by
Proxy

Actual attendance
rate (%)
[B/A] (Note)

Remarks

Convener

Hung-Chin, Huang

3

0 100.00%

Member

Kuo-Feng, Lin

3

0 100.00%

Member

Tung-Hsuan Wan

3

0 100.00%

Other mentionable items:
I.  If the Board of Directors does not adopt or amend the Remuneration Committee’s suggestions, please
specify the meeting date, term, contents of motion, resolution of the Board of Directors, and the

company’s handling of the remuneration committee’s opinions (if the remuneration approved by the

Board of Directorsis superior than that suggested by the remuneration committee, please specify the

deviation and reason): None.
I1. If amember has adissenting or qualified opinion, if amember has a dissenting or qualified opinion,
that a member has arecord or reservation that is recorded or stated in awritten statement, the date and
session of the Remuneration Committee, the content of the proposal, all members' opinions, and the
handling of the opinions of the member of the Remuneration Committee shall be stated: None.
Implementation:

Remuneration Content of motion and follow-up actions Resolution The Company’s
Committee response to opinions
of the Remuneration
Committee:
The 1t . Compensation to and operating expenses of | All the committee| Submitted to the
meeting of the|  the 12th Board of Directors, the 1st Audit members present | Board of Directors
4th term Committee members and the 4th unanimously and Adopted by all
July 3, 2019 Remuneration Committee members approved the directors present.
. The Company's promotion and salary proposal.
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increase for managers.

The 2nd
meeting of the
4th term
December 9,
2019

. Proposal to pay year-end bonus and

employee compensation to the Company's
managers.

. Proposal of remuneration to the manager by

promotion and transferred from Global Mall
Co., Ltd.

. Proposal of an adjustment to the Company's

organization.

. Amendments to the Company's " Approval

Authority Management Measures'.

All the committee
members present
unanimously
approved the
proposal.

Submitted to the
Board of Directors
and Adopted by all

directors present.

The 3rd
meeting of the
4th term
March 23,
2020

. An updated version of the Company's

"Promotion and Salary Increase Management
Measures'.

. The Company's promotion and salary

increase for managers.

. Amendments to various performance-based

bonus regulations of the company.

. An update of the Company's performance-

based bonus regulations.

. The Company's plan of 2019 to fund and

distribute compensation to employees and
directors

All the committee
members present
unanimously
approved the
proposal.

Submitted to the
Board of Directors
and Adopted by all

directors present.

Note: (1) Where members of the Remuneration Committee resign before the end of the year, the Notes column shall
be annotated with the date of resignation. Actual attendance rate (%) shall be calculated using the number of
Remuneration Committee meetings convened and attendance in person during the term of service.

(2) If any member was re-elected before the end of the year, incoming and outgoing members shall be listed
accordingly, and the Remark column shall indicate whether the member's status is " Outgoing"”, "'Incoming"
or "Re-elected”, and the date of re-election. For the remuneration to employees, a salary structure for
employers is designed according to the evauation of their functions and positions. There are various
performance bonus methods and "promotion and salary adjustment management measures” the annual
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V)

Implementation of Social Responsibilities and Deviations from “the Corporate Social

Responsibility Best-Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies” and the

Reasons Thereof
I mplementation status Deviations
from the
Corporate
Social
Responsihility
Best-Practice
Evaluation Item Principles for
Y egNoO Summary TWSE/TPEX
Listed
Companies
and the
Reasons
Thereof
I.  Doesthe Company conduct risk |v/ The Administrative Management Office and the Business|Compliant
assessment of environmental, Office of the Consolidated Company are responsible for
social and corporate governance formulating and implementing corporate social
issues related to the Company's responsibility policies, regularly identifying stakehol ders,
operations in accordance with the collecting and examining issues of concern to
materiality principle, and stakehol ders, ensuring that all major considerations are
formulate relevant risk covered, reporting the implementation results to the
management policies or chairman of the Board of Directors from time to time,
strategies? i dentifying and examining the performance on
environmental, social and corporate governance i ssues,
and proposing strategic plans and taking measures based
on performance eval uation. The Company's corporate
social responsibility implementation results and detailed
contents are disclosed in the company's annual corporate
social responsibility report and on the Company's
website.
1. Doesthe Company establishan |v/ The Administrative Management Office of the Compliant
exclusively (or part-time) Consolidated Company is responsible for promoting
dedicated unit for promoting measures such as employee working environment and
Corporate Socia Responsibility? personal safety protection. The Business Officeis
Is the unit authorized by the responsible for the implementation of environmental
Board of Directorsto implement protection, social welfare, consumer rights and other
CSR activities at the executive corporate socia responsibility activities, and make non-
level? Does the unit report the periodical reports the implementation of various activitieg
progress of such activitiesto the to the chairman of the Board.
Board of Directors?
I11.  Environment issues
(I) Doesthe company establish v (I) The Consolidated Company is not a manufacturing (Compliant
proper environmental company, verification by environmental
management systems based on the| management systems such as 1S014001 is not
characteristics of their industries? applicable. However, it is committed to promoting
garbage classification and recycling of advertising
and display products to reduce the amount of
garbage. It also requires that the management of
projects under construction be improved to reduce
noise and air pollution, and greening operations be
(I1) Does the company endeavor to followed in the work area.
utilize all resources more v (I1) The Consolidated Company has actively invested in [Compliant
efficiently and use renewable green building design, used environmental -friendly
materials which have low impact building materialsin individua projects, take
on the environment? rainwater recovery and water conservation measures
in the base, and promoted e-filing operations, made
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I mplementation status

Deviations

implement reasonable employee
benefits measures (including
compensation, days-off, and other
benefits, etc.), and appropriately
link the operating performance or
results to employee

from the
Corporate
Social
Responsihility
Best-Practice
Evaluation Item Principles for
Y egNoO Summary TWSE/TPEX
Listed
Companies
and the
Reasons
Thereof
full use of recycled paper and replaced power-
consuming lamps to improve the efficiency of
(1) Does the company evaluate the various resources.
potential risks and opportunities |v/ (111) The Consolidated Company pays close attentionto  (Compliant
caused by climate change to the the impact of global climate change on its
Company now and in the future, operations. It includes climate change in major
as well astaking corresponding environmental issues for risk and opportunity
measures to issues regarding the assessment. In implementing the project plan, it
climate? takes into account the buffer time and the
improvement of flood control standardsto avoid
(IV) Does the company add up the disasters or delays caused by climate change.
amount of greenhouse gas v (IV) The Consolidated Company has made statisticson  (Compliant
emissions, water consumption and water and electricity consumption and total waste
total weight of waste in the past weight for more than two years, which are disclosed
two years, and formulate policies in the corporate socia responsibility report. It has
on energy conservation and developed energy conservation plans and related
carbon reduction, greenhouse gas management measures to reduce daily energy
reduction, water consumption consumption, and regularly announce photocopy
reduction or other waste paper and water and electricity consumption to
management? promote the concept of energy conservation;
advocated public transportation to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions; implemented garbage
classification and reduced the use of disposable
products; implemented energy-saving measures such
as reducing power consumption and lighting in
public spaces and timely adjusting air conditioners
to achieve the goals of energy conservation, carbon
reduction and greenhouse gas reduction.
IV. Socid issues
() Hasthe company devel oped v () The Consolidated Company abides by various labor [Compliant
appropriate management policies laws and international human rights principles,
and procedures according to purchases labor insurance, health care insurance and
relevant regulations and the group accident insurance for all employees, and
International Bill of Human provides pension to ensure the protection of their
Rights? rights and interests, respects and treats employees
fairly. In order to ensure that their daily operations
conform to corporate ethics, the Consolidated
Company has formulated such basic codes of
conduct as " Code of Ethical Conducts' and "Code of
Corporate Social Responsibility Best Practice”.
(11) Does the company formulate and [v/ (I1) The Consolidated Company attaches great Compliant

importance to employee benefits, employs
professional consultantsto analyze and investigate
the market salary, welfare status and employment
environment, formulates a reasonable employee
salary and reward policy and sets up a Remuneration
Committee to regularly review the performance and

40



I mplementation status Deviations
from the
Corporate
Social
Responsihility
Best-Practice
Evaluation Item Principles for
Y esNO Summary TWSE/TPEX
Listed
Companies
and the
Reasons
Thereof

compensation? salary and reward standards of directors and
managers, and allocates any profitsin the year
stipulated in the Articles of Incorporation.

For the remuneration to employees, a salary
structure for employers is designed according to the
evaluation of their functions and positions. There are
various performance bonus methods and " promotion
and salary adjustment management measures'. The
annual performance bonus combines with key
performance indicators to include the department's
performance and achievement of objectivesin the
evaluation items. The eval uation results affect the
bonus distribution ratio, grade promotion and salary
adjustment range. |n addition, it provides avacation
system that complies with laws and regulations, and
afavorable employee welfare and insurance system. |Compliant

(111) Does the company provide a (111) The Consolidated Company regularly organizes
healthy and safe work safety and health education and training for its
environment, and does it organize employees, and conducts health examination for
health and safety training for its employees every year. At the same time, in order to
employees on aregular basis? create afriendly workplace environment, a nursing

roomis set up for female colleagues who breast-feed
and collect milk after childbirth, so asto meet the

needs of employees in a considerate manner. Compliant
(IV) Has the company established (V) The Human Resources Department of the
effective career development and Administrative Management Office of the
training plans for its employees? Consolidated Company draws up an annual training

plan based on the needs of the Company and its
employees, and conducts education and training
according to the plan to help employees improve
their professional knowledge and skills.

(V) Hasthe company complied with (V) The Consolidated Company abides by relevant laws |[Compliant
relevant laws and regulations and and regulations regarding customer health and
international standards for its safety, customer privacy, marketing and labeling of
products and services respecting products and services, and regularly reviewsthe
customer health and safety, legality. In case of problems such as customer
customer privacy, marketing and response quality, the Company provides customer
labeling, and formulated relevant service hotline and CRM system management,
consumer protection policies and complete the response within 24 hoursin
grievance procedures? combination with LINE life circle, and provide
immediate after-sales service.
(V1) Does the company formulate a (V1) The Consolidated Company has listed the supplier's [Compliant
supplier management policy that credit and social image as key items for selection,
requires suppliersto follow and has actively advocated the necessity of keeping
relevant regulations on issues up with issues such as environmental protection,
such as environmental protection, occupational safety and health, or labor human
occupational safety and health, or rights, and has stated in the contract that suppliers
labor rights? And, how well are that violate its major corporate social responsibility
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Evauation Item

I mplementation status

Deviations

Y esNO Summary

from the
Corporate
Social
Responsihility
Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
Listed
Companies
and the
Reasons
Thereof

those policies implemented?

policies will terminate or rescind the contracts
signed with them.

V. Doesthe company, following v
internationally recognized
guidelines, prepare and publish
reports such as its Corporate
Social Responsibility report to
disclose non-financial
information of the company? Is
this report verified or endorsed by
aneutra third party?

The Consolidated Company has compiled a corporate
social responsibility report with reference to the Global

Social Responsibility Best Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEc-Listed Companies promulgated by the
Taiwan Stock Exchange/GreTal Securities Market. The

(BSl) and the verification results conform to GRI
Standard-Core Options and the AA 1000 International
Standard.

Reporting Initiative (GRI) Standards, the United Nations
Sustai nable Development Goals (SDG) and the Corporate

report has been verified by the British Standards I nstitute

Compliant

V1. If the Company has established the corporate social responsibility best practice principles based on the
"Corporate Social Responsibility Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEX Listed Companies”, please describe
any inconsi stence between the Principles and their implementation:
The Consolidated Company has developed its corporate social responsibility best practice principlesin
accordance with the " Corporate Social Responsibility Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies* and itsimplementation is not significantly different from the Code.

practices:

\/11. Other important information to facilitate better understanding of the company's Corporate Social Responsibility

() Environmental protection, safety and health:
The Consolidated Company's control over environmental protection and safety and health isimplemented in
accordance with laws and regulations. Please refer to "1V. Information of Environment Protection
Expenses' under "Chapter V Operational Highlights' of this Annual Report.

(1)  Public Benefit:

1. The Consolidated Company donated to set up the "Kindom Y u San Education Foundation” in 2014,
which aims at organizing various educational activities, cultivating outstanding talents, deepening
exchanges between industry and university, encouraging forward-looking thinking, improving reading
atmosphere and promoting social progress. In 2019, the Consolidated Company donated a total of
NT$10.5 million to the foundation for its business promation. In 2019, the foundation organized and
sponsored several public welfare activities, the details of which are as follows:

- - Number of
Activity Description beneficiaries
. L . . More than
Reading Program | Through the concept of shared celebrities story book reading, which was one million
of "Celebrity broadcast on Universal News, DaAi TV, Yahoo TV, iQiyi and youtube channel hits on the
Study" of Celebrity Study, the audiences were inspired to improve reading atmosphere. Internet
Regular thematic book exhibitions were held, and lectures and workshops were
Better Life prov_ided in coordinati_on with each f[heme. Access was provided to the general
Reading Program public, community residents and business colleagues. Through the exchangeand| Over 100
interaction of physical activities, participants acquired knowledge in different
fields was acquired and enriched their experiences of self-learning and growth.
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I mplementation status

Deviations

from the
Corporate
Social
Responsihility
Best-Practice
Evaluation Item Principles for
Y esNO Summary TWSE/TPEX
Listed
Companies
and the
Reasons
Thereof
Sponsorship
Scheme for Through the adoption of "Little Grass Bookstore" by Taiwan's Urban and Rural
Assistant Sustainable Care Association, a complete community support system for Over 100
Teachers of vulnerable children aged 6 to 18 years old was constructed so that every child
"Little Grass could grow up and dream in a stable learning environment.
Bookstore"
%:(iﬁzratlon Plan Development of young people's skills through the Woodworking Program of
. Grass Vocational Academy. Under the leadership of carpenters, children made
Woodworking : S . )
Program of Grass plague and wood carvings, c_:o_ntl nuing the sustainable c_ooperatlo_n betvyeen _the Over 200
Vocational academy and the_ c_h!IQren, giving encouragement, opening the children's vision
to see more possibilities for themselves.
Academy
To provide opportunities for students from rura areas, the elderly and the
The Dream disadvantaged groups to watch performances in the hall, to learn relevant
Challenging knowledge through guided tours, to narrow the gap between urban and rura Over 100
Program of Zero- | students, and to enhance aesthetic education. With the hope that participants can
distance Art Hall |inspire more creative and beautiful possibilities for the future through
professional guided tours and performances.
Presenting high-quality books to community library, Grass Bookstore/Grass
Vocational Academy, Dream Home Education Foundation, Second Spring of
Books Giveaway Love Cultural and Educational Foundation, Songshan Family Business Library, Over 800
Chrigtian Friendship Center, Xinbei Great Harmony Private Nursery School,
Taidong County Dawu Junior High School, Taipei National Elementary School
and other entities to encourage the public to read.

2. The Consolidated Company and the Xinbei City government hold a quarterly "Urban Recreation Lecture
Series' to enhance the public's understanding of the substance of urban renovation and relevant laws and

regulations.

3. The Consolidated Company held a mountain cleaning activity at the end of 2019, inviting employees and
their families to participate together to make a contribution to the maintenance of a beautiful natural

environment.
(111) Consumer rights and interests:

The Consolidated Company has a customer service department, which will handle customer complaints and

provide permanent after-sales service.
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(V1)

Implementation of Ethical Corporate Management, and Deviations from the Ethical

Corporate Management Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEXx Listed Companies,

and the Reasons Thereof
I mplementation status Deviations
fromthe
Corporate
Social
Responsibility
Best-Practice
Evaluation Item Principlesfor
Y esNo Summary TWSE/TPEx
Listed
Companies
and the
Reasons
Thereof
I.  Establishment of ethical
corporate management policies
and programs
(1) Doesthe company formulateits | v/ () Inorder to implement the integrity management Compliant
ethical corporate management policy, the Consolidated Company has formulated
policies that have been approved the "Code of Best Practice for Corporate
by the Board of Directors? Has Governance" and the "Code of Corporate Ethics
the Company declared its ethical Management” approved by the Board of Directors
corporate management policies to regulate the standards that the directors and
and proceduresin its guidelines management of the company should abide by when
and external documents, and performing their duties, and actively publicize the
does the Board of Directors and code to employees and partners. The codeis also
management work proactively to disclosed on the company website for compliance
implement their commitment to
those management policies?
(I1) Doesthe company establishan | v/ (I1) The Consolidated Company establishes an effective |Compliant
assessment mechanism for internal control system. Employees are strictly
unethical risks, according to prohibited from directly or indirectly demanding
which it analyzes and assesses gifts, kickbacks, entertainment or other improper
operating activities with high benefits from the company's customers and
potential unethical risks? Does manufacturers, and the audit office conducts regular
the mechanism include any or irregular checks on al departments.
precautionary measures against
all the conducts as stated under
Paragraph 2, Article 7, of the
Ethical Corporate Management
Best Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEX Listed Companies?
(I11) Hasthe Company established |/ (I11) The Consolidated Company not only stipulates that {Compliant
policies to prevent unethical employees must not behave dishonestly in
conduct, with clear statements personnel regulations such as " Staff Work Rules’,
regarding relevant procedures, but also lists preventive operation procedures in the
conduct guidelines, punishments training programs for new employees or other
for violation, and rules for personnel education and training courses.
appeal, and does the Company
implement them accordingly,
and regularly review and correct
such measures?
Il.  Ethical corporate management
(I) Doesthe company evaluate v ()  When the Consolidated Company selects suppliers, {Compliant
business partners’ ethical records not only is credit investigation conducted, but also
and include ethics-related the terms of good faith behavior are specified in the
clausesin business contracts declaration statements.
with trading partners?
(11) Hasthe company established an | v/ (I1) The Human Resources Department of the Compliant
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Implementation status

Deviations

standard operating procedures

for the reported matters, the

from the
Corporate
Social
Responsibility
Best-Practice
Evaluation Item Principlesfor
Y esNo Summary TWSE/TPEx
Listed
Companies
and the
Reasons
Thereof
exclusively (or concurrently) Administrative Management Office isresponsible
dedicated unit under the Board for formulating and publicizing the business
to implement ethical corporate policies and regulations of the Consolidated
management, and report to the Company. The Audit Office conducts follow-up
Board on aregular basis (at |east inspections and reports to the Board of Directors at
annually) about the ethical the end of each year.
corporate management policies,
precautionary measures against
unethical conducts, as well as the
implementation and supervision
thereof?
(I11) Hasthe company established v (111) The Human Resources Department and the Audit  |[Compliant
policiesto prevent conflicts of Office of the Administrative Management Office
interests, provided proper are jointly responsible for formulating policiesto
channels of appeal, and enforced prevent conflicts of interest and accepting
these policies and channels statements from relevant personnel.
accordingly?
(IV) Hasthe company established v (IV) The Consolidated Company has established an Compliant
effective accounting systems and accounting system and an internal control system to
internal control systems to ensure the effectiveness of the financial reporting
implement ethical corporate process and internal control. The audit office draws
management and had its internal up an audit plan based on the risk assessment
audit unit, based on the results of results, and conducts regular or irregular audits of
assessment of the risk of various business activities to ensure the effective
involvement in unethical implementation of various systems, and reports the
conduct, devise relevant audit audit results to the audit committee and the Board
plans and audit the compliance of Directors.
with the prevention programs
accordingly or entrusted a CPA
to conduct the audit? i
(V) Doesthe company regularly hold| v | |(V) The Human Resources Department of the Compliant
internal and external educational Administrative Management Office of the
trainings on ethical corporate Consolidated Company regularly organizes relevant
management? education and training courses, and strengthens
publicity and guidance in business meetingsin
order to implement them.
I11.  Status of enforcing whistle-
blowing systems in the company | , () The Consolidated Company hasacomplaintand  |[Compliant
(I) Hasthe company established a report mailbox and a dedicated line. Human
concrete whistleblowing and Resources Department of the Administrative
rewarding system, and set up Management Office is responsible for handling
accessible methods for relevant affairs, complaints and punishments
whistleblowers, and designate according to the Company's prescribed operating
appropriate and dedicated procedures, and the immediate top manager of the
personnel to investigate the person to be reported shall act as the person
accused? responsible for handling the case.
(I1) Hasthe company established v (I1)  After accepting the report, the Human Resource  |[Compliant

Department of the Administrative Management
Office of the Consolidated Company will
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an)

measures to be taken after immediately submit it to the Audit Office or the
investigation is completed, and head of the responsible department for

the relevant confidential investigation. Both the receiver and the investigator
mechanism? are responsible for keeping confidential the
personal information of the whistleblower and
related information of such case.

Does the company take any v (111) The Consolidated Company adopts anonymous Compliant
measures to protect treatment on the identity of informants, taking non-
whistleblowers so that they are infringement of their rights and interests as the
safe from mishandling? supreme principle.

Enhanced disclosure of v The Consolidated Company will disclose the contents  [Compliant
corporate social responsibility specified in the code of good faith operation in the CSR
information section of the company's website, and update the

Does the company discloseits promotion results at any time. Relevant information will
ethical corporate management al so be disclosed at the public information observatory.
policies and the results of its
implementation on the
Company’s website and MOPS?

Where the Company has stipulated its own Code of Corporate Ethics Management according to the Ethical
Corporate Management Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEX Listed Companies, please describe any
differences between the prescribed best practices and the actual activities taken by the Company:

()  The Company has stipulated its own ethical corporate management best practices according to the "Ethical
Corporate Management Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEX Listed Companies’ and have them
implemented exactly, ensuring no significant difference between the prescribed best practices and the actual
activities taken by the Company:

(I1)  The Company attaches great importance to integrity and credit management, and organized education and
training courses related to integrity and credit management issues (e.g. education and training for
newcomers, etc. on the issues of corporate culture and integrity and credit management, and on money
laundering prevention laws etc.) in 2019, totaling 16 person-times and 63 hours.

V1.

(I

an

Other important information to facilitate a better understanding of the company's ethical corporate management

policies (e.g. review and amend its policies).

()  The Consolidated Company abides by the Company Act, the Securities and Exchange Act, the Business
Entity Accounting Act, the relevant regulations on TWSE/TPEX listing, or other relevant laws and
regulations on commercial acts as the basic concept for the implementation of honest operation.

The "Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors" of the Consolidated Company includes a clause on

withdrawal of directors' interests, stating that directors may state their opinions and answer inquiries on proposals

that have an interest in themselves or their legal representatives and are harmful to the interests of the company,
provided that they are not allowed to join and shall withdraw from discussions and voting, and shall not exercise
their voting rights on behalf of other directors.

The Consolidated Company has "Internal Material |nformation Processing Procedures’, which stipul ates that

directors, supervisors, managers and employees shall not disclose the internal material information they know to

others, shall not inquire or collect the Company's undisclosed internal material information unrelated to their
personal positions from people who know the Company's internal material information, and shall not disclose the
company's undisclosed internal material information to othersif they do not know the company's undisclosed
internal material information due to their business operations.

(IV) The Consolidated Company has a" Code of Corporat Ethics Management" which stipulates that directors,
managers, employees, appointees or persons with substantial control shall not directly or indirectly offer,
promise, demand or accept any illegal benefits or do other dishonest acts such as breach of good faith,
illegality or breach of fiduciary duty in the course of engaging in business related to the company in order
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to obtain or maintain benefits.

(VIl) Whether the company has formulated a corporate governance code and relevant
regulations:
The Consolidated Company has formulated a "Code of Best Practice for Corporate
Governance" and has disclosed it to the public information observatory and the investor
and stakeholder section of the company's website for shareholders to inquire about.
(V1) Other important information sufficient to enhance understanding of corporate
governance operations:
The number of independent directors of the Consolidated Company increased to three
after shareholders meeting in 2019, and an audit committee was set up to strengthen the
functions.
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(IX)  Implementation of the internal control system:
1. Statement of internal control:
Kindom Development Co., Ltd.
Statement on theinternal control system
Date: Mar. 23rd, 2020

Based on the results of our own evaluation, the company's internal control system for 2019 in the
Republic of Chinais hereby declared as follows:

VI.

VII.

The Company fully understands that the establishment, implementation, and maintenance of
Internal Control System (ICS) are the responsibilities of the Company’s Board of Directors and
manageria officers, and have established the said system accordingly The interna control
system is designed to provide reasonable assurance for the effectiveness and efficiency of the
operations (including profitability, performance and protection of assets), reliability, timeliness,
and transparency of reporting, and compliance with applicable laws and regul ations.
All ICSs are bound by natural limitations and regardless of the robustness of designs, effective
ICS can only provide reasonable assurance for the three objectives listed above. Efficacy of the
ICSswill also change with the changing environment or context. However, the internal control
system of the Company has self-monitoring mechanisms in place, and the Company will take
corrective action against any defects identified.
The Company will refer to the Regulations Governing Establishment of Internal Control
Systems by Public Companies (hereinafter referred to as “ICS Regulations”) to identify
assessment items for determining the effectiveness of ICS aswell as the performance of design
and implementation of the system. Based on the process of control, the assessment items
specified in the ICS Regulations divide the internal control system into five constituent
elements: 1. control environment; 2. risk assessment; 3. control activities; 4. information and
communications; and 5. monitoring activities. Each constituent element includes a certain
number of items. For more information on such items, refer to the ICS Regulations.
The Company has used the above internal control system to judge the items and evauate the
effectiveness of the design and implementation of the internal control system.
Based on the findings of such evaluation, the Company believes that, on December 31, 2019, it
has maintained, in all material respects, an effective internal control system (that includes the
supervision and management of our subsidiaries), to provide reasonable assurance over our
operational effectiveness and efficiency, reliability, timeliness, transparency of reporting, and
compliance with applicable rulings, laws and regulations.
This Statement shall be a major content of the Company’s annual report and prospectus, and
shall be publicly disclosed. Any falsehood or concealment with regard to the above contents
will entail legal liability under Articles 20, 32, 171 and 174 of the Securities and Exchange Act.
This Statement has been approved by the Board of Directorsin their meeting held on Mar. 23rd,
2020, with none of the 9 attending Directors expressing dissenting opinions, and the remainder
al affirming the contents of this Statement.

Kindom Development Co., Ltd.

Chairman: Mike, Ma

General Manager: Ching-Chin, Hung
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(X)

(X1)

2. Appointed dedicated CPAs to audit the internal control system: None.

Any legal penaty levied on the Company and its personnel, or any penalty, major
defects, and state of improvements enacted by the Company on its personnel for
violating the rules of the ICS during the most recent year up to the publication date of
this report: None.

Major Decisions of Shareholders’ Meeting and Board Meetings in the most recent year
as of the publication date of the Annual Report:

1. Important Resolutions at the Annual Meeting of Shareholdersin 2019:

Date of meeting Material matters to be resolved | mplementation

2019.06.10 |1. The Company'sfinancial statementsfor 2017 was |The resolution has been followed.

adopted and acknowledged.

2. The Company's Distribution Plan for Retained Distribution was to be made on
Earnings of 2017 was adopted and acknowledged. [Aug. 1st, 2019 at NT$1 cash
dividends per share.

3. Amendment to the Company's "Procedures for The resolution has been followed.
Acquiring or Disposing of Assets' was adopted.

4. Amendment to the Company's "Endorsement and | The resolution has been followed.
Guarantee Operating Procedures' was adopted.

5. Amendment to the Company's "Operating The resolution has been followed.
Procedures for Loan of Fundsto Others' was
adopted.

2. Important resolutions at board meetings:

Date_ of | Meting Material matters to be resolved
meeting No.
2019.03.20{ the19th [1. The Remuneration Committee has adopted the "Board Performance Evaluation
meeting of | Measures".
the 11th (2. The Remuneration Committee has approved amendments to the Company's
board various performance bonus measures.
3. The Remuneration Committee adopted the Company's plan of 2018 to fund and
distribute compensation to employees and directors
4. The Company's operation report and financial statements of 2018.
5. The Company's "Earnings Distribution Plan" of 2018.
6. The Company's "Statement on the Internal Control System" of 2018.
7. Amendment to some articles of the Company's "Procedures for Acquiring or
Disposing of Assets’, "Endorsement and Guarantee Operating Procedures’ and
"Operating Procedures for Loan of Fundsto Others".
8. Amendment to some articles of the Company's " Rules of Proceduresfor the Board
of Directors' and the "Code of Corporate Ethics Management”.
9. Formulating the Company's "Organizational Rules of the Audit Committee
10.Election of the 12th Board of Directors of the Company (including mdependent
directors).
11.Proposal of alist of candidates for directors (including independent directors).
12.Formulating the agendafor the annual meeting of shareholders of the Company in
2018 and for other related matters.
2019.04.22 the19th [The list of candidates for directors was adopted and the qualification of the
meeting of |independent director nominees was examined.
the 11th
Board
2019.05.10| the 19th [1. Amendment to some articles of the Company's "Code of Best Practice for
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Date of | Mesting Material mattersto be resolved
meeting No.
meeting of |  Corporate Governance'".
the 11th (2. Establishing the Company's "Standard Operating Procedures for Handling
Board Directors Requests'.

2019.06.10f Thelst |1. Selection of the Company's board chairman.
meeting |2. Engagement of three compensation committee members.
of 12th

Board

2019.06.18| Thelst [1. The Audit Committee has adopted the proposal to add "Management Procedures
meeting for the Discussion in the Audit Committee" to the Company's internal control
the 12th system and revise some articles of the five procedures, including "Operating

Board Procedures for Loan of Fundsto Others', "Endorsement and Guarantee Operating
Procedures', "Operating Procedures for Derivative Commodities Trading",
"Handling Procedures for Acquiring or Disposing of Real Estate, Equipment or
Assets with Right to Use" and "Management Procedures for Discussion in the
Board of Directors".
2. Establishing the benchmark date for the Company's cash dividend distribution for
2018.

2019.08.12 Thelst |1. The Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee has adopted the proposal
meeting for compensation to and operating expenses of the 12th Board of Directors, the
the 12th 1st Audit Committee members and the 4th Remuneration Committee members

Board (2. The Remuneration Committee approved the remuneration to managers subject to
apromotion and salary adjustment, and the Audit Committee approved the salary
adjustment plan for the directors al so serving as empl oyees.

2019.11.08 Thelst |[1. It wasplannedtoissued domestic guaranteed ordinary corporate bondsworth NT$
meeting 1 billion.

of the 12th
Board
2019.12.30[ Thelst [1. The Company's operation plan for 2020.
meeting |2. Tthe Company's audit plan for 2020.
of the 12th|3. The Remuneration Committee adopted the proposal to promote Heng-Chia Chang,
Board amanager, as acting assistant manager, Yi-Hwa Chen, a manager of Global Mall
Co,, Ltd., as special assistant and Hsiu-Hsia Chu, as assistant manager.
4. The Remuneration Committee adopted the proposal to pay year-end bonus and
employee compensation to the managers in accordance with the "Assessment
Measures' of the Company.
5. The Remuneration Committee adopted the Company's organization adjustment
proposal.
6. The Remuneration Committee adopted the amendments to the Company's
"Approval Authority Management Measures'.
7. The Audit Committee adopted the proposal to amend some articles of the three
procedures, including the "Quality Control Manual", "Document and Data Control
Procedures’ and "Internal Audit Procedures’, included in the Company's internal
control system.
8. The Audit Committee adopted the proposal to raise the construction expense for
"Sanchong Dist. Project F " which the Company appointed Kedge Construction
Co., Ltd. to construct.
9. The Audit Committee adopted the proposal to appoint Shengde Construction Co.,

Ltd. to construction " Sanchong Dist. Wuguwang St. Project J*, a new project of
the Company, instead.

10.The Audit Committee adopted the investment contract signed with Taipei City

Urban Regeneration Center, a corporate body, for the "Public Urban Renewal
Project on 5 Plots including the one Numbered 363-1 Spanning Four Subsectiong
at Dunhua Section, Songshan District, Taipei City.

11.The Audit Committee adopted the proposal to evaluate the independence and
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Date of
meeting

Meeting
No.

Material matters to be resolved

suitability of the CPASs appointed by the Company.

12.As Ho Chin-Fu, the Senior Vice General Manager of the Company's Department
of Finance would retire on Dec. 31st, 2019, the Audit Committee has adopted the
proposal that the two positions as finance director and acting spokesman are to bej
respectively taken over by Shu-Yuan Lin, a senior assistant manager at the
Treasury Section of the Company's Department of Finance and Shu-Lian, Chang,
a senior assistant manager at the Accounting Section of the Company's
Department of Finance.

13.The Company has planned to donate NT$ 5.5 million to "Kindom Yu San
Education Foundation", a corporate body.

2020.01.20

The 1t
meeting
of the 12th
Board

1. The Audit Committee adopted the proposal to appoint Kedge Construction Co.,
Ltd. to construct "Sanchong Dist. Erchong Bu Project”, a new project of the
Company.

The Audit Committee adopted the proposal to appoint Kedge Construction Co.,
Ltd. to construct "Wanda Line LG08 Project"”, a new project of the Company.

2020.03.23

The 1t
meeting
of the 12th
board

1. The Remuneration Committee has ratified and approved the proposal of a

promotion and salary adjustment for managersin the Company.

The Remuneration Committee has approved amendments to the Company's

various performance bonus measures.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the Company's "M easures of Kindom

Xinyi for Payment of Business Sales Performance-based Bonus".

The Remuneration Committee has approved amendments to the Company's

performance-based bonus measures.

The Remuneration Committee adopted the Company's plan of 2019 to fund and

distribute compensation to employees and directors.

The Audit Committee adopted the proposal to prepare the Company's " Statement

on the Internal Control System” of 2019.

The Audit Committee adopted the proposa to prepare the Company's operation

report and financial statements of 2019.

The Audit Committee adopted the proposal to develop the Company's "Earningg

Distribution Plan" of 2019.

In accordance with the internal rotation of KPMG International Cooperative, the

Audit Committee adopted the proposal to engage Yi-Lien Han and Di-Nuan,

Chien as contracted CPAsfor financia statements of the Company.

10.The Audit Committee adopted the proposal to evaluate the independence and
suitability of the CPASs appointed by the Company.

11.Amendment to some articles of the Company's" Rules of Proceduresfor the Board
of Directors', the "Code of Corporate Ethics Management" and "Code of Best
Practice for Corporate Social Responsibility".

12. Amendment to some articles of the Company's " Organizational Rules of the Audit
Committee" and the "Code of Best Practice for Corporate Governance'.

13.Formulating the agendafor the annual meeting of shareholders of the Company in
2019 and for other related matters.

2.

(X11) In the most recent year as of the date of this Annual Report, directors or supervisors

showed different opinions on important resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors

with records or written statements: None.

(X11) Summary of resignations and dismissals of persons related financial reports (including
the Chairman, General Managers, Accounting Supervisor and Internal Audit Supervisor,

etc.) in the most recent year as of the date of this Annual Report:
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Dec. 314, 2019

Title

Name

Date of assuming

Date of removad

Reason for resignation or dismissal

office
General Manager of
Developmentand | \iivo va | 20160810 | 2019.12.30 Position adjustment
Investment
Department
Finance Supervisor | Ho Chin-Fu 2015.10.01 2019.12.30 Retired

V. CPAsProfessional Fees:
() Information of Professional Feesto the CPAs (Please stick the applicable brackets or fill
in the appropriate amounts.):
Unit: NT$ Thousands
Non-audit fee .
Accqunti "9| Name of cpas |Audit fee| Designing| Business | Human Other [:')A\elrjsnlél Remarks
firm regul ations|registration|resources| (note 2) | Subtotal
The non-audit f(_ee
Kpmg Di-nuan, chien 'i:tm;éig ;%e;ti];h?;zr'?’v
tertiond 3300 |0 0 | 30| 00 e checkist for full-
Shurying chang 31st, 2019 t[l me empl oyees not
In competent
positions'.
(1) Non-audit fees paid to theCPAs, accounting firm of the CPAs and its affiliated companies
in an amount more than one quarter of the audit fees: None.
(1)  Replacement of CPA firm and the annual audit expenses areless than that of the year prior
to the change: None.
(IV) Audit expenses have decreased by 15% or more from the previous year: None.
VI. Information on CPA replacement: None
VII. Has any of the Company’s Chairman, General Manager, or managers responsible for finance or

accounting duties served in the Company’s CPA firm or its affiliated Company within the most

recent year: None
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VIII. Share equity transfer and changes in equity pledge among the Chairman, Board supervisors,
managers, and shareholders who hold more than 10% of shares, from the past year up to the
date printed on the Annual Report.

()  Changesin equity of directors, supervisors, managers and substantial shareholdersin the
most recent year and as of the date of thisAnnual Report:
(Unit: Share)
2019 Asof Apr. 21st in 2020
Title (Note 1) Name Net Changein | Net Change in | Net Changein | Net Changein
Shareholding |Shares Pledged| Shareholding |Shares Pledged
Chairman and
General Manager of Y u-De Investment Co.
Developmentand | g ecentative: Mike, Ma i i i i
Investment P ' '
Department
Director Y u-De Investment Co. ) ) ) )
Representative: Mei-Chu Liu
. Y u-De Investment Co.
Director and General Representative: Ching-Chin, - - - -
Manager
Hung
. . Y u-De Investment Co.
Director and Vice Representative: Sheng-An, - - - -
General Manager
Chang
Y u-De Investment Co.
Director Representative: Ching-Fen, - - - -
Chang
Director Y u-De Investment Co. i i i i
Representative: Ming, Chen
Independent Director [Hung-Chin, Huang - - - -
Independent Director [Shen-Yu, Kung - - - -
Independent Director [Kuo-Feng, Lin
Supervisor Ming-Nai Ma (Note 2) - - - -
Supervisor Ming, Chen (Note 2) - - - -
Sales and Marketing
Department Ching-Chin, Hung - - - -
General Manager
Development and
vestment Mike, Ma (Note 3) 5,141,000 | 9,000,000 : :
epartment
General Manager
Senior Vice Genera Ai-Wei Yuan i i i i
Manager
I\S/lenlor Vice General Ho Chin-Fu (Note 4) - - - -
anager
Vice Generd Si-Han Chen 7,000 : : :
Manager
,:‘Actl ng Vice Genera Hua-Peng Long i i i i
anager
Senior Assistant Shu-Yuan Lin i i i i
Manager
Senior Assistant Shu-Lian, Chang i i i i
Manager
Senior ANt |- Jung Li (Note 5) . . . .
Manager
Specia Assistant Yi-Hwa Chen (Note 6) - - - -
Assistant Manager  [Qian-Fang, Hwang - - - -
Assistant Manager  [Da-Gung Chou - - - -
Assistant Manager  |Chin-Cheng Chang (Note 7) - - - -
Assistant Manager  [Sung-Chuan, Lin - - - -

53



2019 Asof Apr. 21st in 2020
Title (Note 1) Name Net Changein | Net Changein | Net Changein | Net Changein
Shareholding |Shares Pledged| Shareholding |Shares Pledged

Assistant Manager  [Hsiu-Hsia Chu (Note 8) - - - -
Assistant Manager  [Li-Jen Chou (Note 9) - - - -
Assistant Manager  |Chu-Sheng Wu (Note 10) - - - -
':‘AC“ ng Assistant Chuan-Hung Wu - - - -

anager
Acting Assistant Ta-Hsin, Chou ) ) ) )
Manager
AOING ASISANT | jeng-Chia Chang (Note 11) : : 2,000

anager
Substantial
sharehol der Y u-De Investment Co. - - - -
Substantial . .
shareholder Mei-Chu Liu 16,316,748 - - -
Notel. Shareholders holding more than 10% of the Company's total shares shall be designated as substantial

shareholders and listed separately.

Note2. Resigned on Jun. 10th, 2019, and an audit committee was duly established to act in the capacity of the
SUPEervisors.
Note3. Genera Manager of the Development and Investment Department was resigned on Dec. 30th, 2019.
Note4. Retired on Dec. 31th, 2019 and resigned on Jan. 1st, 2020.
Note5. Newly elected on Aug. 21st, 2019 and resigned on Jan. 16th, 2020.
Note6. Newly elected on Dec. 1st, 2019.
Note7. Resigned on Dec. 9th, 2019.
Note8. Newly elected on Dec. 1st, 2019.
Note9. Promoted on Jan. 1st, 2019.
Note 10. Promoted on Jan. 1st, 2019.
Note 11. Promoted on Nov.1st, 2019.
Note 12. Thefollowing table shall befilled inif the counterparty to the equity transfer or equity pledge isarelated party.
(1) Information of equity transfer:
Apr.21st, 20120 (Unit: Share; NT$)
Therelationship
between the
counterparty and the
ety | oy Dasol | Teaing | ST B |yrper | i
transfer trading counterparty and sharehol ders ares price
holding more than
10% of the
Company's shares
Mei-Chu Liu |Inheritance| 108.08.07 | Yu-Shan Ma Spouse 16,316,478 18.40

Note 1: The names of directors, supervisors, managers and sharehol ders holding more than 10% of the Company's shares
shall be listed.

(111 Information on equity pledge: None



IX.

Information of the top ten shareholders who are of related parties, spouse, relative within second-degree kinship to each other:

Apr. 21st, 2020 (Unit: Share)
Shares held by spouses . Names and the relationship among the top ten shareholdersin the
Shares held by themselves minor children ' TOtaI_ Shareholding by rela.ltions.hip of relatgd parties within the meaning of “Statements of
Shareholding nominee arrangement Financial Accouptmg Standards (SFAS) N0:6”0_r spouses, blood Remarks
Name (Note 1) relatives within the second degree of kinship (Note 3) Note
Shareholding Shareholding Shareholding
Number of . Number - Number . . .
hares ratio of shares ratio of shares ratio Name Relationship
(Note 2) (Note 2) (Note 2)
Mei-Chu Liu The Company's chairman
Mike Ma Relative within first-degree kinship of the
Y u-De Investment Co. 96.304.670 19.12% ) ) ) i ’ Company's chairman
Representative: Mei-Chu Liu |77 ' Jiequn Investment Co The Company's chairman as a relative within
Lt%lq |first-degree kinship to the chairman of Jiequn
) Investment Co., Ltd.
Y u-De Investment Co. [The Company's chairman
. . 0 ) ) ) i Mike, Ma Relative within first-degree kinship
Me-Chu Liu 61,104811 12.13% Jiequn Investment Co.,|The chairman of Jiequn Investment Co., Ltd. as
Ltd. arelative within first-degree kinship
Kun-Chih, Li: Representative
of Guanyi Investment Co., Ltd |19,867,235 3.94% - - - - - -
The chairman of Yu-De Investment Co.as &
Yu-Delnvestment Co. |y ive within first-degree kinship
Mike, Ma 9,000,000 1.79% - - - - Mei-Chu Liu Relative within first-degree kinship
Jiequn Investment Co.,|The chairman of Jiequn Investment Co., Ltd. as
Ltd. arelative within second-degree kinship
Y ueh-Chang Tsai:
Representative of Changlin 8,836,000 1.75% - - - - - -
International Co., Ltd.
The Company's chairman as a relative within
Y u-De Investment Co. |second-degree kinship to the chairman of Yu-
Shau-Ling Ma : De Investment Co.
Representative of Jiequn 8,518,450 1.69% - - - - Mei-Chu Liu Relative within first-degree kinship of the
Investment Co., Ltd. Company's chairman
Mike, Ma Relative \I/vithir) second-degree kinship of the
Company's chairman
Nien-Pang Chiu 6,791,000 1.35% - - - - - -
Management Board of Public
Service Pension Fund 6,255,000 1.24% - - - - - -
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Names and the relationship among the top ten shareholdersin the

Shares held by themsalves Sharre; Egrdcﬁﬁdsfe%usgﬁ Total Shareholdingby | relationship of related parties within the meaning of “Statements of
Y Shareholdin nominee arrangement Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No.6”or spouses, blood Remarks
Name (Note 1) g relatives within the second degree of kinship (Note 3) Note
Shareholding Shareholding Shareholding
Number of . Number - Number . . .
hares ratio of shares ratio of shares ratio Name Relationship
(Note 2) (Note 2) (Note 2)
JPMorgan Chase in Custody
for Vanguard Total
International Stock Index Fund,| 5,870,955 1.17% - - - - - -
aseries of Vanguard Star
Funds
The Company's chairman as a relative within
Yu-De Investment Co. |second-degree kinship to the chairman of Yu-
De Investment Co.
. ! . . . Relative within first-degree kinship of the
M_lk_e, MaL_ Representative of 5,491 454 1.09% ) ) ) i Mei-Chu Liu Company's chairman
Billions Finance Co., Ltd. - : -
Mike, Ma The Company's chairman
Jequn Investment Co The company's chairman as a relative within
c "’|second-degree kinship to the chairman of Jiequn
Ltd.
Investment Co., Ltd.

Note 1.

their representatives should be enumerated respectively.

Note 2.
Note 3.

reporting standards used by the issuer.
X.  Number of shares held and percentage of stake of investment in other companies by the company, the company’s director, supervisor, manageria

officer, or an entity directly or indirectly controlled by the company, and calculations for the consolidated shareholding percentage of the above

categories.

Shareholding percentage is cal culated separately based on the percentage of shares held in the name of the person, his/her spouse, minor children, or others.
Relationships between the aforementioned shareholders, including juristic person shareholders and natural person shareholders shall be disclosed based on the financial

All top ten shareholders should be enumerated in full. In case of juristic (corporate) person shareholders, the names of all such juristic (corporate) person shareholders and

Apr. 21st, 2020 (Unit: Share; %)

Reinvestment in business
(Note)

Investment by the Company

Investment by directors, supervisors,
managers and businesses under direct or

indirect control

Comprehensive investment

Number of shares Shareholding ratio Number of shares Shareholding ratio Number of shares Shareholding ratio
Kedge Construction Co., Ltd. 36,247,768 34.18 14,501,369 13.68 50,749,137 47.86
Global Mall Co., Ltd. 320,104,900 84.02 - - 320,104,900 84.02
Guan Cheng Co., (GLOBAL
MALL BANQIAO STORE) 10,200,000 51.00 9,800,000 49.00 20,000,000 100.00

Note: It is an invested company by the Company using the equity method.
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Chapter 4. Funding Status

Capital and Shares:

()  Sources of capital:
Unit: share; NT$
Authorized capital Paid-in capital Remarks
Issuel Capita
Year/Month| - -] Number of Number of . increase by
pricel "y res Amount shares Amount Capital source s other Other
than cash
1979.11 | 10 100,000 1,000,000 100,000 1,000,000|Incorporation None
Cash capital increase of
1982 10 3,000,000 30,000,000] 3,000,000 30,000,000 NT$29.000,000 None
Cash capital increase of
1984.03 | 10 5,000,000 50,000,000 5,000,000 50,000,000 NT$20,000,000 None
Cash capital increase of
1989.06 10 | 17,000,000 170,000,000( 17,000,000 170,000,000 NT$120,000,000 None
Cash capital increase of
1990.12 | 10 | 39,000,000 390,000,000] 39,000,000 390,000,000|N1$200.000,000 . None
Capitalization of retained earnings
in an amount of NT$20,000,000
1991.10 | 10 | 42,000,000 420,000,000] 42,000,000 420,000,000 2P telization of retained earnings |\
’ s e T e in an amount of NT$30,000,000
Capitalization of retained earnings
1992.07 | 10 | 52,500,000 525,000,000 52,500,000 525,000,000 in an amount of NT$105,000,000 None
Capitalization of retained earnings
1993.07 | 10 |100,000,000(1,000,000,000| 65,625,000 656,250,000 in an amount of NT$131,250,000 None
Cash capital increase of
1994.04 | 10 |100,000,000(1,000,000,000] 100,000,000|1,000,000,000 NT$343,750,000 None
Capitalization of retained earnings
1994.07 | 10 |200,000,000(2,000,000,000| 125,000,000|1,250,000,000 in an amount of NT$250,000,000 None
Capitalization of retained earnings
199507 | 10 [200,000,000[2,000,000,000] 156,250,000]1,562,500,000| " & &mount of NT$125,000,000 None
Capitalization of capital reservesin
the amount of NT$187,500,000
Capitalization of retained earnings
199608 | 10 |200,000,000[2,000,000,000] 195,312,500]1,953,125,000 " " @mount of NT$156,250,000 None
Capitalization of capital reservesin
an amount of NT$234,375,000
Capitalization of retained earnings
1997.08 | 10 [370,000,000(3,700,000,000] 244,140,625|2,441,406,250| " & Amount of NT$273,437,500 None
Capitalization of capital reservesin
the amount of NT$214,843,750
Cash capital increase of
1997.10 10 |370,000,000(3,700,000,000( 274,140,625|2,741,406,250 NT$300,000,000 None
Capitalization of retained earnings
199807 | 10 [370,000,000(3,700,000,000] 342,675,781|3,426,757 810 " & Amount of NT$356,382,810 None
Capitalization of capital reservesin
the amount of NT$328,968,750
Capitalization of retained earnings
1999.06 | 10 [650,000,000|6,500,000,000| 428,344,726|4,283,447,260| " @ @mount of NT$411,210,937 None
Capitalization of capital reservesin
the number of 445,478,513 shares
Capitalization of retained earnings
200006 | 10 |650,000,000|6,500,000,000| 514,013,671|5,140,136,710| " & amount of NT$428,344,724 None
Capitalization of capital reservesin
the amount of NT$428,344,726
De-capitalization in the amount of
2001.04 10 {650,000,000|6,500,000,000| 504,376,671|5,043,766,710 NT$96,370,000 None
De-capitalization in the amount of
2001.10 | 10 |650,000,000(6,500,000,000| 489,403,671|4,894,036,710 NT$149,730,000 None
Corporate bond conversion in the
2011.01 10 [650,000,000(6,500,000,000( 492,273,604|4,922,736,040 amount of NT$ 28,699,330 None
Corporate bond conversion in the
201.04 10 |650,000,000(6,500,000,000| 492,618,884|4,926,188,840 number of 3,452,800 shares None
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Authorized capital Paid-in capital Remarks
Capita
Year/Month Isr?;g Number of Amount Number of Amount Cavital source increase by Other
P shares shares s assets other
than cash
Corporate bond conversion in the
2011.10 | 10 (650,000,000(6,500,000,000( 493,345,324|4,933,453,240 number of 7,264,400 shares None
Corporate bond conversion in the
2012.07 | 10 (650,000,000|6,500,000,000( 496,508,113|4,965,081,130 number of 31,627,890 shares None
Corporate bond conversion in the
2012.10 | 10 (650,000,000|6,500,000,000( 498,722,065|4,987,220,650 number of 22,139,520 shares None
Corporate bond conversion in the
2013.04 | 10 (650,000,000(6,500,000,000( 501,510,221|5,015,102,210 number of 27,881,560 shares None
Corporate bond conversion in the
2013.07 | 10 (650,000,000|6,500,000,000( 503,791,000|5,037,910,000 number of 22,807,790 shares None
Apr. 21st, 2020
Authorized capital
Share category Outstanding shares Unissued shares Total Remarks
Common stocks 503,791,000 146,209,000 650,000,000 Listed stocks
Overview of the declaration system
Intended issue amount | Issued amount | The purpose and Scheduled issuing
Category of [ Total Approved | Number | Price | expected benefits | period for theunissued| o)
securities | number amount of of theissued shares
of shares shares shares
None

(I1)  Composition of shareholders:

Apr. 21st, 2020

Government | Financial . chgr Foreign Institutions Domestic
Structure agencies | institutions ingtitutional | and foreign natural natural persons Tota
shareholders persons
Number of people 0 5 198 197 30,420 30,820
Holding shares 0 748,300 162,528,212 104,236,535 236,277,953| 503,791,000
Proportion (%) - 0.15% 32.26% 20.69% 46.90% 100.00%

Note: Aninitial TWSE/TPEX-listed company or an emerging stock company shall disclose the shareholding percentage
of the company's shares held by companiesin Mainland China; companiesin Mainland Chinarefersto companies
invested by people, juridical persons, organizations, and other institutionsin Mainland China or investments made
in third regions by Mainlanders as stipulated in Article 3 of The Rules Governing Permits for People from
Mainland China Investing in Taiwan.

(11) Equity dispersion

Apr. 21st, 2020

Shareholding range Number of shareholders Holding shares Shareholding ratio %
1-999 19,316 590,064 0.12%
1,000-5,000 8,213 17,666,378 3.51%
5,001-10,000 1,471 12,137,103 2.41%
10,001-15,000 395 5,168,127 1.03%
15,001-20,000 323 6,131,292 1.22%
20,001-30,000 285 7,447,316 1.48%
30,001-40,000 156 5,652,689 1.12%
40,001-50,000 111 5,283,361 1.05%
50,001-100,000 222 16,353,298 3.25%
100,001-200,000 134 19,705,322 3.91%
200,001-400,000 75 21,972,306 4.36%0
400,001-600,000 24 12,500,639 2.48%
600,001-800,000 18 12,257,791 2.43%
800,001-1,000,000 14 13,100,690 2.60%
More than 1,000,001 shares 63 347,824,624 69.03%
Totd 30,820 503,791,000 100.00%

Note: The Company does not issue preferred shares.
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(IV) List of substantia shareholders (shareholders with shareholding of 5% or more or top

10 shareholders)

Apr. 21st, 2020
Name of substantial $agh?8§gng Holding shares Shareholding ratio
Y u-De Investment Co. 96,304,670 19.12%
Mei-Chu Liu 61,104,811 12.13%
Guanyi Investment Co., Ltd 19,867,235 3.94%
Mike, Ma 9,000,000 1.79%
Changlin Internationa Co., Ltd. 8,836,000 1.75%
Jiequn Investment Co., Ltd. 8,518,450 1.69%
Nien-Pang Chiu 6,791,000 1.35%
Management Board of Public Service Pension Fund 6,255,000 1.24%
JPMorgan Chase in Custody for Vanguard Totd 5,870,955 1.17%
International Stock Index Fund, a series of Vanguard Star
Funds
Billions Finance Co., Ltd. 5,491,454 1.09%

(V) Market price, net worth, earnings, dividends and other information in the most recent

two fiscal years:

Unit: NT$
Y ear 2020 as of Mar. 31st
ltem 2018 2019 (Note 8)
Max. 24.25 33.45 32.30
Market (‘I’\Ia'olt‘s f)er share Min. 16.35 18.90 17.60
Avg. 20.82 25.92 22.40
Net worth per share Before distribution 23.50 25.06 25.66
(Note 2) After distribution 22.50 (Note 9) -
Earnings per shre Weighted average number of shares 493,165,550 | 493,165,550 493,165,550
Earnings per share (Note 3) 1.03 2.60 0.61
Cash dividend 1 1.5 (Note 9) -
Dividends from i i i
Dividend per share Free allotment retgl _ned camnings
Dividends from
capital reserves i i i
Accumulated unpaid dividend (Note 4) - - -
Price-earnings (P/E) ratio (Note 5) 20.21 9.97 -
Return on investment Price-dividend (P/D) ratio (Note 6) 20.82 (Note 9) -
Cash dividend yield (Note 7) 4.80% (Note 9) -

*|f retained earnings or capital reserves were used for capital increase, market prices and cash dividends that were
retroactively adjusted based on the number of shares after distribution should be disclosed.

Note 1.

Note 2.

Note 3.
Note 4.
Note 5.
Note 6.

Note 7.
Note 8.

Note 9.

The annual highest and lowest market value of common stock shall be listed. The annual average market value
is calculated based on each year's transaction value and quantity.

The quantity of shares issued at the end of the year shall be used as the reference and please fill in the table
according to the distribution amount as resolved by the shareholders meeting held in the following year.

Where retroactive adjustment is necessary due to issuance of bonus shares, earnings per share before and after
the adjustment shall be listed.

If the terms of equity securities issuance allow unpaid dividends to be accumulated to the subsequent years in
which thereis profit, the Company shall disclose the accumulated unpaid dividends respectively up to that year.
P/E ratio = Average closing price for each share in the year/Earnings Per Share

Price/D ratio = Average closing price per share in the year/cash dividends per share

Cash dividend yield = Cash dividends per share/current year average closing price per share.

The per-share net value and Earnings per Share should befilled up to the quarter nearest to the date of the printing
of the annual report to be audited by accountant; the remaining column should be filled with the annual data up
to the printing date of the annual report.

In 2019, the Board of Directors decided to distribute cash dividends at NT$1.5 per share, but this earnings
distribution plan has not been approved at the shareholders' meeting.
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(V1) The Company's dividend policy and implementation status:

1.
2.

5.

Dividend policy stipulated in the Articles of Incorporation:

As a capita-intensive industry, the Company will develop towards diversified
investment, striving for growth and innovation. In order to continuously expand the
appropriate amount of capital and take into account the needs of shareholders for
cash, the Company's dividend policy stipulated in the Articles of Incorporation is
"The future cash dividend ratio shall be at |east 20% of the total amount of cash and
stock dividendsissued in the current year."

The proposed dividend distribution at this shareholders' meeting:

The Board of Directors decided to distribute cash dividends at NT$1.5 per sharein
2019, but this earnings distribution plan has not been approved at the shareholders
meeting.

Material changes expected in dividend policy: None.

(V1) Effect of any proposed stock dividends distribution on business performance and earnings
per share: None.

(V1) Compensation to employees, Directors and Supervisors:

Quantity or scope of compensation for employees, Directors, and Supervisors as

prescribed under the Articles of Incorporation:

In accordance with Article 23 of the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, if the

Company makes profits in the year, at least 0.5% thereof shall be distributed as

remuneration for employees and at most 2% thereof as remuneration for directors.

However, if the Company still suffers accumulated losses, the amount of

compensation shall be reserved first.

Accounting process adopted where there is a discrepancy between the estimated

amount and the estimation base for this quarter’s estimated remuneration to

employees, directors, and supervisors, shares cal culation base for issued stocks and
remuneration shares, and actual issued amount:

In the current period, 2% of the annual profit is allocated to pay employees and 2%

to pay directors and supervisors. If there is any difference between the actual

allotment amount and the estimated amount, it shall be handled in accordance with

the changes in accounting estimates and shall be adjusted for accounting based on a

resolution of the shareholders’ meeting.

Information on the proposed allocation of employee remuneration approved by the

Board of Directors:

(1) The Company's remuneration proposal for employees, directors and supervisors
in 2019 was approved by the Board of Directorson Mar. 23rd, 2020. It is planned
to alocate NT$30,433,041 to pay employees and NT$30,433,041 to pay
directors and supervisors, al of which will be paid in cash.

(2) The amount of stock bonus to be distributed to employees and its proportion to
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the total amount of net income after tax and empl oyee bonusin the current period:
None.
(3) The calculated earnings per share after considering the proposed allocation of
empl oyee remuneration and directors and supervisors remunerationisNT$2.60.
iv.  Actual allocation of employee dividends and directors and supervisors remuneration
in the previous year:
Unit: NT$

Resolution of the Board

on Mar.20th, 2019 | “ctual payout

Employee remuneration (paid in cash) 7,246,593 7,246,593
Remuneration to directors and supervisors 14,493,186 14,493,186
Total 21,739,779 21,739,779

(IX)  Share Buyback by the Company: None

61



Handling of corporate bonds, specia stocks, overseas depository receipts, employee stock

option certificates and the issuance of new shares through M& A or accepting transfer of shares
from other companies, and the implementation of capital application plans:

()  Handling of corporate bonds and the implementation of capital application plans:
1. Issuance of common corporate bonds:
Corporate bond First secured corporate | First secured corporate| First secured corporate | First secured corporate
category bond of 2016 bond of 2017 bond of 2018 bond of 2019
I ssue date 105.06.06 107.01.15 107.10.15 108.12.12
Par value NT$1 million NT$1 million NT$1 million NT$1 million

Place of issuance
and transaction

Republic of China

Republic of China

Republic of China

Republic of China

I ssue price I ssued at par value Issued at par value I ssued at par value I ssued at par value
Total issued NT$ 1.5hilliononly  |NT$ 1 billion only NT$ 1 billion only NT$ 1 billion only
Coupon rate 1.05% 1.05% 0.88% 0.80%
Duration 105.06.06~110.06.06 |107.01.15~112.01.15 |107.10.15~112.10.15 |108.12.12~113.12.12
Guarantor Chang Hwa Hua Nan Commercial |Taiwan Cooperative  |First Commercia Bank
Commercial Bank, Ltd.|Bank, Ltd. Bank, Ltd.
Trust Department, Hua [Bank of Taiwan JihSun International Land Bank of Taiwan
Trustee Nan Commercial Bank, Commercia Bank Co.,
Ltd. Ltd.
Underwriter N/A Capital Securities Taiwgn Cooperative  |First Securities Inc.
Corp. Securities L td.
Certified attorney Hsing-Wei Chao, Hsing-Wei Chao, Y aWen Chiu, Y aWen Chiu,
attorney at law attorney at law Attorney at law Attorney at law
CPA Di-Nuan, Chien, CPA |Di-Nuan, Chien, CPA [Di-Nuan, Chien, CPA |Di-Nuan, Chien, CPA
Loan principal Repayment in lump Repayment in lump Repayment in lump Repayment in lump
repayment Sum upon maturity Sum upon maturity Sum upon maturity Sum upon maturity
Articlesfor
redemption or early |None None None None
liquidation
Restrictions None None None None
Name of Credit
Rating Agency,
Rating Date and the |N/A N/A N/A N/A
results of Corporate
Bond Ratings
Amount of N/A
ordinary N/A N/A N/A
shares
Other|converted
rights|Regulations  |N/A
for issuance N/A N/A N/A
and
conversion
Potential Dilution of
Equity and I mpact
on Shareholders’ N/A N/A N/A N/A
Equity
Name of the
commissioned
custodian of None None None None
exchangeable
underlying

2.

(1) Handling of preferred shares: None.
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an
(V)

V)

(V1)

Handling of overseas depository receipts. None.
Handling of employee stock option certificates. None.
Issuing of new shares by M&A of or accepting transfer of shares from other companies:

None.

The implementation of capital application plans:

Plan details:

As of the quarter before the date of this Annual Report, the previous issuance or
private placement of securities had not been completed or completed within the last
three years and the planned benefits have not yet been shown: None.
Implementation:

1.

2.

3.

1.

In order to repay the bank loans and reduce the financial burden, the Company
issued the first secured common corporate bonds for 2016 in the amount of NT$
1.5 billion on Jun. 6th, 2016. The funds raised were fully applied in the second
quarter of 2016 as planned.

In order to repay the bank loans and reduce the financial burden, the Company
issued the first secured common corporate bonds for 2017 in the amount of NT$
1 billion on Jan. 15th, 2018. The funds raised were fully applied in the first
quarter of 2018 as planned.

In order to repay the bank loans and reduce the financial burden, the Company
issued the first secured common corporate bonds for 2018 in the amount of NT$
1 billion on Oct. 15th, 2018. The funds raised were fully applied in the fourth
quarter of 2018 as planned.

In order to repay the bank loans and reduce the financial burden, the Company
issued the first secured common corporate bonds for 2019 in the amount of NT$
1 billion on Dec. 12th, 2019. The funds raised were fully applied in the fourth
quarter of 2019 as planned.

(V) Restrictions on employees rights to subscribe for new shares: None.

(VII) Thename, acquisition status and subscription of the managers who obtained the employee
stock option certificate and the top ten employees who obtained the stock option
certificate and could subscribe for shares: None.

The names and acquisition status of the managers who acquired the new sharesrestricting
the rights of employees and the top 10 employees: None.

(1X)
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Busi nesses:

(1)
1.

Chapter 5. Operational Highlights

Scope of business:
Existing goods (services) items and new goods (services) planned to be devel oped:

(1) Construction operation segment: Leasing and selling of national residential

and commercia buildings built by construction companies. All residential,
commercial real estate and parking spaces built are sold in domestic market.
The future plan is to actively develop new products and provide services as

follows:
Refinement of core Refinement of related . e
Item : Business diversification
products services

1. Construction of small- [1. Introduce the planning|1. Invest in construction
space fineresidential and design concept of |2. InvestinIT
buildings needed by full-age residential 3. Invest in commercial
first purchaser and buildings and green- rea estate
housing exchange energy buildings 4, Invest in retail
groups 2. Provided with digital department stores

2. Construction of fine home devices

Contents residential buildingsin|3. Building community

prime areas libraries

3. Construction of 4. Customized services
residential commercia |5. Permanent after-sales
complex service

4. Actively participate in
the devel opment of
public metropolitan
and urban complexes

(2) Building operation segment: Undertake construction projects such as

3

corporate headquarters, civil workshops, medical buildings and residential
buildings, aswell ascivil projects such asland preparation and rezoning, roads
and bridges. The owners are mainly domestic construction companies,
electronic technology companies and government agencies. Future plans will
actively undertake various high-tech and high-added value projects.
Department store segment: Operating shopping center business, self-operated
counters and counters sell all goods for domestic sale.

ltem Existing goods (services) Future plansto actiyely develop goods
(services)
1. Retail of department store 1. Setting up new business sites
commodities domestically
2. Food and beverage 2. Building a database for big datal
Contents|3. Cinemas analysis
4. Parent-child entertainment 3. Introducing famous brands at home
5. Parking lot service and abroad to set up counters
6. Rental of shopping mals 4. 4. Develop the digital sales model
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(In

2. Main businesses and business proportion:

Department Construction Building Department stores

Proportion 52.95% 38.04% 9.01%

Industrial overview:

1.

Industrial overview:

)

(2)

Construction:

Residential investment has the characteristics of both consumption and
investment. Due to the inherent concept of "Where there is land, there is a
financial resource." and the incentive of land tax system to encourage long-
term holding, the contribution of private fixed investment to domestic capital
formation has grown year by year, showing that the construction industry plays
an important role in Taiwan's economic system. In addition, the industrial
connection effect derived from the development and use of buildingsis quite
significant, and real estate is the most important subject of creditor's rights
guarantee in the financia market. Therefore, the boom and bust of the
construction industry and its sound development are important factors
affecting the domestic economy and financial system.

In 2019, there was a dlight increase in the purchase price of real estate in
Taiwan. The number of houses sold and transferred rose to 300,275, up by
8.03% from 277,967 in 2018, representing a growth for 3 consecutive years.
Among them, Taipei City and New Taipei City have 27,743 and 60,035
buildings respectively, respectively recording annual growth rates of 3.3% and
5.9%.

As aresult of the Sino-US trade war, the desire of Taiwanese businessmen to
return to Taiwan for investment has increased. The demand for land and
commercial office buildingsin industrial areas hasincreased, and some county
and City governments have lowered the housing tax, while the interest rate on
housing loans has remained at ahistorically low level. Builders have continued
to adopt profit-making marketing strategies and the housing price has been
adjusted to a more reasonable level, etc., attracting home buyers and a small
number of investors to come in to purchase houses, which has dlightly
recovered the trading volume in the domestic real estate market. However, as
the spread of COIVID-19 epidemic has impeded the purchase of houses, the
housing market boom in the first quarter of 2020 showed a"volume reduction
and price stability" consolidation pattern, and deferred purchase will be
gradually released after the epidemic situation is effectively controlled.
Building:

According to the data released by the Chief Planning Office of the Executive
Yuan, the specia budget for public construction and forward-looking
infrastructure projects, together with operating and non-operating special
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funds, is expected to invest NT$467 hillion in the overal public construction
design plan of 2020, an increase of NT$81.8 billion over the same basis last
year. The government's continuous expansion of domestic demand,
acceleration of public project investment and improvement of national
infrastructure will drive the prosperity of related industries and the
construction industry's operation is expected to get better. The building
operation segment of the Consolidated Company will adopt strategies such as
improving its own technical capability, strictly controlling costs and providing
professional services through horizontal alliances, and actively undertake
construction projects with high technical level and added value to creste a
competitive advantage. It is expected that the profit of the department will
maintain stable growth in 2020. Although the epidemic situation of COVID-
19 continues to spread all over the world at this stage, Taiwan government has
not adopted severe measures such as city closure and shutdown. Therefore,
only a small number of construction enterprises in our country have been
affected, and the short-term price fluctuation of raw materials caused by
international city closure and shutdown will gradually improve asthe epidemic
situation eases. Comprehensive analysis of various factors shows that the
impact on the prosperity of the construction industry is still slight.
(3) Department stores:
In 2019, department store turnover increased to NT$355.2 billion, representing
an annual growth rate of 4.44%, due to several measures introduced by the
government to stimulate the domestic demand market, such as the increase in
basic labor wages, tourism subsidies and the comprehensive income tax
reduction scheme. However, in the first half of the year 2020, the overal
market is expected to be hit by the novel coronavirus epidemic. People's
willingnessto go out for consumption will tend to be cautious and conservative.
It is expected that the marketing performance of department stores will suffer
from the threat of demand-side restriction.
2. Theindustrial connections between the upper, middle and lower reaches:
(1) Construction:

The construction industry is made up of many related industries with different
professional degrees, mainly including construction development,
construction finance related industries, real estate brokerage, construction,
management consulting, professional sales service and building materials
industries, etc. The products and services provided by various industries
include buildings and various professional services to support the investment,
production and management of buildings. The demand for theformer ismainly
from the genera consumers, while for the latter is from building devel opers.
In addition, the development and operation of buildings is a long-term
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(2)

3)

undertaking. In practice, it must be divided into many relatively short-term
supply-demand relationships according to the division of labor between the
market intervention stage and the specialty, and combined into a market
activity system of the overall construction industry.

If the four levels of investment, production, trading and use are used to
distinguish the connection between the upper, middlie and lower reaches of the
services provided by the construction industry, the investment stageisthe most
critical part of the construction industry, with the construction investment
industry as the core. Related industries provide different professional
information of the construction development industry, such as land brokers,
financia institutions and consulting industries, from the order of the product
life cycle. Economic activities in the production phase include product
positioning, building planning, building financing, construction and
engineering management, etc. Among them, product positioning and building
design are between investment and production. Generaly, architects,
consultants and consignment agencies provide relevant professional
consulting and services. Other partsinclude financial institutions, construction
management companies, construction factories and other operators to provide
relevant services.

Economic activities in the transaction stage are mainly planning, advertising
and sales. Traditionally, most of the services are provided by consignment
companies or handled by construction developers themselves. As for the
economic activities in the use phase, there are mainly two items. product
warranty and operation management. The former is mostly borne by the
construction developers themselves, while the latter is provided with relevant
services by property management companies or related consultants.

Building:

The upper reaches of the construction industry are mainly mechanical and
electrical industry, architect industry, engineering consultancy industry, ready-
mixed concrete industry, steel industry, cement industry, sandstone industry
and other building materials industry, providing professional services and
building materials such as engineering construction and technical consultancy
management. Construction firms in the middle reaches of the river will
contract out to upstream firms after undertaking downstream client projects
such as government units, public and private organizations and private
construction companies.

Department stores:

The upper reaches of the department store industry are those that provide
goods and services or set up counters, the middle reaches are those that provide
business premises and manage marketing, and the lower reaches are those that
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cometo purchase goods or services. Site conditions of stores, quality and types
of goods or services provided, consumer crowds and purchasing intentions are
all related to the success or failure of the department store industry.

3. Development trends and competition status of products

(1)

(2)

3)

Construction:

Taipei is a national political, cultural, economic and medica center with
excellent employment and living environment. Its position is difficult to be
replaced. It is the first choice for middle-class and rich people to purchase
property. Coupled with the decrease of land supply year by year and the return
of alarge number of Taiwanese businessmen, the demand for fine houses and
luxury houses will still increase. New Taipei City, on the other hand, due to
the gradual improvement of transportation construction and the convenience
of living functions, has gradually developed its rezoning areas and gradually
formed its sub-capital living circle, attracting many residents from other
counties and citiesto move in and driving the real estate market transaction to
heat up.

Real estate market in both citiesisrelatively hot, which can beroughly divided
into luxury residential areas, areas along the MRT line and rezoning areas. In
recent years, small and medium-sized residentia buildings have become the
most popular products. The rent of residential buildings has not dropped with
the decrease of housing prices. Some property-buying customers have entered
the market one after another and the demand reduction is limited. Residential
buildings along the MRT line and in the rezoning areas are most popular with
owner-occupiers and investors. Among them, refined suites developed jointly
by the MRT stations are the most popular. The rezoning areas are mainly made
up of ordinary residential buildings with two to three rooms and a small flat
number.

Building:

In recent years, as the construction industry continues to move towards large-
scale, exquisite design and high-tech standards, |arge-scal e construction plants
will be more competitive in bidding qualifications and conditions. The
building operation segment of the Consolidated Company is a Class A
construction firm with outstanding reputation. It has accumulated various
project achievements in the industry, including residential commercial office,
civil bridge, public building, medical building and science and technology
factory office. It has won the recognition of the owners in controlling the
quality and progress. It has a sound financial constitution, and its profitability
is better than the average level of its peers. It has great development potential.
Department stores:

As hypermarkets, convenience stores and virtual channels continue to join the
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competition, the growth space of department store industry is gradually being
compressed. In response to changes in consumer channels, the department
store segment of the Consolidated Company has actively adopted strategies
such as investing in the transportation hub to set up station-type shopping
malls, carefully selecting and setting up cabinet businesses, introducing special
catering and horizontal alliances, etc. It has aso developed its own APPR,
invested in big data analysis, increased the cooperative marketing strategy of
third-party payment tools and international card issuing organizations, and
constructed online shopping platforms, providing fast-pick, delivery and meal
reservation services, etc. to fully meet consumer needs, thus reducing the
impact of the epidemic on operating performance and profitability.

(1) Technology and R&D Overview:

1

Construction operation segment:

In order to build exquisite houses and create a high-quality corporate image, the
segment has commissioned reputable construction plants to undertake the
construction in addition to employing well-known architects, interior and landscape
designers, etc. to carry out planning, design and supervision, and to introduce
construction methods such as strengthening earthquake prevention and earthquake
resistance of buildings. Special attention is paid to customer service. A customer
service department is set up to handle "permanent” after-saes service. A
communication software service platform is aso set up to provide customers with
more instant and convenient channels of interaction.

Building operation segment:

In line with the needs of rapid business development and changes in market
competition, the department is now actively developing its business objectives of
improving the construction quality of construction projects, reducing construction
costs and improving technica standards. Successful technologies are as follows:

Iltem

No Technological research I mplementation results
1 Project information system Introduction of team cloud collaboration system-
innovation plan communication and operation platform.

Building a management system |Independent quality inspection, quality control inspection
APP mobility and occupational |and the implementation of occupational safety and health
safety and health assistant system, and construction personnel positioning 10T control
system. APP system development.

1. Using Tekla, a structural software, to quickly check
the settlement of steel structure proposed by the
suppliers and analyze the difference between steel bar
design and actual material single room, so asto
effectively accumulate empirical values of steel
structures and steel bar usage in various types of

Research and devel opment on
3 |quantity output of BIM-aided

engineering buildings.
2. Sef-developed BIM structure quantity calculation
APP can capture the quantity of formwork concrete in
the model.
4 Graphing output of construction [Automatic labeling, the key function of BIM construction
drawings by BIM general drawings graphing output, is applied to the rapid
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modeling software Revit production of body drawing, light compartment
construction drawing, door and window construction
drawing, index system and other drawings.
Introduction of a civil Based on BIM, the initial import of civil modelingis
5 ; I ; carried out and combined with geographic map data
engineering information system b X
rowsing system.
Conversion of UAV agrial The 3D images gaptured by UA\/ aerial cameraare
) ; . . converted into digital topographic map files (point clouds)
images into numerical terrain ; :
6 A X by image post-processing software, and then transferred
data s introduced into research into CIM software to rapidly generate 3D topographic m
on BIM mapping data data. apidly g pograp P
Successfully exported Cobie-compliant parameters, which
7 Research and introduction of the |can be used by the back-end maintenance management
FIM maintenance platform platform and continuously imported into the project site
for execution.
R ch and introduction of the Introduction of the BIM 360 collaborative platform
8 . developed by Autodesk Company to manage 2D/3D
collaborative platform ) .
mapping data of the project.
BIM projectswith BSI-BIM
design phase certification in . . N
9 accordance with international In 2019, it entered the phase of project verification.
standards.
Using column reinforcement cage pre-assembly and a
Research on pre-assembly stirrup technology, combined with lightweight system
10 [technology of formwork moment|templates, the structural column formwork moment pre-
for structure construction assembly chemical method is carried out to improve the
work rate and construction quality.
Based on the structural analysis of the difference between
11 Arch control of large-span BCM |camber and construction monitoring camber, alinear
construction regression method is used to evaluate the differencein
camber closure. The actual completion line is good.
Planning of double-span The space requwec_i by the translation work car is designed
X for sea survey, which reduces the occurrence of space
12 |asymmetric support advanced fli h insd dis chanaed i
working vehicle conflicts on the mountain side, and is changed into a
double-span work car to shorten the construction period.
Research on Construction Ensure the feasibility and safety of the tunnel construction
Technology of Shallow . .
13 . support design, and whether the tunnel deformation meets
Overburden Tunnel Excavation : )
: the tolerance design allowed by the designer.
under Biased Pressure

3. Department store segment:

In cooperation with professional consultant teams at home and abroad, the
department not only innovates the business concept of the store, adjuststhe business
structure of the store, improves the consumption line, actively strengthens the
store's operation and management capabilities and strengthens the store's
management, but also conducts professional education and training to help
employees improve their work capabilities, encourages employees to apply the
learning gainsin their daily work, and hopes to shape the core values of customers
life through natural interaction with consumers and the business environment, thus
creating a high-quality corporate image. We are committed to developing OMO
Digital's new retail intelligence service platform, integrating online and offline
consumption behaviors, accurately marketing and providing customers' favorite
commodities by members, creating an appropriate consumption atmosphere,
advancing with new thinking, and gradually implementing the hottest new concept
of retail channel into our operations.

70



(V)

Long-term and short-term business development plans:
1. Construction operation segment:
(1) Short-term plan:

A.
B.
C.

G.

To accelerate the development of existing land assets in stock.

To acquire high-quality lands in prime areas.

Take an active part in the competitive bidding of urban complex and public
projects.

To understand the boom fluctuation, improve sales performance and creste
company profits.

To build an action APP to strengthen community household services and
information collection and analysis.

To improve customer services, shorten case processing time and improve
customer satisfaction.

To accelerate the removal of surplus housing, recover the accumulated
funds and improve the financial structure.

(2) Long-term plan:

A.
B.

C.

To strive for commercial real estate development

To focus on the development of high-quality lands in the prime areas of
the six metropolitan areas and appropriately expand the business scale.

To invest in forward-looking and long-term profitable industries and
diversifying.

Develop customer-oriented and market-oriented product plans to enhance
added value.

To enhance the Company's brand value and develop its competitive
advantages.

To integrate the upstream and downstream relations between production
and marketing, create and maintain product quality and after-sales service.

2. Building operation segment:
(1) Short-term plan:

A.

m

Cooperate with domestic excellent construction owners to build high-
quality and exquisite houses.

Take an active part in the government's most advantageous and unified
bidding scheme, get rid of the low bid mode and obtain the best profit.
Strive for public works and construction projects with indicators to
maintain competitive advantages, road and bridge projects to sustain
business growth, rail projects to expand career areas, shield and tunnel
projects to create new performance.

Participate in bidding for special index projects.

Actively strive for urban renovation related construction projects.
Actively participate in green energy construction projects.
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(2) Long-term plan:

A.

o

—I@em

To integrate relevant industries such as architectural planning and design,
mechanical and electrical engineering, material production and supply,
and engineering consultants to form a strong bidding team.

Technical cooperation with well-known foreign manufacturers to enhance
technical capabilities and move towards internationalization.

Put into research and development of construction technology.

Train design talents and provide overall customer service in combination
with well-known domestic design teams.

Actively strive for large-scale and most advantageous, BOT and turnkey
bidding schemes to enhance the technical capability of construction
projects.

Engage in land development and creating company performance.
Develop into one of the top ten construction firmsin china

Enter the overseas construction markets

Establish a good brand image.

3. Department store segment:
(1) Short-term plan:

(2)

A.
B.
C.

Introducing new commodities and brand names.

Provide online reservation, meal reservation and delivery services.
Enhance the competitiveness of existing business |ocations and strengthen
the core value of shopping centers.

Optimize mobile APP and introduce third-party payment tools to improve
the convenience of shopping and payment.

Combine the use of diversified digital tools to quickly provide consumers
with comfortable shopping services.

Use big data technology to collect information, identify target customers,
strengthen store publicity and strengthen core competitiveness.

Long-term plan:

A.
B.
C.

Add shopping malls to domestic transportation hubs.

Provide all-round e-commerce services for customers and manufacturers.
Build an all-round big data database and turn information into business
opportunities.

Continue to introduce domestic and foreign well-known manufacturers to
set up counters.

Engage domestic and foreign well-known enterprise consultants to carry
out organizational changes and business type adjustments.
Consolidatethe OMO digital new retail intelligent service platform, design
suitable marketing activitiesfor target customers, maintain member loyalty
and stimulate consumption.
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An Overview of the Market, Production and Marketing:
Market analysis:
1. Goods and services are mainly sold and offered to:

)

(1)

(2)

3)

Construction operation segment:

This segment mainly builds residential elevator buildings, office buildings and
shopping malls, which are distributed in magor metropolitan areas such as
Taipei City, Xinbei City, Taoyuan City and Taichung City. For land
development, the location with convenient transportation, complete living
functions and potential for future development is preferred, and itssalesarein
good condition.

Building operation segment:

At present, the segment is mainly engaged in residential construction projects,
civil and bridge projects and hospital plant projectsin Taiwan'sisland region.
Department store segment:

The department has seven shopping centers with a total area of more than
50,000 square meters, including all-passenger shopping centers "Xinbei
Zhonghe" and "Pingdong" and station shopping centers "Nangang Station”,
"Bangiao Station", "Taoyuan A8", "Linkou A9" and "Xinzuoying Station"”.

2. Market share:

Department Construction Building Department stores

Market share 0.56% 0.46% 2.73%

Note: 1. The market share of the building operation segment and the construction operation

1)

segment is calculated according to the ratio of operating income to the overall turnover of
theindustry in 2019.

2. The market share of the department store segment is based on the ratio of the invoiced
turnover in 2019 to the overall turnover of the industry.

Future supply and demand, and growth of the market:

Construction:

A. Supply side:
According to statistics from the Ministry of Internal Affairs, the number
of residential construction permitsissued in Taiwan in 2019 was 147,798,
representing an increase of 22.27% over 2018. The figure included
24,440 households in Xinbel City, representing an increase of 20.99%,
and 11,832 households in Taipei City, an increase of 12.17%. This is
mainly due to the relatively low mortgage interest rate, the fact that real
estate has become a safe haven target as the economic and financia
markets are in turmoil, the government's continuous revision of relevant
measures for volume incentives, and the increase in the willingness of
builders to push forward the case due to the rebound in buying gasin the
real estate market. However, dueto the recent novel coronavirus epidemic,
global financial and investment commodities have been impacted, and
public panic has increased. Most builders pay more attention to business
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activities such aslocation selection, product planning and quality shaping,
landscape design and after-sales service, and plan diversified residential
products to meet market demand.

Demand side:

Although the domestic real estate is affected by the epidemic situation
and the dlight difference in price cognition between the buyer and the
seller, the house price is in a consolidation and correction pattern.
However, due to some county and municipal governments' lowering of
the house tax, the mortgage interest rate has entered anew low in history,
the market isfull of funds, the willingness of the first buyers to purchase
houses has increased, and under the aggravating operational risks of
various investment tools, real estate will become the first choice for
capital hedging, etc., the transaction volume is expected to be flat in 109
years.

(2) Building:

A.

Supply side:

According to statistics released by the Ministry of Internal Affairs, there
were 11,145 comprehensive construction firms as of the end of 2019,
representing an increase of 212 compared with the end of 2018, with
63.32% of them being Class C companies. See the following table for
details:

Construction firm Number Percentage (%)
class
ClassA 2,845 25.53
ClassB 1,243 11.15
ClassC 7,057 63.32
Tota 11,145 100.00

Demand side:

In 2020, the total budget allocated by the government for public works
construction increased from 2019. In response to the impact of the
epidemic, the government accelerated various public construction and
government procurement projects to expand domestic demand and
maintain the momentum of economic growth. In addition, the
government continued to implement the "Forward-looking Infrastructure
Plan", new construction and renovation projects such as industria park
factory office, all-residential buildings and long-term lighting facilities.
The construction volume is expected to increase continuously in 2020.

(3) Department stores:
Influenced by several measuresto stimulate the domestic demand market, such
as the wage increase of the military, the increase of the basic wage of the labor
force and the government's introduction of tourism subsidies, the annual
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turnover of department stores increased by 4.44% in 2019. However, in the
context of therapid changesin the overall consumer market and the purchasing
trend, businesses should strengthen marketing strategies such as "consumer
orientation”, "composite diversity", "sex", "digitalization", "precision
marketing" and "quick response”, establish a unique style through diversified
operations, attract the approval of target groups, and enhance consumers
willingness to come to the store.

4. Competitive niche:

(1)

2)

3)

Construction operation segment:

The domestic business environment is still difficult to improve significantly in
the short term. Therefore, the financial status, brand reputation, product
planning, construction quality and after-sales service of the builders are
increasingly valued by home buyers. As the construction operation segment of

the Consolidated Company have the above competitive niches, as well as
stable and conservative operation and adherence to the construction of high-

quality and exquisite residential buildings, the overall corporate image has
won wide public recognition and will have more competitive advantages in
this period of poor real estate market.

Building operation segment:

The segment has an experienced management team, asound financial structure
and a good corporate image. In addition to being qualified as a Class A
construction factory and having obtained 1SO9001 and 1 SO45001 certification,
it has aso won numerous awards from government agencies and the
Engineering Society. It is of great help in contracting private enterprises to
build residential and factory buildings and other construction projects. It also
has a competitive advantage in bidding for public projects.

Department store segment:

The department can still maintain the momentum of operation and growth due
to the establishment of shopping mallsin excellent areas of transportation hubs,
the convenience of providing consumers with ONE-STOP SHOPPING, and
the establishment of afull-customer shopping center in the sub-capital to meet
customers' all-round needs such as shopping, feasting, entertainment and
leisure, as well as various competitive niches such as spacious and elegant
shopping environment, convenient parking, commodities meeting local

consumption needs and rapid adjustment of the configuration of cabinet-based
businesses.

5. Advantages and Disadvantages for Development Vision and Countermeasures;

D)

Construction operation segment:
A. Advantages:
(A) Land transactions are very popular and house prices are highly
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supportive.

(B) The government actively promotes urban renewa and public
construction.

(C) Return of overseas funds and abundant domestic funds.

(D) Mortgage interest rates remain low and the central bank relaxes
credit controls.

(E) Magjor traffic construction projects have been completed one after
another, driving the surrounding benefits and activating the real
estate market.

B. Disadvantages:

(A) Exit of investors.

(B) The attitude of banks in handling luxury loans is still conservative.

(C) The effects of the tax on hoarding houses, luxury houses and the tax
on the combination of real estate and housing are fermenting.

(D) Urban land is scarce, land prices continue to rise and construction
costs areincreasing year by year.

(E) International political and economic conflicts are increasingly
frequent.

C. Countermeasures:

(A) Construction of residential and commercial buildings for salein the
prime areas of the six metropolis areas.

(B) Integration of multiple development modes such as sale or joint
construction, urban renewal, rapid transit joint development and
urban complex.

(C) Maintain appropriate land inventory.

(D) Strictly control the scale of cases and the total number of cases
pushed.

(E) Shorten the time frame for case development and construction.

(F) Improve the Company's brand value.

(G) Pay attention to product planning and design and after-sales service.

(H) Construct small and medium-sized apartments for first-time buyers
and owner-occupiers.

(2) Building operation segment:
A. Advantages:

(A) Thequality of construction projects has been well recognized by the
owners and the corporate image is excellent.

(B) A sophisticated supply chain is established and the price trends of
building materials are understood in time to create profits.

(C) Inpossession of many excellent talents in engineering, finance, legal
affairs and management.
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C.

(D) Actively construct information system networking, promote e-
construction and strengthen interface integration, comprehensively
improve work efficiency and reduce management costs.

(E) 1SO 9001 certified and the management system and operating
procedures have been standardized.

(F) Institutionalize construction management and aim at high quality,
low cost, fast construction and zero disaster.

(G) To promote total quality management (TQM) activities, with full
participation,  continuous improvement and  innovation
breakthroughs.

(H) The government continues to introduce measures to revitalize the
economy and accelerate public construction.

() The Government has implemented the most advantageous bidding,
turnkey projects and BOT projects, and has continuously improved
the efficiency of project implementation.

(J) The government's promotion of green energy, carbon reduction,
innovative industrial models and technological development will
help promote the sustainable development and upgrading of the
industry.

(K) Introduce and obtain ISO 45001 Taiwan Occupational Safety and
Health Management System Standard Certification to reduce
occupational safety management risks and establish a quality health
and safety work environment

Disadvantages:

(A) Thesituation of bidding at reduced prices witnessed no improvement.

(B) The prices of steel bars, ready-mixed concrete, sand and gravel,
metal building materials and other building materials are easily
affected by the international market of raw materials and
transportation costs, thus reducing profits.

(C) Competition from international construction firms.

(D) The labor shortage problem caused by the low willingness of
Chinese to engage in construction work and the aging population is
even more serious.

(E) International political and economic shocks have caused chaos in
market changes and increased uncertainties in bidding risks.

Countermeasures:

(A) Consolidate long-term cooperative relations with excellent domestic
construction companies.

(B) Take an active part in the government's most advantageous and
unified bidding scheme, get rid of the low bid mode and obtain the
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best profit.

(C) Establish agood team of third parties.

(D) Study, analyze and understand the fluctuation trend of bulk materials,
and formulate risk control countermeasures.

(E) Actively cultivate talents, learn the advantages of international
construction plants, and strengthen the international outlook of

employees.
(3) Department store segment:
A. Advantages:
(A) The store is located in a densely populated and transportation hub
area with stable growth.

(B) The owned commercial real estate islocated in the prime area of the
city and has potential for asset appreciation.

(C) With an excellent management team.

(D) The management style is steady and conservative.

(E) The domestic economic boom has returned to warm, and private
consumption is expected to increase.

(F) The government has introduced several measures to boost
consumption and investment.

B. Disadvantages:

(A) OUTLET MALL joined the market and competition became
increasingly fierce.

(B) Theturnover rate of grass-roots employeesis on the high side.

(C) Theaverage national incomeisstill difficult to increase significantly.

(D) Commercial rea estate prices and rents remain high, making it
difficult to set up new business locations.

(E) Virtua retail channels compete strongly.

C. Countermeasures:

(A) Use big data technology to identify target customers and strengthen
core competitiveness.

(B) Through the application of digital tools such as APP, provide
diversified and rapid shopping services to consumers.

(C) Provide online reservation, meal reservation and delivery services,
and construct an e-commerce platform to improve performance.

(D) Introduce OMO Digita's new retail intelligence service platform to
design marketing activities suitable for target customers, maintain
member loyalty and stimulate consumption.

(E) Strengthen the ability of risk control.

(F) Improve organizationa efficiency and implement management and
control of marketing expenses.
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(1)

(G) Duly adjust the structure of the counter-based business structure.

(H) Pay attention to store environment management and after-sales
service, and actively build peace-of-mind stores.

() Enhance the brand value of the Company.

Major purposes and production processes of key products
1. Construction operation segment:
(1) Maor purpose:
A. Residential property: for peopleto livein.
B. Commercial real estate: used for commercial activities.
(2) Production process:

Acquiring land — appointing an architect to design — applying for building

license — appointing a construction firm to build — completing the project —

applying for use license — handing over the property.
2. Building operation segment:
(1) Maor purpose:

A.

Construction engineering:

According to the refinement and traffic characteristics of the domestic
building development, meeting the needs and designs of owners and
design units, integrating various types of professional contractors and
technicians, and properly planning and preparing various building
materials. Through the construction management methods of time
schedule, cost and quality, various types of building structures and
decoration works are constructed according to the design and
construction for residential and office buildings.

Civil engineering:

Cooperate with the government's major public construction and incentive
private investment development plans, properly plan the implementation
of theoverall project, give priority to public interests, effectively integrate
professional contractors and other technicians through construction
management, and complete all kinds of major public projects with
professional technologies.

Plant engineering:

Cooperate with manufacturer's demand and design, integrate professional
construction contractors and material suppliers, and build and complete
the plant within the agreed time limit.
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(2)

Production process:

Owner Construction firm
Planning and —— Market research —» Businessinformation
preparation /
Selection of —— Bidding documents—» Inquiry and estimate —» Bidding signing of contract
operators
Contract —— Budget preparation—»Construction planning —» Contract awarding
execution —> Procurement  construction —» Owner valuatiol
Inspection and acceptance of completed construction
Operation and —— Warranty bond
mai ntenance
(3) Department store segment:

The segment mainly sells goods from general department stores, combines
bookshops, beauty salons, massage, cooking classrooms, pet grooming and
other living facilities, and provides catering, entertainment, sports and
supermarket services.

(1) The supply of major raw materias:
1. Construction operation segment:

@)

2

3)

Land acquisition:

Construction on owned land, joint construction and sub-housing, joint
construction and sub-sale, joint development, urban land rezoning, urban
renewal and section expropriation.

L ocation selection:

Thelocationsfor projects are concentrated in the metropolitan areas of greater
Taipei, with Taipe city as the core, combined with the development mode of
the sub-metropolitan area, which isin line with the hierarchical rule of large
and small cities. Due to the dense population, high demand for housing and
the resistance of land pricesin the metropolitan areaof Greater Taipei, theland
in these areas is listed as the main target for devel opment.

District choice:

Close to the city center.

Close to excellent school districts and institutions.

Access to parks, sguares and greenbelts.

Neighboring to markets or supermarkets.

Quiet living environment.

Convenient location can be connected to the urban mobile axis trunk road.
Adjacent to stations and MRT stations.

Close to parking facilities, convenient parking.

Neighboring to business circles.

TIOTMMUO WD
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Excellent landscape and vision.
. Good living function.
No installation causing danger or inconvenience
M. Proximity to libraries or community activity centers.
2. Building operation segment:
The main raw materias required include steel bar, cement, ready-mixed concrete,
tile, aluminum window and steel structure, etc. Except the contract specification is
supplied by the owner, the rest are ordered by the department from the main
suppliers so as to master the supply of goods, meet the actual material demand
stipulated in the contract and clarify the relevant responsibility attribution. The
segment regularly evaluates and manages suppliers in accordance with 1SO
procedures, counseling and replacing suppliers with scoring results. Therefore, the
department has a tight and complete supply chain. In addition to selecting
contractors with construction experience and professional ability as third parties,
the department aso conducts construction drawing discussions and full
communication with materials and machines before entering the site, so as to
cultivate good cooperative relations and adhere to the principle of good faith
management.
3. Department store segment: N/A

i

81



(IV)  The names of customers who accounted for more than 10% of the total amount of goods imported (sold) in any of the last two years, the
amount and proportion of goods imported (sold), and the reasons for their increase or decrease:
1. List of mgor trade creditors:
Unit: NT$ Thousands
2018 2019 Asof Mar. 31st, 2020 (Note 1)
Proportion to Proportion to Proportion to
net purchases| Relationship net purchases| Relationship net purchases| Relationship
Name . Name . Name !
Item Amount | of goodsfor| withthe Amount | of goodsfor | withthe Amount | of goodsfor| withthe
(Note 2) . . (Note 2) . . (Note 2) . ;
the entire i ssuer the entire issuer the entire issuer
year (%) year (%) year (%)
Other 12,297,861 100 None Other 13,081,365 100 None Other 2,924,446 100 None
Notel. Thefinancia information as of Mar. 31st, 2020 has been reviewed and verified by the CPAs.
Note 2.  During this period, there was no single supplier accounting for more than 10% of the total purchase amount.
2. List of mgjor export counterpaties:
Unit: NT$ Thousands
2018 2019 Asof Mar. 31, 2020 (Note 1)
Proportion to . . Proportion to . . Proportion to
net sales of Rel a_t| onship net sales of Rel a_t| onship net salesof | Relationship
Item Name Amount with the Name Amount with the Name Amount : ;
goods for the . goods for the . goods for the |with the issuer
. i ssuer . issuer :
entire year (%) entire year (%) entire year (%)
Eastern Eastern
Engineering Engineering
Office, Office,
1 [Railway 2,079,864 14.41 None Railway 1,587,015 10.35 None TSMC 670,566 17.21 None
Bureau, Bureau,
Ministry of Ministry of
Transport Transport
Economic
Development
2 Other 12,355,816 85.59 None Other 13,739,884 89.65 None Bureau of 427,347 10.97 None
Xinbei City
Government
3 Other 2,799,361 71.82 None
Notel. Thefinancia information as of Mar. 31st, 2020 has been reviewed and verified by the CPAs.
Note 2.  The building operation segment of the Consolidated Company will focus on some customersin a certain period of time due to the large amount of projectsinvolved and the

duration of the project is 1-3 years, and the total contract amount of some projects is relatively large. This is due to the nature of the industry. However, the engineering
project of the building operation segment of the Consolidated Company are all obtained through competitive bidding or negotiation, and the major customers change with
the construction and completion of the construction cases. Therefore, in the medium and long term, the Consolidated Company should have no centralized risk of general

manufacturing sales.
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V.

V)

Table of production volume and value in the last two years:

Unit: NT$ Thousands

Production volume and 2018 2019
value
Y ear Capacity | Volume Vaue Capacity | Volume Vaue

Category

Real estate - 422 5,540,963 - 654 6,085,189
Project contract - - 4,888,154 - - 5,205,754
Goods, services and others - - 7,437 - - 7,662
Tota - - 10,436,554 - - 11,298,605

Note: 1. The real estate production is calculated based on the number of households completed in the current

year.

2. Theproduction value is calculated based on the total operating cost for the current year.

(VI) Tableof salesvolumein recent two years:

Unit: NT$ Thousands

Sales volume 2018 2019
Domestic sales Export sales Domestic sales Export sales

Category Year Volume| Vaue |Volume|Vaue|Volume| Vaue |Volume Vaue
Red estate 266 7,489,121 - - 416 7,848,371 - -
Project contract - 5,540,280, - - - 6,055,001 - -
Goods, services and ; 1,406279| - ; ; 1423527 - -
others
Totd - 14,435,680 - - - 15,326,899 - -

Note: 1. The sales volume of real estate is calculated based on the number of households spent in that year.
2. Thesaesvalueis calculated according to the operating income for the current year.

Information on Employeesin the Last Two Years as of the Date of thisAnnual Report

Asof Mar. 31¢t,
Y ear 2018 2019 2020
Number of Engineering Personnel 420 398 427
Administrative Personnel 430 474 478
employees
Tota 850 872 905
Avg. age 37.23 38.10 38.33
Avg. years of service 4.66 4.78 4.87
Doctorate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
. . Master 19.18% 19.51% 18.89%
H;t?;?m?;‘t‘g: o College 7775% | 77.18% 78.23%
High school 3.06% 3.31% 2.88%
Below high school 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Information of Environment Protection Expenses:

)

An explanation of the application, payment or establishment of a pollution facility

installation permit or a pollution discharge permit, or the payment of pollution
prevention and control fees, or the establishment of a dedicated environmental

protection unit, as required by law and order:
The building operation segment of the Consolidated Company has an occupational
safety room (sanitation team) to supervise the environmental protection matters at
various construction sites. Each construction site shall be provided with a qualified
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(1)

()

(V)

V)

safety and health personnel in accordance with laws and regulations to be responsible
for the environmental protection of the construction site. Relevant air pollution
prevention and control expenses of the building operation segment of the Consolidated
Company shall be borne by the owner, while the construction operation segment shall
pay NT$965,000 in 2019.
The Company's investment in major equipment for the prevention and control of
environmental pollution, its uses and possible benefits:
The Consolidated Company only requires the building operation segment to install
environmental pollution prevention equipment during the construction process, and the
relevant equipment is purchased and operated by the contractor. The building operation
segment of the Consolidated Company has a safety and health personnel at each site to
conduct regular or irregular inspections. If any defects are found, the contractor shall be
required to make improvement immediately.
The Company's progress in improving environmental pollution in the last two years and
up to the date of publication of the annual report; If there is a pollution dispute, it shall
explain the handling process: None.
The total amount of losses and penalties incurred due to environmental pollution in the
last two years and up to the date of publication of the annual report:

Unit: NT$ Thousands

Asof Mar. 31st,
Year 2018 2019 2020
Violation of Waste|Violation of Waste| Violation of Waste Disposal
Pollution events Disposal La_/v Disposal La_/v . ng )
and Air Pollution | and Air Pollution | and Air Pollution Prevention
Prevention Law | Prevention Law Law
Amount of punishment 29 4 -

The main reason for the punishment of the Consolidated Company isthe waste and dust

generated from the excavation works and the pollution of roads near the construction

site during the transportation of building materials by the engineering vehicles. The

above fines are paid by the building operation segment of the Consolidated Company

before being claimed by the subcontractor. Therefore, no major environmental disputes

or losses have occurred.

Future countermeasures and possible expenditures:

1. Future countermeasures:
Based on the awareness of environmental protection increasing year by year and
the concept of sustainable operation, the Consolidated Company has regarded the
prevention and control of environmenta pollution as the social responsibility of
enterprise operation. In the process of construction, the provisions of relevant
environmental protection laws and regulations are followed to strictly require
contractorsto do agood job in environmental protection in order to reduce pollution
penalties. To ensure the engineering environmental quality and maintain public
health, in addition to adding pollution prevention equipment, the following specific

84



2.

measures are implemented:

(1) Flushing equipment shall be installed at the entrance of the construction site to
prevent pollution of roads outside the construction site, and personnel shall be
sent to clean the roads irregularly.

(2) Fences shall be set up around the construction site. Scaffold dust nets, canvas
and diagonal fences shall be set up around the building to prevent dust from
flying and materials from falling. The sidewalk shall be covered with plywood.

(3) Buildings are equipped with garbage pipelines to collect and regularly clean up
waste to prevent mess.

(4) Set up temporary toilets and septic tanks and clean them regularly.

(5) Regular dredging work area surrounding the existing drainage system, take the
initiative to cooperate with environmental protection agencies to adopt
surrounding roads during the construction period, daily inspections of the
surrounding environment and roads, to maintain a clean and tidy environment.

(6) Under safe conditions, low-noise and low-pollution construction methods shall
be adopted to reduce the disturbance to the surrounding environment and
neighboring houses of the construction project under construction.

(7) Contral the loading and unloading time of vehicles and the construction time of
heavy machinery to avoid disturbing the peace of neighbors.

(8) Environmental pollution clauses such as noise, waste water and waste are listed
in the contract.

(9) Promote environmental protection concepts in education and training and their
related effects on corporate image.

Possible future expenditures. None.

(VI) The current pollution situation and the impact of its improvement on the company's
surplus, competitive position and capital expenditure, as well as the expected major
environmental capital expenditure in the next two years: None.

V. Labor Reations:

()] The Company's various employee welfare measures, continuing education, training,
retirement system and its implementation, as well as the agreements with employees as
an employer and various employee rights protection measures:

1.

Staff welfare measures:

The Consolidated Company has a staff welfare committee, which isresponsible for

the planning and implementation of various staff welfare programs. The main

welfare measures and implementation are as follows:

(1) Gifts for Dragon Boat Festival, Mid-Autumn Festival, birthday, marriage and
childbearing.

(2) Payment of subsidies for bereavement, injury, hospitalization and major
disasters, etc.

(3) Provision of health check-up, group insurance and preferential housing
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purchase benefits.

(4) Organizing various activities such as sports games.

(5) Planning travel subsidy scheme.

(6) Allocate and distribute remuneration to employees according to the Articles of
Incorporation.

Staff further education and training system:
The Human Resources Department of the Administrative Department of the
Consolidated Company formulates an education and training plan every year
according to business devel opment and staff career needs. Each employee needsto
attend at least 12 hours of training courses each year. The overal training type is
divided into internal and external training, and the training scope is summarized as
new recruits, general knowledge, management knowledge and ability, professional
skills training and further training subsidies, etc. The implementation situation is
asfollows:

(2) Interna training: Senior or specially trained staff will serve as lecturers to
impart their own experience and professional knowledge.

(2) External training: Participate in professiona courses offered by business
management consulting companies, educational training institutions and
government agencies, and provide employees with subsidies for external
training in accordance with regulations every year.

(3) Training for new recruits. Introduce the organization and system, work rules
and duties, explain the operation rules and procedures, and conduct regular
assessment and supervise the new recruits to write a report after the probation
period expires.

(4) General training: Training courses that all employees can participate in, such
as "the application of smart homes from the perspective of smart family
development”, "CSR and sustainable governance in the general trend”, "money
laundering prevention and control law education and training” and "the
transformation of Sino-US trade war into cross-strait industrial transformation
under the technological war", etc.

(5) Management knowledge and ability training: Professional training courses are
offered for middle and high-level employees from time to time.

(6) Professional skill training: In order to enhance the overall strength, employees
are encouraged to attend professional skill training courses and obtain
professional certificates, and return to training regularly.

(7) Continuing education subsidy: Select and send outstanding employees to study
in domestic universities, and the Company will subsidize their tuition and
miscellaneous fees according to regulations.

Code of Conduct and Ethics for Employees:

All employees of the Consolidated Company shall abide by laws and regulations
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and the company's interna control system when handling the company's affairs,

and adhere to personal integrity and social ethics standards in order to safeguard

the company's assets, rights and image. Its scope covers the following items:

(1) Protection of Confidential Information: Each employee of the Consolidated
Company is required to sign a "Staff Security Statement” upon arrival,
promising not to disclose the company's business secrets in any form during
his tenure or after leaving office.

(2) No attempt to gain personal interest: Each employee of the Consolidated
Company shall not attempt to gain persona gain through the use of the
company's property, information or by taking advantage of his/her position, and
shall not run the company's similar businesses for himself/herself or for others.

(3) Not to ask for improper benefits: Each employee of the Consolidated Company
is not allowed to ask for gifts, kickbacks, entertainment or other improper
benefits from the company's customers, nor is the supervisor alowed to accept
any form of gifts from his subordinates.

(4) Fair Trading Standard: Each employee of the Consolidated Company shall treat
the company's incoming (outgoing) customers, competitors and employees
fairly.

(5) Insider trading is strictly prohibited: Each employee of the Consolidated
Company isnot allowed to useinsider information obtained from the execution
of the business to profit others or seek personal gain. The Company's financial
and business information shall not be published without permission or
disclosure, so as not to affect the rights and interests of other shareholders.

Retirement system:

The Consolidated Company has retirement rules for formally employed employees.

The retirement conditions, pension payments and calculation methods of

employees shall be handled in accordance with the Labor Standards Law, Labor

Pension Regulations and relevant laws and regul ations.

The new pension system under the "Labor Pension Act" is a defined contribution

system. The pension shall be paid by the Consolidated Company at a monthly rate

of not less than 6% of the employee's monthly salary and stored in the special
personal pension account of the Labor Insurance Bureau.

The old pension system of the "Labor Standards Act” is a defined benefit system.

At the time of approval of retirement, two bases will be given for each full year of

the employee's working experience, but for more than 15 years of working

experience, one base will be given for each full year, with atotal of up to 45 bases.

The pension payment is calculated by multiplying the above base standard by the

average monthly salary for the six months prior to the approved retirement date. At

present, the Consolidated Company allocates employee retirement reserve at 2%

of the total monthly salary of employees, and supplements the retirement reserve
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()

in accordance with Item 2 of Article 56 of the Labor Standard Act. The special

account is stored in the Bank of Taiwan.

5. Work environment and personal safety protection measures for employees:

The Consolidated Company is committed to providing employees with a safe,

healthy and comfortable working environment. In addition to continuing to handle

various safety and health education and training, publicity and drills, the

Consolidated Company also provides group insurance, labor insurance, national

health insurance and health examination for al employees. Relevant measures are

asfollows:

(1) Abide by safety and health-related laws and other requirements, regularly carry
out office or work environment tests, and participate in relevant activities
organized by the North District Labor Inspection Bureau of the Labor
Committee.

(2) Set up fire fighting equipment and firefighter organizations that meet the
regulations and standards, regularly check the equipment status, and report the
annua fire fighting equipment safety inspection report on time.

(3) Carry out labor safety and health education and training, propaganda and drills
from time to time, and encourage employees to obtain labor safety and health
and fire control related certificates.

(4) Provide staff with a health check-up every year at the company's expense.

(5) In line with the requirements of labor health protection rules, the building
operation segment continued to promote the occupational health of employees.
On Dec. 2nd, 2018, the building operation segment was certified for "ISO
45001 Occupational Safety and Health Management” by the international
certification authority SGS.

Agreements with employees and employer:

The labor relations of the Consolidated Company have always been harmonious and
harmonious. Thereis no labor dispute, so there is no labor agreement.

Losses suffered as a result of labor disputes in the latest year and up to the date of
publication of the annual report, and the estimated amount of |osses that may occur at
present and in the future and the corresponding measures:

The Consolidated Company has no labor disputes, so this subparagraph isnot applicable.
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VI.

Important contracts:

Mar. 31st, 2020
Contract Parties Starting and Ending Main contents Restrictions
nature Dates of Contracts
Lease Pingdong Water |40 years Address: Sub-sec. 3, Gongyuan Sec., None
Conservancy (From 2000 to 2040) |Pingtung County 900, Taiwan
Association of (RO.C)
Taiwan Province Annual rent: calculated at 10% of the
declared land price
Royalties: NT$63,000,000
Urban 18 people Expected year of Project ID: 950B None
renovation |including Mr. completion: 2021 Address. Fuhe Sec., Zhongzheng
Chen Digt., Taipei City 100, Taiwan
(RO.C)
Bond: NT$46,914,000
Partially 25 people Expected year of Project ID: 990D None
self-built  |including Mr. completion: to be Address: Zhongyuan Sec., Xinzhuang
and partialy |Chuang determined Dist., New Taipei City 242, Taiwan
co-built sub- (R.O.C)
housing
Co-built 6 people including |[Expected year of Project 1D:100C None
shared Mr. Chuang completion: 2020 Address: Zhongyuan Sec., Xinzhuang
house Dist., New Taipe City 242, Taiwan
(RO.C)
Bond: NT$33,424,000
Jointly Taichung City Expected year of Project ID: 101B None
developed |Government completion: 2021 Address. Chungren Sec., Xitun Digt.,
and invested Taichung City 407, Taiwan (R.O.C.)
Land Bureau of Poalitical |50 years, with an Project ID: 103B None
devel opment|Operations, extension of 20 years. |Address: Minsheng Sec., Songshan
rights Department of (From 2017 to 2067) |Dist., Taipe City 105, Taiwan
Defense (R.O.C)
Transfer of |E.SUN Expected year of Project ID: 103B None
land rights [Commercial Bank, |transfer: 2021 Address. Minsheng Sec., Songshan
and Ltd. Digt., Taipei City 105, Taiwan
buildings (R.O.C)
Co-built 8 peopleincluding |[Expected year of Project ID: 103C None
shared Mr. Huang completion: 2022 Address. Sanchong Sec., Sanchong
house Digt., New Taipe City 241, Taiwan
(RO.C)
Bond: NT$22,800,000
Urban Economic Expected year of Project ID: 103G None
renovation |Development completion: 2020 Address; Xingzheng Sec., Xindian
Bureau of Dist., New Taipel City 231, Taiwan
(R.O.C)
Co-built 6 peopleincluding |[Expected year of Project ID: 104A None
shared Mr. Huang completion: 2023 Address: Wuguwang Sec., Sanchon
house Dist., New Taipel City 241, Taiwan
(RO.C)
Bond: NT$20,000,000
Co-built Ocean Plastics Expected year of Project ID: 104B/104C None
shared Co., Ltd. completion: Address: Jiankan Sec., Zhonghe Dist.,
house Changxin Xinye |2026/2029 New Taipei City 235, Taiwan
Co., Ltd. (R.O.C)
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Contract Parties Starting and Ending Main contents Restrictions
nature Dates of Contracts
Co-built 15 people Expected year of Project ID: 105A None
shared including Mr. completion: 2021 Address: Sanmin Sec., Sanchong
house Chen Dist., New Taipel City 241, Taiwan
(R.O.C)
Urban Taipei City Expected year of Project ID: 106A None
renovation |Government completion: 2023 Address. Bei'an Sec., Zhongshan
Dist., Taipei City 104, Taiwan
(R.O.C)
Urban Taipei City Expected year of Project ID: 106B None
renovation |Government completion: 2023 Address: Rui'an Sec., Daan Dist.,
Taipei City 06, Taiwan (R.O.C.)
Jointly 1st Engineering  |Expected year of Project ID: 108A None
developed |Office, completion; 2024 Address. Guodao Sec., Zhonghe Dist.,
and invested [Department of New Taipei City 235, Taiwan
Rapid Transit (RO.C)
Systems, Taipei
City Government
Urban Taipei City Urban |Expected year of Project ID: 108B None
renovation |Regeneration completion; 2024 Address. Dunhua Sec., Songshan
Center, acorporate Digt., Taipei City 105, Taiwan
body (R.O.C)
Project Eastern Expected year of Construction Plan for Electrification None
contracting |Engineering completion: 2021 Project of Taidong Chaozhou Section
Office of Railway of South-to-South Railway of Taiwan
Bureau, MOTC Railway-Civil Engineering and
Genera Electromechanical
Engineering of Pu 'an Jinlun Section
of C712A Bid
Project Taipei Veterans  |Expected year of Turnkey Project of Taipei Veterans None
contracting |General Hospital |completion: 2021 General Hospital's New Medical
Building
Project Chang Gung Expected year of Phase | of Fengshan Hospital BOT None
contracting |Medica completion: 2020 Project
Foundation
Project Academia Sinica |Expected year of Public Works and Construction of the None
contracting completion: 2020 First Building in Southern Hospital
Area
Project Economic Expected year of Turnkey Project of Baogao Smart None
contracting |Development completion; 2021 Industrial Park, Xindian Dist., New
Bureau of New Taipei City
Taipei City
Government
Project New Construction |Expected year of Turnkey Project of South Gate None
contracting |Office, Public completion: 2023 Building and Market Reconstruction
Works
Department,
Taipei City
Government
Project New Construction |Expected year of New Construction Project of the None
contracting |Office, Public completion: 2021 Activity Center for Nanhu Elementary
Works School, Neihu Dist., Taipei City
Department,
Tape City
Government
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Contract Parties Starting and Ending Main contents Restrictions
nature Dates of Contracts
Project Licensed Expected year of Renovation Project of Workshop in None
contracting |Investment completion: 2020 Zhangbin Industrial Zone
Consulting Co.,
Ltd.
Project TSMC Expected year of Phase Il of TSMC Nanke No0.18 None
contracting completion: 2020 Factory -CUP
Project TSMC Expected year of TSMC Nanke No.18 Factory- None
contracting completion: 2020 Foundation Pile
Project Central Expected year of C212 Standard Tainan Station None
contracting |Engineering completion: 2025 Underground Project
Office of Railway
Bureau, MOTC
Project New Construction |Expected year of Turnkey Project of Tawoyuan None
contracting |Office, Taoyuan |completion: 2023 Convention and Exhibition Center
City Government
Lease Y asuo 20 yearsfrom the Address: No. 8 (Shopping Mall), None
Development Co., |date of operation Fuxing 1st Rd., Guishan Dist.,
Ltd. commencement Taoyuan City 333, Taiwan (R.O.C.)
(From 2015 to 2035) |Bank Guarantee L etter:
NT$50,000,000
Lease Taiwan Bureau of [Term of operation: 15|Address. The commercia space from None
Railway, Ministry |years 1F underground to 2F on the ground
of Transport (From 2000 to 2025) |and on 24F and 25F of the shopping
mall in Bangiao Station Building on
both east and west sides.
Bank Guarantee Letter:
NT$61,550,000
Lease Taiwan Bureau of [Term of operation: 12|Address. The commercial space from None
Railway, Ministry |years 1F underground to 4F on the ground
of Transport (From 2011 to 2023) |of the shopping mall in Xinzuoying
Station Building on both east and west
Sides.
Bank Guarantee L etter: NT$3,000,000
Lease High-speed 20 yearsfrom the Address: 1F-4F on the ground in None
Railway date of contracting  |Linkou Station Gongkai Building for
Engineering (From 2016 to 2036) |the Rapid Transit System outside
Bureau, Ministry Taoyuan International Airport
of Transport Bank Guarantee Letter:
NT$29,000,000
Lease Taiwan Bureau of [Term of operation: 15[Address. No. 313, Sec. 1, Nangang None

Railway, Ministry
of Transport

years
(From 2015 to 2030)

Rd., Nangang Dist., Taipe City 115,
Taiwan (R.O.C.)

Bank Guarantee L etter:
NT$20,000,000
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Chapter 6. Financial Highlights
Condensed Balance Sheet, Income Statement and CPA's Auditing Opinions for the Last Five

Years:
()] Condensed Balance Sheet:
1. Consolidated financial statements:
Unit: NT$ Thousands
Financia Information for the Last Five Years (Note 1) Asof Mar.
Year 31st
Item 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 (Note2)
Current assets 33,033,085 34,334,860 41,365,192] 43,341,299| 45,563,542 46,920,513
Property, plant and 7,701,208 7,690,437| 7,749,670\ 6,979,157| 6,703,794 6,681,085
equipment
Intangible assets 89.375 81,390 92.128 52212 42,830 40,579
Other assets 878640  961,976]  898561]  790.640] 3514,799 3.483,609
Total assets 41,702,308 43,068,663 50,105,551] 51,163,308 55,824,965 57,125,786
Before | 51 608744 22,100,631 31,253464| 30,808,165 31,849.885 32,635,832
Current distribution
lepilities IAfter | 55132535 22,744,801 31505360 31,401,956  Note3 .
distribution
Non-current liabilities 7,053,363 7,634,563 5,790,679 6,697,580 9,562,171 9,709,371
Before | o 682 107| 29,825,194 37,044,143 37,505,745 41,412,056 42.345,203
. ... |distribution
Totd “ab”'t'esAfter
Sisribution| 2185898 30,379,364 37,296,039 38,099,536 Note 3 -
Owner's equity attributable| 1 333 169/ 17 551 928| 11,346,965 11,836,993 12,627,504 12,928,948
to the parent company
Equity capital 5037910 5,037,010 5037,910] 5037,910] 5037910 5,037,910
Capital reserves 1,339600] 1,351,103] 1,363,148] 1,368,865 1,379.873] 1,379,895
Before
metained danibion| 5028516 5259115 5049624 5526960 6,306,721 6,609,255
eanings A | 45p4725| 4704945 4797728 5023169  Noted -
distribution
Other equity interest (1,660  (25004)| (32520 (25546)] (25804) (26.916)
Treasury stock (71,19)  (71,196) (71196)] (7.,196) (71196)  (71,196)
i'\r']‘t);gn”o”'”g equity 1,687,032| 1,691,541 1,714,443 1,730,570| 1,785,405 1,851,635
giﬁfmim 13,020,201| 13,243,469 13,061,408 13,567,563 14,412,909 14,780,583
Tota equity After
e | 12516,410] 12,689,299 12,809,512 13,063,772 Note 3 -
distribution

Note 1. Financia information from 2015 to 2019 have been audited and attested by CPAs.

Note 2. The financial information as of Mar. 31st, 2020 has been reviewed by the CPAs.
Note 3. The earnings distribution proposal of 2019 is yet to be approved by the shareholders’ meeting.
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2. Individual financia statements:
Unit: NT$ Thousands
Y Financia Information for the Last Five Years (Note 1) Asof Mar.
Item 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 31st,
Current assets 28,068,222 29,371,689 34,724,290| 38,078,347| 38,504,920 -
Property, plant and i
equipment 301,301 297,615 294,104 288,059 280,822
Intangible assets 06,735 3,976 1,460 162 2,274 -
Other assets 5,114,400 5,033,442| 5,077,293| 4,746,771 5,040,808 -
Tota assets 33,490,658| 34,706,722| 40,097,147| 43,113,339| 43,828,824 -
Before
Current distribution 18,070,694| 18,568,953| 26,170,566 27,699,081 26,662,559 -
liepilities ATt | 19574486 19123123 26422462 28202872  Note2| -
distribution
Non-current liabilities 4,086,795 4,585,841 2,579,616 3,577,265 4,538,761 -
B_efqre .| 22,157,489 23,154,794| 28,750,182 31,276,346 31,201,320 -
..o |distribution
Total liabilities After
| 22,661,280 23,708,964 29,002,078 31,780,137 Note 2 -
distribution
Owner's equity attributable i
10 the parent company 11,333,169 11,551,928| 11,346,965 11,836,993| 12,627,504
Equity capital 5,037,910 5,037,910 5,037,910 5,037,910 5,037,910 -
Capital reserves 1,339,600, 1,351,103] 1,363,148 1,368,865 1,379,873 -
Before
Retained distribution 5,028,516 5,259,115 5,049,624 5,526,960 6,306,721 -
earnings After | 4524725 4704945 4797728 5023169  Note2| -
distribution
Other equity interest (1,661) (25,004) (32,521) (25,546) (25,804) -
Treasury stock (71,196) (71,196) (71,196) (71,196) (71,196) -
Non-controlling equity ) ) ) ) i )
interest
Before
A 11,333,169 11,551,928| 11,346,965 11,836,993 12,627,504 -
. distribution
Total equity After
A 10,829,378| 10,997,758 11,095,069 11,333,202 Note 2 -
distribution

Note 1. Financia information from 2015 to 2019 have been audited and attested by CPAs.

Note 2. The earnings distribution proposal of 2019 is yet to be approved by the shareholders' meeting.
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(1)

Brief Statement of Comprehensive Income
1. Consolidated financial statements:

Unit: NT$ Thousands

Financial Information for the Last Five Years (Note 1) Asof Mar.

Year 31, 2020
Item 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 (Note2)
Operating revenue 10,760,103 11,689,005] 9,932,819 14,435,680 15,326,899 3,897,274
Gross operating profit 2895133 3,125124] 2,798,915 3099126 4,028,294 1,004,553
Operating benefits 1,320,013] 1,502,153]  842,741] 1,909,901 2,198,729] 563,089
Non-operating income
and expenditure (263,875)| (526,014)] (112,355) (829,483)| (384,465) (101,619)
Net income before tax 1,056,138 976,139 730,386 1,080,418 1,814,264 461,470
Continuing operations 706,904 812,880 477,050 673313 1546223 368,901
Current net profit
Loss on closed i i i i i i
operations
(Clg;g; net gains 706,904 812,880 477,050 673313 1,546,223 368,901
Other comprehensive
gainglossesin the
aurrent poriod (8137)  (29237)|  (12,406) 8,791 1,185  (1,291)
(net after tax)
Total comprenensive 698,767| 783643 464,644 682104 1547,408| 367,610
gaing/losses
Net profit attributable to
owners of the parent 573,831| 735690 346,285 507,248 1,283,526 302,534
company
Net profit attributable to
Non-controlling equity 133,073 77190 130,765 166,065 262,697 66,367,
interest
Total comprehensive
gains| osses atributable 568536 711456  337,162|  515347| 1283204 301,422
to owners of the parent
company
Total comprehensive
gains/losses attributable 130231] 72187 127482 166,757 264,114 66,188
to non-controlling equity
interests
Earnings per share
NT9 1.16 1.49 0.70 1.03 2.60 0.61

Note 1. Financia information from 2015 to 2019 have been audited and attested by CPAs.

Note 2. The financial information as of Mar. 31st, 2020 has been reviewed by the CPAs.
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2. Individual financial statements:

Unit: NT$ Thousands

Y ear
Item

Financial Information for the Last Five Y ears (Note)

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

Asof Mar.
31st

Operating revenue

5,521,196

5,269,229

4,779,614

7,502,772

8,117,436

Gross operating profit

1,316,849

1,507,784

982,455

1,961,809

2,032,247

Operating benefits

774,338

1,036,171

469,079

1,179,315

1,329,758

Non-operating income
and expenditure

16,538

(145,476)

(10,176)

(476,396)

131,028

Net income before tax

790,876

890,695

458,903

702,919

1,460,786

Continuing operations
Current net profit

573,831

735,690

346,285

507,248

1,283,526

L oss on closed operations

Current net profit

573,831

735,690

346,285

507,248

1,283,526

Other comprehensive
gaing/losses in the current
period (net after tax)

(5,295)

(24,234)

(9,123)

8,099

(232)

Total comprehensive
gaing/losses

568,536

711,456

337,162

515,347

1,283,294

Net profit attributable to
owners of the parent
company

573,831

735,690

346,285

507,248

1,283,526

Net profit attributable to
Non-controlling equity
interest

Total comprehensive
gaing/losses attributable to
owners of the parent
company

568,536

711,456

337,162

515,347

1,283,294

Total comprehensive
gaing/losses attributable to
non-controlling equity
interests

Earnings per share (NT$)

1.16

1.49

0.70

1.03

2.60

Note: Financial information from 2015 to 2019 have been audited and attested by CPAs.

(1) Name and Auditing Opinions of the CPAsfor the Last Five Years:
Y ear CPA Auditing opinion
2015 | Di-Nuan, Chien and Shu-Ying Chang No unqualified opinion included
2016 | Di-Nuan, Chien and Shu-Ying Chang No unqualified opinion included
2017 | Di-Nuan, Chien and Shu-Ying Chang No unqualified opinion included
2018 | Di-Nuan, Chien and Shu-Ying Chang No unqualified opinion included
2019 | Di-Nuan, Chien and Shu-Ying Chang No unqualified opinion included
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I1.  Financial Analysisfor the Last Five Years:

() Consolidated financial report:
Year| Financid analysisfor thelast five years (Note 1) Asof Mar.
2015 2016 | 2017 2018 2019 | 31 2020
Item (Note 2)
Debt to asset ratio (%) 68.78]  60.25| 7393 7348  74.18 74.13
Financial |Ratio of long-term funds
structure |to property, 258.35| 269.26| 24326 290.37| 357.63  366.56
plant and equipment (%)
Current ratio (%) 152.73] 154.76] 132.35| 140.27] 14306 143.77
< Quick ratio (%) 20.18] 3207 3433 3096] 36.08 37.41]
vency Interest coverage ratio
. & 5.44 5.13 4.12 3.48 5.03 5.84
(multiples)
Receivables turnover rate
(times) 7.34 8.12 5.84 830  10.78 14.14
Average days for cash 4972| 4495 6250 4398 3386 = 2581
collection
Inventory turnover rate 030 032 0250 033 034 0.34
(Times)
Operating '(Dﬁ’rf]b;? turnover rate 266| 255 184 242 232 227
ability
gc‘)’;;gge daysforsaleof | 41666 114062 1460.00| 1,106.06| 1,07353 1,073.53
Property, plant and
equipment 1.39 1.52 1.29 1.96 2.24 2.33
turnover (times)
Totdl assetsturnover rate 0.26 0.28 0.21 0.29 0.29 0.28
(times)
Return on assets (%) 2.16 2.33 1.44 2.02 3.56 3.15
Return on equity (%) 5.35 6.19 3.63 5.06 11.05 10.11
Net income before tax to
Profitability|paid-in capital ratio (%) 20.96| 19.38 1450 2145  36.01 36.64
(Note 8)
Net profit ratio (%) 6.57 6.95 4.80 466]  10.09 9.47
Earnings per share (NT$) 1.16 1.49 0.70 1.03 2.60 0.61]
Cash flow ratio (%) 12.07 5.35| Note3 6.30 10.04{ Note3
Cash ;taisg g(!/f)’)w sufficiency o796 9676 4176| 5826 88.96 67.41
flow : -
(%Z‘)Sh re-investment ratio 738 297 Note3 740, 1023 Note3
L everage Operating leverage 1.97 1.95 3.03 1.85 1.65 1.65
%€ IFinancial leverage 1.22 1.19 1.39 1.30 1.26 1.20

reasons:

thefirst

PN LN

applicable date.

Interest coverage multiple: Mainly dueto the increase in net income before tax.
Turnover rate of receivables: Mainly due to increase in operating income and decrease in receivables.
Average days for cash collection: Mainly due to theincrease in the turnover rate of receivables.
Return on assets: Mainly due to the increase in net income after tax.
Return on equity: Mainly due to the increase in net income after tax.
Ratio of net income before tax to paid-in capital: Mainly due to the increase of net income before tax.
Net profit ratio: Mainly due to the increase of net income after tax.
Earnings per share: Mainly due to the increase in net income after tax.

In the last two years, the financial ratios increased or decreased by 20% or more due to the following

1. Ratio of long-term capital to property, plant and equipment: Mainly from the increase in non-current
liabilities caused by the transition to IFRS 16, recognition of right-to-use assets and lease liabilities on
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9. Cashflow ratio: Mainly due to increased net cash inflow from operating activities.

10. Cash flow sufficiency ratio: Mainly due to the increasein net cash inflow from operating activitiesin
the last five years.

11. Cash reinvestment ratio: Mainly due to the increase of net cash inflow from operating activities.

Note 1. Financia information from 2015 to 2019 have been audited and attested by CPAs.

Note 2. The financial information as of Mar. 31st, 2020 has been reviewed by the CPAs.

Note 3. Asthe operating activities generated net cash outflows, the relevant ratio is not calcul ated.

Note 4. The calculation formulais as follows:

1. Financia structure
(1) Ratio of liabilitiesto assets = Total liabilities/total assets.

(2) Ratio of long-term funds to property, plant and equipment = (Total equity + non-current liabilities)/net
property, plant and equipment.

2. Debt service ability
(1) Current ratio = Current assets/current liabilities.

(2) Quick ratio = (Current assets - inventory - advances)/current liabilities.
(3) Interest coverage multiple = Net profit before Income tax and interest expensesinterest expenses in
current period

3. Operating ability
(1) Turnover rate of receivables (including accounts and notes receivable arising from operations) = Net

sales/average receivable balance
(Including accounts and notes receivabl e arising from business) in each period.
(2) Average daysfor cash collection = 365/Turnover rate of receivables
(3 Inventory turnover rate = Cost of goods sold/average inventory.
(4) Turnover rate of payables (including accounts and notes payable arising from operations) = Cost of
goods sold/average payables in each period
(Including accounts and notes payable arising from operations) in each period.
(5) Average daysfor sale = 365/Inventory turnover rate.
(6) Turnover rate of property, plant and equipment = Net sales/Average net property, plant and eguipment.
(7) Tota assetsturnover ratio = Net sales/Average total assets.

4. Profitability

(1) Return on assets =(After-tax profit/Loss+interest expense x (1-tax rate))/average total assets.

(2) Return on equity = After-tax profit or loss/average total equity.

(3) Net profit rate = After-tax profit or loss/Net sales

(4) Earnings per share = (Profit or loss attributable to owners of the parent company - preferred share
dividends)/Weighted average number of sharesissued. (Note 5)

5. Cashflows
(1) Cashflow ratio = Net cash flow from operating activities/Current liabilities.

(2) Net cash flow adequacy ratio = Net cash flow from operating activities in the last five years/(capital
expenses + inventory increase+cash dividends)

(3) Cash reinvestment ratio = (Net cash flow from operating activities - Cash dividends)/(gross value of
property, plant and eguipment + long-term investment+other non-current assets + working capital (Note
6)

6. Leverage

(1) Operating leverage = (Net operating Income - variable operating costs and expenses)/operating benefits
(Note 7).
(2) Financial leverage = Operating benefits/(operating benefits - interest expenses).
Note 5. In the above formula for calculating earnings per share, special attention shall be paid to the following when
measuring:

1. The weighted average number of common shares shall prevail instead of the number of sharesissued at the
end of the year.

2. For cash capital increase or treasury stock transactions, the weighted average number of shares shall be
calculated considering the circulation period.

3. Incapitalization of earnings or capital increase through capital reserves, the calculation of earnings per share
for the previous year and half year shall be adjusted retroactively according to the proportion of capital
increase, without considering the issue period for the capital increase.

4. If the preferred shares are non-convertible cumulative preferred shares, the dividends (whether paid or not)
for the current year shall be deducted or increased from the net income after tax or increased net |loss after
tax. If the preferred shares are non-cumul ative in nature, the dividend of the preferred shares shall be deducted
from the net income after tax if there is net income after tax. If it isaloss, no adjustment is necessary.

Note 6. In cash flow analysis, special attention shall be paid to the following matters when measuring:

1. Net cash flow from operating activities refers to the net cash inflow from operating activitiesin the cash flow

statement.
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3.

4.
5.

Capital expenditure refers to the cash outflow of capital investment every year.

Theincrease in inventory will only be counted when the ending balance is greater than the opening balance.
If the inventory decreases at the end of the year, it will be counted as zero.

Cash dividends include cash dividends of common shares and preferred shares.

Gross amount of property, plant and equipment refers to the total amount of property, plant and equipment
before deducting accumulated depreciation.

Note 7. The Issuer shall classify various operating costs and operating expenses as fixed and variable according to their
nature. In case of estimation or subjective judgment, the Issuer shall pay attention to their rationality and maintain
consistency.

Note 8. If the Company's shares have no par value or the par value of each shareisnot NT$ 10, theratio of paid-in capital
previously calculated shall be changed to the ratio of equity attributable to the owner of the parent company in

the balance sheet.
(1) Individual financial report:
Year| Financia analysisfor thelast five years (Note 1) Asof Mar.
Item 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 3lst
Debt to asset ratio (%) 66.16 66.72 71.70 72.54 71.19 -
Financiad  |Ratio of long-term funds
structure  |to property, 5,088.99| 5,393.52| 4,708.19| 5,351.08) 6112.86 -
plant and equipment (%)
Current ratio (%) 155.32 158.18 132.68 137.47 144.42 -
Quick ratio (%) 10.90 14.28 17.78 17.72 21.63 -
Solvency Interest coverage ratio
. a 5.87 6.02 3.61 2.96 5.26 -
(multiples)
Receivables Turnover
Rate (%) 14.65 21.81 18.50 16.89 22.07 -
Average days for cash 2491 1673 1973 2161 1654 -
collection
Inventory turnover rate oa6| 014 013 o018 o019 -
(Times)
Operating (Pﬁ‘?’rﬁbéf turnover rate 3971 33 232 212 218 -
ability
gc‘)’c?(;zge daysforsaleol | ;56105 2607.14 2,807.69| 2,027.78| 192108 -
Property, plant and
equipment 1837 17.60| 16.16| 25.78] 2854 -
turnover (times)
Tod asststurnoverrate) o5l o350 013 o018 o019 -
(times)
Return on assets (%) 2.08 2.59 1.32 191 3.58 -
Return on equity (%) 4.97 6.43 3.02 4.38 10.49 -
Net income before tax to
Profitability|paid-in capital ratio (%) 15.70|  17.68 911] 1395  29.00 -
(Note 8)
Net profit ratio (%) 10.39 13.96 7.25 6.76 15.81 -
Earnings per share (NT$) 1.16 1.49 0.70 1.03 2.60 -
Cash flow ratio (%) 8.64 2.35 Note?2 5.79 3.87 -
Cash flow sufficiency
Cash flows |ratio (%) 61.94 59.52 30.33 36.51 51.26 -
(C(,Z?h reinvesimentralio | 356 | Note3 | Note3 geo| 305 -
L everage Operating leverage 1.31 1.19 157 1.26 1.23 -
« Financia leverage 1.27 121 1.60 1.44 1.35 -

reasons:

In the last two years, the financial ratios increased or decreased by 20% or more due to the following

1. Quick ratio: Mainly due to reduction of prepaid expenses and current liabilities.
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Interest coverage multiple: Mainly dueto the increase in net income before tax.

Turnover rate of receivables: Mainly due to increase in operating income and decrease in receivables.
Average days for cash collection: Mainly due to the increase in the turnover rate of receivables.
Return on assets: Mainly due to the increase in net income after tax.

Return on equity: Mainly due to the increase in net income after tax.

Ratio of net income before tax to paid-in capital: Mainly due to the increase of net income before tax.
Net profit ratio: Mainly due to the increase of net income after tax.

. Earnings per share: Mainly due to the increase in net income after tax.

0. Cash flow ratio: mainly due to the decrease in net cash inflow from operating activities.

1. Cash flow sufficiency ratio: Mainly due to the increase in net cash inflow from operating activitiesin
the last five years.

12. Cash reinvestment ratio: mainly due to a decrease in net cash inflow from operating activities.

Note 1.
Note 2.
Note 3.
Note 4.

Note 5.

Financial information from 2015 to 2019 have been audited and attested by CPAs.
Asthe operating activities generated net cash outflows, the relevant ratio is not calculated.
Since the numerator is negative, it is not counted.
The calculation formulais as follows:
1. Financial structure
(1) Ratio of liabilitiesto assets = Total liabilities/total assets.
(2) Ratio of long-term fundsto property, plant and equipment = (Total equity + non-current liabilities)/net
property, plant and equipment.
2. Debt service ability
(1) Current ratio = Current assets/current liabilities.
(2) Quick ratio = (Current assets - inventory - advances)/current liabilities.
(3) Interest coverage multiple = Net profit before Income tax and interest expenses/interest expenses in
current period
3. Operating ability
(1) Turnover rate of receivables (including accounts and notes receivable arising from operations) = Net
sales/average receivable balance (including accounts and notes receivable arising from operations) in
each period.
(2) Average daysfor cash collection = 365/Turnover rate of receivables
(3) Inventory turnover rate = Cost of goods sold/average inventory.
(4) Turnover Rate of Payables (Including Accounts and Notes Payable Arising from Operations) = Cost
of Goods Sold/Average Payables (Including Accounts and Notes payable Arising from Business) in
Each Period.
(5) Average daysfor sale = 365/Inventory turnover rate.
(6) Turnover rate of property, plant and equipment = Net sales/Average net property, plant and equipment.
(7) Total assetsturnover ratio = Net sales/Average total assets.
4.  Profitability
(1) Return on assets =(After-tax Profit/Loss + Interest Expense x (1 - Tax Rate))/Average Total Assets.
(2) Returnon equity = After-tax profit or loss/average total equity.
(3) Net profit rate = After-tax profit or loss/Net sales
(4) Earnings per share = (Profit or loss attributable to owners of the parent company - preferred share
dividends)/Weighted average number of sharesissued. (Note 5)
5. Cashflows
(1) Cashflow ratio = Net cash flow from operating activities/Current liabilities.
(2) Net Cash Flow Adequacy Ratio = Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities in the Last Five
Years/(Capital expenses + Inventory Increase+ Cash Dividends) for the Last Five Years
(3) Cash Reinvestment Ratio = (Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities-Cash Dividends)/(Gross Value
of Immovable Property, Plant and Equipment+Long-term investment+ Other Non-current Assets +
Working Capital (Note 6)
6. Leverage
(1) Operating Leverage = (Net Operating Income-Variable Operating Costs and Expenses)/Operating
Benefits (Note 7).
(2) Financial leverage = Operating benefits/(operating benefits - interest expenses).
In the above formula for calculating earnings per share, special attention shall be paid to the following when

measuring:
1. Theweighted average number of common shares shall prevail instead of the number of sharesissued at the
end of the year.

2. For cash capital increase or treasury stock transactions, the weighted average number of shares shall be
calculated considering the circulation period.
3. In capitalization of earnings or capital increase through capital reserves, the calculation of earnings per
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share for the previous year and half year shall be adjusted retroactively according to the proportion of capital
increase, without

If the preferred shares are non-convertible cumulative preferred shares, the dividends (whether paid or not)
for the current year shall be deducted or increased from the net income after tax or increased net loss after
tax. If the preferred shares are non-cumulative in nature, the dividend of the preferred shares shall be
deducted from the net income after tax if there is net income after tax. If it is a loss, no adjustment is
necessary.

Note 6. In cash flow analysis, specia attention shall be paid to the following matters when measuring:

Note 7.

Note 8.

1

2.
3.

4.
5.

Net cash flow from operating activities refers to the net cash inflow from operating activities in the cash
flow statement.

Capital expenditure refers to the cash outflow of capital investment every year.

Theincreasein inventory will only be counted when the ending balance is greater than the opening balance.
If the inventory decreases at the end of the year, it will be counted as zero.

Cash dividends include cash dividends of common shares and preferred shares.

Gross amount of property, plant and equipment refers to the total amount of property, plant and equipment
before deducting accumulated depreciation.

The Issuer shall classify various operating costs and operating expenses as fixed and variable according to their
nature. In case of estimation or subjective judgment, the Issuer shall pay attention to their rationality and maintain
consistency.

If the Company's shares have no par value or the par value of each shareisnot NT$ 10, theratio of paid-in capital
previously calculated shall be changed to the ratio of equity attributable to the owner of the parent company in
the balance sheet.
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[1l.  Auditors Report of 2019 from the Audit Committee:

Audit Committee's Review Report of Kindom Development Co., Ltd.

Approval for

The Board of Director submitted the financial statements of the Company for the
year 2019, and these statements were audited by KPMG Taiwan through the
accountants, Ti-Nuan Chien and Shu-Ying Chang. The aforementioned financial
statements, together with the Business Report and Earnings Distribution Table, have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee and no discrepancies were found. A report has
been prepared in accordance with Article 14-4 of the Securities & Exchange Act and
Article 219 of the Company Act , we hereby submit this report.

To

2020 Annual General Shareholders meeting
Kindom Development Co., Ltd.

Audit Committee Convener: Hung-Chin, Huang

March 23, 2020
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V. Consolidated Financial Report of 2019

STATEMENT

The companies that are required to be included in the combined financial statements of Kindom
Development Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries for the year starting from January 1, 2019 to December 31,
2019, under the "Criteria Governing Preparation of Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business
Reports and Consolidated Financia Statements of Affiliated Enterprises,” are al the same as those
required to be included in the consolidated financial statements prepared in conformity with
International Financial Reporting Standards No. 10 "Consolidated Financial Statements" endorsed by
the Financial Supervisory Commission (FSC). Relevant information required to be disclosed in the
combined financial statements is included in the consolidated financial statements. Consequently,
Kindom Development Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries do not prepare a separate set of combined financial
statements.
Hereby declared,

Company Name: Kindom Development Co., Ltd.

Chairman: Mike, Ma

Date: March 23, 2020
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Independent Auditors Report
To the Board of Directors Kindom Development Co., Ltd.:

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Kindom Development Co.,
Ltd. (the "company") and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group"), which comprise
the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in al material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with the "Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities
Issuers,” and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), International Accounting Standards
(IAS), IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC Interpretations (SIC) endorsed and issued into effect
by the FSC of the Republic of China.
Basisfor Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the "Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants' and auditing standards generally accepted in
the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
"Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements" section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethics for
Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to Note I11(a) to the consolidated financial statements which describes that the
Group initially adopted the IFRS 16 "L eases’ on January 1, 2019, with no restatement of comparative
period financia statements. Our opinion is hot modified in respect of this matter.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financia statements asawhole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In
our judgement, key audit matters for the company's consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2019 are stated as follows: Revenue recognition of real estate sales
Refer to Note IV(18) for the accounting policies on recognizing revenue and Note VI(22) for
details of related disclosure.
Description of key audit matter:
The Group engaged primarily in the sales of real estate devel opments. Real estate sdlesareeasily
subject to changes in overall economic conditions, tax reforms, market demands of properties
and lands, and other factors. In response to the aforementioned changes, the governing authority
has established relevant controls over revenue recognition and installment payments. The
revenue of real estate sales amount to 7,848,371 thousands, which is material to the fair
presentation of consolidated financial statements. Consequently, the Group’s revenue
recognition has been identified as one of the key audit matters.
Our audit procedures performed in respect of the above areaincluded the following:
In relation to the key audit matter above, we have performed certain audit procedures including,
among others, understanding the design and effectiveness of the Group's internal controls over
the recognition of revenue and the accrua of receivables,; performing sample testing to inspect
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the real estate sales contracts, tables of the receivables, bank transactions, transfers of property
rights, closing checklists and others; performing data analysis on prepaymentsin order to assess
the completeness of the recognition of bank deposits and prepaid installments; and performing
sample testing on sales transactions taking place before and after the balance sheet date as well
as confirming relevant transaction records and documentations to ensure that revenue wasfairly
presented in the appropriate period.

Revenue recognition of real estate sales

Refer to Note 1V(18) for the accounting policies on recognizing revenue and Note V1(22) for
details of related disclosure.

Description of key audit matter:

The Group engaged primarily in the sales and development of real estate. Real estate sales are
easily subject to changes in overall economic conditions, tax reforms, market demands of
properties and lands, and other factors. In response to the af orementioned changes, the governing
authority has established relevant controls over revenue recognition and installment payments.
The revenue of real estate sales amount to NT$ 7,848,371 thousand, which is materia to thefair
presentation of consolidated financial statements. Consequently, the Group's revenue
recognition has been identified as one of the key audit matters.

Our audit procedures performed in respect of the above area included the following:

In relation to the key audit matter above, we have performed certain audit procedures including,
among others, understanding the design and effectiveness of the Group's internal controls over
the recognition of revenue and the accrual of receivables; performing sample testing to inspect
the real estate sales contracts, tables of the receivables, bank transactions, transfers of property
rights, closing checklists and others; performing dataanalysison real estate prepaymentsin order
to assess the completeness of the recognition of bank deposits and procedures of prepaid
installments; and performing sample testing on sales transactions taking place before and after
the balance sheet date as well as confirming relevant transaction records and documentations to
ensure that revenue was fairly presented in the appropriate period.

Construction contract

Refer to Note 1V(18) for the accounting policies on construction contracts; Note V(1) for the
uncertainty of accounting estimations and assumptions for total construction costs; and Note
V1(22) for details of revenue recognition of customer contracts.

Description of key audit matters:

The evaluation of total costs of a construction contract, which are subject to changes in
construction plans and inflation or deflation on prices of building materias, requiresthe Group's
management judgements to a great extent. Errors in the evaluation of construction costs may
cause significant changes to the profit and lossfor the reporting period and therefore are asource
of audit risk. The Group applies the percentage of completion accounting method to accounts
for revenue and costs of a contract, and the percentage of completion is based on the percentage
of construction projects completed as of the end of the reporting period out of the total estimated
construction costs of the contract. Since the total construction costs require the Group's
management judgements to a great extent, errors in such judgements may cause significant
misrepresentation in the timing and the valuation of profit or loss of a contract for the year.

Our audit procedures performed in respect of the above areaincluded the following:

In relation to the key audit matter above, we have performed certain audit procedures including,
among others, testing the design and effectiveness of the Group's internal controls over the
outsourcing of construction projects and the accrual of receivables, obtaining the tables
containing al details of changes in the total construction costs; performing sample testing to
confirm construction contracts, agreements, and external documentations of communications
with property purchasers and meeting minutes with construction crew; performing sample
testing on construction bills and payments from closed property purchasers in each periods;
testing and evaluating the design and effectiveness of the Group's internal controls over
procurement outsourcing and construction budgeting; performing sample testing to confirm the
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external documentations of construction bills, contracts, daily reports, recei pts, and budgets and
comparing these documentswith original construction budgetsto verify thefair presentation and
correct classifications of construction costs, performing sample testing to evaluate the
management's budgeting procedures of a construction; performing sample testing on the pricing
of building materials in each periods and recalculating the percentage of completion; and
performing sample testing to eval uate the cutoff of construction projects taking place before and
after the balance sheet date.

[11. Inventory vauation
Refer to Note 1V(8) for the accounting policies on inventory valuation, Note V(2) for the
uncertainty of accounting estimations and assumptions for inventory valuation, and Note VI(5)
for details of inventory valuation.
Description of key audit matters:
As of December 31, 2019, the Group's inventory amounts to NT$ 32,406,303 thousand and
accounts for 58% of total assets. The valuation of inventory is at the lower of cost or cost or
market price, that isthe price of real estate market with highly subject to large capital investment
and long payback period and greatly subject to political, economic and real estate tax reforms.
Consequently, identified as one of the key audit matters, the Group's cost of inventory might be
higher than its market price.
Our audit procedures performed in respect of the above areaincluded the following:
In relation to the key audit matter above, we have performed certain audit procedures including
understanding the Group's internal procedures and accounting processes over inventory
valuation; obtaining the inventory valuation performed by the Group as of the end of the
reporting period; inspecting and performing sampl e testing on the comparable market data such
as registered sales prices of real estate published by Ministry of the Interior, sales prices of the
transactionsin the neighborhood, and contract prices of recent sales of the Group's devel opments,
or confirming and recal culating the investment return analysis of each developments, to evaluate
if the net realizable value of inventory isfairly presented.
Other Matters
We have a so audited the individual financial statements of the company as of and for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018 on which we have issued an unmodified opinion.
Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements
The management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the "Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers," and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), International Accounting
Standards (IAS), IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC Interpretations (SIC) endorsed and issued
into effect by the FSC of the Republic of China. The management has determined that such internal
control is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclose matters related to going concern, and use the
going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance, including the audit committee, are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives areto obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
asawholearefree from material misstatement, whether dueto fraud or error, and to issue an auditors
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
Republic of Chinawill always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered materia if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
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reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
China, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

1.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether dueto fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting amaterial misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors report to the related disclosuresin the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We areresponsible for the direction, supervision, and performance of the group audit.

We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.

We aso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2019 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
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expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
KPMG
Taipei, Taiwan
Republic of China
March 23, 2020

Notices to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated
financial position, financial performance and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles
and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions.
The standards, procedures and practices to audit such consolidated financial statements are those
generally applied in the Republic of China.

For the convenience of readers, the independent auditors’ report and the accompanying consolidated
financial statements have been translated into English from the original Chinese version prepared
and used in Republic of China. If there is any conflict between the English version and the original
Chinese version or any difference in the interpretation of the two versions, the Chinese language

independent auditors’ report and consolidated financial statements shall prevail.
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ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (Note VI(1) and (25))

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss — current
(Note VI(2) and (25))

Contract assets - current (Note V1(22))

Notes receivable, net (Note VI(4) and (25))

Accounts receivable, net (Note VI(4), (22) and (25))
Current tax assets

Inventories - trading (Note VI(5))

Inventories — construction (Notes VI(5) and V1II)
Prepayments

Other financia assets — current (Note VI1(12), (23), (25) and
VI

Other current assets - others

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract — current (Note V1(12))

Non-current Assets:

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income - non-current (Note VI(3) and (25))

Investments accounted for using the equity method
Property, plant and equipment (Note VI(8) and VII1)
Right-of-use assets (Note VI(9))

Investment property (Notes VI(10) and VII1)

Intangible assets (Note VI(11))

Deferred tax assets (Note V1(19))

Prepayments for equipment

Defined benefit assets, net - non-current (Note V1(18))
Other financial assets - non-current Note VI(25) and VI1I1)
Prepaid lease

Other non-current assets - others

TOTAL ASSETS

KINDOM DEVELOPMENT CO. LTD and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, 2019 and 2018

2019.12.31 2018.12.31

Amount % Amount %
$ 6,229,385 11 5,539,557 11
97,563 - 90,949 -
1,349,793 3 1,028,330 2
3,201 - 1,229 -
1,412,568 3 1,427,636 3
33,266 - 29,183 -
15,105 - 19,343 -
32,406,303 58 32,238,166 63
300,541 1 489,987 1
3,530,868 6 2,330,035 5
40,424 - 43,534 -
144,525 - 103,350 -
45,563,542 82 43,341,299 85
8,579 - 7,596 -
20,506 - 20,505 -
6,703,794 12 6,979,157 14
2,789,255 5 - -
510,687 1 515,199 1
42,830 - 52,212 -
51,446 - 39,542 -
9,926 - 7,315 -
1,361 - - -
72,968 - 114,677 -
- - 35,765 -
50,071 - 50,041 -
10,261,423 18 7,822,009 15
$ 55824965 _100 51,163,308 _ 100

2100
2130
2150
2170
2180
2200
2230
2250
2251
2280
2310
2320

2321

2322

2355
2399
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2540
2580
2613
2640
2645
2670

3100
3200
3300
3400
3500

36X X

Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
LIABILITIESAND EQUITY Amount % Amount %
Current Liabilities:
Short-term borrowings (Note V1(13) and 25)) $ 18,915,374 34 19,204,508 38
Contract liabilities - current (Note V1(22)) 6,187,338 11 4,590,030 9
Notes payable (Note V1(25)) 397,938 1 403,874 1
Accounts payable (Note V1(25)) 4,871,171 9 4,058,337 8
Accounts payable - related parties (Note VI1(25) and V1) - - 307 -
Other payables (Note V1(25)) 777,890 2 876,121 2
Current tax liabilities 68,365 - 269,880 -
Provisions — current (Note V1(16)) 102,482 - 79,261 -
Provisions for employee benefit — current (Note VI1(18)) 21,533 - 18,516 -
Lease liahilities— current (Note VI(15) and (25)) 129,914 - - -
Payments received in advance 2,029 - 12,984 -
Current portion of long-term debt due within one year or one 16,336 - 16,336 -
operating period (Note V1(25))
Current portion of convertible corporate bond due within one year - - 1,000,000 2
or one operating period (Note V1(14) and (25))
Current portion of long-term borrowing due within one year or 190,450 - 204,150 -
one operating period (Note VI(13) and (25))

Lease payable - current (Note VI(25)) - - 1,952 -
Other current liability - others (Note V1(25)) 169,065 - 161,909 -

31,849,885 57 30,898,165 60
Non-current Liabilities:
Bonds payable (Note VI(14) and (25)) 4,500,000 8 3,500,000 7
Long-term borrowing (Note V1(13) and (25)) 2,184,575 4 3,000,667 6
Lease ligbilities - non-current (Note V1(15) and (25)) 2,714,817 5 - -
L ease payable - non-current (Note V1(25)) - - 989 -
Defined benefit liabilities, net - non-current (Note V1(18)) 6,681 - 11,166 -
Guarantee deposits (Note V1(25)) 90,754 - 62,355 -
Other non-current liabilities— others (Note VI(25)) 65,344 _ - 122,403 _ -

9,562,171 17 6,697,580 13

TOTAL LIABILITIES 41,412,056 74 37,595,745 73
Equity attributable to owners of the parent company (Note
V1(20))
Share capital 5,037,910 9 5,037,910 10
Capital reserve 1,379,873 3 1,368,865 3
Retained earnings 6,306,721 11 5,526,960 11
Other equity (25,804) - (25,546) -
Treasury stock (71,196) - (71,196) -
Total equity attributable to owners of the parent company 12,627,504 23 11,836,993 24
Non-controlling interest (Note V(7)) 1,785,405 3 1,730,570 3
TOTAL EQUITY 14,412,909 26 13,567,563 27
TOTAL LIABILITIESAND EQUITY $ 55,824,965 _100 51,163,308 _100

(Refer to the subsequent Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements)
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KINDOM DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

January 1to December 31, 2019 and 2018

Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

2019 2018
Amount % Amount %
Operating Revenue (Note V1(22)) $ 15,326,809 100 14,435,680 100
Operating Costs (Note VI1(5)) 11,298,605 73 10,436,554 72
Gross Profit 4,028,294 27 3,999,126 28
Operating Expenses:
Selling and marketing expenses 390,095 3 470,935 3
General and administrative expenses 1,439,470 9 1,618,290 11
1,829,565 12 2,089,225 14
Net Operating Profit 2,198,729 15 1,909,901 14
Non-Operating | ncome and Expenses:
Other income (Note V1(24)) 23,756 - 26,933 -
Other interest income and expenses (Note V1(24)) 42,203 - (420,860) 3
Finance costs (Note V1(24)) (450,425) 3 (435,564) 3
Share of the profit of associates and joint ventures accounted 1 - 8 -
for using the equity method
(384,465) 3 (829,483) (6)
Income Before Tax of Continuing Operation 1,814,264 12 1,080,418 8
Less: Incometax expense (Note VI(19)) 268,041 2 407,105 3
Net Income 1,546,223 10 673,313 5
Other Comprehensive Income:
Itemsthat will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 622 - (38) -
Unrealized gains (losses) from investments in equity 984 - 960 -
instruments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Itemsthat may bereclassified subsequently to profit
or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of financial (421) - 7,869 -
statements of foreign operations
Other comprehensive loss (net of taxes) 1,185 - 8,791 -
Total comprehensiveincome (loss) for the years $ 1547408 10 682,104 5
Net income attributableto:
Owners of the parent company $ 1,283,526 8 507,248 4
Non-controlling interest 262,697 2 166,065 1
$ 1546,223 10 673,313 5
Total comprehensive Income (loss) attributable to:
Owners of the parent company $ 1,2832%4 8 515,347 4
Non-controlling interest 264,114 2 166,757 1
$ 1547408 10 682,104 5
Basic Earnings Per Share (in NT$) (Note V1(21)) $ 2.60 1.03
Diluted Earnings Per Share (in NT$) (Note V1(21)) $ 2.60 1.03
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Balance as of January 1, 2018

Effects of retrospective application

Adjusted balance as of January 1, 2018

Net income for the year

Other comprehensive income (loss) for

the year

Total comprehensive income (loss) for

the year

Earnings appropriation and distribution:
Provision for Legal reserve
Provision for Special reserve
Cash dividends on common stock

Other changesin capital reserve:
Change in equity of investmentsin
associates and joint ventures

Changes in capital reserve from

dividends paid to subsidiaries

Unclaimed dividends after effective

period

Changes in non-controlling interest

Balance as of December 31, 2018

Net income for the year

Other comprehensive income (loss) for

the year

Total comprehensive income (loss) for

the year

Earnings appropriation and distribution:
Provision for Legal reserve
Provision for Specia reserve
Cash dividends on common stock

Other changesin capital reserve:
Changes in equity of associates and
joint ventures accounted for under the
equity method

Changesin capital reserve from

dividends paid to subsidiaries

Unclaimed dividends after effective period

Changes in non-controlling interest
Balance as of December 31, 2019

KINDOM DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Changesin Equity

January 1to December 31, 2019 and 2018 Unit; Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars
Equity attributable to Sharehol ders of the Company
Other equity
Exchange Unredlized gain
Share capital Retained earnings differenceson  (loss) from financial
trandationof ~ asstsmessured at Total equity
Share capital financia fair vauethrough attributable to
of common Capital Specia  Unappropriated statementsof  other comprehensive Treasury  owners of the Non-controlling
stocks reserve  Legal reserve  reserve earnings Total foreign operations income stock  parent company interest Tota equity
$ 5,037,910 1,363,148 1,603,070 25,004 3,421,550 5,049,624 (32,521) - (71,196) 11,346,965 1,714,443 13,061,408
- - - - 222,398 222,398 - (1,538) - 220,860 - 220,860
5,037,910 1,363,148 1,603,070 25,004 3,643,948 5,272,022 (32,521) (1,538)  (71,196) 11,567,825 1,714,443 13,282,268
- - - - 507,248 507,248 - - - 507,248 166,065 673,313
- - - - (414) (414) 6,611 1,902 - 8,099 692 8,791
- - - - 506,834 506,834 6,611 1902 - 515,347 166,757 682,104
- - 34,629 - (34,629) - - - - - - -
- - - 7,517 (7,517) - - - - - - -
- - - - (251,896) (251,896) - - - (251,896) - (251,896)
- 61 - - - - - - - 61 116 177
- 5,313 - - - - - - - 5,313 - 5,313
- 343 - - - - - - - 343 - 343
- - - - - - - - - - (150,746) (150,746)
5,037,910 1,368,865 1,637,699 32,521 3,856,740 5,526,960 (25,910) 364 (71,196) 11,836,993 1,730,570 13,567,563
- - - - 1,283,526 1,283,526 - - - 1,283,526 262,697 1,546,223
- - - - 26 26 (354) % - (232 1,417 1,185
- - - - 1,283,552 1,283,552 (354) % - 1,283,294 264,114 1,547,408
- - 50,724 - (50,724) - - - - - - -
- - - (6,975) 6,975 - - - - - - -
- - - - (503,791) (503,791) - - - (503,791) - (503,791)
- 11 - - - - - - - 11 22 33
- 10,626 - - - - - - - 10,626 - 10,626
- 371 - - - - - - - 371 - 371
- - - - - - - - - - (209,301) (209,301)
$ 5037910 1,379.873 1,688,423 25,546 _ 4,592,752 6,306,721 (26,264) 460_ (71,196) 12,627,504 1,785,405 14,412,909
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KINDOM DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
January 1to December 31, 2019 and 2018
Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

111

2019 2018
Cash flows from operating activities:
Income before income tax $ 1,814,264 1,080,418
Adjustments:
Adjustments to reconcile profit (10ss)
Depreciation 361,209 258,258
Amortization 14,639 19,088
Impairment loss (profit reversal) (15,110) 515,204
Net loss (gain) on financia assets and liabilities measured (6,699) 8,300
at fair value through profit or loss
Interest expense 450,425 435,564
Interest income (20,300) (23,259)
Dividend income (3,456) (3,674)
Share of gains (loss) of associates and joint ventures (D) 8
accounted for using equity method
Gain on disposal of assets (80) (309)
Amortization of prepaid lease - 1,578
Other income - (56,567)
Tota adjustments to reconcile profit (10ss) 780,627 1,154,175
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Changes in operating assets:
Decrease in financial instruments measured at fair value 84 322
through profit or loss
Increase in contract assets (321,463) (209,144)
Decrease (increase) in notes receivable (1,972 12,894
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 72,121 (312,367)
Decrease in other receivables - 26,853
Decrease (increase) in inventory 1,301 (2,031,086)
Decrease in prepayments 189,033 95,130
Decrease (increase) in other current assets 3,110 (17,609)
Increase in other financia instruments - current (1,149,743) (791,380)
Decrease (increase) in incremental costs of obtaining a (41,175) 117,510
contract
Increase in defined benefit assets - non-current (1,361) -
Decrease (increase) in other non-current assets (30) 5
Tota changesin operating assets (1,250,095) (3,108,872)
Changes in operating liabilities:
Increase in contract liabilities 1,597,308 2,519,722
Increase (decrease) in notes payable (5,936) 62,562
Increase in accounts payable 812,834 247,758
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable - related parties (307) 307
Increase (decrease) in other payables (66,992) 92,935
Increase in provisions for employee benefit - current 3,017 2,111
Increase in provisions - current 23,221 20,176
Decrease in payments received in advance (10,955) (23,085)
Increase in leases payable - current - 38
Increase in other current liabilities 5,204 120,798
Decrease in defined benefit liabilities (3,862) (1,168)
Decrease in other non-current liabilities (16,412) (17,732
Total changes in operating liabilities 2,337,120 3,024,422
Tota changesin operating assets and liabilities 1,087,025 (84,450)
Tota adjustments 1,867,652 1,069,725




KINDOM DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
January 1to December 31, 2019 and 2018
Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid
Net cash generated from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from capital return of financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income
Disposal of non-current Assets Held for Sale
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Disposal of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets
Disposal of investment property
Decrease (increase) in other financial instruments - non-current
Increase in prepayments for equipment
Interests received
Dividends received

Net cash generated from (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Increase in short-term borrowings
Decrease in short-term borrowings
Increase in short-term notes
Decrease in short-term notes
Redemption or repurchase of corporate bonds
Issuance of convertible corporate bonds
Issuance of long-term debt
Redemption of long-term debt
Increase in guarantee deposits
Long-term lease payable
Repayments of |ease principal
Cash dividends paid

Interests paid

Changes in non-controlling interest

Net cash generated from (used in) financing activities
Effects of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash and cash

equivalents

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivaents at end of the year

112

2019 2018
3,681,916 2,150,143
(485,543) (202,033)
3,196,373 1,948,110
- 51

111,969 -
(93,581) (188,750)
1,431 874
(3,726) (5,711)
- 93,022
(9,858) 14,397
(3,728) (2,004)
20,777 23,123
3,456 3,674
26,740 (61,324)
9,399,885 12,142,810
(9,689,019) (13,477,068)
569,000 1,524,000
(569,000) (2,083,289)
(1,000,000) (2,000,000)
1,000,000 2,000,000
110,000 83,050
(940,541) (489,400)
28,399 17,748
- (2,519)

(121,212) -
(493,165) (246,583)
(619,052) (635,865)
(209,301) (150,746)
(2,534,006) (3,317.862)
721 8,728
689,828 (1,422,348)
5,539,557 6,961,905
$ 6,229,385 5,539,557




KINDOM DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD. and Subsidiaries

Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements
Year 2019 and Y ear 2018

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Otherwise Specified)

l. Company Overview

Kindom Development Co., Ltd. (the "company") was incorporated on November of 1979, as
acompany limited by shares under the laws of the Republic of China ("R.O.C.") and registered
under the Ministry of Economic Affairs, R.O.C. The registered address is 2F., No. 131, Sec.
3, Heping E. Rd., Daan Dist., Taipei City 106, Taiwan (R.O.C.). The company and its
subsidiaries (the "Group") primarily engages in the development of residential properties, the
leases or sales of commercial buildings, comprehensive constructions, department stores,
supermarkets, and international trading.

II.  TheApproval Date and Procedures of the Financial Report
The consolidated financial statementswere authorized by the Board of Directors on March 23,

2020.

[11.  Application of Newly Issued and Revised Standards and Interpretations

(1)

Impact of adoption of new, revised, and amended standards and interpretations

endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission, R.O.C. ("FSC").

In preparing the accompanying consolidated financial statements, the Group has

adopted the following International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"),

International Accounting Standards ("IAS"), and Interpretations that have been

issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (" IASB" ) (collectively,

" IFRSs' ) and endorsed by the FSC, with effective date from January 1, 2019.

The new, revised, and amended standards and interpretations are listed below:
Effective date

New, Revised, and Amended Standards and Inter pretations per IASB

IFRS 16 "L eases" January 1, 2019
IFRIC 23 "Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments" January 1, 2019
Amendments to IFRS 9 " Prepayment Features with Negative January 1, 2019
Compensation”

Amendmentsto IAS 19 "Plan Amendment, Curtailment or January 1, 2019
Settlement”

Amendmentsto IAS 28 "Long-term Interestsin Associatesand  January 1, 2019
Joint Ventures'

Annua Improvementsto IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle January 1, 2019

Except for the following items, the initial application of the above IFRSs did not
have any material impact on the consolidated financial statements. The extent and
impact of changes are as follows:

IFRS 16 "L eases"

International Financial Reporting Standards 16 "Leases' ("IFRS 16") replacesthe
existing guidance, including IAS 17 "Leases" ("IAS 17"), IFRIC 4 "Determining
Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease" ("IFRIC 4"), SIC 15 "Operating
Leases— Incentives," and SIC 27 "Evaluating the Substance of Transactionsin the
Lega Form of aLease."

The Group applies IFRS 16 with modified retrospective approach and recognizes
cumulative effect upon the initial application of this standard as an adjustment to
the opening balance of itsretained earnings on January 1, 2019. The following are
the nature and impacts on the changes of accounting policies:
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KINDOM DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD. and Subsidiaries

D

)

3

(4)

Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements

Identifying alease

Previoudly, at the contract commencement date, the Group determined
whether a contract is or contains a lease in accordance with IFRIC 4. Upon
adopting the new standard, the Group determined whether a contract is or
contains alease in accordance with IFRS 16 (Note 1V (13)).

On transition to the new standard of IFRS 16, the Group elects the modified
retrospective approach and apply apractical expedient that does not need any
reassessment whether a contract is, or contains, alease. IFRS 16 is applied
directly to the contracts previousy determined as lease. The contracts
previously determined as not leases under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 would not be
reassessed. Consequently, IFRS 16 is applied to contracts signed or revised
on or after the date of initial application.

The Group as alessee

For transactions where the Group is the lessee, previously, the Group's
categorization of lease contracts depended on the transfer of the substantial
risks and rewards incident to ownership of an underlying asset. Under the
new standard of IFRS 16, the lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability in the balance sheets.

For contracts previously classified as operating leases under IAS 17

In the transition, a lease liability is measured at the present value of the
remaining lease payments payable with the Group's incremental borrowing
rate at the date of initial application. Theright-of-use asset is measured at the
amount of the lease liability plus adjustments of any relevant prepayments or
payables by the lessee. The Group applies this valuation to al other leases
besides aforementioned |eases.

The Group choosesto el ect the following practical expedients upon transition
to IFRS 16:

a.  apply a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar
characteristics.

b. apply the exemption, and not to recognize the right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities with any lease term that ends within 12 months after the
date of initial application.

c. excludetheinitia direct costs from measuring the right-of -use assets at
the date of initial application.

d. use hindsight to determine the lease term while the contract contains
options to extend or terminate the lease.

The Group as alessor

Except for sublease, as alessor, the Group does not need to make adjustments
in the transition to the new standard, and at the date of initial application, the
Group applies IFRS 16 to all rental transactions.

Under IFRS 16, a sublease shall be classified by reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease, rather than by reference to the underlying
asset.

Impacts on financia statements
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Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements

In transition to IFRS 16, the Group recognizes right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities in the amount of NT$ 2,911,491 thousand and NT$ 2,965,902
thousand, respectively, at the date of initial application. The lease liability is
calculated by discount of lease payment using the interest rate applicable for
increase in borrowing at the Group's date of initial application, and the
weighted average of the interest rate adopted is 1.80%.
The adjustments of amount of operating leases for the prior year to lease
liabilities at the date of initial application are listed below:

2019.1.1
Amount of operating leases disclosed in the consolidated $ 2,175,765
financial statement on December 31, 2018

Short-term borrowing (35,128)
Reasonably excisable options to extend or terminate 1,417,308

3,557,945
Discount amount with incremental borrowing rate on 2,965,902

January 1, 2019
Amount of finance leases on December 31, 2018 -
Amount of lease liabilities on January 1, 2019 $ 2,965,902

() Impact of IFRSs endorsed by the FSC but yet to come into effect
According to Order No. 1080323028 issued by the FSC on July 29, 2019,
commencing from 2020, public companies are required to adopt the IFRSs that
have been endorsed by the FSC with effective date from January 1, 2020. The
related new, revised, and amended standards and interpretations are listed below:
New, Revised, and Amended Standards and Effective date per
| nter pretations IASB
Amendments to IFRS 3 "Definition of a Business' January 1, 2020
Amendmentsto IFRS 9, IAS 39, and IFRS 7 "Interest  January 1, 2020
Rate Benchmark Reform™
Amendmentsto IAS 1 and IAS 8 "Definition of Material" January 1, 2020

The Group assessed that the adoption of the aforementioned new standards will
not have significant impacts on its consolidated financial statements.

(rn Impact of IFRSsissued by the IASB but yet to be endorsed by the FSC
A summary of new, revised, and amended standards and interpretations issued by
the IASB but yet to be endorsed by the FSC is listed below:

New, Revised, and Amended Standards and Effective date
I nterpretations per IASB
Amendmentsto IFRS 10 and IAS 28 "Sale or To be determined
Contribution of Assets Between an Investor and Its by IASB
Associate or Joint Venture'
IFRS 17 "Insurance Contracts' January 1, 2021

Amendmentsto IAS 1 "Classification of Liabilitiesas January 1, 2022
Current or Non-current"

The Group is currently evaluating the impact on its consolidated financial position
and consolidated financial performance upon the initia adoption of the
af orementioned standards and interpretations. The results thereof will be disclosed
when the Group completes its evaluation.

IV. Summary of Material Accounting Policies
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Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements

The significant accounting policies presented in the consolidated financial statements are
summarized as the following and have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these financial statements, except for the changes in accounting standards disclosed in Note

()] Statement of compliance
The Group's consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the "Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers’ (the "Regulations”) and the IFRS, IAS, IFRIC Interpretations,
and SIC Interpretations endorsed by the FSC (collectively asthe "IFRSs approved
by FSC").

() Basis of preparation
1. Basisof measurement

The consolidated financia statements have been prepared on a historical cost
basis except for the following significant accounts:

(1) Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss;

(2) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income; and

(3) Net defined benefit liability (or asset) measured at the fair value of plan
assets less present value of defined benefit obligation, and the limits
disclosed in Note V1(18).

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of each entity of the Group is determined based on
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates. The Group's
consolidated financia statements are presented in New Taiwan Dollars (the
"NT$"), which is the company's functiona currency. All financia
information presented in NT$ has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

(1 Basis of consolidation

1.

Principle of preparation of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financia statementsincorporate the financia statements of
the company and its controlled entities (the subsidiaries), where the company
is exposed, or has right, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entities and has the ability to affect those returns through its control over the
entities.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that
control ceases. All inter-company transactions within the Group, balances
and corresponding unrealized income and expenses are eliminated upon
consolidation. Total comprehensive income (loss) of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the company and the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
Financial statements of subsidiaries are adjusted to ensure consistency with
the accounting policies adopted by the company.

Changes in the Group's ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result
in aloss of control are accounted for as equity transactions among owners.
The difference between the adjustment of the non-controlling interests and
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the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognized in equity
and attributed to the owners of the company.

2. List of subsidiariesin the consolidated financia statements
Name of investor Natur e of business Per centage of owner ship
Company Name Name of Investee Nature 2019.12.31 | 2018.12.31 Disclosure
The company Kedge Construction  |Comprehensive constructions 34.18% 34.18%|The company has more than
Co., Ltd. ("Kedge half of the company's
Construction") director
seats.
The company Global Mall Co., Ltd. |Supermarkets, department stores, 84.02% 84.02%[The company controls
("Global Mall") international trading, wholesales of subsidiaries that has voting
medical equipment, and retails rights of more than half of
issued shares.
Joint venture of the Guan Cheng Co., Ltd. |Department stores, supermarkets, and 100.00% 100.00%|The Group controls
company and Global (GLOBAL MALL non-store retailing subsidiaries that has voting
Mall BANQIAO STORE) rights of more than half of
("Guan Cheng") i ssued shares.
Kedge Construction  |Jiequn Investment General investment 99.98% 99.98%|K edge Construction
Co., Ltd. ("Jiequn controls subsidiaries that
Investment") have voting rights of more
than half of issued shares.
Kedge Construction  |Guanging Installation and engineering of electrical 99.96% 99.96%|K edge Construction
Electromechanical and fire safety equipment controls subsidiaries that
Co., Ltd. ("Guanging have voting rights of more
Electromechanical") than half of issued shares.
Joint venture of Jiequn  [Dingtian Co., Ltd. Comprehensive constructions 100.00% 100.00%|The Group controls
Investment and Guanging|("Dingtian") subsidiaries that has voting
Electromechanical rights of more than half of
issued shares.
Global Mall KGM International  |Investment and operation of shopping 100.00% 100.00%|Global Mall controls
Investment Co., Ltd. [mall in mainland China, including master subsidiaries that has voting
("KGM") planning, supporting engineering rights of more than half of
consulting, and leasing planning and i ssued shares.
consulting
Global Mall Guan Hua Co., Ltd.  [Department stores, supermarkets, and 100.00% 100.00%|Global Mall controls
(GLOBAL MALL non-store retailing subsidiaries that has voting
NANGANG STORE) rights of more than half of
("Guan Hua") i ssued shares.
KGM Global Mall (Tianjin) |Business management (including rentals 100.00% 100.00%|KGM controls subsidiaries
Co., Ltd. (Note) of commercia facilities) in wholesales, that has voting rights of
retails, and import/export of household more than half of issued
items and appliances, sports goods, office| shares.
supplies, watches, glasses, textiles, etc.;
property management; business
consulting; corporate marketing planning;
conference services; exhibition services ;
parking lot operation and management
Joint venture of Global  |Guan You Co., Ltd.  |Department stores, supermarkets, and 100.00% 100.00% |The Group controls
Mall and Guan Cheng  [(GLOBAL MALL non-store retailing subsidiaries that has voting
ZUOYING STORE) rights of more than half of
("Guan You") i ssued shares.

Note: Globa Mall (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. ("Global Mall Tianjin") is a
subsidiary of KGM, investments accounted for using the equity
method. On May 31, 2019, KGM Tainjin singed with Tianjin
Chongbei Property Management Co, Ltd. (lessor) an agreement in
which the lease was terminated on the aforesaid agreement date. The
lease was to be closed by July 2019. Refer to Note VI(6) and 1X(1).7
for more details of the related disclosure.

List of subsidiaries which excluded in the consolidated financial statements;
None

3.
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Foreign currency

1.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are trandated into the functional currency
at exchange rates prevailing at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the period (the
"reporting date™") are retrandated to the functional currency at the exchange
rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retrandated to the
functional currency at the exchange rate prevailing at the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities in a foreign
currency that are measured at historical cost are retranslated using the
exchange rates prevailing at the transaction dates.

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair
value adjustments arising from acquisition, are trandated into NT$ at the
exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign
operations are trandated into NT$ at the average exchange rates for the
period. All resulting exchange differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

On the disposal of aforeign operation which involves aloss of control over
asubsidiary or loss of significant influence over an associate that includes a
foreign operation, al of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation are entirely reclassified to profit or loss. In the case
of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to non-controlling interests. For a partial disposal of the Group's
ownership interest in an associate or joint venture, the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange differences in equity is reclassified to profit or
loss.

When the settlement of amonetary receivable from or payableto aforeign operation
is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future, the related foreign
exchange gains and losses are a part of net investment in that foreign operation and
thereon are recognized as other comprehensive income.

Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities
Anasset is classified as current when one of the following criteriais met; all other
assets are classified as non-current assets;

1.

It isexpected to be realized, or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal
operating cycle;

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period;
or

The asset is cash or acash equivalent unless the asset isrestricted from being
exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.
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A liability is classified as current when one of the following criteria is met; al
other liabilities are classified as non-current liabilities:

1. Itisexpected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

2. Itisheld primarily for the purpose of trading;

3. Itisdueto be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

4. Thesettlement of such aliability that the Group does not have an unconditional
right to defer for at least twelve months after the reporting period. However,
terms of such aliability that, at the option of the counterparty, could be settled
by issuing equity instruments do not affect its classification.

V1) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash consists of cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents consist of
short-term and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changesin value. Time
deposits that meet the aforesaid criteriaand are not held for investing purposes are
also classified as cash equivalents.

(V1) Financial instruments

Accounts receivables are initially recognized upon revenue generation, and debt
securities are initially recognized upon issuance. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognized and measured at fair value through
profit or loss when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. Financial assets (except for accounts receivables without significant
financing component) and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value
through profit or loss are initialy recognized and measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to their acquisition or issuance.
Accounts receivables without significant financing component is measured at its
transaction price.

1. Financial assets
All financial assets that are purchased or sold in ordinary business
transactions are recognized and derecognized on a trade-date basis.
Upon initial recognition, financial assets are classified following categories:
measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI"), and fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"). Only upon
changes in the Group's management of financial assets, the affected assets
arereclassified at the beginning of the next reporting period.
(1) Financia assets measured at amortized cost
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the
following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
e |t is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assetsto collect contractual cash flows.
e Itscontractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.
These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
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(2)

3

(4)

effective interest method, less any impairment losses. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses, and recognition (reversal) of
impairment loss are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive

income (FVTOCI)
A debt investment is measured at FVTOCI if it meets both of the
following conditions and is not designated asat FVTPL:

e Itisheld within abusiness model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.
e Itscontractua terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.
Oninitia recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading,
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment's fair value in other comprehensive income. This eection is
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis.
Debt investments are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
income cal culated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange
gains and losses, and impairment losses, deriving from debt investments
arerecognized in profit or |0ss; other net gains and | osses are recognized
in other comprehensive income ("OCI"). On derecognition, gains and
losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or l0ss.
Equity investments are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividend
income derived from equity investments (except those represent the
cost recovery) isrecognized in profit or loss; other net gains and losses
arerecognized in OCI and will not be reclassified to profit or loss.
Dividend income derived from equity investments is recognized on the
date that the Group's right to receive the dividends is established
(usualy the ex-dividend date).

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or at
FVTOCI described as above are measured at FVTPL, including
derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group may
irrevocably designate afinancial asset, which meetsthe requirementsto
be measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI, asat FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, and net gains and
losses (including dividend and interest incomes) arerecognized in profit
or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses
("ECLSs") on financial assets measured at amortized cost (including cash
and cash equivalents, notes and accounts receivable, other receivables,
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refundable deposit, and other financial assets), debt investments
measured at FV TOCI and contract assets.

The Group measures its loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL), except for the following which are measured as 12-month ECL :

e  debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date; and

e  other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e.,
therisk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial
instrument) has not increased significantly since initial

recognition.

Loss alowance for trade receivables and contract assets are aways
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. Theinformation includes both quantitative
and qualitative information and anal ysis based on the Group' s historical
experience, credit assessment, as well as forward-looking information.
ECLs are probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over the
expected life of financial assets. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of al cash shortfalls, that is, the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive. ECLs are discounted at
the effective interest rate of the financia asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets
carried at amortized cost and bonds measured at FVTOCI are credit-
impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that afinancial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable data:

e significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

e abreach of contract such as adefault or being more than 360 days
past due;

e the lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to
the borrower a concession that the lender would not otherwise
consider;

e it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganization; or

e the disappearance of an active market for a security because of

financial difficulties.
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are
deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets. For debt
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2.

()

securities a FVTOCI, the loss alowance is recognized in other
comprehensive income, instead of reducing the carrying amount of the
asset, and the amount of expected credit losses is recognized in profit
or loss, as an impairment gain or |0ss.

The gross carrying amount of afinancial asset is reduced or written off,
either partially or in full, to the extent where recovery is not reasonably
expected. The Group analyzed the timing and amount of individual
write-offs on the basis of reasonable expectation of recovery, and the
write-off cannot be reversed significantly. However, financia assets
with write-off could still be subject to enforcement activitiesin order to
comply with the Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rightsto the cash
flows from the assets expire, when the Group transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets to other
enterprises, or when the Group neither retain nor transfer substantial
risks and rewards of the ownership, and does not retain control of the
asset.

Even when it transfers the financial assets, if it retains all or some the
risks and rewards of ownership of the assets, the Group continue to
recogni ze the assets in the balance sheets.

Financia liabilities and equity instruments

D

2

3

(4)

Classification of debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified
separately as financia liabilities and equity in accordance with the
substance of contractual arrangements.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments are recognized at the amount of consideration received less
the direct issue costs.

Treasury stock

Equity instruments repurchased by the Group are recognized as
reduction of equity at the amount of repurchase price (including direct
costs). Shares repurchased are recorded as treasury stocks. The amount
of any subsequent sales or reissuance of treasury stocks is recognized
as addition to equity. Any gain (loss) realized is accounted for as an
addition (reduction) of the remaining balance of capital reserve; if the
remaining balance of capita reserve is insufficient to cover the
deficiency, the remainder is recorded as a reduction of as retained
earnings.

Financial liabilities

Upon initial recognition, financial liabilities are classified following
categories. measured at amortized cost and fair value through profit or
loss ("FVTPL"). Financial liabilities that are held for trading,
derivatives or designated upon initial recognition are recognized as
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(7)

FVTPL and measured at fair value, and related net gain or loss,
including interest expenses, are recognized in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expenses and exchange gains and
losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss upon disposal
are also recognized in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financia liabilities

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual
obligation has been fulfilled or cancelled, or has expired. The Group
also derecognizes a financia liability when its modifications and
restructurings result in significant changes in cash flows, and the
liability is reclassified as financial liabilities are measured at FVTPL.
The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss and
included in non-operating income and | oss.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are presented on a net basis only when
the Group hasthelegally enforceableright to offset and intends to settle
such financial assets and liabilities on anet basis or to realize the assets
and settle the liabilities smultaneously.

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract ("FGC") is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for aloss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Upon the issuance, a FGC that is not designated as measured at FVTPL
is initially recognized at fair value less any direct issue cost and
subsequently measured as the greater of (a) the IFRS 9 Expected Credit
Loss dlowance, and (b) the amount initially recognized, when
appropriate, less any cumulative amount of income recognized.

Inventories

Construction

Inventory is measured by the lower of cost and net realizable value ("NRV"). The
cost includes all necessary expenditures and capitalized borrowing costs to get an
asset in place and in conditions ready for use.

The NRV isthe expected selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated cost of construction completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale. The measurement of NRV is asfollows:

1.

Construction land

The NRYV is calculated on the basis of the expected selling price judged by
the management based on the current market conditions, less cost of
construction completion and selling expenses, or the most recent estimated
market value (based on land development analysis approach or comparison

approach).
Construction in progress
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The NRV is calculated on the basis of the expected selling price (based on
the current market conditions) less cost of construction completion and
selling costs.

3. Buildingsand land held for sale
The NRYV is calculated on the basis of the expected selling price (based on
the current market conditions) less the estimated selling costs.
Trading
Inventory is measured by the lower of cost and NRV. The cost is the
weighted average of all costs necessary to get an asset in place and in
conditions ready for use.
TheNRYV isthe expected selling pricein the ordinary course of business, less
the estimated cost to get the inventory ready for use and selling costs.

(1X) Non-current assets held for sale

Per the arbitration in the second quarter of 2019, the Group disposed of the related
property, plant, and equipment and began on June 30, 2019 to adopt the relevant
accounting policies on non-current assets held for sale.

Non-current assets or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities that are
expected to be recovered primarily through a sale transaction, rather than through
continuing use, are reclassified as non-current assets held for sale. Immediately
before theinitial classification of the non-current assets as held for sale, the Group
remeasures the carrying amount of all the assets and liabilities in the group in
accordance with its applicable accounting policies. After the classification as held
for sale, the assets are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. Any impairment loss on a disposal group will first be
allocated to goodwill, and then the remaining balance of impairment loss is
allocated to assets and liabilitieson apro ratabasis, except for the assets not within
the scope of IAS 36 — Impairment of Assets. Such assets will continue to be
measured in accordance with the Group's accounting policies. Impairment losses
for assetsinitially classified as held for sale and any subsequent gains or losses on
remeasurement are recognized in profit or loss, nevertheless, the reversal gains
are not to be recognized in excess of any cumulative impairment |oss.

Intangible assets and property, plant, and equipment are no longer amortized or
depreciated when they are classified as held for sale. In addition, when
investments in associates accounted for using the equity method is reclassified as
held for sale, the equity method is no longer applicable.

X) Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence to
participate in the entity's financial and operating policies but is not in control or
joint control over those policies.

Investmentsin associates are accounted for using the equity method. Under equity
method, an investment in an associate is initialy recognized at acquisition cost,
including transaction cost. The carrying amount of the investment includes
goodwill at the date of acquisition less any cumulative impairment | oss.

In the period from the acquisition of to the disposal of significant influence over
an associate, based on the adjustment as per the Group's accounting principle, the
Group accounts for all amounts recognized in the associate's profit or loss as well
as other comprehensive income, according to the Group's proportionate interest.
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When changes in equity of an associate is not related to profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and the Group's proportionate interest is unaffected, the
Group recognizes these equity changes as an adjustment to the investment with
the corresponding amount charged or credited to capital reserve.

Only when the transactions are neither upstream nor downstream transactions,
unrealized profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
an associate are recognized in the associate's financial statements.

If the Group's share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its proportionate
interest, the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. After the
Group's proportionate interest is reduced to zero, additional 10sses are recognized
as a provision (liability) only to the extent that the investor has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

(XD Investment property
Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation or for both, but not for use in the ordinary course of business (sale,
production, provision of goods or services) or for administrative purposes.
Investment property isinitialy recognized at acquisition cost and subsequently at
initial acquisition cost less accumul ated depreciation and accumulated impai rment
losses. The methods for depreciating and determining the useful life and residual
value of investment property are the same as those adopted for property, plant and
equipment.
Gain or loss on disposal of investment property (i.e. the difference between net
proceed and the carrying amount) is recognized in profit or |oss.
In the leasing period, the rental income of investment property is recognized as
rental income on a straight-line basis. Lease incentives given is recognized as a
part of rental income.

(X1 Property, plant, and equipment

1. Recognition and measurement
Property, plant, and equipment are measured at cost (including the
capitalized borrowing costs) less accumulated depreciation and accumul ated
impairment |osses.
Each part of an item of property, plant, and equipment with a useful life that
isdifferent in relation to the total useful life of the item shall be depreciated
separately.
The gain or loss arising from the disposal of an item of property, plant, and
eguipment is recognized as non-operating income and |oss.

2. Subsequent costs
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group.

3.  Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on the cost of an asset lessits residual value and
isrecognized in profit or |oss on astraight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of each component of an item of property, plant, and equipment.
Land is not depreciable.
The estimated useful lives of property, plant, and equipment for the current
and comparative periods are as follows:
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)
2
3)
(4)

Buildings 2~55 years
Machinery and equipment 5~10 years
Transportation, office and others 1~30 years
L easehold improvement 2~20 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives, and residual values are reviewed at each

reporting date, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a

prospective basis.

(X1 Leases
Policy applicable commencing January 1, 2019

Identifying alease

At the contract commencement date, the Group determined whether it is or

contains a lease. A sublease containing the right to direct the use of an

identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration is also

identified as a lease. Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease,

the Group apply of the following assessment:

D

2

3

A lease contains an identified asset. An asset is identified by being

explicitly specified in a contract or being implicitly specified at the

time it is made available for use. A capacity portion of an asset is an

identified asset only if it is physicaly distinct or it represents

substantially all of the capacity of the asset. However, where a

supplier has a substantive right of substitution throughout the period of

use, then the asset is not an identified asset; and

the customer has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic

benefits from use of an identified asset; and

the customer has the right to direct the use of an identified asset under

one of the following conditions:

e thecustomer has the right to direct how and for what purpose the
asset is used throughout the period of use; or

e regarding how and for what purpose the asset is used is

predetermined, and
- the customer has the right to operate the asset throughout the
period of use, without the supplier having the right to change
those operating instructions; or
- thecustomer designsthe asset in away that predetermines how
and for what purpose the asset will be used throughout the
period of use.
At that lease commencement date or when reassessing a contract, the
Group alocates consideration to separate components. The
consideration in the contract is allocated to each lease component on
the basis of the relative stand-al one price of thelease components. Only
in leases of land and buildings, the Group elect not to separate non-
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lease components from lease components and instead account for all
components as a lease.

2.  The Group as lessee
At the lease commencement date, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset
and alease liability. The right-of-use asset isinitially measured, using a cost
model, at the original amount of the lease liability, plus |ease payments at or
before |ease commencement, any initial direct costs, and an estimate of costs
to beincurred by thelesseein dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to
the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, and less |ease
incentives.
The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the period
from the lease commencement date to the end of the asset's useful life or end
of lease, whichever isearlier. In addition, the right-of-use asset is also tested
for impairment, with the effect of impairment |oss accounted for against lease
liability, on aregular basis.
Theleaseliability isinitially measured at the present value of |ease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted at the rate implicit in the leaseif that
can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate. In general, the Group adopts the
interest rate for increase in borrowing as the discount rate.
The lease payments comprise as follows:

(1) fixed payments, including in-substance fixed lease payments,

(2) variable lease payments that depend on an index or arate and initially
measured at the index or rate at the |ease commencement date;

(3) amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees,

(4) an option to purchase the underlying asset if it is reasonably certain to

be exercised, and penalty payments for terminating the |ease.
The lease liability is subsequently measured on an amortized cost basis,
using an effective interest method, and remeasured to reflect the following
conditions:

(1) changesin future lease payments resulting from changesin an index or
arate used to determine those payments;

(2) changes in the amounts expected to be payable under aresidua value
guarantee;

(3) changesin the assessment of the purchase option;

(4) change in the assessment of the lease term resulting from extension or
termination of the exercise of the purchase option; or

(5) lease modifications of the underlying asset, scope, and other terms and

conditions.
The remeasurements made under (i), (ii) and (iii) are treated as adjustments
to the right-of-use asset. When the carrying amount is reduced to zero, any
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further reduction is recognized immediately in profit or l0ss.

The changes in (iv) and (v) decreases the scope of a lease. When a lease
modification decreases the scope of alease, the carrying vaue of the right-of-
use asset is decreased to reflect partia of full termination of the lease ligbility,
and any gain or loss resulting from the aforementioned derecognition is
immediately recognized in profit or |0ss.

The Group records right-of-use assets and lease liabilities defined as not
investment propertiesin asinglelineitem in the consolidated balance sheets.
The Group elects not to recognize short-term assets of office equipment and
other low-value assets as right-of -use assets and lease liabilities, but instead
recognizes payments of these |eases as expenses on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

The Group as lessor

For transactions where the Group is the lessor, the Group classify alease as
a finance lease if it transfers the substantial risks and rewards of an
underlying asset on the date of the lease; otherwise, an operating lease. In the
assessment of a lease's classification, the Group evaluates situations
including whether the lease term is for the major part of the economic life of
the asset.

If the Group is the lessor of a sublease, the Group recognizes the original
lease and the sublease separately. The sublease is classified by reference to
the right-of -use asset of the original lease. If the original leaseis a short-term
lease, a practical expedient is applicable, and the sublease is classified as an
operating |lease.

If the sublease includes | ease and non-lease components, the considerationis
allocated in accordance with IFRS 15.

Policy Applicable Before January 1, 2019

1.

The Group as lessor

Lease income from an operating lease was recognized in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease were added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognized as an expense over the lease term
on a straight-line basis. Incentives granted to the lessee to enter into the
operating lease were recognized as areduction of rental income over thelease
term on a straight-line basis.

Contingent rents were recognized as an income in the period when the lease
adjustments were confirmed.

The Group as lessee

All other lease are operating leases, which were not recognized as a leases
asset in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Rental payments made under operating leases (excluding insurance and
maintenance expenses) were charged to expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis. Lease incentives received from the lessor were recognized
as areduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
Contingent rents were recognized as expenses in the period when the lease
adjustments were confirmed.
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(X1V) Intangible assets

1. Recognition and measurement
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are measured at cost, less
accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment |osses.

2. Subsequent expenses
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future
economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other
expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and
brands, is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

3. Amortization
The amortizable amount isthe cost of an asset, less, itsresidual value. Except
for goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, amortization
isrecognized in profit or loss on astraight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of intangible assets from the date that they are available for use.
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as
follows:

(1) Patentsand trademarks: 10 years
(2) Serviceconcessions: 13~16 years

(3) Computer software: 2~10 years
The amortization method, amortization period, and residual vaue are
reviewed at each reporting date, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

(XV) Long term prepaid lease

When the Group entersinto a surface lease, both loyalties paid for the right to use
the land (i.e. surface right) and acquisition costs (i.e. any necessary costs to get
the land ready to use) are recognized as a prepaid lease, or other proper accounts
according to the nature of the use, and also amortized in the effective time. For
surface lease aimed for construction of buildings, the amortization of the loyalty
is recorded as cost of construction, the balance of which is reclassified to PP& E
held for sale, or other proper accounts, upon the compl etion of the construction.

(XVI1) Impairment of non-financial assets
Non-financial assets (other than inventories, contract assets, and deferred income
tax assets) are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. When there exists an indication of
impairment for an asset, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated.
For the purpose of impairment testing, a cash-generating unit (CGU) is the
smallest group of assets that independently generates cash flow and whose cash
flow islargely independent of the cash flows generated by other assets. Goodwill
arising from abusiness combination is allocated to each of the Group's CGUs that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
The recoverable amount for an individual asset or a CGU is the higher of its fair
value, lesscoststo sell, and itsvaluein use. In assessing valuein use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value at a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects the current market assessments of the time values of money and the
risks specific to the asset.
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When the recoverable amount of an individual asset or a CGU is less than its
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized .

The impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss, firstly by
reducing the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then
proportionately allocated to the other assets of the CGU on the basis of the
carrying amount of each asset in the CGU.

A subsequent reversal of the impairment loss on goodwill is prohibited. An
impairment loss recognized in the prior year for an asset other than goodwill can
be reversed only to the amount not exceeding its recoverable amount for the prior
year, less amortization of the year.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when, as aresult of apast event, the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle the obligation with an outflow of economic
benefits. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
at a pre-tax rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is
recognized as an interest expense.

A provision for warranties is recognized upon the completion of construction. This
provision reflectsthe historical warranty claim rate and the weighting of all possible
outcomes against their associated probabilities.

Revenue recognition

1. Revenuefrom contracts with customers
Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.
The Group recognizes revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation by
transferring control of a good or a service to a customer. The accounting
policies for the Group's main types of revenue are explained below:

(1) Development of land and buildings

The Group develops and sells real estate, often before or during
construction. The Group recognizes revenue when control over a piece
of real estate is transferred. Due to contract restrictions, the Group
usually does not apply the piece of rea estate to other purposes.
Consequently, revenue is recognized upon either transfer of legal
ownership or delivery of the piece of real estate to customers, whichever
occurs first in the reporting period, despite that the other occurs in the
subsequent period.

Revenue is measured at transaction price per contract. When sales
happen after construction is completed, in most cases, consideration is
made upon transfer of legal ownership; however, in some cases,
consideration is deferred for less than twelve months per contract terms.
Conseguently, no adjustment in the transaction price for the effect of
financing component of the contract. When sales happen before
construction is completed, consideration is payable in installments
during the period from singing a contract to transfer of legal ownership
of the real property. If asignificant financing component isincluded in
the contract, the installments are discounted at the interest rate of the
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(4)

construction loan to reflect the effect of time value of money.
Prepayments are recognized as a contract liability in balance sheet, and
discounts reflecting the effect of time value of money are recognized as
interest expenses in profit or loss. The accumulated contract liabilities
arereclassified as revenue upon the transfer of legal ownership.

Customer loyalty program

The Group grants pointsto its customersin a customer loyalty program,
and the points, accumulated through purchases, can be redeemed in the
future for gifts or discounts on goods. The Group records the points as
aperformance obligation since they give customers amaterial right that
the customer would not have received without entering into the program.
The Group separately records the sales of goods and the points on the
basis of stand-alone selling price. Applying historical data, the Group's
management estimates each point's stand-alone selling price, based on
the discount received by the customers and the expected redemption rate
of the points, and allocates apart of transaction priceto the points. When
sales transactions are made, the points are recognized in performance
obligations; when the points are redeemed or expired, they are
reclassified in profit or loss.

Consulting and management services

The Group provides business consultation and management to
enterprise customers and recognizes in the accounting periods in which
the services are rendered. Revenue is recognized based on the actua
service provided by the end of the reporting period as a proportion of
the total servicesto be provided. The proportion of services provided is
determined based on the portion of the work performed, the time passed
by, or the milestone reached.

Estimates of revenues, costs, or extent of progress toward completion,
are revised if circumstances change. Any resulting increases or
decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or lossin
the period when the circumstances that give rise to the revision become
known by the management.

In case of fixed-price contracts, the customer pays the fixed amount
based on a payment schedule. If the accumulated revenue due to
rendering of services recognized by the Group exceed the payments, a
contract asset is recognized. If the payments exceed the accumulated
revenue recognized, a contract liability is recognized.

Construction contracts

The Group is engaged in the development of residential rea estate and
public construction. Because assets are controlled by customers at the
time of construction, revenue is recognized on the basis of stage of
completion of contract activity (i.e. cost of construction completed in
proportion to total construction costs). Contracts include both fixed and
variable considerations. Fixed considerations are paid based on a
payment schedule. Variable considerations (i.e. penaty provisions for
payment overdue and purchase price concessions) are estimated base d
on the management's past experience. Revenueisonly recognized to the

131



KINDOM DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD. and Subsidiaries
Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements

()

(6)

(7)

extent that accumulated payments are highly unlikely to be reversed.
When the recorded revenue is yet to be made payable, it is classified as
a contract asset. When the Group has unconditiona rights to the
considerations, the contract asset is reclassified as an account payable.
When the Group is unable to measure the stage of completion of a
contract's performance obligations, revenue is recognized only to the
extent that contract costs incurred are expected to be recoverable.
When the Group estimates that the cost to complete a contract's
performance obligations exceeds the expected economic benefits from
the contract, aliability provision is recognized for the loss.

Estimates of revenues, costs, or extent of progress toward completion,
are revised if circumstances change. Any resulting increases or
decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or lossin
the period when the circumstances that give rise to the revision become
known by the management.

The Group grants standard warranties on residential real estate and
public construction according to contract agreements and recognizes
this obligation as provisions - warranty. Refer to Note V1(16) for more
details.

Commission income

In the department store business, when the Group acts as agent and not
principal in an transaction, it recognizes commission revenue, on a net
basis.

Rental income

Rental incomes from investment property are recognized in revenue on
a straight-line basis during a lease term. Lease incentives, as a part of
economic benefitsfrom the |ease, are recognized as areduction to rental
incomes on a straight-line basis during a lease term. Incomes from
sublet properties are recognized as an operating income.

Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period
between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer
and the payment by the customer exceeds one year, or where financing
components have significant impact on individual contacts.
Consequently, the Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices
for the time value of money.

2. Contract costs

(1)

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

The Group recognizesthe incremental costs of obtaining a contract with
acustomer as an asset if the Group expects to recover those costs. The
incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the Group
incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it would not have
incurred if the contract had not been obtained. Costs to obtain a contract
that would have been incurred, regardless of whether the contract was
obtained, shall be recognized as an expense when incurred, unless those
costs are explicitly chargeable to the customer regardless of whether the
contract is obtained.
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(2) Costs of fulfilling a contract

If the costs incurred in fulfilling a contract with a customer are not
within the scope of another Standard (for example, IAS 2 Inventories,
IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment or IAS 38 Intangible Assets), the
Group recognizes an asset from the costs incurred to fulfill a contract
only if those costs meet al of the following criteria: the costs relate
directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract that the Group can
specifically identify; the costs generate or enhance resources of the
Group that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future; and the costs are expected to be
recovered.

For general and administrative costs, costs of wasted materials, 1abor or
other resourcesto fulfill the contract that were not reflected in the price
of the contract, costs that relate to satisfied performance obligations (or
partially satisfied performance obligations), and costs for which the
Group cannot distinguish whether the costs relate to unsatisfied
performance obligations or to satisfied performance obligations(or
partially satisfied performance obligations), the Group recognizes these
costs as expenses when incurred.

(X1IX) Employee benefits

1.

Defined contribution plans
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are
expensed during the year in which employees render services.

Defined benefit plans

The liability recognized in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation (i.e. the benefits that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods) ) at the reporting date less the fair value of plan assets.

The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by qualified actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a
benefit to the Group, the recognized asset is limited to the total amount of the
present value of the economic benefits available in the form of refunds from
the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. The minimum
funding requirements of any plans applicable to the Group should be taken
into consideration when determining the present value of the economic
benefits.

The remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability comprise actuarial
gains and losses, return on plan assets (excluding interest described below),
and any change in the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding interest described
below). The remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset) are
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in retained
earnings. Net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability
(asset) is calculated using the discount rate determined at the beginning of
the reporting period on the beginning balance of the net defined benefit
liability (asset). The net interest expense and other expenses are recorded
in profit or loss.

The Group recognizes losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined
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benefit plan when the curtailment or settlement occurs. The lossis measured
as any resulting changein the fair value of plan assets and any changein the
present value of the defined benefit obligation.

3. Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are expensed during the period in
which employees render services. The amount expected to be paid for
short-term employee benefits is recognized as a liability if the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of
past service provided by the employees, and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.

(XX) Income taxes

Income tax expenses include both current taxes and deferred taxes. Current and

deferred taxes are recognized in profit or loss unless they relate to business

mergers or items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current tax isthe expected tax payable or refundable on the taxable income or loss

for the year and any adjustmentsto tax payable or refundablein the previous years.

The best estimates is assessed using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at

the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary

differences, that is, temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities for financia reporting purposes and the amounts for taxation
purposes. Exceptions to the requirement to recognize a deferred tax asset or
liability are:

1. Temporary arising from the initial recognition of an asset/liability other than
in a business merger which, at the time of the transaction, does not affect
either the accounting or the taxable profit;

2. Temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, associates,
and joint ventures to the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences, and it is probable that the
differences will not reversein the foreseeable future; and

3. Temporary differences arising from initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities may be offset against each other if the following

criteria are met:

1. Theentity hasthe legal right to settle tax assets and liabilities on anet basis;
and
2.  Theamounts of deferred tax assets and liabilities are:
(1) Levied by the same taxing authority; or
(2) Levied by different entities that intend to realize the asset and settle the
liability at the same time.

134



KINDOM DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD. and Subsidiaries
Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements

A deferred tax asset is recognized for deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses and unused tax creditsto the extent that it is probabl e that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be
utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the benefit of part or all of that
deferred tax asset to be utilized. Any such reduction is subsequently reversed to
the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.
(XX1) Earnings per share (the "EPS")

The basic and diluted EPS attributable to shareholders of the company are
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing net income attributabl e to shareholders of the company by the weighted-
average number of common stocks outstanding during the year. In calculating
diluted EPS, the net income attributable to shareholders of the company and
weighted-average number of common stocks outstanding during the year are
adjusted for the effects of dilutive potential common stocks. The Group's dilutive
potential common stocks include employee stock option warrants.

(XX11) Segment information

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business
activitiesfrom which it may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues
and expenses relating to transactions with other components of the Group).
Operating results of the operating segment are regularly reviewed by the Group's
chief operating decision maker, who decides on the alocation of resources to the
segment and assesses its performance, for which discrete financial information is
available.

V. Main Sources of Uncertainty in Material Accounting Judgments, Estimates, and

Assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements, in conformity with the Regulations
and IFRSs approved by FSC, requires the management to make judgments, estimates, and
assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amount of
assets, liabilities, income, and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed by the management on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is
revised and in the future periods affected.

Information on critical accounting judgments resulting in a materia adjustment in the
consolidated financial statements of this year: None.

Information on key estimation and assumption uncertainties that have significant risks of
resulting in amaterial adjustment in the next reporting period isincluded as follows:

M Revenue recognition and accrual of contract cost
The Group recognized any profit or loss on construction contracts as a contract
income or a contract cost, on the basis of stage of completion of contract activity,
that is, the percentage of contract costs incurred for work performed to date in
proportion to the estimated total contract costs. In the estimation of total contract
costs, considered are characteristics of various construction programs including,
among other, estimated construction period, number of projects, construction
methodology and processes, and estimated outsourced projects. Changes in any
aforementioned basis of estimation could result in significant adjustments to the
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provision made.

() Inventory valuation
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The Group
estimates the net realizable value of inventory, taking unmarketable items into
account at the reporting date, and then writes down the cost of inventories to net
realizable value. The estimation of net realizable valueis based on current market
conditions. Changes in market conditions, such as political, economic and real
estate tax reforms, may have a material impact on the estimation of the net
readlizablevalue. See Note VI(5) for details of inventory valuation.
Valuation method
In its accounting policy and disclosure, the Group adopts fair value to measure financial and
non-financial assets as well as liabilities. To make valuation close to market conditions, the
Group tests measurements with independent data sources and verifies that the data sources are
independent, reliable, and consistent with other data as well as represents exercisable prices.
To ensure valuation results are reasonable, the Group regularly calibrates valuation models,
performs retrospective testing, updates valuation models with necessary inputs and data for
fair value measurement. The valuation of investment property isin accordance with valuation
methods and parameter assumptions published by FSC and is reassessed by the management
or appraised by athird party on aregular basis.
In the fair value measurement of its assets and liabilities, the Group applies observable market
inputs as much as possible. A fair value hierarchy categorizes the inputs used in valuation
techniques into three levels:

e Leve 1 inputs. (unadjusted) quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

e Leve 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted market prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. quoted prices of similar assets or
liabilities) or indirectly (derived from such prices).

e Leve 3inputs: inputs for assets or liabilities not based on readily observable inputs on

the market (unobservable inputs)
Any transfers between the fair value hierarchy are recorded at the reporting date. Disclosures
on assumptions applied in the fair value measurement are as below:

1. Referto VI(10) Investment Property
2. Refer to VI(25) Financia Instruments
Description of Significant Accounting Items

()] Cash and cash equivalents
2019.12.31 2018.12.31

Petty cash and cash on hand $ 13,832 14,511

Bank deposits
Checking deposits 925,405 2,069,815
Demand deposits 2,162,225 2,581,408
Cash equivaents 3,127,923 873,823
$ 6,229,385 5,539,657

Maturity of these cash equivalents ranges from January to March 2020 with one
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on January 2019; interest rate of these cash equivaents ranges from 0.52% to
0.57% and from 0.60% to 0.61%.

Refer to note V1(25) for the details on interest rate risk and sensitivity analysis of
the financial assets and liabilities of the Group.

() Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through
profit or loss
Non-derivative financial assets
Listed stocks $ 67,499 67,837
Funds 30,064 23,112
Tota $ 97,563 90,949
As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, no financial assets were pledged as
collateral.
(rr Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI)
2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Equity investments measured at FV TOCI
Unlisted stock $ 8,579 7,596

1. Equity investments measured at FVTOCI
The Group designated the aforementioned investments as financial assets at
FVTOCI because these equity instruments are held for long-term strategic
purposes and not for trading.
For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the amounts of dividend
income for these equity investments were NT$ 530 thousand and NT$ 360
thousand, respectively. For the year ended on December 31, 2018, because
Clientron Corp. withdrawn investment and received capital return in the
amount of NT$ 51 thousand, the Group recognized its proportion of capital
reduction and reclassified the related profit or loss as retained earnings.
For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, no disposal of investments
was conducted and hence no transfer of cumulative profit or loss was
recognized.

2. Refer to Note VI(25) for details on credit risk (including impairment on debt
instruments) and market risk.

3. Nofinancia assets measured as FV TOCI were pledged as collateral.

(v) Notes and accounts receivable
2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Notes receivables - resulting from operation $ 3,201 1,229
Accounts receivables - measured at amortized cost 1,412,568 1,427,636
Less. loss allowance - -
$ 1,415,769 1,428,865

The Group applies the simplified approach on the estimation of expected credit
losses, that is, aloss allowance is recognized based on lifetime of expected credit
losses. To measure the expected credit |osses, notes and accounts receivableswere
grouped based on shared characteristics of credit risk on remaining payments
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before due date, and forward looking information was incorporated as well. As of
December 31, 2018, analysis of expected credit losses on notes and accounts
receivable in Taiwan was as follows:

2019.12.31

L oss allowance for expected

Carryingamount Weighted averagelossrate credit impairment of the period

$ 1,415,769 - -

2018.12.31

L oss allowance for expected

Carryingamount Weighted averagelossrate credit impair ment of the period

$ 1,428,865 - -

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, no loss allowance on doubtful
accounts and reversal of receivables written down were recognized.

As of December 31, 2018, analysis of the Group's expected credit losses for notes
and accounts receivable in mainland Chinawas as follows:

Due to the rescission of the lease with the Lessors, Tianjin Chongbel Property
Management Co., Ltd. and Tianjin River Property Management Co., Ltd., lease
agreements with retailers in the related shopping mall were also terminated. After
adeduction of any resulting penalties, the loss allowance on the related accounts
receivables, net of any related rights and obligations, was measured at NT$
175,703 thousand. Refer to Note I1X(1)g for related details.

Inventory
2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Inventory - trading $ 15,105 19,343
Inventory - construction
Prepayment for buildings and land 4,235 5,716
Land held for construction 1,239,027 4,683,217
Construction in progress 16,660,475 12,068,232
Buildings and land held for sale 14,502,566 15,481,001
Subtotal 32,406,303 32,238,166
Total $ 32,421,408 32,257,509

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the amounts of reversal of
inventory written down to net realizable value were NT$ 30,262 thousand and
4,085 thousand, respectively, and those of loss on inventory written down to net
realizable value were NT$ 0 and NT$ 26,934 thousand, respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the capitalization rates applied
in the calculation of construction in progress were 2.101% and 2.218%. Refer to
Note V1(24) for details on the amounts of capitalization.

Refer to Note V111 for details on collateral pledged for inventory as of December
31, 2019 and 2018.

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the amounts of inventory of legal parking
spaces trusted to third parties were NT$ 16,332 thousand and NT$ 17,905
thousand, respectively.
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Y1) Non-current assets held for sale

Per the arbitration dated on June 28, 2019, the Lessor, Tianjin  Chongbei
Property Management Co., Ltd., agreed to buy back the leasehold improvements,
electromechanical engineering projects and other assets and has begun to process
the sales. Consequently, the Group recognized these PP& E as non-current assets
held for sales and tested for impairment based on the carrying amount and the fair
value of these assets, whichever islower. No impairment is recognized.

Thefair value of these non-current assets held for salesis based on the price agreed
by both parties in the settlement agreement. The transaction was closed and the
related payments were received on July 2019.

(Vi) Subsidiary with material non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests were as follows:
Proportion of ownership interest and
Main operating location/ voting right of non-controlling interests
Name of subsidiary Country of registration 2019.12.31 2018.12.31

Kedge Construction and Taiwan 65.82% 65.82%
its subsidiaries

The following combined financia information, prepared in conformity with the
Regulations and |FRSs approved by FSC, reflects any adjustmentsto thefair value
at the acquisition date and adjustments to accounting policy differences and
includes inter-company transactions that are eliminated in consolidated financial

statements.
Combined financia information of Kedge Construction and its subsidiaries:
2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Current assets $ 7,708,041 6,544,742
Non-current assets 568,807 439,041
Current liabilities (5,427,525) (4,368,826)
Non-current liabilities (108,201) (82,035)
Net assets $ 2,741,122 2,532,922
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests $ 1,055,980 1,064,226
2019 2018

Operating revenue $ 11,462,442 11,429,192
Net income for the year $ 402,356 407,513
Other comprehensive income 123,918 (326)
Total comprehensive income $ 526,274 407,187
Net income attributable to non-controlling interests $ 199,541 219,375
Total comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling  $ 201,026 218,058
interests

Net cash generated from (used in) operating activities $ 1,360,312 (142,145)
Net cash generated from (used in) investing activities 1,287 2,907
Net cash generated from (used in) financing activities (168,227) (428,860)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ 1,193,372 (568,098)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests $ 209,364 150,746
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Cost or identified cost:
Balance as of January 1,
2019
Additions
Reclassification from (to)
incompl ete construction
projects
Leasehold improvement
paid by retailers
Disposal and scrap
Effects of exchangerate
changes
Balance as of December
31, 2019

Balance as of January 1, 2018 $

Additions
Reclassification from (to)
incompl ete construction
projects
Disposal and scrap
Reclassification from
prepayments for equipment
Leasehold improvement
paid by retailers
Effects of exchange rate
changes
Leasehold improvement
paid by retailers
Balance as of December
31,2018
Depreciation and impairment
loss
Balance as of January 1,
2019
Depreciation for the year
Disposal and scrap
Effects of exchangerate
changes
Impairment loss
Reversal of impairment loss
Balance as of December
31, 2019
Balance as of January 1,
2018
Depreciation for the year
Impairment loss
Disposal and scrap
Effects of exchange rate
changes
Balance as of December
31, 2018
Carrying amount:
December 31, 2019
December 31, 2018

Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements

Property, plant and equipment (PP&E)

Other equipment
(including
transportation
equipment, office
equipment,

machinery, other Construct
Buildingsand L easehold equipment and ionin
Land constructions  improvements leased assets) progress Total

$ 3,567,078 4,285,134 1,430,243 399,547 12,102 9,694,104
- 19,621 12,229 41,601 6,755 80,206

- 15,693 - - (15,693) -
- (26,417) (29,321) - (3,006) (58,744)
- (3,356) (415,992) (155,387) - (574,735)
- - 4,980 1,765 - 6,745
$ 3,567,078 4,290,675 1,002,139 287,526 158 9,147,576
3,567,078 4,329,628 1,440,200 394,675 6,683 9,738,264
- 1,125 692 10,414 12,768 24,999

- 3,814 - 2,163 (5,977) -
- - ) (4,225) - (4,234)
- - 191 - - 191
- (50,450) - - (1,372) (51,822)
- - (9,814) (3,480) - (13,294)

- 1,017 (1,017) - - -
$ 3,567,078 4285134 1,430,243 399,547 12,102 9,694,104
- 1,527,983 861,863 325,101 - 2,714,947
- 101,747 72,470 23,259 - 197,476
- (3,356) (304,024) (154,036) - (461,416)
- - 6,121 1,764 - 7,885
- - 98,000 - - 98,000
- - (113,110) - - (113,110)
- 1,626,374 621,320 196,088 - 2,443,782
- 1,430,210 390,590 167,794 - 1,988,594
- 97,773 101,296 54,360 - 253,429
- - 379,184 109,524 - 488,708
- - ) (3,304) - (3,306)
- - (9,205) (3.273) - (12,478)
- 1,527,983 861,863 325,101 - 2,714,947
$ 3,567,078 2,664,301 380,819 91,438 158 6,703,794
$ 3,567,078 2,757,151 568,380 74,446 12,102 6,979,157
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Reversal of impairment loss

The Group entered into a lease agreement of shopping malls under
development by Tianjin  Chongbel Property Management Co., Ltd. and
Tianjin  River Property Management Co., Ltd. (the"Lessors"). The Lessors
failed to perform according to lease terms. Consequently, the Group mailed
the Lessor on July 5, 2018 to exercise the option to rescind the lease and
requested an arbitration from China International Economic and Trade
Arbitration Commission ("CIETAC"). Judging from the first arbitration
court dated on December 24, 2018, the Group evaluated that the probability
of rescission was high and the carrying amount of the lease asset would
exceed the recoverable amount, and hence, the Group recognized an
impairment loss on PP& E amounting to NT$ 488,708 thousand for the year
ended on December 31, 2018.

Per the second arbitration court dated on June 28, 2019, the Lessors agreed
to buy back the leasehold improvements, electromechanical engineering
projects and other assets. Consequently, the Group adjusted the originally
recognized recoverable amount and recognized areversal of impairment loss
amounting to NT$ 113,110 thousand for the year ended on December 31,
2018. Refer to Note V1(6) and (24) for details.

Impairment loss

The Group recognized an impairment loss on leasehold improvement
amounting to NT$ 98,000 thousand for the year ended on December 31, 2019.
Refer to Note VI1(24) for details on recognition of impairment loss.
Collateral

Refer to Note V11 for details on collateral pledged for long-term borrowings
and financing as of December 31, 2019 and 2018.

Right-of-use asset
The cost, depreciation, and impairment loss of leased land, buildings,
constructions, and transportation equipment were as follows:

Buildingsand Transportation

constructions equipment Total

Cost:

Balance on January 1, 2019 - - -

Retroactive adjustments to adopt IFRS 16 $ 2,910,619 872 2,911,491

Addition 35,765 4,342 40,107

L easehold improvement (3,122 - (3,122

Balance on December 31, 2019 $ 2943262 5,214 2,948,476
Depreciation and impairment |oss:

Balance on January 1, 2019 - - -

Depreciation for the year $ 158,544 677 159,221

Balance on December 31, 2019 $ 158,544 677 159,221
Carrying amount:

December 31, 2019 $ 2784718 4,537 2,789,255

(X)

Refer to Note VI(17) for details on operating lease for the year ended on December
31, 2018.

Investment property
Details on Investment property were as follows:
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Land and Buildings and Total
improvements constructions
Cost or deemed cost:
Balance as of January 1, 2019 $ 335,287 216,663 551,950
Balance as of December 31, 2019 $ 335,287 216,663 551,950
Balance as of January 1, 2018 $ 433,764 256,787 690,551
Disposal (98,477) (40,124) (138,601)
Balance as of December 31, 2018 $ 335,287 216,663 551,950
Depreciation and impairment |oss
Disposal $ - 36,751 36,751
Depreciation for the year - 4,512 4,512
Balance as of December 31, 2019 $ - 41,263 41,263
Balance as of January 1, 2018 $ 25,867 51,998 77,865
Depreciation for the year - 4,829 4,829
Disposal (25,867) (20,076) (45,943)
Balance as of December 31, 2018 $ - 36,751 36,751
Carrying amount:
December 31, 2019 $ 335,287 175,400 510,687
December 31, 2018 $ 335,287 179,912 515,199
Fair vaue:
December 31, 2019 $ 1,137,363
December 31, 2018 $ 1,141,555

Investment properties are commercial real estates leased to third parties. Refer to
Note VI(17) for details.

Fair vaue of investment properties is determined by the vauation of an
independent appraiser (licensed in related professions and currently experienced
in appraising similar properties) or by the company's self-assessment (referring to
the sales price of similar real estate transactions in the neighborhood). These
inputs used in the fair value measurement were classified to Level 3.

The fair value measurement is assessed using the market approach and income
approach. When quoted prices in an active market are not available, fair value of
investment propertiesis determined by the present value of total future cash flows
generate over the property's lifetime, discount at rates reflecting special risks of
such cash flows. The discount rate applied for the years ended on December 31,
2019 and 2018 ranged from 1.19% to 1.95%.

Refer to Note V111 for details on collateral pledged for investment properties for
the year ended on 2019 and 2018.
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XD Intangible assets
Changesin intangible assets were as follows:
Service Patentsand Computer Total
concessions  trademarks  software
Cost:
Balance as of January 1, 2019 $ 54,199 500 120,958 175,657
Capitalized R&D - 3,726 3,726
Reclassification - 1,531 1,531
Effect of exchange rate changes - (1,171) (1,171)
Balance as of December 31, 2019 $ 54,199 500 125,044 179,743
Balance as of January 1, 2018 $ 54,199 500 115,959 170,658
Capitalized R&D - 5711 5711
Effect of exchange rate changes - (712) (712)
Balance as of December 31, 2018 $ 54,199 500 120,958 175,657
Amortization and impairment loss
Balance as of January 1, 2019 $ 22,757 417 100,271 123,445
Amortization for the year 3,448 50 11,141 14,639
Effect of exchange rate changes - (1,171) (1,171)
Balance as of December 31, 2019 $ 26,205 467 110,241 136,913
Balance as of January 1, 2018 $ 19,309 367 58,854 78,530
Amortization for the year 3,448 50 15,590 19,088
Impairment loss - 26,496 26,496
Effect of exchange rate changes - (669) (669)
Balance as of December 31, 2018 $ 22,757 417 100,271 123,445
Carrying amount:
December 31, 2019 $ 27,994 33 14,803 42,830
December 31, 2018 $ 31,442 83 20,687 52,212

1

Amortization
For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, the amount of
amortization of intangible assets was included in the following line items of
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income:

2019 2018

Operating expenses $ 14,639 19,088

Impairment loss

The Group entered into a lease agreement of shopping malls under
development by Tianjin  Chongbel Property Management Co., Ltd. and
Tianjin  River Property Management Co., Ltd. (the"Lessors"). The Lessors
failed to perform according to lease terms. Consequently, the Group mailed
the Lessors on July 5, 2018 to exercise the option to rescind the lease and
requested an arbitration from CIETAC. Judging from the first arbitration
court dated on December 24, 2018, the Group evaluated that the probability
of rescission was high and the carrying amount of the lease asset would
exceed the recoverable amount, and hence, the Group recognized an
impairment |oss on intangible assets amounting to NT$ 26,496 thousand for
the year ended on December 31, 2018. Refer to Note VI1(24) for details on
recognition of impairment loss.

Collateral

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, no intangible assets were pledged as
collateral.
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(X1 Other financial assets - current and incremental costs of obtaining a contract
Details on other financial assets were as follows:
2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Other financial assets - current $ 3,530,868 2,330,035
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract 144,525 103,350

$ 3,675,393 2,433,385

1. Other financial assets
Refer to Note VIII for details on collateral pledged on restricted assets
(reserve accounts and trust) and refundable deposits on constructions.

2. Incremental costs of obtaining a contract -current
The Group expected to recover the commissions paid to third-party real
estate agent and bonus paid to internal sales department and recognized these
costs as assets. These costs are amortized upon revenue recognition of real
estate sales. For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, the amount
of incremental costswere NT$ 132,950 thousand and NT$ 213,168 thousand,
respectively.

(X1t Short and long-term borrowings due within one year or one operating cycle, and

current portion of long-term borrowing
Details, conditions and terms of short and long-term borrowings as follows:

2019.12.31
Currency Range of effectiverates Range of maturities ~ Amount
Secured bank loans  NTD 1.75%~2.20% 109~115 $ 16,575,399
Unsecured bank loans NTD 1.40%~2.55% 109~112 4,715,000
Total $ 21290,399
Current $ 19,105,824
Non-current 2,184,575
Total $ 21,290,399
2018.12.31
Currency Range of effectiverates Range of maturities ~ Amount
Secured bank loans  NTD 1.69%~4.02% 108~115 $ 19,039,325
Unsecured bank loans NTD 1.45%~2.55% 108~112 3,370,000
Total $ 22409,325
Current $ 19,408,658
Non-current 3,000,667
Total $ 22409,325

1. Issuance and redemption
For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, the amounts of new
issuance were NT$ 9,509,885 thousand and NT$ 12,225,860 thousand,
respectively, and those of redemption were NT$ 10,629,560 thousand and
NT$ 13,966,468 thousand, respectively.

2. Collatera
Refer to Note VIII for details on collateral pledged on secured bank
borrowings.

3.  Syndicated loans
e The company entered into a syndicated loan agreement with the Land
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Bank of Taiwan (the lead bank of the syndicated loan) and three other
banks in May 2011, in the amount of NT$ 4,500,000 thousand over
fifteen years, divided into 15 terms, with one term being one year.

e According to the syndicated loan agreements: (1) for the long-term
secured loan, revolving credits are disallowed; the first repayment starts
ayear from the date of initial withdrawal, and the subsequent repayments
are scheduled every year for the next fifteen years; (2) for the middle-
term secured loan of NT$ 500,000 thousand, revolving credits are
permitted within a period of five years. The effective rate is benchmark
interest rate announced by the Land Bank of Taiwan plus an annual
interest rate of 0.90% and 1.00%. Payments are due monthly.

» Restricted by the syndicated |oan agreement, subsidiaries are required to
certain financial ratios, calculated based on its financia statements, as
follows:

(1) Total liabilitiesto total assets: not exceeding 150%
(2) Interest coverage ratio: at or above 2.00
(3) Shareholders interest: more than NT$ 3 billion

Compliance with the syndicated |oan agreement is audited by the borrower's

CPA based on the financial audit report for the year. Any violations of the

loan agreement terms or the financial ratios are to be corrected within a year

starting on June 1 of the fiscal year following the year of the audit report. If
corrections are not made within the allowed time, the remaining amount of
the principal and the resulting interests are due to the lead bank of the
syndicated loan.

As of December 31, 2018, violations of the financial ratios were discovered

in the Group's subsidiaries, but the correction will be made by June 1, 2020,

in accordance with the loan agreement. Therefore, the violation of the

financial ratio was not considered as a breach of the loan agreement. As of

December 31, 2019, the subsidiary who was in violation has improved its

financial conditions and the correction in the financia ratios were made in
compliance with the loan agreement.

(X1V) Bonds payable and convertible corporate bond due within one year or one

operating cycle, and current portion of convertible corporate bond
Details on bonds payable were as follows:

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Secured ordinary bond $ 4,500,000 4,500,000
Less: Expiring within one year - (1,000,000)
Bonds payable - non-current $ 4,500,000 3,500,000

The Group issued a secured corporate bond on December 12, 2019, in the amount
of NT$ 1,000,000 thousand, at the rate of 0.80%, for the duration of 5 years.

The Group issued a secured ordinary bond on January 15 and October 15, 2018,
in the amount of NT$ 1,000,000 thousand, at the rate of 1.05% and 0.88%, for the
duration of 5 years.
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Lease liability
The carrying amount of lease liability is as follows:

2019.12.31
Current $ 129,914
Non-current $ 2,714,817

Refer to Note VI(25) for the details on the analysis of maturity profile of the
Group's lease liahilities.
The amount related to lease liability in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive incomeis as follows:

2019
Interest expense on lease liability $ 51,678

The amount related to lease liability in the consolidated statements of cash flows
isasfollows:

2019
Variable lease payments not accounted for in lease liability  $ 70,960
Total cash used in lease $ 243,850

1. Lease of buildings and constructions

(1) Theland on Gongyuan Road in Pingtung City is leased from Pingtung
Irrigation Association. The lease term was thirty years and the lease
payment was 10% of the value of land assessed by the Government. In
the second half of 2011, the |ease was extended for another ten years. A
loyalty fee of NT$ 16,000 thousand was paid to obtain the right of first
refusal in the two years prior to the lease expiration date and to renew
the lease with pre-negotiated terms and conditions.

(2) The mall in Zuoying HSR station is leased from Taiwan Railways
Administration of the Ministry of Transportation and Communications
(MOTC) under aservice concession contract. The term isthirteen years
(including a year for leasehold improvement) and the operation will be
handed over to Taiwan Railways Administration at the lease expiration
date. The lease payment, or the annual concession fee, includes both a
flat amount and a percentage of retail sales revenue.

(3) The mall in Bangiao HSR station is leased from Taiwan Railways
Administration, MOTC under a service concession contract. The lease
term is sixteen years (including a year for leasehold improvement) and
the lease payment, or the annual concession fee, is a fixed loyalty fee
for the first four years with a 3% increment each year after.

(4) The Group entered into a lease agreement of shopping malls under
development by Tianjin Chongbel Property Management Co., Ltd.
and Tianjin River Property Management Co., Ltd. (the "Lessors").
Thelease term was twenty years after the transfer of the identified lease
asset. When the rescission was probably, the related losses were
recognized for the year ended on December 31, 2018. The lease was
rescinded per the arbitration on June 28, 2019.

(5) The mall in Nangang HSR station is leased from Taiwan Railways
Administration, MOTC under a service concession contract. The lease
term is sixteen years (including a year for leasehold improvement), and
the lease payment, or the annual concession fee, includes both a flat
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amount and a percentage of retail sales revenue.

(6) Themall in A9 Linkou Station of MRT Taoyuan Airport Lineis leased
from Railway Bureau, MOTC under a service concession contract. The
lease term is twenty years starting from the contract commencement
date, and the lease payment is the greater of the flat concession fee
committed in the contract or a variable concession fee. The variable
concession fee is a percentage of retail salesrevenue and non-operating
income of actual operation, plus lease payments on the land and
buildings.

(7) Themall and parking lot in Linkou A8 Chang Gung Memoria Hospita
Station of MRT Taoyuan Airport Line is leased from Asia Pecific
Development Co. The lease term is twenty years starting from the first
date of operation, and the lease payment on the mall is the greater of a
flat fee or a percentage of retail sales revenue.

(8 The surface right of the land on Minzu Road in Songshan District of
Taipei City was leased from Political Warfare Bureau of the Ministry
of National Defense (MND) under a service concession contract. The
|ease payment was 3% of the value of land assessed by the Government.
The contract was sold on November, 2018 and hence, the lease payment
was carried by the buyer.

(XVI) Provisions

Warranties
Balance as of January 1, 2019 $ 79,261
Additions 27,816
Used (4,595)
Balance as of December 31, 2019 $ 102,482
Balance as of January 1, 2018 $ 59,085
Additions 33,316
Used (13,140)
Balance as of December 31, 2018 $ 79,261

For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, provisions for warranties
are mainly related to construction contracts and estimated based on the historical
warranty claim data of various projects. These provisions are expected to be
claimed within a year from the completion of construction projects.

(XVII) Operating Lease
1. TheGroup aslessee

As of December 31, 2019, future lease payable under non-cancellable
operating leases were as follows:

2018.12.31
Not later than 1 year $ 185,371
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 700,553
Later than 5 years 1,289,841
$ 2,175,765

Asof December 31, 2018, the rental expenses of NT$ 388,298 thousand were
recognized in profit or loss.
2.  The Group as lessor
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The Group leases its investment properties and recognizes the |eases that do
not transfer of the substantial risks and rewards incident to ownership of an
underlying asset under as operating leases. Refer to Note V1(10) for details.
The analysis of due dates and non-discounted future cash flows of lease
receivable after December 31, 2019 is asfollows:

2019.12.31
Not later than 1 year $ 13,238
Later than 1 year but not later than 2 years 13,238
Later than 2 year but not later than 3 years 7,234
Later than 3 year but not later than 4 years 4,571
Later than 4 year but not later than 5 years 4,590
Later than 5 years 9,440
Non-discounted future cash flows of |lease $ 52,311

As of December 31, 2018, future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating |eases were as follows:

2018.12.31
Not later than 1 year $ 10,526
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 32,179
Later than 5 years 14,030
$ 56,735

For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, the rental income from
investment property amounted to NT$ 10,823 thousand and NT$ 13,280
thousand, respectively; no significant repair and maintenance expenses were
recognized.

(XVII1)  Employee benefits
1. Defined benefit plans

The reconciliation between the present value of defined benefit obligations
and the fair value of plan assets for defined benefit plans was as follows:

2019.12.31 2018.12.31

Present value of benefit obligations $ 35,266 42,190
Fair value of plan assets (29,946) (31,024)
Net defined benefit (assets) liabilities $ 5,320 11,166
Details on employee benefit liabilities were as follows:

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Short-term compensated absences  $ 21,533 18,516

liability

The Group makes defined benefit plan contributions to the pension fund
account at the Bank of Taiwan that provides pensions for employees upon
retirement. The plans covered by the Labor Standards Act entitle a retired
employee to receive retirement benefits based on years of service and
average salary for the six months prior to retirement.
(1) Composition of plan assets
The company allocates pension funds in accordance with the
"Regulations for Revenues, Expenditures, Safeguard and Utilization of
the Labor Retirement Fund," and such funds are managed by the Bureau
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of Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor. With regard to the utilization of the
funds, minimum earnings shall be no less than the earnings attainable
from two-year time deposits with interest rates offered by local banks.
The company's Bank of Taiwan labor pension reserve account balance
amounted to NT$ 29,946 thousand as of December 31, 2019. For
information on the utilization of the labor pension fund assets, including
the asset alocation and yield of the fund, please refer to the website of
the Bureau of Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor.
(2) Movementsin present value of the defined benefit obligations

For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, the movementsin
present value of the defined benefit obligations of the Group were as

follows:
2019 2018
Defined benefit obligations at January 1 $ 42,190 46,182
Current service costs and interest cost (income) 463 533
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liabilities (assets)
- Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net - 117
interest expense)
- Actuarial loss (gain) arising from changes in financia 588 1,039
assumption
- Experience adjustments 10 2
Benefits paid by the plan (7,985) (5,679)
Fair value of plan assets at December 31 $ 35,266 42,190

(3) Movementsin fair value of plan assets
For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, the movementsin
the fair value of the defined benefit plan assets for the Group were as

follows:
2019 2018

Fair value of plan assets at January 1 $ 31,024 33,887
Interest income 339 379
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liabilities (assets)

- Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net 1,220 1,115

interest expense)
Contributions paid by the employer 5,348 1,322
Benefits paid by the plan (7,985) (5,679)
Fair value of plan assets at December 31 $ 29,946 31,024

(4) Fortheyearsended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, there was no effect
of the asset ceiling.
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(5) Expensesrecognized in profit or loss
For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, the expenses
recognized in profits or losses were as follows:

2019 2018
Current service costs $ 147 150
Net interest of net defined benefit liabilities (assets) (23) 4
$ 124 154
Operating cost $ 2 11
Administrative expenses 126 143
$ 124 154

(6) Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liabilities (assets) recognized

in other comprehensive income

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Group's
remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability recognized in other
comprehensive income were as follows:

2019 2018
Cumulative amount at January 1 $ (8,156) (8,118)
Recognized during the period 622 (38
Cumulative amount at December 31 $ (7,534) (8,156)

(7) Actuarial assumptions
The principal assumptions of the actuarial valuation were as follows:

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Discount rate 1.00 % 1.15%
Future salary increases rate 175% 1.75%

The Group expects to make contribution of NT$ 636 thousand to the
defined benefit plansin the year following December 31, 2019.

The weighted average lifetime of the defined benefit plansis 10 to 13
years.

(8) Senditivity anaysis
On December 31, 2019 and 2018, if the actuarial assumptions had
changed, the impact on the present value of the defined benefit
obligation shall be as follows:
Theimpact on the defined benefit

obligation
Increase by Decrease by
0.25% 0.25%

December 31, 2019

Discount rate (change by 0.25%) (972) 1,009
Future salary increases rate (change by 1%) 4,192 (3,701)
December 31, 2018

Discount rate (change by 0.25%) (1,199) 1,245
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Future salary increases rate (change by 1%) 5,190 (4,571)

Reasonably possible changes to one of the relevant actuaria
assumptions, holding other assumptions remain constant, would have
affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown above.
This analysis shows the isolated effect of changing one individual
assumption, but in fact, many assumptions are correlated. There were
no changes in the method and assumptions used in the preparation of
sensitivity analysis for the current period and for the prior periods.

The method and assumptions used in the sensitivity analysis is
consistent with those for the prior periods.

2. Defined contribution plans

The Group allocates 6% of each employee's monthly wages to the labor
pension personal account at the Bureau of Labor Insurance in accordance
with the provisions of the Labor Pension Act. Under these defined
contribution plans, the Group allocates afixed amount to the Bureau of Labor
Insurance without additional legal or constructive obligation.

For the years ended December 31,2019 and 2018, the pension costs incurred
from the contributions to the Bureau of the Labor Insurance amounted to
NT$ 35,252 thousand and NT$ 35,300 thousand, respectively.

(XIX) Income tax

1. Incometax expense
For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, the details of income
tax expenses were as follows:

2019 2018
Current tax expenses
Current period $ 170,690 302,475
Surtax on undistributed earnings 13,248 11,518
Adjustment for the prior periods (8,688) 1,895
Land value increment tax 104,694 94,432
279,944 410,320
Deferred tax expenses
Reversal of tax loss recognized for the prior periods 6,560 -
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (18,463) 2,043
Adjustment in tax rate - (5,258)
(11,903) (3,215)
Income tax expenses on unitsin continuing operation $ 268,041 407,105

For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, no incometax expenses
are recognized in equity or other comprehensive income.

For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, reconciliation of
income tax and profit before tax is as follows:

2019 2018
Net income before tax $ 1,814,264 1,080,418
Income tax using the company's domestic tax rate $ 362,853 216,084
Non-deductible expenses - 33
Non-taxable incomes (157,636) (109,145)
Changes in unrecognized temporary differences - (102)
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Deferred tax on interest expenses (41,108) (15,524)

Impairment losses on financial assets measured at FVTPL 66 369

Tax loss of permanent differences - 103,041

Changes in recognized temporary differences 12,834 -

Timing differences 14,026 -

Tax loss of unrecognized deferred tax assets for the current 2,238 11,432

period

Tax loss of recognized deferred tax assets for the prior 6,560 -

periods

Loss carryforward - (6,683)

Under (over) provision for the prior periods (8,688) 1,895

Land value increment tax 104,694 94,432

Surtax on undistributed earnings 13,248 11,518

Adjustment in tax rate - (5,258)

Realized investment loss (79,364) -

Others 38,318 105,013
$ 268,041 407,105

2. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
(1) Unrecognized deferred tax assets

The Group's unrecognized deferred tax assets were as follows:

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Deductible temporary differences $ 6,469 3,274
Tax losses 136,014 25,265
$ 142,483 28,539

Tax losses are permitted by Income Tax Act, according to which,
operating lossesfor the prior ten periods can be deducted from operating
profits for the respective period before the cal culation of income tax, so
long as the operating losses are assessed by tax collection agencies.
Instead of recognized as a deferred income tax asset, the tax losses is
recognized as temporary differences, for the Group expects sufficient
future taxable profits to offset the tax losses.

As of December 31, 2019, the expiration of recognized and

unrecognized deferred tax losses were as follows:

Y ear of operating loss Amount of deductiblelosses Expiration year
Assessed operating losses for fiscal year 2013 $ 39,908 2023
Assessed operating losses for fiscal year 2014 17,243 2024
Assessed operating losses for fiscal year 2015 34,008 2025
Assessed operating losses for fiscal year 2016 29,999 2026
Assessed operating losses for fiscal year 2017 20,447 2027
Assessed operating losses for fiscal year 2018 17,364 2028
Assessed operating losses for fiscal year 2019 521,011 2029
$ 680,070

(2) Recognized deferred tax assets

For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, the deferred tax
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assets were as follows:

Deferred tax assets
Defined Unrealized Loss
benefit plans Provisons Condructionlosses carryforward Others Total

January 1,2019  $ 782 15,847 2,160 8,059 12,694 39,542
Credit (debit) on (41) 4,644 (2,160) (6,559) 16,020 11,904
income statements

December 31, 2019 $ 741 20,491 1,500 28,714 51,446
January 1,2018  $ 565 10,040 6 14,596 11,120 36,327
Credit (debit) on 217 5,807 2,154 (6,537) 1,574 3,215
income statements

December 31, 2018 $ 782 15,847 2,160 8,059 12,694 39,542

3. Thetax fillings of Jiequn Investment and Jiayu International were assessed
by the tax collecting agencies for the year ended on December 31, 2018;
those of other entities of the Group were assessed for the years ended on

December 31, 2017.

(XX) Capital and other equity

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the total value of nominal common stocks

amounted to NT$ 6,500,000 thousand, with a par value of 10 per share, consisting

of 650,000 thousand shares issued. There was 503,791 thousand shares of

common stocks already issued.

1. Capitd reserve

The balance of capital reserve was as following:
2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Additional paid-in capital $ 827,906 827,906
Premium on conversion of convertible bonds 236,408 236,408
Treasury stock transactions 254,535 243,911
Gains on disposal of assets 34,912 34,912
Others 26,112 25,728
$ 1,379,873 1,368,865

According to the Company Act, capital reserve can only be used to offset a
deficit, and only the realized capital reserve can be used to increase the

common stock or be distributed as cash dividends. The

af orementioned

realized capital reserve includes capital reserve resulting from premium on

issuance of capital stock and earnings from donated

assets received.

According to the "Regulations Governing the Offering and Issuance of
Securities by Securities Issuers,” capital increases by transferring capital
reserve in excess of par value should not exceed 10% of the total common

stock outstanding (paid-in capital).
2. Retained earnings

The company's Articles of Incorporation stipulates that the company's
earnings should first be used to offset the prior years deficits, if any, before

paying any income taxes. Of the remaining balance,
appropriated as lega reserve, and a special reserve shall
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Dividends distributed to

accordance with applicable laws and regulations. The remaining balance, if
any, can be distributed to the sharehol ders as dividends, and bonus dividends
according to the distribution plan proposed by the Board of Directors and
submitted to the shareholders meeting for approval.

)

2)

3)

Legal reserve

When a company incurs no loss, it may, pursuant to a resolution by a
shareholders meeting, distribute its legal reserve by issuing new shares
or by distributing cash, and only the portion of legal reserve which
exceeds 25% of the paid-in capital may be distributed.

Specia reserve

A portion of current-period earnings and undistributed prior-period
earnings shall bereclassified as special earnings reserve during earnings
distribution. The amount to be reclassified should equa the current-
period total net reduction of other shareholders equity. Similarly, a
portion of undistributed prior-period earnings shall be reclassified as
specia earnings reserve (and does not qualify for earnings distribution)
to account for cumulative changes to other shareholders equity
pertaining to prior periods. Amounts of subsequent reversals pertaining
to the net reduction of other shareholders equity shall qualify for
additional distributions. As of December 31, 2019, the remaining
amount of special reserve is NT$ 25,546 thousand.

Earnings distribution

For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, the earnings
distribution resolved in the sharehol ders’ meeting held on June 10, 2019
and June 27, 2018 were as follows:

sharehol ders of common stocks:

Cash

2018 2017
Dividend per Amount Dividend per Amount
share (in dollars) share (in dollars)
$ 1.00 503,791 0.50 251,896

Treasury stock
As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the company's common stock held by
the Group were as follows:

Unit: in thousands of shares

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Number of Carrying Market Number of Carrying Market
Subsidiary name shares amount value shares amount value
Kedge Construction 500 $ 1,222 15,950 500 1,222 10,225
Jiequn Investment 8,518 55,384 271,739 8,518 55,384 174,202
Guanging Electromechanical 1,607 14,590 51,263 1,607 14,590 32,863

10625 71,196 338,952 10,625 71,196 217,290
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4. Other equity items (net after tax)

Exchange differences Unrealized gain
on trandation of (loss) from financial Non-
financial statementsof = assetsmeasured at  controlling
foreign operations FVTOCI interests Total
Balance as of January 1, 2019 $ (25,910) 364 (5,870) (31,416)
Exchange differences on translation of (354) - (67) (421)
net assets of foreign operations
Unrealized gain (loss) from financial - 96 888 984
assets measured at FVTOCI
Balance as of December 31, 2019 $ (26,264) 460 (5,049) (30,853)
Balance as of January 1, 2018 $ (32,521) (6,186) (38,707)
Effects of retrospective application of - (1,538) - (1,538)
new IFRSs
Adjusted balance at January 1,2018 (32,521) (1,538) (6,186) (40,245)
Exchange differences on translation of 6,611 - 1,258 7,869
net assets of foreign operations
Unrealized gain (loss) from financial
assets measured at FVTOCI - 1,902 (942) 960
Balance as of December 31, 2018 $ (25,910) 364 (5,870) (31,416)

(XX1) Earnings per share
1. Basic earnings per share
(1) Net income attributable to the shareholders of common stocks of the

company
2019 2018
Unitsin continuing  Unitsin continuing
operations operations
Net income attributable to the sharehol ders of
common stocks of the company $ 1,283,526 507,248

(2) Weighted-average number of common stocks outstanding

2019 2018
Number of common stocks issued as of January 1 503,791 503,791
Effects of treasury stocks (10,625) (10,625)
Weighted-average number of outstanding common 493,166 493,166
stocks as of December 31
Basic earnings per share $ 2.60 1.03
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2. Diluted earnings per share
(1) Net income attributable to the shareholders of common stocks of the
company (diluted)

2019 2018
Unitsin continuing Unitsin continuing
operations operations
Net income attributable to the sharehol ders of
common stocks of the company (diluted) $ 1,283,526 507,248
(2) Weighted-average number of outstanding common stocks (diluted)
2019 2018
Weighted-average number of outstanding common 493,166 493,166
stocks (basic) as of December 31
Effect of employee remuneration in stock 1,049 56
Weighted-average number of outstanding common 494,215 493,222
stocks (diluted) as of December 31
Diluted earnings per share $ 2.60 1.03
(XXI11) Revenue from contracts with customers
1. Disaggregation of revenue
2019
Development Shopping
business  Construction mall business
group business unit unit Total
Primary geographical markets:
Taiwan $ 8,115,011 5,829,910 1,381,978 15,326,899
Main products/services.
Saesof redl estate developments $ 7,848,371 - - 7,848,371
Sales of construction contracts 227,813 5,827,188 - 6,055,001
Sales commission from - - 1,114,448 1,114,448
department store retailers
Revenue from services rendered 27,690 - 30,621 58,311
Rental income 11,137 2,722 121,132 134,991
Other income - - 115,777 115,777
$ 8115011 5,829,910 1,381,978 15,326,899
Timing of revenue recognition:
Upon transfer of products $ 7,876,061 - 1,324,520 9,200,581
On the basis of time passed for 11,137 2,722 57,458 71,317
services rendered
On the basis of stage of completion 227,813 5,827,188 - 6,055,001

of contract activity

$ 8115011 5,829,910 1,381,978 15,326,899

2018
Development Shopping
busness  Construction mall business
group business unit unit Total
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Primary geographical markets:

Taiwan $ 7,500,347 5,543,003 1,344,245 14,387,595
China - - 48,085 48,085
$ 7,500,347 5,543,003 1,392,330 14,435,680
Main products/services:
Sales of real estate developments $ 7,489,121 - - 7,489,121
Sales of construction contracts - 5,540,280 - 5,540,280
Sales commission from - - 1,130,886 1,130,886
department store retailers
Revenue from services rendered - - 24,820 24,820
Rental income 11,226 2,723 127,615 141,564
Other income - - 109,009 109,009
$ 7,500,347 5,543,003 1,392,330 14,435,680
Timing of revenue recognition:
Upon transfer of products $ 7,489,121 - 1,264,715 8,753,836
On the basis of time passed for - 2,723 127,615 130,338
services rendered
On the basis of stage of 11,226 5,540,280 - 5,551,506
completion of contract activity
$ 7500347 5,543,003 1,392,330 14,435,680
2. Contract balances
2019.12.31 2018.12.31 2018.01.01
Accounts receivable $ 1,412,568 1,427,636 2,034,499
Less: loss allowance - - -
$ 1,412,568 1,427,636 2,034,499
Contract assets - construction- $ 1,349,793 1,028,330 -

Less: loss allowance - -
$ 1,349,793 1,028.330 -

Contract liabilities - construction- $ 930,947 633,903 -
Contract liabilities - buildings- 5,177,387 3,937,293 -
Contract liabilities - gym- 10,137 9,158 -
Contract liabilities - customer loyalty 16,828 9,676 -
points-

Contract liabilities - vouchers- 52,039 - -
Total $ 6,187,338 4,590,030 -

Refer to Note VI(4) for details on accounts receivable and related loss
allowance.

The beginning balance of contract liability on January 1, 2019 and 2018,
were NT$ 397,232 thousand and NT$ 737,636 thousand, respectively.
Changes in contract assets and liabilities were mainly driven by the timing
difference between when the transfer of products and services rendered were
completed and when client's payments were received . For the years ended
on December 31, 2019 and 2018, no material changes were recognized.

As of December 31, 2019, the prepayments of real estate pre-sales and the
related interests were retained in trust accounts of identified banks and
recognized as other financial assets - current in the amounts of NT$
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1,454,941 thousand. Details on the trust accounts were as follows:

Project 2019.12.31
code
103G $ 656,526
105A 12,893
950B 93,521
101C 672,891
100C 5,700
980F 13,410
$ 1,454,941

Employee compensation and directors and supervisors remuneration

The company's Articles of Incorporation stipul ates that, after annual earnings first
offset against any deficit, a minimum of 0.5% shall be allocated as employee
compensation and a maximum of 2% as directors remuneration. However, if the
company has accumulated deficits, the profit should be reserved to offset the
deficit.

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the company accrued its
employee compensation amounting to NT$ 30,433 thousand and NT$ 7,247
thousand, respectively, and its directors remuneration of NT$ 30,433 thousand in
2019 and its directors' and supervisors remuneration of NT$ 14,493 thousand in
2018. The aforementioned amounts are calculated based on the net profit before
tax, excluding the remuneration to employees, directors and supervisors of each
period, multiplied by the percentage of remuneration to employees, directors and
supervisors as stipulated in the company's Articles of Incorporation. These
remunerations were expensed under operating expenses for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018. When an issuance of common stocks for employee
compensation is resolved by a Board meeting, the number of sharesissued for the
stock-based compensation is cal culated based on the closing stock price at the date
before the Board meeting. Related information is disclosed on Market Observation
Post System of TWSE. The aforementioned amounts of employee compensation
and directors and supervisors remuneration, as stated in the consolidated financial
statements, are identical to those of the actual distributions for 2019 and 2018.

Non-operating income and loss

1. Other income
The details of other income for the years 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

2019 2018

Interest income
Bank deposits (including short-term securities) $ 12,842 7,724
Loans and receivables 5,971 2,577
Refundable deposit on constructions 1,431 2,444
Other interest income 56 10,514
Dividend income 3,456 3,674

$ 23,756 26,933

2. Other gains and losses
The details of other gains and losses for the years 2019 and 2018 were as
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follows:
2019 2018

Foreign exchange loss $ (3,895) (26,970)
Gain (loss) on financial assets measured at FVTPL 6,699 (8,300)
Other income 34,938 141,671
Rental income 625 351
Others (11,354) (12,717)
Gain on disposal of assets 80 309
Impairment loss on disposal of PP& E (98,000) (515,204)
Reversal of impairment loss on disposal of PP&E 113,110 -

$ 42,203 (420,860)

For details on the Group's material change in other gains and losses
associated with the reparation for the lease rescission filed on July 5, 2018,
and the net loss resulting from the closure of business and the related reversa
of "other payables" for the year ended on December 31, 2018, refer to Note
VI(15).

3. Finance costs

Details of finance costs for the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018
were as follows:

2019 2018
Interest expense
Interests on bank loans $ 475,585 517,899
Interests on deposits in advance for public land devel opment 225 265
Arranger feesin syndicated loan 750 750
Transaction fees and interests on corporate bonds 86,563 118,726
Other financing costs 51,678 -
Others 824 842
Loss: Capitalization of interest (165,200) (202,918)
$ 450,425 435,564
(XXV) Financial Instruments

1. Creditrisk

(1) Credit risk exposure
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum
amount exposed to credit risk.

(2) Concentration of credit risk
The Group's clientele is mainly public works and the vast mgjority of
consumers. The accounts receivable of the Group's shopping mall
business unit is receivables from financia institutions, generated by
credit card transactions, that of the construction business unit
receivables of construction projects under contracts, and that of the
Development business unit receivables of real estate sales. The
receivables from financia institutions are directly wired into the
Group's bank accounts, and the receivables of rea estate sales are paid
by individual consumers through wire transfers, cashier's or certified
checks and mortgage. Consequently, the credit risksin relationsto these
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receivables are estimated to be minima and hence can be effectively
managed and controlled.
Liquidity risk
The following table shows the contractual maturities of financial liabilities,
including estimated interest payments and excluding the impact of netting
agreements.

Within ayear
(Inclusive)
Carrying Contractual (Inclusive) Over 5
amount cash flows Inclusive 1-3yearss  3-5years years
December 31, 2019
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Short and long-term borrowings (including $ 21,290,399 22,176,874 7,161,146 9,937,097 4,094,208 984,423
current portion due within one year)
Ordinary corporate bonds (including current 4,500,000 4,627,523 - 1,522,568 3,104,955 -
portion due within one year)
Notes, accounts and other payables 5,725,854 5,725,854 4,233,389 1,492,465 - -
Guarantee deposits 90,754 90,754 1,703 89,051 - -
Long-term debt (including current portion due 81,680 82,893 16,755 33,245 32,893 -
within one year) and other non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities 2,844,731 3,384,464 176,787 360,311 366,367 2,480,999

December 31, 2018
Non-derivative financial liabilities

$ 34533418 36,088,362 11,589,780 _ 13434737 _ 7,598,423 _ 3465422

Short and long-term borrowings (including $ 22,409,325 23,269,873 10,981,226 8,282,717 2,472,428 1,533,502
current portion due within one year)

Ordinary corporate bonds (including current 4,500,000 4,633,138 1,010,192 1,538,318 2,084,628 -
portion due within one year)

Notes, accounts and other payables 5,054,382 5,054,382 3,926,114 1,128,268 - -
Guarantee deposits 62,355 62,355 9,474 52,881 - -
Long-term lease payable (including current 2,941 2,983 1,989 994 - -

portion due within one year)

Long-term debt (including current portion due 98,015 99,736 16,843 33422 33,069 16,402
within one year) and other non-current liabilities

Financial Assets
Monetary items
CNY:NTD
JPY:NTD
USD:NTD

Financial Liabilities
Monetary items
USD:CNY (Note)
CNY:JPY

$ 32,127,018 33,122,467 15945838 _ 11,036,600 _ 4,590,125 _ 1,549,904

The Group does not expect the cash flows included in the maturity analysis
to occur significantly earlier or at significantly different amounts.

Currency risk

(1) Exposureto foreign currency risk
The Group's significant exposureto foreign currency risk was asfollows:

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Foreign  Exchange NTD Foreign  Exchange NTD
currency Rates currency rates
$ 143 4.305 616 143 4.4720 637
7,888 0.276 2,177 10,566 0.2780 2,937
7 29.980 221 1,128  30.7200 34,636

- - - 12,749 6.8632 -
- - - - 4472 391,639

Note: The functional currency of some of the Group's subsidiariesis not denominated in NTD
but in CNY. The Group takes the risks of exposure to CNY into consideration and separately
considers the portion denominated in USD.

(2) Senditivity analysis
The Group'sexposureto foreign currency risk arisesfrom thetranslation
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of the foreign currency exchange gains and losses on cash and cash
equivalents, long-term and short-term borrowings that are denominated
in foreign currency. For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and
2018, a depreciation (appreciation) of 1% in NTD in relation to CNY,
JPY, and USD is estimated, assuming all other variables remain
constant, to cause increase (decrease) in the net profit beforetax by NT$
30 thousand and NT$ 3,534 thousand, respectively. The anaysis is
performed on the same basis for both periods.

(3) Foreign exchange gain and loss on monetary items
The exchange rates and (realized and unrealized) gains and losses on
trandation of monetary itemsto NTD (the Group's functional currency)
were as follows:

2019 2018
Foreign exchange Average Foreign exchange Average
gain and loss exchangerates gain and loss exchangerates
CNY $ (79) 4.472 950 4.560
JPY (52) 0.284 378 0.273
usD (3,764) 30.192 (28,298) 30.149
4. Interest rate analysis

Please refer to the note on liquidity risk management and the interest rate
exposure of the Group's financial assets and liabilities.

Thefollowing sensitivity analysisis based on the exposure to theinterest rate
risk of derivative and non-derivative financia instruments at the reporting
date. Regarding liabilities with variable interest rates, the analysis is based
on the assumption that the amount of liabilities outstanding at the reporting
date was outstanding throughout the year. The expected changes in interest
rates at plus or minus 1% is reasonably assessed by the Group's management
and also used in internal reporting.

For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, an increase (decrease)
of 1% in interest rates is estimated, assuming all other variables remain
constant, to cause decrease (increase) in the net profit before tax by NT$
212,904 thousand and NT$ 224,093 thousand, respectively, and after
considering capitalization of interest, to cause decrease (increase) by NT$
155,772 thousand and NT$ 152,873 thousand, respectively. This change is
mainly due to the Group's borrowings in variable rates.

Other market price risk

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the sensitivity analyses
for the changes in the price of equity securities, at the reporting date, were
performed using the same basis for the profit or loss, with al other variable
factors remaining constant, asillustrated below:

2019 2018
Other Other
Prices of securities at comprehensive comprehensive
thereporting date income after tax  Net income  income after tax ~ Net income
Increasing 10% $ 858 9,756 760 9,095
Decreasing 10% $ (858) (9,756) (760) (9,095)

161



KINDOM DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD. and Subsidiaries
Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements

6. Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(1) Categoriesand fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets measured at FVTPL and FVTOCI is
measured on arecurring basis. Shown below are the book value and fair
value of the Group's financial assets and liabilities, including the
information on fair value hierarchy, but excluding lease liabilities and
financial instruments that are not measured at fair value but the book
value of which is reasonably closely to its fair value (disclosure not

required):

Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Non-derivative financial assets mandatorily
measured at FVTPL

Financial assets measured at FVTOCI

Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents
Notes and accounts receivable
Other financia assets - current-

Other financial assets - non-current
Subtotal
Totd
Financial liabilities at amortized cost

2019.12.31

Book value

Fair value

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

$ 97,563

97,563

97,563

$ 8,579

656

7,923

8,579

$ 6,229,385
1,415,769
3,530,868

72,968

11,248,990

$11.355,132

7,923

106,142

Short and long-term borrowings (including current $ 21,290,399

portion due within one year)
Notes, accounts and other payables
Bonds payable (including current portion due
within one year)
Long-term payable (including current portion
due within one year)
Long-term lease payable (including current
portion due within one year)
Guarantee deposits
Total

Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Non-derivative financial assets mandatorily
measured at FVTPL

Financial assets measured at FVTOCI

Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents
Notes and accounts receivable
Other financial assets - current-

Other financial assets - non-current-
Subtotal
Totd

Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Short and long-term borrowings (including
current portion due within one year)

5,725,854
4,500,000

81,680
2,844,731

90,754

$34,533,418

2018.12.31

Book value

Fair value

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

$ 90,949

90,949

90,949

$ 7,596

351

7,245

7,596

$ 5,539,557
1,428,865
2,330,035

114,677

9,413,134

$ 9511679

1,245

$ 22,409,325
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Notes, accounts and other payables 5,054,382
Bonds payable (including current portion due 4,500,000
within one year)

2018.12.31
Fair value
Book value  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Long-term payable (including current portion 98,015 - - - -
due within one year)
Long-term lease payable (including current 2,941
portion due within one year)
Guarantee deposits 62,355
Total $32,127,018

(2) Vauation techniques of financial instruments measured at fair value
(2.1) Non-derivative financia instruments

Financia instruments traded in active markets are based on
guoted market prices. A quoted price of a financial instrument
obtained from main exchanges and on-the-run bonds from Taipei
Exchange can be used as a basis to determine the fair value of the
listed companies’ equity and debt instruments, as it is a quoted
price in an active market.
If aquoted price of afinancial instrument can be obtained in time
and often from exchanges, brokers, underwriters, industrial
unions, pricing agencies, or governing authorities, and such price
can actually reflect those traded frequently in the market, then the
financial instrument is considered to have a quoted price in an
active market. If a financia instrument is not in accord with the
definition mentioned above, then it is considered to be without a
guoted price in an active market. In general, low trading volumes
and high or increasing bid-ask spreads are indications that a
market is not active.
The categories and characteristics of fair value measurement for
the financia instruments with active markets were as follows:

e The far value of financial instruments that have active
markets and standard terms and conditions are determined
with reference to quoted market prices (e.g., publicly traded

stocks).
The categories and characteristics of fair value measurement for
the financial instruments without active markets were as follows:

e Equity instruments without active market quotes: the fair
value is derived from comparable companies in the market
and is determined by multiplying investee's EBITDA with
P/E ratio of comparable companies listed in the market. The
calculation is then discounted for lack of marketability.

163



KINDOM DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD. and Subsidiaries
Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements

(3) Movement in financial assetsincluded in Level 3 fair value hierarchy

January 1, 2019
December 31, 2019
January 1, 2018
December 31, 2018

Financial assets measured at FVTOCI
Equity instruments without

active market quotes Debt instruments Total
$ 7.245 - 7245
$ 7,923 - 7,923
$ 6,421 - 6,421
$ 7,245 - 7,245

The aforementioned total gains or losses were included in "unrealized
gain (loss) from financial assets measured at FVTOCI." Among those
listed, the gains or losses attributable to the financial assets held on
December 31, 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

2019 2018
Total gains or losses
Recognized in other comprehensive income (listed under  $ 678 824
"unrealized gain (loss) from financial assets measured at
FVTOCI")
(4) Significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) of fair value measurement
Some of the Group's financial assets at FVTOCI are categorized as
measured in Level 3.
Among the financial assets categorized as measured in Level 3, the
majority have only one significant unobservable input, except for equity
instruments without active market quotes, which have severa
significant unobservable inputs. The significant unobservable inputs for
the equity instruments without active market quotes are independent of
each other and are not correlated.
Quantitative information of significant unobservable inputs is as
follows:
Valuation Significant unobservable Relationship of theinputs
ltem technigue inputs and fair value
Financial assets Comparable - Price/earningsratio (10.6 - The higher theratio, the
measured at company valuation for 2019, 9.3 for 2018) greater the fair value.
FVTOCI - equity - Discount for lack of - The higher the discount,

instruments without
active market quotes

December 31, 2019

marketability (15% for
2019, 27.2% for 2018)

the lower the fair value.

(5) Senditivity analysis of reasonably possible alternative assumptions on

fair value measurementsin Level 3

The Group' s measurement on the fair value of financia instruments
may change if different valuation models or inputs are used. For fair
value measurements in Level 3, changes in one or more of the
assumptions would have the following effects on profit or loss or other

comprehens Ve Income:
Changes Changesof fair valueinthe Changesof fair valuein other
upwar ds or current profit or loss comprehensiveincome
Input downwards Favorable Unfavorable Favorable Unfavorable
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Financial assets measured at FVTOCI

Equity investments without active market ~ Price/earningsratio 10% - - 182 (182)
quotes

Equity investments without active market ~ Discount for lack of 10% - - 236 (236)
quotes marketability

December 31, 2018

Financial assets measured at FVTOCI

Equity investments without active market ~ Price/earningsratio 10% - - 725 (725)
quotes

Equity investments without active market ~ Discount for lack of 10% - - 725 (725)
quotes marketability

(XXVI)

(6) Transfer between different levels of Fair value hierarchy

Some of equity instruments held by the Group have active market
quotes, and therefore, those areclassifiedin Level 1. For the years ended
on December 31, 2019 and 2018, no changes in fair value hierarchy
occurred, and therefore, no transfer were recognized.

Financial risk management

1.

Overview
The Group is exposed to the following risks from its financial instruments:

D
)
(3)

Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market risk

The Group has disclosed the information on exposure to the aforementioned
risks in the previous section; the information on objectives, policies and
procedures of risk measurement and management of the aforementioned
risks are disclosed below. For more details, please refer to the related notes
to parent-company-only financial statements.

Structure of risk management

(D

)

Risk management policy

An enterprise often face many uncertainties in its operation that can be
potential threats to its existence. A good risk management policy is
required to enable early detection and timely control of risks that could
cause damages to operations. Considering operation strategy, business
environment and planning of each business units, the Group's Board of
Directors established risk management policies in relation to business
environment, to design and procedures of internal and external controls,
and to strategy decision-making. In addition, the Board is expected to
provide management reports on various resolutions, action items,
monitoring, and on-going performance of risk control activities, so that
when facing similar circumstances, the Group can propose better
solutions based on past experiences.

Organization structure of risk management

Every level in the organization structure or every department in the
Group has responsibility for risk management. A discovery of any risk
shall be reported to the internal audit and senior management, who then
shall take related actionsin the first place.

The organization structure of risk management is as follows:
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Department

Responsibilities

Board of Directors

Establish risk management policy to ensure effective operation of and
sufficient resources allocated to risk management

Senior Management

Execute risk management policy determined by Board of Directors
Coordinate cross-functional risk control activities

Internal Audit Perform routine audits on risk control
Monitor risk control activities and report them to Board of Directors and
Audit Committee

Others Compiling results of risk control activities

Perform routine activities on risk control
Evaluate risk types based on circumstances and propose corresponding
action plans

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial losses resulting, when the Group's
customers or counter-parties of its financial instruments fail to meet their
contractual obligations, principally from the Group's receivables from clients
and investment securities.

(1) Accounts receivable and other receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk varies among individual clients.
Taken into considerations are client related information including,
among others, the industry and nature of the client's business, country
risks, and other factors that the management believes would affect the
Group's exposure to credit risk. For the years ended on December 31,
2019 and 2018, the Group's revenue is mainly contributed by sales to
domestic clients. The accounts receivable of the Group's shopping mall
business unit is receivables from financial institutions, generated by
credit card transactions, that of the construction business unit
receivables of construction projects under contracts, and that of the
development business unit recelvables of real estate sales. The
receivablesfrom financial institutions are directly wired into the Group's
bank accounts; the receivables of construction projects are secured with
guarantee or collateral when necessary; and the receivables of real estate
sales are paid by individua consumers through wire transfers, cashier's
or certified checks and mortgage. Consequently, the credit risks in
relations to these receivables are estimated to be minimal.

The Group also recognized losses allowance for bad debts to reflect the
estimated losses of its accounts receivable, other recelvables and
investments. The alowance account consists of two components; the
main component refers specific losses associated with individual
significant exposure to credit risks; and the other component refersto a
portfolio of already occurred but yet to have identified losses of agroup
of similar assets. The portfolio of loss alowance account is determined
by historical statistics on payments eventually received for similar
financial assets.
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(2) Investments

The exposure to credit risk in relation to bank deposits, fixed income
investments, and other financial instruments, is measured and monitored
by the Group's finance department. Since the Group only deals with
banks with good credit rating as well as financial institutions,
corporations, and government agencies with investment-grade credit
ratings, no concerns on the fulfillment of its counterparty's obligations
and no significant exposure to credit risk were recognized.

(3) Guarantees
Policies of the Group stipulates that financial guarantee can be made
available to counter-parties with whom the Group has business. As of
December 31, 2019 and 2018, no endorsements/guarantees were
recognized.
4. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk istherisk of unfulfilled obligations occurring when the Group
cannot settleits financial liabilities with cash or another financial asset. The
Group's approach to managing liquidity is to aways ensure that it has
sufficient liquid assetsto meet itsliabilitieswhen due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking its
reputation.

5. Market risk
Market risk is the risk of changes in the Group's profits or value of its
financial instruments resulting from changes in market factors, such as
foreign exchange rates, interest rates, and prices of equity instruments. The
Group's objective of market risk management is to control its market risk
exposure within a bearable range while optimizing the investment return.

(1) Interest rate risk
The Group adopts the most cost-effective strategy in maintaining an
appropriate portfolio of fixed and floating interest rates and conducting
such assessment regularly.

(2) Other market price risk
The Group is exposed to the risk of market price fluctuation in its equity
instruments held for sale with the intention to cover the unfunded
portion of the defined benefit obligations. The Group's management
adjusts the ratio of equity to debt in its investment portfolio according
to fluctuation in market price index. Any material investment in the
portfolio is managed separately.

(XXVIIl) Capita management

The Group's objectives of capital management isto ensureits capacity in operation
continuity, to return profits to its shareholders and other stakeholders, and to
optimize its capital structure to reduce cost of capital.

In maintaining or adjusting the capital structure, the Group may settle liabilities
through adjustments in dividend payment or capital return to its shareholders,
issuance of new shares, or disposal of assets.

The Group, like its peer companies, control capital management on the basis of
debt-to-capital ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital. The net debt is the
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total liabilities less cash and cash equivalents. The total capital is total equity
(including share capital, capital reserve, retained earnings, other equity, and non-
controlling equity) plus net debt.

For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Group had the same
policy on capital management and maintained the debt-to-capital ratio between
69% to 71% to ensure reasonable cost of capital. As of December 31, 2019 and
2018, the debt-to-capital ratio were as follows:

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Total liabilities $ 41,412,056 37,595,745
Less: cash and cash equivalents (6,229,385) (5,539,557)
Net debt 35,182,671 32,056,188
Total equity 14,412,909 13,567,563
Capital after adjustment $ 49,595,580 45,623,751
Debt-to-capital ratio 70.94% 70.26%
VIl. Related Party Transactions
()] Names of and relationship with related parties

Related parties that had transactions with the Group during the reporting periods
were as follows:

Name of related party Relationship with the Group
ReadyCom eServices The Group's associate
Kindom Y u San Education Foundation The entity's chairman is the second-degree
relatives of the Group's chairman
Thousand Hundred Industrial Co. Ltd. Other related party
() Transactions with related parties
1. Purchases of services from related parties
Purchases
2019 2018
Associate $ - 1,318

Outstanding balance of the related party' payablesis settled with cash within
three months after the reporting date. Ordinary expenses are settled in the
same month. Sales pricesfor the related party were not significantly different
from those for non-related parties.

2. Others

(1) For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, donations made
to the related party in the amounts of NT$ 10,500 thousand and NT$
13,500 thousand are for the purpose of promoting the Foundation's
services.

(2) Part of the Group's office building was leased to the related partiesin a
lease term of five years with arent in the amount of NT$ 57 thousand
for both years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018.

(3) For the year ended on December 31, 2019, sales of the Group's asset to
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the related parties amounted to NT$ 1,429 thousand before tax, the
related payables were settled as of December 31, 20109.

) Transactions with key management personnel
Compensations for key management personnel were as follows:
2019 2018
Short-term empl oyee benefits $ 103,326 104,155
Post-employment benefits 285 5,403
$ 103,611 109,558
VIII. Pledged Assets
Carrying values of pledged assets were as follow:
Assets Collateral pledged 108.12.31 107.12.31
Buildings and land held for sale Bank loans $ 9,081,604 11,060,575
Land held for construction Bank loans 211,953 3,318,550
Construction in progress Bank loans 13,471,475 9,570,255
Investment properties and net PP& E Bank loans and bonds payable 6,514,072 6,596,256
Other financial assets - current- Bank loans, pre-sales paymentsin trust 2,911,788 2,089,760

accounts, guarantees, and bonds payable

Other financia assets - non-current Guarantees and pre-sales paymentsin 60,893 47,389

IX.

trust accounts
$ 32,251,785_ 32,682,785

Note: The shares pledged as collateral for subsidiary's bank borrowings and payments
received in advance for sales of land and buildings amounted to 293,414 thousand
shares, as of December 31, 2019.

Material Contingent Liabilities and Unrecognized Contract Commitments

M Significant unrecognized contract commitment
1. Tota amount of significant construction contracts were as follows:
2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Amount of construction contracts $ 20,912,565 18,669,349
Amount of payments received $ 6,728,027 10,442,117

2. Total amount of sales contracts signed before and after the completion of
construction were as follows:

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Amount of sales contracts signed $ 14,898,155 13,474,401
Amount of payments received per $ 5,177,387 3,937,293

contracts

3. RefertoNote VI(15) for details on lease agreements for the Group's business
in shopping mall management as of December 31, 2019 and 2018. Details of
the refundable deposits and notes in relation to obligations under these

agreements were as follows:

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Refundable deposits RMB 12,000 RMB 12,000
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Refundable notes $ 172,550 169,550

4. In September 2015, the Group entered into a lease agreement with Chang
Xin Co., Ltd. for the building and parking lot on Jiankang Road in Zhonghe
District of New Taipei City. The lease payments in relation to the shopping
mall consist of both a monthly flat amount and a percentage of retail sales
revenue.

5. In December, 2019 and 2018, the Group's Board of Directors approved the
donation to Kindom Y u San Education Foundation in the amounts of NT$
11,000 thousand in 2020 and NT$ 10,500 thousand in 2019, respectively, for
the purpose of promoting the Foundation's services.

6. Detailson refundable deposits and notes paid for co-developments with land
owners and third party developers as follows:

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Refundable deposits $ 538,675 217,759
Refundable notes $ 982,599 1,040,477

7. The Group entered into a lease agreement of shopping malls under
development by Tianjin Chongbel Property Management Co., Ltd. and
Tianjin River Property Management Co., Ltd. (the "Lessors'). The lease
started on December 2016 and would end in twenty years. The Lessor failed
to perform according to lease terms. Consequently, in July, 2018, the Group
filed for rescission of the lease and requested an arbitration from CIETAC.
Upon the rescission, the Group requested return of the refundable deposits,
refund of the book value of leasehold improvements, and liquidated damages
in the total amount of CNY 230,299 thousand. On September 26, 2018, the
Lessor, appealing to the arbitration court, requested the Group's returning the
lease asset back to itsoriginal status, with no return of the refundabl e deposits,
no liquidated damage, and no refund of depreciation losses on engineering
projects upon the rescission. The Group expected total losses in the amount
of CNY 248,299 thousand. Judging from the first arbitration court dated on
December 24, 2018, the Group recognized related losses for the year ended

on December 31, 2018.

The case was settled and the lease was rescinded per the second arbitration
court dated on June 28, 2019. In July 2019, the settlement processes were
completed, and the Lessor returned the refundable deposit per the settlement
agreement.

8. The Group applied for a Online-Merge-Offline (OMO) digital, intelligent
retail service platform program funded under Taiwan Industry Innovation
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Platform Programs by Industrial Development Bureau, MOES. The program
started on May 1, 2019 and ends on December 31, 2020. The related subsidy
in the amount of NT$ 10,500 was granted in exchange for the Group's bank
note, in the same amount, pledged as collatera for obligations under the
program. The note was refundable and would be returned within six months
after the program ends.

Contingent liability

1

In relation to the construction project under Project Code 041A, the neighbor
manufacturer alleged that the structural damages on the manufacturer's plants
and land was as a result of the Group's construction. Both parties were not
able to settle the issue in mediation, so the Group was sued by the neighbor
manufacturer, in the amount of NT$ 15,665 thousand. The Group has yet to
assess any contingent liability for thislitigation.

In relation to a construction project, the Group was sued for aloan payment
in the amount of NT$ 2,032 thousand. The Group has yet to assess any
contingent liability for thislitigation.

X.  Material Disaster L osses: None
Xl. Material Post-period Matters: None

XIl. Others:

M A summary of employee benefits, depreciation, depletion, and amortization

expenses, by function, is asfollows:
By function 2019 2018
Operating |Operating | Total |Operating |Operating | Total

By item Cost Expenses Cost Expenses
Employee benefits:
Salaries 430,607| 531,778| 962,385| 412,082| 460,260| 872,342
Insurance 38,139 34,500 72,639 35,988 33,020 69,008
Pension 16,690 18,686 35,376 16,463 18,991 35,454
Others 232 32,916 33,148 584 32,053 32,637
Depreciation 4512| 356,697 | 361,209 5394 | 252,864 | 258,258
Amortization - 14,639 14,639 - 19,088 19,088
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XI111. Supplementary Disclosures

Information on Material Transactions

In accordance with the "Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Securities Issuers,” the Group discloses the information on significant
transactions as follows:

)

1. Loaning of fund to other parties: none
2. Providing endorsements/guarantees to other parties:
Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars
Endor sement/guarantee Ratio of Cumulative Endor sement/|Endor sement/|
Receiver Limitson Actual Balance of guarantee guarantee |Endorsement
Endorsement Amount Endor sement/guar ante Provided by | Provided by | /guarantee
Endor sement] Natureof | /guarantee [Maximum Drawn Amount  |to Net Equity as Stated| Maximum Parent Subsidiary to| Provided to
/guarantee | Company [Relationship|Provided to A[Balancefor| Ending |Outgoing|Collateralized| initsLatest Financial | Amount Company to Parent Subsidiary in
No| Provider Name (Note1) |Single Entity|thePeriod [ Balance | amount |with Property Statement Allowable | Subsidiary Company China
1 |Kedge The Parent  |$ 5,481,922 14,192 14,192 | 14,192 - 0.52% 5,481,922 N Y N
Construction |company  |company and|
subsidiary
2 [Dingtian The Parent 53,430 14,192 14,192 14,192 - 26.56% 53,430 N Y N
icompany  [company and|
subsidiary
2 | Dingtian Kedge Parent 8,014,571 | 1,376,500 | 1,376,500 (1,376,500 - 2,576.27% 16,029,141 N Y N
IConstruction|company and|
subsidiary
3 |Global Mall |GuanYou [3 2,738,260 200,000 | 200,000 | 20,000 - 4.38% 5,476,520 Y N N
3 [Global Mall |GuanHua |2 2,738,260 150,000 150,000 | 65,000 - 3.29% 5,476,520 Y N N
3 [Global Mall |Global Mall [3 2,738,260 646,500 - - - % 5,476,520 Y N Y
(Tianjin)
Co., Ltd.
Note1l: Types of relationship that the endorsement/guarantee provider has with the
guaranteed party:

(1) Anentity with which it does business.

(2) Anentity inwhich it directly and indirectly holds more than 50 percent of the
voting shares.

(3) Anentity that directly and indirectly holds more than 50 percent of its voting
shares.

(4) Anentity in which it holds, directly or indirectly, 90% or more of the voting
shares.

(5) It fulfills its contractua obligations by providing mutual
endorsements/guaranteesfor an entity inthe sameindustry or for joint builders
for purposes of undertaking a construction project.

(6) All capital contributing shareholders make endorsements/guarantees for their
jointly invested company in proportion to their shareholding percentages.

(7) Companiesin the same industry provide among themselves joint and several
security for a performance guarantee of a sales contract for pre-construction
homes pursuant to the Consumer Protection Act for each other.

Note2: Taipel City Government requested the company to provide joint and several
security, so Kedge Construction, approved by the Board on March 21, 2002 and

March 25, 2010, provided endorsements/guarantees for the company.

Note 3: Per Kedge Construction's policies and procedures on endorsements/guarantees, the

maximum aggregate amount alowable for endorsements/guarantees to third
parties shall not exceed 200% of its net equity as stated in its latest financial
statement, and limits on endorsements/guarantees provided to a single entity shall
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Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:

not exceed 200% of its net equity as stated in its latest financial statement. The
aggregate amount of endorsements/guaranteeson all construction projects shall not
exceed 10 times of its net equity as stated in its latest financial statement, and the
aggregate amount of endorsements/guarantees on a single construction project
shall not exceed 5 times of its net equity as stated in itslatest financial statement.
Per Dingtian's policies and procedures on endorsements/guarantees, the maximum
aggregate amount allowable for endorsements/guarantees to third parties shall not
exceed 100% of its net equity as stated in its latest financial statement, and limits
on endorsements/guarantees provided to a single entity shall not exceed 100% of
its net equity as stated in its latest financial statement. The aggregate amount of
endorsements/guarantees on all construction projects shall not exceed 300 times of
its net equity as stated initslatest financial statement, and the aggregate amount of
endorsements/guarantees on a single construction project shall not exceed 150
times of its net equity as stated in its latest financial statement.

Per Global Mall's policies and procedures on endorsements/guarantees, the
maximum aggregate amount allowable for endorsements/guarantees to third
parties shall not exceed 120% of its net equity as stated in its latest financia
statement, and limits on endorsements/guarantees provided to a single entity shall
not exceed 60% of its net equity as stated in its latest financia statement.

The aforementioned transactions are netted in the compilation of the consolidated
financial statements.

Marketable securities (excluding equity investments in subsidiaries,
associates, and joint ventures) held at the reporting date:

Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars or Thousands of Shares

Relationship Ending Balance Highest Owner ship
with the Level or Capital
Investing Category and Name| Security Financial Statement |Number of | Carrying |Percentage of| Fair Value | Invested during the
Company of Security | ssuer Account Shares Amount | Ownership (Note) Period Contribution | Note
'The company Stock - Fubon - Financial assets measured 505 23,445 - % 23,445 - %
Financial Holding Co at FVTPL - current
Ltd.
'The company Stock - Everterminal Financial assets measured 198 2,003 0.20% 2,003 0.20%
Co. Ltd. at FVTOCI - non-current
'The company Stock - Clientron Financial assets measured 29 656 0.05% 656 0.05%
Corp. at FVTOCI - non-current
Kedge Beneficiary certificate Financial assets measured 733 22,474 % 22,474 - %
Construction - Fuh Hwa Aegis at FVTPL - current
Jiequn Investment|Stock - Fubon Financial assets measured 472 21,878 % 21,878 - %
Financial Holding Co at FVTPL - current
Ltd.
Jiequn Investment|Stock - SinoPac Financial assets measured 211 2,744 % 2,744 - %
Securities Corporation| at FVTPL - current
Jiequn Investment|Beneficiary certificate Financial assets measured 766 7,590 % 7,590 - %
- Fuh Hwa China New| at FVTPL - current
Economy A Shares
Jiequn Investment|Stock - Huei Ding Financial assets measured 405 0.78% 0.78%
Computer at FVTOCI - non-current
Guanging Stock - Fubon Financial assets measured 419 19,432 % 19,432 - %
Electromechanical|Financial Holding Co at FVTPL - current
Ltd.
Guanging Stock - Financial assets measured 132 5,920 0.59 % 5,920 0.59%
Electromechanical|Commonwealth at FVTOCI - non-current
Publishing Group
Note: If market priceisnot available, the carrying amount of the security at

the reporting date is determined as the market price.
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4. Marketable securities for which the accumulated purchase or sale amounts
for the period exceed NT$ 300 million or 20% of the paid-in capital:
Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars
Beginning Balance Acquisitions Disposal (notel) Ending Balance
Category | Financial Gain (Loss)
Company [ and Name| Statement Natureof | Number Number Number on Disposal | Number
Name |of Security| Account |Counterparty |Relationship|of Shares| Amount of Shares| Amount |of Shares|Sales Price| Book Value| on Disposal |of Shares| Amount
Global Stock Investment  [KGM Subsidiary - 727,517 - 392,926 - 906,638 906,638 - - 213,766
Mall laccounted (HKD 180,263 (HKD 54,435
Ifor using thousand) thousand)
lequity
method
KGM Stock Investment  [Global Mall  [Sub- 727,478 392,926 906,638 906,638 213,766
laccounted  |(Tianjin) Co., [subsidiary (CNY 149,728 (CNY 48,000
[for using Ltd. thousand)| thousand)|
lequity
method
Note 1: Capital reduction was made for the year ended on December 31,
2019 to mitigate losses in the amount of NT$ 906,638 thousand.
Note 2: Ending balance includes investment |osses.
Note 3. The aforementioned transactions are netted in the compilation of
the consolidated financial statements.
5. Acquisition of rea estate at costs exceeding NT$ 300 million or 20% of the
paid-in capital: None
6. Disposal of real estate at prices exceeding NT$ 300 million or 20% of the
paid-in capital:
Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars
Company Transaction Carrying |Transaction|Receivable|Gains (L 0sses) Natureof |Purpose of Deteeraisnsalt?on off Other
Name Property Name Date Acquisition Date Amount Amount_|Collection| on Disposal |Counterparty|Relationship| Disposal | the Sales Price |Conditions
IThe company |Inventory - 2019.05 Not Applicable:  [Not Applicable| 704,747 704,747|Not Applicable(More than one [Not related Selling |Refer to Appraisal| None
Buildings and inventory produced, third party inventory |or Based on
land held for sale not acquired Market Price
Note: The amounts above are expressed before taxes.
7. Related-party transactions for purchases and sales with amounts exceeding
NT$ 100 million or 20% of the paid-in capital :
Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars
Transaction Details Transactionswith Termg Notes or Accounts
Different from Others | Receivable (Payable)
% of Total
% of Notes or
Total Accounts
Company | Name of Nature of Amount [Purchases Payment | Ending |Receivable
Name |Counter party| Relationship Purchases/sale§ (notel) | (Sales) Payment Terms | Unit Price | Terms Balance | (Payable) | Note
The Kedge I nvestee accounted for [Purchases for 5,000,015  88.84%950% due immediately|Equivalent to|Equivalent ((1,929,699) 79.05%9Note 2
company  [Construction [using equity method |101C and other land 50% duein 90  |Other lto Other
project codes days/100% due Transactions [Transactions|
immediately and
100% due in 90 days
Kedge [The company [Investor in which Purchases for  |(5,000,015)| (47.24)%Per Payment Equivalent to[Equivalent 1,929,699 63.56%
Construction| Kedge Construction is |041B and other Schedule in Contract |Other lto Other
laccounted for using  |project codes lor Equivalent to Transactions [Transactions|
lequity method Other Transactions

Note 1: Amount as of December 31, 2019.
Note2: The aforementioned transactions are netted in the compilation of
the consolidated financial statements. The differencein receivables
(payables) is recognized in contract assets.

8.

or 20% of the paid-in capital:
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Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Company Name Ending Receivable Overdue Amount Received in Loss
Related Party | Nature of Relationship Balance  |Turnover Rate] Amount Action Taken | Subsequent Period | Allowance
Kedge Construction [The company Investor in which Kedge 1,929,699 2.47 - - 445,601
Construction is accounted
for using equity method
Note: The aforementioned transactions are netted in the compilation of the
consolidated financia statements.
9. Engaging in the trading in derivative instruments. none
10. Business relationships and significant intercompany transactions among
parent and subsidiaries:
I ntercompany Transaction Details
% of Consolidated|
Company | Related | Nature of Net Revenue or
No. Name Party  |Relationship Account Amount Trading Terms Total Assets
0 [The Kedge 1 Construction Cost 5,629,17250% due immediately and 50% due in 90 days/100% 36.73%
company  |Construction| due immediately and 100% due in 90 days
0 [The Kedge 1 Buildings and Land Held for Sale 266,23450% due immediately and 50% due in 90 days/100% 0.48%
company  |Construction| due immediately and 100% due in 90 days
0 [The Kedge 1 Construction in Progress 286,587/50% due immediately and 50% due in 90 days/100% 0.51%
company  |Construction| due immediately and 100% due in 90 days
0 [The Kedge 1 Notes and Accounts Payable - Related| 1,929,69950% due immediately and 50% due in 90 days/100% 3.46%
company  [Construction| Party- due immediately and 100% due in 90 days
1 [Kedge The 2 Operating Revenue 5,629,17250% due immediately and 50% due in 90 day; or 36.73%
Constructionjcompany 100% due immediately or in 90 days
1 [Kedge The 2 Operating Cost 552,821/50% due immediately and 50% due in 90 days/100% 3.61%
Constructionjcompany due immediately and 100% due in 90 days
1 [Kedge The 2 Notes and Accounts Receivable - 1,929,69950% due immediately and 50% due in 90 days/100% 3.46%
Constructionjcompany Related Party, Contract Asset- due immediately and 100% due in 90 days
2 |Global Mall |Guan Cheng 3 IAccounts Receivable - Related Party- 46,4230ncea Y ear 0.08%
2 |Global Mall |Guan Cheng 3 Operating Revenue 42,2580nce a Y ear 0.28%
2 |Global Mall |Guan You 3 Operating Revenue 3,4680nceaYear 0.02%
3 |Guan Cheng|Global Mall 3 /Accounts Payable - Related Party 46,4230nce a Y ear 0.08%
3 |Guan Cheng|Global Mall 3 Operating Expenses 42,2580nce a Y ear 0.28%
4 |GuanYou |Global Mall 3 Operating Expenses 3,4680nceaYear 0.02%

Note 1: The No. islabeled asfollows:
1. O represents the company.
2. Subsidiaries are sorted in a numerical order starting from 1.

Note 2: The nature of relationship is labeled as follows:
3. representsthe transactions form parent company to subsidiaries.
4. representsthe transactions from subsidiaries to parent company.
5. represents the transactions between subsidiaries.

Note 3: The aforementioned transactions are netted in the compilation of

the consolidated financial statements.
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(In

Information on Reinvestments
Investments of the company and its investees for the year ended on December 31,
2019 isasfollows:
Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars or Thousands of Shares

Investor

Investee

L ocation|

Main
Businesses and
Products

Original Investment
Amount

Balances as of December 31, 2019

December
31, 2019

December
31, 2018

Number of
Shares

Per centage of|
Ownership

Carrying
Amount

Highest
Per centage of
Owner ship or
Capital Invested
during 2019

Net Income
(Loss) of the
Investee

Share of
Investee's
Profit (Loss)
Recognized

Note

IThe company

Kedge
Construction

[Talwan

IComprehensive
constructions

374,353

374,353

36,248

34.18%

558,791

34.18%

402,348

103,642

Subsidiar

IThe company

Global Mall

[Taiwan

ISupermarkets,
department
Istores,
international
trading, and
holesales and
retails of
medical
lequipment

3,209,395

3,209,395

320,105

84.02%

3,859,352

84.02%

395,098

331,950

Subsidiar

IThe company

Guan Cheng

[Taiwan

Department
Istores,
lsupermarkets,
land non-store
retailing

102,000

102,000

10,200

51.00%

135,741

51.00%

34,926

17,812

Subsidiar

Kedge
Construction

\Jiequn Investment

[Taiwan

Investment

163,935

163,935

16,396

99.98%

369,801

99.98%

11,617

11,614

Sub-
subsidiary

Kedge
Construction

Guanqing
Electromechanical

[Taiwan

Installation and
lengineering of
lelectrical and
[fire safety
lequipment

81,326

81,326

7,747

99.96%

203,204

99.96%

11,976

11,972

Sub-
subsidiary|

[Jiequn Investment

Dingtian

[Taiwan

IComprehensive
constructions

16,500

16,500

30.00%

16,029

30.00%

5,592

1,678

Sub-sub-
subsidiary

Guanqing
[Electromechanical

Dingtian

[Taiwan

IComprehensive
congtructions

11,105

11,105

70.00%

37,401

70.00%

5,592

3,914

Sub-sub-
subsidiary

Dingtian

ReadyCom
eServices

[Taiwan

Information
software
lservices and
business
lconsultation

15,000

15,000

1,400

46.67%

20,506

46.67%

Investor

Investee

L ocation

Main
Businesses and
Products

Original |

Amount

nvestment

Balances as of December 31, 2019

Highest
Per centage of

December
31, 2019

December
31, 2018

Number of
Shares

Per centage of|
Ownership

Carrying
Amount

Ownership or
Capital Invested
during 2019

Net Income
(Loss) of the|
Investee

Share of
Investee's
Profit (Loss)
Recognized

Note

Global Mall

Guan Cheng

ITaiwan

Department
stores,
supermarkets,
land non-store
retailing

98,000

98,000

9,800

49.00%

130,418

49.00%

34,926

17,114

Subsidiar

Global Mall

Guan You

[Taiwan

Department
stores,
supermarkets,
land non-store
retailing

5,000

5,000

500

3.70%

1,640

3.70%

(33,725)

(1,248)

Sub-
subsidiary|

Global Mall

Guan Hua

[Taiwan

Department
stores,
supermarkets,
land non-store
retailing

140,000

140,000

14,000

100.00%

137,359

100.00%

(3.200)

(3.200)

Sub-
subsidiary|

Global Mall

KGM

Hong
Kong

Investment and
loperation of
shopping mall in
(China, including
master planning,
supporting
lengineering
consulting, and
leasing planning
land consulting

213,766
(HKD 54,435
thousand)|

727,517
(HKD
180,263
thousand)

(Co., L;d.)

100.00%

29,975

100.00%

55,671

55,671

Sub-
subsidiary|

Guan Cheng

Guan You

ITaiwan

Department
stores,
isupermarkets,
land non-store
retailing

13
0,000

30,000

13,000

96.30%

42,680

96.30%

(33,725)

(32,477)

Sub-
subsidiary)|

()

Information on Investments in Mainland China
Names, main businesses and products, and other information of investeesin
mainland China:

1.

Unit: Thousands of USD, HKD, CNY or NTD
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KINDOM DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD. and Subsidiaries
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Main Business Highest

Items Investment Cash Flows Percentagel
of
Cumulative Cumulative Percentage |Owner ship Cumulative
Investment Investment of the Level or Remittance]
Outflow from Outflow from Company's | Capital Share of Carrying [of Earningg
Amount Taiwan as of Taiwan asof | Net Income | Director | Invested | Investee's [Amount asof| asof
Name of of Paid-infinvestment| January 1, December 31,| (Loss) of the| Indirect during |Profit (Loss) [December 31,| December
Investee Item Item Capital [ Method 2019 Outflow Inflow 2019 Investee Ownership 2019 Recognized 2019 31, 2019
Global Mall |Business 213,766 Note 727,478 392,9260 906,638 213,766 55,667 100.00% 100.00% 55,667| 30,270
(Tianjin)  [management (CNY (CNY (CNY CNY| (CNY 48,000) (HKD 14,111)| (HKD 14,111)| (HKD 7,864)
Co., Ltd. (including rentals of 48,000)| 149,728) 88,059) 189,787)
commercial
facilities) in
holesales, retails

land import/export of
household items and
lappliances, sports
goods, office
supplies, watches,
glasses, textiles, etc.;
property
management;
business consulting;
corporate marketing
planning; conference
Iservices; exhibition
services ; parking lot
management

Note 1. Capital reduction was made for loss mitigation.
Note 2: The investment in mainland China is made through an investee
outside of Taiwan and mainland China.

2. Limitation on investment in mainland China:

Cumulative Investment Outflow |Investment Amounts Authorized| Upper Limit on I nvestment
from Taiwan as of December 31, by Investment Commission, Authorized by I nvestment
2019 MOEA Commission, MOEA
CNY 48,000 UsD 11,100 7,576,502

3. Significant transactions with investees in mainland China: none

X1V. Segment Information

()] General information
The Group's reportable segments comprise development business unit,
construction business unit, and shopping mall business unit. The market
characteristics and marketing strategies each business unit are not identical and
hence are explained as follows:
Development business unit: commission construction companies to develop
residential and commercial real estate for the rental or sales businesses.
Construction business unit: comprehensively organize all works involved in
constructions, including building and managing, as a genera contractor.
Shopping mall business unit: manage operations of shopping malls, supermarkets,
and businesses in international trading.

(1 Information on measurement basis and reconciliation of profit or loss, assets and

liabilities of reportable segments

The Group's chief operating decision maker determines the resource alocation
and assessment of segment performance on the basis of segment's profit or loss
(excluding gains or losses on extraordinary activity and foreign exchange gains or
losses) before tax on internal management report. Income tax expenses, gains or
losses on extraordinary activity, and foreign exchange gains or |osses are managed
at the Group level and therefore not allocated to profit or loss of the reportable
segments. In addition, the profit or loss of the reportable segments includes
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depreciation, amortization, and other material non-cash accounts. The amount on
internal management report is consistent with that used by the Group's chief

operating decision maker.

Except for pension expenses, of which the reportable segments recognized and
measured on the basis of cash payments to pension fund, there was no material
inconsistency between the accounting policies adopted for the operating segments
and the "I1V. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies’ of the Group. Sales
and transfers of properties between the reportable segments are treated as third-
party transactions and measured at current market price.

Information and reconciliation of profit or loss, assets and liabilities of reportable

segments are as follows:

2019
Adjustment
Shopping and
Development  Construction Mall elimination Total
Revenue

Revenuesfromexternal $ 8,115,011 5,829,910 1,381,978 - 15,326,899

customers

Revenues from other 2,425 5,632,532 45,830  (5,680,787) -

business units ("intra-

group revenue")

Interest income 9,510 6,289 4,501 - 20,300
Total revenue $ 8,126,946 11,468,731 1,432,309 __ (5,680,787) 15,347,199
Interest expenses $ 342,771 2,130 105,524 - 450,425
Depreciation and 11,988 941 370,169 (7,250) 375,848
amortization
Share of profits (losses) of 453,404 1 15,866 (469,270) 1
associ ates accounted for
using equity method
Reportable segment $ 1,460,786 499,914 389,522 (535,958) 1,814,264
profits (losses)

Asset:

Investment accounted for $ 4,553,884 20,506 130,418  (4,684,302) 20,506

using equity method

Capital expenditure on 2,802 - 81,130 - 83,932

non-current asset
Reportable segment assets $ 43,828,824 8,276,848 11,645,381 _ (7,926,088) 55,824,965
Reportable segment $ 31,201,320 5,535,726 6,771,135 _ (2,096,125) 41,412,056
liabilities

2018
Adjustment
Shopping and
Development  Construction Mall elimination Total
Revenue

Revenuesfromexternal $ 7,500,347 5,543,003 1,392,330 - 14,435,680

customers

Revenues from other 2,425 5,886,189 44,060  (5,932,674) -

business units ("intra-

group revenue")

Interest income 4,652 13,607 5,000 - 23,259
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2019
Adjustment
Shopping and
Development  Construction Mall elimination Total

Total revenue $ 7507424 11,442,799 1,441,390 __ (5,932,674) 14,458,939
Interest expenses $ 358,821 2,002 74,741 - 435,564
Depreciation and 12,795 829 270,817 (7,095) 277,346
amortization
Share of profits (losses) of (139,512) 8 9,227 130,285 8
associ ates accounted for
using equity method
Reportable segment $ 702,919 517,199 (195,798) 56,098 1,080,418
profits (losses)
Asset:

Investment accounted for $ 4,222,649 20,505 214,869  (4,437,518) 20,505

using equity method

Capital expenditure on 943 - 29,767 - 30,710

non-current asset

Reportable segment assets $43,113339 _ 6,983,783 _ 9,520,736 _ (8.454,550) _ 51,163,308
Repor table segment $ 31276346 _ 4450861 _ 4994370 _ (3,125,832) _ 37,595,745

liabilities

()

(V)

V)

Significant reconciliation items of reportable segments are as follows:

For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, the "intra-group revenue
eliminated in consolidated financial statements’ amounted to NT$ 5,680,787
thousand and NT$ 5,932,674 thousand, respectively.

Product and service information
Refer to Note VI1(22) for details on the Group's product and service information.

Geographic information

Except that the revenue in the amount of NT$ 48,085 thousand is generated in
mainland China in 2018, all other revenue is generated in Taiwan and no other
countries.

Major customers

The Group is engaged in the development of rea estate, comprehensive
construction, and operation of shopping malls. Its clientele is mainly the vast
magjority of consumers and public works, no significant key accounts.
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V. Individua Financial Report of 2019

Independent Auditors Report

To the Board of Directors Kindom Development Co., Ltd.:

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying parent-company-only financial statements of Kindom
Development Co., Ltd. (the "company™), which comprises the parent-company-only balance sheets
as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the parent-company-only statements of comprehensive
income, changes in equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the notes to the parent-
company-only financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying parent-company-only financial statements present fairly, in all
materia respects, the parent-company-only financial position of the company as of December 31,
2019 and 2018, and its parent-company-only financial performance and its parent-company-only cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with the "Regulations Governing the Preparation of
Financial Reports by Securities Issuers.”

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the "Regul ations Governing Auditing and Attestation of
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants' and auditing standards generally accepted in
the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
"Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent-Company-Only Financial Statements' section
of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethics
for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the parent-company-only financia statements for the year ended December 31, 2019.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the parent-company-only financial
statements as awhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In our judgment, key audit mattersfor the company's parent-company-only financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2019 are stated as follows:

I.  Revenuerecognition
Refer to Note 1V(15) for the accounting policies on recognizing revenue and Note V1(21) for
details of related disclosure.
Description of key audit matters:
The company engaged primarily in the sales and development of real estate. Real estate sales
are easily subject to changes in overall economic conditions, tax reforms, market demands of
propertiesand lands, and other factors. In response to the af orementioned changes, the governing
authority has established relevant controls over revenue recognition and installment payments.
The revenue from real estate sales amounts to 97% of the company's total revenue, which is
material to the fair presentation of parent-company-only financial statements. Consequently, the
company's revenue recognition has been identified as one of the key audit matters.
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Our audit procedures performed in respect of the above areaincluded the following:

In relation to the key audit matter above, we have performed certain audit procedures including,
among others, understanding the design and effectiveness of the company's interna controls
over the recognition of revenue and the accrual of receivables; performing sample testing to
inspect the real estate sales contracts, tables of the receivables, bank transactions, transfers of
property rights, closing checklists and others;, performing data anaysis on real estate
prepayments in order to assess the completeness of the recognition of bank deposits and
procedures of prepaid installments; and performing sample testing on sales transactions taking
place before and after the balance sheet date as well as confirming relevant transaction records
and documentations to ensure that revenue was fairly presented in the appropriate period.

[1. Inventory valuation
Refer to Note 1V(7) for the accounting policies on inventory valuation, Note V(1) for the
uncertainty of accounting estimations and assumptions for inventory valuation, and Note V1(5)
for details of inventory valuation.
Description of key audit matters:
As of December 31, 2019, the company's inventory amounts to NT$ 32,659,659 thousand and
accounts for 75% of total assets. The valuation of inventory is at the lower of cost or cost or
market price, that isthe price of real estate market with highly subject to large capital investment
and long payback period and greatly subject to political, economic and real estate tax reforms.
Consequently, identified as one of the key audit matters, the company's cost of inventory might
be higher than its market price.
Our audit procedures performed in respect of the above areaincluded the following:
In relation to the key audit matter above, we have performed certain audit procedures including
understanding the company's internal procedures and accounting processes over inventory
valuation; obtaining the inventory valuation performed by the company as of the end of the
reporting period; inspecting and performing sampl e testing on the comparable market data such
as registered sales prices of real estate published by Ministry of the Interior, sales prices of the
transactions in the neighborhood, and contract prices of recent sales of the company's
developments, or confirming and recalculating the investment return analysis of each
development, to evaluate if the net realizable value of inventory isfairly presented.
Responsibilities of the Management and Those Char ged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements
The management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the parent-company-only
financial statements in accordance with the "Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Securities Issuers' and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of parent-company-only financial statements that are free from material
mi sstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the parent-company-only financial statements, the management is responsible for
assessing the company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclose matters related to going
concern, and use the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to
liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance, including the audit committee, are responsible for overseeing the
company's financial reporting process.
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Auditors Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of the Parent-Company-Only Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the parent-company-only financial
statements as awhole are free from material misstatement, whether dueto fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance isahigh level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted
in the Republic of Chinawill always detect amaterial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of userstaken on the basis of these parent-
company-only financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
China, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

1. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the parent-company-only financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. Therisk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the company'sinternal control.

3. Evauate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of the management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditionsthat may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the parent-company-only financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evauate the overall presentation, structure and content of the parent-company-only financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the parent-company-only financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in amanner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information on the
investment in other entities accounted for using the equity method in order to express an opinion
on thisfinancial statement. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of

the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin
interna control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
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related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the parent-company-only financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2019 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these mattersin
our auditors report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan
Republic of China
March 23, 2020

Notices to Readers

The accompanying financial statements are intended only to present the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally
accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures
and practicesto audit such financial statements are those generally applied in the Republic of China.

For the convenience of readers, the independent auditors’ report and the accompanying financial
statements have been tranglated into English fromthe original Chinese version prepared and used in
Republic of China. If there is any conflict between the English version and the original Chinese
version or any difference in the interpretation of the two versions, the Chinese language independent

auditors’ report and financial statements shall prevail.
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KINDOM DEVELOPMENT CO.LTD
Balance Sheets

December 31, 2019 and 2018 Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

2019.12.31 2018.12.31 2019.12.31 2018.12.31
ASSETS Amount % Amount % LIABILITIESAND EQUITY Amount % Amount %
CURRENT ASSETS: Current Liabilities:
1100 Cash and cash equivalents (Note VI(1) and (24)) $ 2,012,378 5 2,293,783 5 2100 Short-term borrowings (Notes VI(13) and (24)) $ 18,745,374 43 19,184,508 44
2130 Contract liabilities— current (Note V1(21)) 5,195,802 12 3,937,293 9
1110 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - current (Notes 23,445 - 23,773 - 2150 Notes payable (Note V1(24)) 36,026 - 8,950 -
VI1(2) and (24)) 2160 Notes payable - related parties 1,287,602 3 1,899,951 5
1141 Contract assets - current (Note V1(21)) 151,622 - - - 2170 Accounts payable (Note V1(24)) 470,113 1 510,065 1
1150 Notes receivable, net (Notes VI(4) and (24)) 2,157 - - - 2181 Accounts payable - related parties 647,267 2 780,718 2
1170 Accounts receivable, net (Notes VI(4), (21) and (24)) 233,089 1 500,346 1 2200 Other payables (Note V1(24)) 121,079 - 150,094 -
1220 Current tax assets - - 29,173 - 2230 Current tax liabilities 6,242 - 94,744 -
1320 Inventories — construction (Notes VI(5) and V1I1) 32,659,659 75 32,884,522 76 2251 Provisions for employee benefit — current (Note VI(17)) 3,104 - 2,711 -
1410 Prepayments 78,029 - 284,314 1 2280 Lease liahilities - current (Notes VI(15) and (24)) 4,108 - - -
1476 Other financial assets - current (Notes V1(11), (21), (24) and VIII) 3,187,328 7 1,940,390 5 2321 Current portion of convertible corporate bond due within one - - 1,000,000 2
1479 Other current assets -others 12,688 - 18,696 - year or one operating period (Notes VI(14) and (24))
1480 Incremental costs of obtaining a contract — current (Note VI1(11)) 144,525 - 103,350 - 2399 Other current liability - others 145,842 - 130,047 -
38,504,920 88 _ 38,078,347 88 26,662,559 61 27,699,081 63
Non-current Assets: Non-current Liabilities:
1517 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income - 2,659 - 3,025 - 2530 Bonds payable (Notes VI(14) and (24)) 4,500,000 10 3,500,000 9
non-current (Notes VI(3) and (24)) 2640 Defined benefit liabilities, net - non-current (Note V1(17)) 6,681 - 11,111 -
1550 Investments accounted for using the equity method (Notes V1(6) 4,553,884 10 4,222,649 10 2645 Guarantee deposits (Note V1(24)) 3,418 - 1,811 -
and VIII) 2670 Other non-current liabilities - others 28,662 - 64,343 -
1600 Property, plant and equipment (NotesVI(7) and V111) 280,822 1 288,059 1 4,538,761 10 3,577,265 9
1755 Right-of-use assets (Note (V1(8)) 4,101 - - - TOTAL LIABILITIES 31,201,320 71 31,276,346 72
1760 Investment property Notes V1(9), (16) and VIII) 474,942 1 479,135 1
1780 Intangible assets (Note V1(10)) 2,274 - 162 - EQUITY (Note VI(19)):
1915 Prepayments for equipment 5,222 - 6,197 - 3100 Share capital 5,037,910 12 5,037,910 12
1985 Prepaid lease (Notes V1(12) and VII) - 35,765 - 3200 Capital reserve 1,379,873 3 1,368,865 3
3300 Retained earnings 6,306,721 5,526,960
3400 Other equity (25,804) (25,546)
3500 Treasury stock (71,196) (71,196)
TOTAL EQUITY 12,627,504 29 11,836,993 28
TOTAL LIABILITIESAND EQUITY $ 43,828,824 100 43,113,339 100

TOTAL ASSETS 43,828,824

5
|
B

(Refer to the subsequent Notesto Parent-Company-Only Financial Statements)
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KINDOM DEVELOPMENT CO.,LTD.
Statements of Comprehensive ncome
January 1to December 31, 2019 and 2018

Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Operating Revenue (Notes V1(16) and (21))

Operating Costs (Note VI(5))

Gross Profit

Less: Realized profit or loss on sales

Gross Profit

Operating Expenses (Notes VI1(22) and VII)
Selling and marketing expenses
General and administrative expenses

Net Operating Profit

Non-Operating Income and Expenses:
Other income (Note V1(23))
Other interest income and expenses (Note V1(23))
Finance costs (Note V1(23))
Share of the profit of subsidiaries, associates, and joint
ventures accounted for using the equity method

Income Before Tax of Continuing Operation
Less: Incometax expense (Note VI(18))
Net income (loss)
Other Comprehensive Income:
Itemsthat will not bereclassified subsequently to profit
or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Unrealized gains (losses) from investments in equity
instruments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Shares of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries,
associates, and joint ventures accounted for using equity
method - components of other comprehensive income
that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Itemsthat may bereclassified subsequently to profit or
loss
Shares of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries,
associates, and joint ventures accounted for using equity
method - components of other comprehensive income
that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
(Notes VI (16) and (21))
Other comprehensive income (net amount after tax) (Note
VI(5))
Total comprehensive income (l0ss)
Earnings Per Share
Basic Earnings Per Share (in NT$)
Diluted Earnings Per Share (in NT$) (NotesVI(22) and
VIl

(Refer to the subsequent Notesto Parent-Company-Only Financial Statements)

-185-

2019 2018

Amount % Amount %
$ 8,117,436 100 7,502,772 100
6,085,189 75 5,540,963 74
2,032,247 25 1,961,809 26

85 - (401) _ -
2,032,162 25 1,962,210 26
390,095 5 470,935 6
312,309 4 311,960 4
702,404 9 782,895 10
1,329,758 16 1,179,315 16

10,721 - 5911 -

9,674 - 16,026 -
(342,771) 4 (358,821) 5)
453,404 6 (139,512) (2)
131,028 2 (476,396) (7)
1,460,786 18 702,919 9
177,260 2 195,671 3
1,283,526 16 507,248 6

(284) - (609) -

(366) - 1,902 -

772 - 195 -

(354) - 6,611 -

(232) - 8,099 -
$ 1283294 16 515,347 6
$ 2.60 1.03
$ 2.60 1.03




KINDOM DEVELOPMENT CO.,LTD.
Statements of Changesin Equity
January 1to December 31, 2019 and 2018
Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Share capital Retained Earnings Other Equity
Exchange  Unrealized gain (loss)
differenceson from financial assets
trandation of measured at fair value

financial through other

Share capital of Unappropriated statements of comprehensive

common stocks  Capital reserve  Legal reserve  Special reserve Earnings Tota foreign operations income Treasury stock Total equity
Balance as of January 1, 2018 $ 5,037,910 1,363,148 1,603,070 25,004 3,421,550 5,049,624 (32,521) - (71,196) 11,346,965
Effects of retrospective application - - - - 222,398 222,398 - (1,538) - 220,860
Adjusted balance as of January 1, 2018 5,037,910 1,363,148 1,603,070 25,004 3,643,948 5,272,022 (32,521) (1,538) (71,196) 11,567,825
Net income for the year - - - - 507,248 507,248 - - - 507,248
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year - - - - (414) (414) 6,611 1,902 - 8,099
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year - - - - 506,834 506,834 6,611 1,902 - 515,347
Earnings appropriation and distribution:

Provision for Legal reserve - - 34,629 - (34,629) - - - - -

Provision for Special reserve - - - 7,517 (7,517) - - - - -

Cash dividends on common stock - - - - (251,896) (251,896) - - - (251,896)
Changes in equity of associates and joint ventures accounted for under the - 61 - - - - - - - 61
equity method
Changes in capital reserve from dividends paid to subsidiaries - 5313 - - - - - - - 5,313
Unclaimed dividends after effective period - 343 - - - - - - - 343
Balance as of December 31, 2018 5,037,910 1,368,865 1,637,699 32,521 3,856,740 5,526,960 (25,910) 364 (71,196) 11,836,993
Net income (loss) for the year - - - - 1,283,526 1,283,526 - - - 1,283,526
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year - - - - 26 26 (3%4) 96 - (232)
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year - - - - 1,283,552 1,283,552 (354) 96 - 1,283,294
Earnings appropriation and distribution:

Provision for Legal reserve - - 50,724 - (50,724) - - - - -

Provision for Special reserve - - - (6,975) 6,975 - - - - -

Cash dividends on common stock - - - - (503,791) (503,791) - - - (503,791)
Changes in equity of associates and joint ventures accounted for under the - 11 - - - - - - - 11
equity method
Changes in capital reserve from dividends paid to subsidiaries - 10,626 - - - - - - - 10,626
Unclaimed dividends after effective period - 371 - - - - - - - 371
Balance as of December 31, 2019 $ 5037910 1,379,873 1,688,423 25,546 4,592,752 6,306,721 (26,264) 460 (71,196) 12,627,504
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KINDOM DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.

Statements of Cash Flows

January 1to December 31, 2019 and 2018
Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Income befor e income tax
Adjustments:
Adjustments to reconcile profit (10ss)
Depreciation
Amortization
Net loss (gain) on financia assets and liabilities
measured at fair value through profit or loss
Interest expense
Interest income
Dividend income
Share of losses (gains) of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures accounted for under the equity method
Gains on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Gains on disposal of investment property
Tota adjustments for profit and loss
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Changes in operating assets:
Increase in contract assets
Decrease (increase) in notes receivable
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable
Decrease (increase) in inventory
Decrease in prepayments
Increase in prepayments for equipment
Increase in other financial instruments - current
Decrease (increase) in other current assets
Decrease (increase) in incremental costs of
obtaining a contract
Total changes in operating assets
Changes in operating liabilities:
Increase in contract liabilities
Increase (decrease) in notes payable
Increase (decrease) in notes payable - related parties
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Decrease in accounts payable - related parties
Increase (decrease) in other payables
Increase in provisions for employee benefit - current
Increase (decrease) in guarantee deposits
Increase in other current liabilities
Decrease in net defined benefit liabilities
Increase (decrease) in other non-current liabilities
Total changes in operating liahilities
Tota changes in operating assets and liabilities
Total adjustments
Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities
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2019 2018
$ 1,460,786 702,919
11,522 11,497
466 1,298
328 1,845
342,771 358,821
(9,510) (4,652)
(1,211) (1,259)
(453,404) 139,512
(81) -
- (365)
(109,119) 506,697
(151,622) -

(2,157) 11,219
267,257 (123,652)
390,063 (2,936,748)
206,285 41,952

- (975)
(1,246,938) (753,473)
6,008 (13,609)
(41,175) 117,510
(572,279) (3,657,776)
1,258,509 2,808,820
27,076 (14,075)
(612,349) 1,393,022
(39,952) 49,240
(133,451) (247,393)
(23,793) 43,007
393 481
1,607 (390)
15,795 113,793
(4,714) (592)
84 (401)
489,205 4,145,512
(83,074) 487,736
(192,193) 994,433
1,268,593 1,697,352
(236,589) (94,585)
1,032,004 1,602,767




KINDOM DEVELOPMENT CO.LTD

Statements of Cash Flows

January 1to December 31, 2019 and 2018
Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Proceeds from capital return of financial assets measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Disposal of property, plant and equipment

Acquisition of intangible assets

Disposal of investment property

Interests received

Dividends received

Net Cash Generated from (Used in) Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Increase in short-term borrowings
Decrease in short-term borrowings
Increase in short-term notes
Decrease in short-term notes
Issuance of convertible corporate bonds
Redemption of convertible corporate bonds
Repayments of |ease principal
Cash dividends paid
Interests paid
Net Cash Generated from (Used in) Financing Activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
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2019 2018
- 51
(1,199) (943)
1,429 -
(1,603) -
- 93,022
9,510 4,652
134,434 101,995
142,571 198,777
8,038,885 11,513,731
(9,378,019) (12,717,989)
479,000 1,474,000
(479,000) (1,984,000)
1,000,000 2,000,000
(1,000,000) (2,000,000)
(234) -
(503,791) (251,896)
(512,821) (560,262)
(1,455,980) (2,526,416)
(281,405) (724,872)
2,293,783 3,018,655
$ 2,012,378 2,293,783




KINDOM DEVELOPMENT CO.,LTD.
Notesto Parent Company Only Financial Statements
For theyearsended December 31, 2019 and 2018

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Otherwise Specified)

Company History

Kindom Development Co., Ltd. (the "company") was incorporated on November of 1979, as
a company limited by shares under the laws of the Republic of China ("R.O.C." ) and
registered under the Ministry of Economic Affairs, R.O.C. The registered address is 2F., No.
131, Sec. 3, Heping E. Rd., Daan Dist., Taipei City 106, Tawan (R.O.C.). The company
primarily engages in the development of residential properties and the leases or sales of
commercial buildings.

The Approval Date and Procedures of the Financial Report
The parent-company-only financial statements were authorized by the Board of Directors on
March 23, 2020.

Application of Newly Issued and Revised Standards and I nter pretations

(1)

mpact of adoption of new, revised, and amended standards and interpretations

endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission, R.O.C. ("FSC").
In preparing the accompanying parent-company-only financial statements, the
company has adopted the following International Financia Reporting Standards
("IFRS"), International Accounting Standards ("IAS"), and Interpretationsthat have
been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (" 1ASB" )
(collectively, " IFRSs" ) and endorsed by the FSC, with effective date from January
1, 2019. The new, revised, and amended standards and interpretations are listed
below:

Effective date

New, Revised, and Amended Standardsand Interpretations  per IASB

IFRS 16 "L eases" January 1, 2019
IFRIC 23 "Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments" January 1, 2019
Amendmentsto IFRS 9, "Prepayment Features with Negative  January 1, 2019
Compensation”
Amendmentsto IAS 19 "Plan Amendment, Curtailment or January 1, 2019
Settlement”
Amendmentsto IAS 28, "Long-term Interestsin Associatesand January 1, 2019
Joint Ventures'
Annua Improvementsto IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle January 1, 2019

Except for the following items, the initial application of the above IFRSs did not
have any material impact on the parent-company-only financial statements. The
extent and impact of changes are as follows:

IFRS 16 "L eases"

International Financial Reporting Standards 16 "Leases’ ("IFRS 16") replaces the
existing guidance, including IAS 17 "Leases' ("IAS 17"), IFRIC 4 "Determining
Whether an Arrangement ContainsaLease” ("IFRIC 4"), SIC 15 "Operating L eases
— Incentives," and SIC 27 "Evaluating the Substance of Transactions in the Legal
Form of aLease."

The company applies IFRS 16 with modified retrospective approach and recognizes
cumulative effect upon the initial application of this standard as an adjustment to
the opening balance of its retained earnings on January 1, 2019. The following are
the nature and impacts on the changes of accounting policies:
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1)

)

3

(4)

Identifying alease

Previoudly, at the contract commencement date, the company determined
whether a contract is or contains a lease in accordance with IFRIC 4. Upon
adopting the new standard, the company determined whether a contract is or
contains alease in accordance with IFRS 16 (refer to Note 1V (11)).

On transition to the new standard of IFRS 16, the company elects the modified
retrospective approach and applies a practical expedient that does not need any
reassessment whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. IFRS 16 is applied
directly to the contracts previously determined as lease. The contracts
previously determined as not leases under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 would not be
reassessed. Consequently, IFRS 16 is applied to contracts signed or revised
on or after the date of initial application.

The company as alessee

For transactions where the Group is the lessee, previously, the company's
categorization of lease contracts depended on the transfer of the substantial
risks and rewards incident to ownership of an underlying asset. Under the new
standard of IFRS 16, the lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability in the balance sheets.

The company elects to apply a practical expedient on leases of office buildings
and treats it as short-term leases.

« For contracts previously classified as operating leases under IAS 17

In the transition, a lease liability is measured at the present value of the
remaining lease payments payable with the company's incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application. The right-of-use asset is
measured at the amount of the lease liability plus adjustments of any
relevant prepayments or payables by the lessee. The company appliesthis
valuation to all other leases besides af orementioned |eases.

The company chooses to elect the following practical expedients upon
transition to IFRS 16:

a. apply a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar
characteristics.

b. apply the exemption, and not to recognize the right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities with any lease term that ends within 12 months after
the date of initial application.

c. excludetheinitia direct costs from measuring the right-of-use assets
at the date of initial application.

d. use hindsight to determine the lease term while the contract contains
options to extend or terminate the lease

The company as | essor

Except for sublease, as a lessor, the company does not need to make
adjustments in the transition to the new standard, and at the date of initial
application, the company applies IFRS 16 to all rental transactions.

Under IFRS 16, a sublease shall be classified by reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease, rather than by reference to the underlying
asset.

Impacts on financia statements
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(In

()

In transition to IFRS 16, the company does not need to recognize any right-of-
use assets or lease liabilities at the date of initial application.

Impact of IFRSs endorsed by the FSC but yet to come into effect
According to Order No. 1080323028 issued by the FSC on July 29, 2019,
commencing from 2020, public companies are required to adopt the IFRSsthat have
been endorsed by the FSC with effective date from January 1, 2020. The related
new, revised, and amended standards and interpretations are listed below:

New, Revised, and Amended Standards and

I nterpretations Effective date per IASB
Amendments to IFRS 3 "Definition of aBusiness’ January 1, 2020
Amendmentsto IFRS 9, IAS 39, and IFRS 7 January 1, 2020

"Interest Rate Benchmark Reform™
Amendmentsto IAS 1 and IAS 8 "Definition of January 1, 2020
Material"

The company assessed that the adoption of the aforementioned new standards will
not have significant impacts on its parent-company-only financial statements.

Impact of IFRSs issued by the IASB but yet to be endorsed by the FSC
A summary of new, revised, and amended standards and interpretations issued by
the IASB but yet to be endorsed by the FSC is listed below:
New, Revised, and Amended Standards and
| nter pretations Effectivedate per IASB

Amendmentsto IFRS 10 and IAS 28 "Sale or To be determined by IASB
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture'

IFRS 17 "Insurance Contracts' January 1, 2021
Amendmentsto IAS 1 "Classification of January 1, 2022

Liabilities as Current or Non-Current"

The company is currently evauating the impact on its parent-company-only
financial position and parent-company-only financial performance upon the initia
adoption of the aforementioned standards and interpretations. The results thereof
will be disclosed when the company completes its evaluation.

Summary of Material Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies presented in the parent-company-only financial statements
are summarized as the following and have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these financia statements, except for the changes in accounting standards disclosed in Note I11.

)

(1)

Statement of compliance

The company's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
"Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities | ssuers’
(the "Regulations").

Basis of preparation

1. Basisof measurement
The parent-company-only financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis except for the following significant accounts:

(1) Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss;
(2) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income; and
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(1)

(V)

(3) Net defined benefit liability measured at the fair value of plan assets less
present value of defined benefit obligation, and the limits disclosed in Note
V1(16).

2. Functiona and presentation currency

The functional currency of the company is determined based on the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates. The company's financial
statements are presented in New Taiwan Doallars (the "NT$"), which is the
company's functional currency. All financial information presented in NT$ has
been rounded to the nearest thousand.

Foreign currency
1. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at
exchangerates prevailing at the transaction dates. Monetary assetsand liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the period (the "reporting date™)
are retrandated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting
date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that
are measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at the
exchange rate prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities in a foreign currency that are measured at
historical cost are retranslated using the exchange rates prevailing at the
transaction dates.

. Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value
adjustments arising from acquisition, are trandated into NT$ at the exchange
rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are
trandated into NT$ at the average exchange rates for the period. All resulting
exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income.

On the disposal of aforeign operation which involves a loss of control over a
subsidiary or loss of significant influence over an associate that includes a
foreign operation, al of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation are entirely reclassified to profit or loss. In the case of
a partial disposal that does not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to non-controlling interests. For a partial disposal of the Group's
ownership interest in an associate or joint venture, the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differencesin equity is reclassified to profit or loss.
When the settlement of a monetary receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future, the
related foreign exchange gains and losses are a part of net investment in that
foreign operation and thereon are recognized as other comprehensive income.

Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities
An asset is classified as current when one of the following criteriais met; all other
assets are classified as non-current assets;

It is expected to be realized, or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal
operating cycle;
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
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V)

(V1)

3. Itisexpected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or
4. The asset is cash or a cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being
exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the

reporting period.
A liability is classified as current when one of the following criteriais met; all other
liabilities are classified as non-current liabilities:"

1. Itisexpected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

2. Itisheld primarily for the purpose of trading;

3. Itisdueto be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

4. The settlement of such a liability that the company does not have an
unconditional right to defer for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
However, terms of such aliability that, at the option of the counterparty, could
be settled by issuing equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash consists of cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents consist of
short-term and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Time
deposits that meet the aforesaid criteria and are not held for investing purposes are
also classified as cash equivalents.

Financial instruments
Accounts receivables are initially recognized upon revenue generation, and debt
securities are initially recognized upon issuance. All other financial assets and
financial liabilitiesareinitially recognized and measured at fair value through profit
or loss when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. Financial assets (except for accounts receivables without significant
financing component) and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognized and measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to their acquisition or issuance.
Accounts receivables without significant financing component is measured at its
transaction price.
1. Financial assets
All financial assets that are purchased or sold in ordinary business transactions
are recognized and derecognized on atrade-date basis.
Upon initial recognition, financial assets are classified following categories:
measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI"), and fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"). Only upon
changesin the company's management of financial assets, the affected assetsare
reclassified at the beginning of the next reporting period.
(1) Financial assets measured at amortized cost
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the
following conditions and is not designated as at FV TPL:

It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets to collect contractual cash flows.
Itscontractua termsgiverise on specified datesto cash flowsthat are soldly
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(2)

3

(4)

payments of principa and interest on the principa amount outstanding.
These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment losses. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and | osses, and recognition (reversal) of impairment
loss are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at fair vaue through other comprehensive

income (FVTOCI)

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading,
the company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment's fair value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Equity investments are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividend
income derived from equity investments (except those represent the cost
recovery) is recognized in profit or loss; other net gains and losses are
recognized in OCI and will not be reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividend income derived from equity investmentsis recognized on the date
that the company's right to receive the dividends is established (usually the
ex-dividend date).

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

All financial assets not classified as measured a amortized cost or at
FVTOCI described as above are measured at FVTPL, including derivative
financial assets. On initiad recognition, the company may irrevocably
designate afinancia asset, which meets the requirements to be measured at
amortized cost or a FVTOCI, as at FVTPL if doing so diminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, and net gains and losses
(including dividend and interest incomes) are recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses
("ECLSs") on financial assets measured at amortized cost (including cash
and cash equivaents, notes and accounts receivable, other receivables,
refundable deposit, and other financial assets), debt investments measured
at FVTOCI and contract assets.

The company measures its loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL), except for the following which are measured as 12-month ECL :

debt securitiesthat are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting
date; and

other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e., the
risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial

instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.
Loss alowance for trade receivables and contract assets are aways
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.
When determining whether the credit risk of afinancial asset hasincreased
significantly since initial recognition, the company considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort. The information includes both quantitative and qualitative
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©)

information and analysis based on the company' s historical experience and
credit assessment, as well as forward-looking information.

ECLs are probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected
life of financial assets. Credit losses are measured as the present value of
all cash shortfalls, that is, the difference between the cash flows due to the
company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
company expects to receive. ECLs are discounted at the effective interest
rate of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the company assesses whether financial assets
carried at amortized cost and bonds measured at FVTOCI are credit-
impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable data:

significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 360 days past
due;
the lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;
it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial
difficulties.Loss alowances for financial assets measured at amortized
cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets. For debt
securities a FVOCI, the loss alowance is recognized in other
comprehensive income, instead of reducing the carrying amount of the
asset, and the amount of expected credit lossesis recognized in profit or

loss, as an impairment gain or |0ss.

Loss alowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are
deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets. For debt securities
a FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognized in other comprehensive
income, instead of reducing the carrying amount of the asset, and the
amount of expected credit losses is recognized in profit or loss, as an
impairment gain or loss.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is reduced or written off,
either partialy or in full, to the extent where recovery is not reasonably
expected. The company analyzes the timing and amount of individual
write-offs on the basis of reasonabl e expectation of recovery, and the write-
off cannot bereversed significantly. However, financial assetswith write-
off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with
the company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Derecognition of financial assets
Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the assets expire, when the company transfers substantially all
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the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets to other
enterprises, or when the company neither retain nor transfer substantial
risks and rewards of the ownership, and does not retain control of the asset.
Even when it transfers the financial assets, if it retains all or some the risks
and rewards of ownership of the assets, the company continuesto recognize
the assets in the balance sheets.

2. Financia liabilities and equity instruments

1)

(2)

3

(4)

()

(6)

Classification of debt or equity

Debt and equity instrumentsissued by the company are classified separately
as financia liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of
contractual arrangements.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences aresidual interest in the
assets of the company after deducting al of its liabilities. Equity
instruments are recognized at the amount of consideration received less the
direct issue costs.

Treasury stock

Equity instruments repurchased by the company are recognized as
reduction of equity at the amount of repurchase price (including direct
costs). Shares repurchased are recorded as treasury stocks. The amount of
any subsequent sales or reissuance of treasury stocks is recognized as
addition to equity. Any gain (loss) realized is accounted for as an addition
(reduction) of the remaining balance of capital reserve; if the remaining
balance of capital reserve is insufficient to cover the deficiency, the
remainder is recorded as areduction of as retained earnings .

Financia liabilities

Upon initial recognition, financial liabilities are classified following
categories. measured at amortized cost and fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"). Financia liabilities that are held for trading, derivatives or
designated upon initial recognition are recognized as FV TPL and measured
at fair value, and related net gain or loss, including interest expenses, are
recognized in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expenses and exchange gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss upon disposal are also
recognized in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financia liabilities

The company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual
obligation has been fulfilled or cancelled, or has expired. The company
also derecognizes a financia liability when its modifications and
restructurings result in significant changes in cash flows, and the liability is
reclassified as financial liabilities are measured at FVTPL.

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss and
included in non-operating income and |oss.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are presented on a net basis only when the
company hasthelegally enforceableright to offset and intendsto settle such
financial assetsand liabilitieson anet basis or to realize the assets and settle

196



KINDOM DEVELOPMENT CO. LTD Notesto Parent-Company-Only Financial Statements

V1)

(V111

(1X)

the liabilities simultaneously.
(7) Financia guarantee contract
A financial guarantee contract ("FGC") is acontract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument.
Upon the issuance, a FGC that is not designated as measured at FVTPL is
initially recognized at fair value less any direct issue cost and subsequently
measured as the greater of (a) the IFRS 9 Expected Credit Loss allowance,
and (b) the amount initially recognized, when appropriate, less any
cumul ative amount of income recognized.
Inventories
Inventory is measured by the lower of cost and net realizable value ("NRV"). The
cost includes al necessary expenditures and capitalized borrowing costs to get an
asset in place and in conditions ready for use.
The NRYV is the expected selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated cost of construction completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale. The measurement of NRV is as follows:
1. Construction land
The NRYV is calculated on the basis of the expected selling price judged by the
management based on the current market conditions, less cost of construction
completion and selling expenses, or the most recent estimated market value
(based on land devel opment analysis approach or comparison approach).
2. Construction in progress
The NRYV is calculated on the basis of the expected selling price (based on the
current market conditions) less cost of construction completion and selling costs.

3. Buildingsand land held for sale
The NRYV is calculated on the basis of the expected selling price (based on the
current market conditions) less the estimated selling costs.

Investment in subsidiaries

The subsidiaries in which the company holds controlling interest are accounted for
under equity method in the parent-company-only financial statements. Under equity
method, the net income, other comprehensive income, and equity in the parent-
company-only financial statements are the same as those attributable to controlling
interest in the consolidated financial statements.

If change of ownership inthe company's subsidiaries does not lead to loss of control,
the change is considered equity transaction between shareholders.

Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation or for both, but not for use in the ordinary course of business (sale,
production, provision of goods or services) or for administrative purposes.
Investment property is initially recognized at acquisition cost and subsequently at
initial acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The methods for depreciating and determining the useful life and residua
value of investment property are the same as those adopted for property, plant and
equipment.

Gain or loss on disposal of investment property (i.e. the difference between net
proceed and the carrying amount) is recognized in profit or |oss.

In the leasing period, the rental income of investment property is recognized as
rental income on a straight-line basis. Lease incentives given is recognized as a part
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of rental income.
X) Property, plant and equipment
1. Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost (including the capitalized
borrowing costs) less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Each part of an item of property, plant, and equipment with a useful life that is
different inrelationto thetota useful life of theitem shal be depreciated separately.
The gain or loss arising from the disposal of an item of property, plant, and
equipment is recognized as non-operating income and | 0ss.

Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the company.
Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on the cost of an asset less its residual value and is
recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of each component of an item of property, plant and equipment.

Land is not depreciable.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant, and equipment for the current and
comparative periods are as follows:

(1) Buildings 3~55years
(2) Transportation, office and others 3~15years
(3) Leasehold improvement 2~3years

Depreciation methods, useful lives, and residual values are reviewed at each
reporting date, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

(XD Leases
Policy applicable commencing January 1, 2019

1.

Identifying alease

At the contract commencement date, the company determines whether it is or
containsalease. A sublease containing theright to direct the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration is aso identified as a
lease. Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease, the company
applies of the following assessment:

(1) A lease contains an identified asset. An asset is identified by being
explicitly specified in a contract or being implicitly specified at the time it
is made available for use. A capacity portion of an asset is an identified
asset only if it is physically distinct or it represents substantially all of the
capacity of the asset. However, where a supplier has a substantive right
of substitution throughout the period of use, then the asset is not an
identified asset; and

(2) the customer has the right to obtain substantialy all of the economic
benefits from use of an identified asset; and

(3) thecustomer hasthe right to direct the use of an identified asset under one
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of the following conditions:
the customer has the right to direct how and for what purpose the asset
is used throughout the period of use; or

regarding how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined,

and
- the customer has the right to operate the asset throughout the period of
use, without the supplier having the right to change those operating
Instructions; or
- the customer designs the asset in a way that predetermines how and
for what purpose the asset will be used throughout the period of use.
At that lease commencement date or when reassessing a contract, the
company alocates consideration to separate components. The
consideration in the contract is alocated to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease components. Only in
leases of land and buildings, the company elects not to separate non-lease
components from |ease components and instead account for all components
asalease.

2. The Company as lessee
At the lease commencement date, the company recognizes a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability. The right-of-use asset is initially measured, using a cost
model, at the original amount of the lease liability, plus lease payments at or
before |ease commencement, any initial direct costs, and an estimate of coststo
be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, and less lease
incentives.
Theright-of-use asset is depreciated on a strai ght-line basis over the period from
the lease commencement date to the end of the asset's useful life or end of lease,
whichever is earlier. In addition, the right-of-use asset is also tested for
impairment, with the effect of impairment loss accounted for against lease
liability, on aregular basis.
The lease liability isinitially measured at the present value of lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted at the rate implicit in the lease if that
can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the
company uses its incremental borrowing rate. In general, the company adopts
the interest rate for increase in borrowing as the discount rate.
The lease payments comprise as follows:

(1) fixed payments, including in-substance fixed lease payments,

(2) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate and initialy
measured at the index or rate at the lease commencement date;

(3) amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residua vaue
guarantees,

(4) an option to purchase the underlying asset if it is reasonably certain to be

exercised, and penalty payments for terminating the lease.
The lease liability is subsequently measured on an amortized cost basis,
using an effective interest method, and remeasured to reflect the following
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conditions:

(1) changes in future lease payments resulting from changes in an index or a
rate used to determine those payments;

(2) changes in the amounts expected to be payable under a residual vaue
guarantee;

(3) changesin the assessment of the purchase option;

(4) change in the assessment of the lease term resulting from extension or
termination of the exercise of the purchase option; or

(5) lease modifications of the underlying asset, scope, and other terms and

conditions.

The remeasurements made under (i), (ii) and (iii) are treated as adjustments
to the right-of-use asset. When the carrying amount is reduced to zero, any
further reduction is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

The changes in (iv) and (v) decreases the scope of alease. When a lease
modification decreases the scope of alease, the carrying value of the right-
of-use asset is decreased to reflect partial of full termination of the lease
liability, and any gain or loss resulting from the aforementioned
derecognition isimmediately recognized in profit or loss.

The company records right-of-use assets and |ease liabilities defined as not
investment properties in a single line item in the parent-company-only
bal ance shests.

The company €elects not to recognize short-term assets of office equipment
and other low-value assets as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but
instead recognizes payments of these leases as expenses on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

3. The Company as lessor
For transactions where the company is the lessor, the company classify alease
asafinanceleaseif it transfersthe substantial risks and rewards of an underlying
asset on the date of the lease; otherwise, an operating lease. In the assessment
of alease's classification, the company evaluates situations including whether
the lease termis for the major part of the economic life of the asset.
If the company is the lessor of a sublease, the company recognizes the original
lease and the sublease separately. The sublease is classified by reference to the
right-of -use asset of the original lease. If the original leaseis a short-term lease,
apractical expedient is applicable, and the sublease is classified as an operating
lease.

If the sublease includes lease and non-lease components, the consideration is

allocated in accordance with IFRS 15.

Policy Applicable Before January 1, 2019

1. The Company as lessor

Lease income from an operating lease was recognized in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over thelease term. Initial direct costsincurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease were added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognized as an expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
Incentives granted to the lessee to enter into the operating | ease were recogni zed
as areduction of rental income over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Contingent rents were recognized as an income in the period when the lease
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X1)

(X111

(XIV)

adjustments were confirmed.

2. The Company aslessee
All other |ease are operating leases, which were not recognized as aleases asset
in the Parent-Company-Only Balance Shests.
Rental payments made under operating leases (excluding insurance and
maintenance expenses) were charged to expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis. Lease incentives received from the lessor were recognized as
areduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
Contingent rents were recognized as expenses in the period when the lease
adjustments were confirmed.

Intangible assets

1. Intangible assets
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are measured at cost, less
accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment |osses.

2. Subsequent expenses
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future
economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other
expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands,
isrecognized in profit or loss asincurred.

3. Amortization
The amortizable amount is the cost of an asset, less, its residual value. Except
for goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, amortization is
recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of intangible assets from the date that they are available for use.
The estimated useful livesfor the current and comparative periods are asfollows:
Computer software: 3 years
The amortization method, amortization period, and residual value are reviewed
at each reporting date, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

Long term prepaid lease

When the company enters into a surface lease, both loyalties paid for the right to
use the land (i.e. surface right) and acquisition costs (i.e. any necessary costs to get
the land ready to use) are recognized as a prepaid lease, or other proper accounts
according to the nature of the use, and also amortized in the effective time. For
surface lease aimed for construction of buildings, the amortization of the loyalty is
recorded as cost of construction, the balance of which is reclassified to PP&E held
for sale, or other proper accounts, upon the completion of the construction.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financia assets (other than inventories, contract assets, and deferred income
tax assets) are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date to determine whether
thereisany indication of impairment. When there exists an indi cation of impairment
for an asset, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated.

For the purpose of impairment testing, a cash-generating unit (CGU) is the smallest
group of assets that independently generates cash flow and whose cash flow is
largely independent of the cash flows generated by other assets. Goodwill arising
from a business combination is allocated to each of the company's CGUs that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount for an individual asset or a CGU is the higher of its fair
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value, less costs to sell, and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value at a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects the current market assessments of the time values of money and the risks
specific to the asset.

When the recoverable amount of an individual asset or a CGU is less than its
carrying amount, an impairment lossis recognized .

Theimpairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss, firstly by reducing
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then proportionately
allocated to the other assets of the CGU on the basis of the carrying amount of each
asset in the CGU.

Theimpairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss, firstly by reducing
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then proportionately
allocated to the other assets of the CGU on the basis of the carrying amount of each
asset in the CGU.

Revenue recognition

1. Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the company expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or servicesto a customer. The
company recognizes revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation by
transferring control of a good or a service to a customer. The accounting
policies for the company's main types of revenue are explained below:

(1) Development of land and buildings

The company develops and sells rea estate, often before or during
construction. The company recognizes revenue when control over a piece
of rea estate is transferred. Due to contract restrictions, the company
usually does not apply the piece of rea estate to other purposes.
Consequently, revenue is recognized upon either transfer of legal
ownership or delivery of the piece of real estate to customers, whichever
occurs first in the reporting period, despite that the other occurs in the
subsequent period.

Revenue is measured at transaction price per contract. When sales happen
after construction is completed, in most cases, consideration is made upon
transfer of legal ownership; however, in some cases, consideration is
deferred for less than twelve months per contract terms. Consequently, no
adjustment in the transaction price for the effect of financing component of
the contract. When sales happen before construction is completed,
consideration is payable in installments during the period from singing a
contract to transfer of legal ownership of the real property. If asignificant
financing component is included in the contract, the installments are
discounted at the interest rate of the construction loan to reflect the effect
of time value of money. Prepayments are recognized as a contract liability
in balance sheet, and discounts reflecting the effect of time value of money
are recognized as interest expenses in profit or loss. The accumulated
contract liabilities are reclassified as revenue upon the transfer of lega
ownership.

(2) Construction contracts
The company is engaged in the development of residential real estate and
public construction. Because assets are controlled by customers at the time
of construction, revenue is recognized on the basis of stage of completion
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of contract activity (i.e. cost of construction completed in proportion to total
construction costs). Contracts include both fixed and variable
considerations. Fixed considerations are paid based on a payment schedule.
Variable considerations (i.e. penalty provisions for payment overdue and
purchase price concessions) are estimated base d on the management's past
experience. Revenue is only recognized to the extent that accumulated
payments are highly unlikely to be reversed. When the recorded revenue is
yet to be made payable, it is classified as a contract asset. When the
company has unconditional rights to the considerations, the contract asset
Isreclassified as an account payable.

When the company is unable to measure the stage of completion of a
contract's performance obligations, revenueis recognized only to the extent
that contract costs incurred are expected to be recoverable.

When the company estimates that the cost to complete a contract's
performance obligations exceeds the expected economic benefits from the
contract, aliability provision is recognized for the loss.

Estimates of revenues, costs, or extent of progress toward completion, are
revised if circumstances change. Any resulting increases or decreases in
estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or lossin the period when
the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known by the
management.

Rental income

Rental incomes from investment property are recognized in revenue on a
straight-line basis during a lease term. Lease incentives, as a part of
economic benefits from the lease, are recognized as a reduction to rental
incomes on a straight-line basis during a lease term. Incomes from subl et
properties are recognized as an operating income.

Financing components

The company does not expect to have any contracts where the period
between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and
the payment by the customer exceeds one year, or where financing
components have significant impact on individual contacts. Consequently,
the company does not adjust any of the transaction pricesfor the timevalue
of money.

2. Contract costs

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

The company recognizes the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a
customer as an asset if the company expects to recover those costs. The
incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the company incurs
to obtain a contract with a customer that it would not have incurred if the
contract had not been obtained. Costs to obtain a contract that would have been
incurred, regardless of whether the contract was obtained, shall be recognized
as an expense when incurred, unless those costs are explicitly chargeable to the
customer regardless of whether the contract is obtained.

(XVI1)  Employee benefits
1. Defined contribution plans

Obligationsfor contributionsto defined contribution pension plans are expensed
during the year in which employees render services.
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2. Defined benefit plans
Theliability recognized in respect of defined benefit pension plansisthe present
value of the defined benefit obligation (i.e. the benefits that employees have
earned in return for their servicein the current and prior periods) at the reporting
date less the fair value of plan assets.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by qualified actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a benefit
to the company, the recognized asset is limited to the total amount of the present
value of the economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan. The minimum funding
requirements of any plans applicable to the company should be taken into
consideration when determining the present value of the economic benefits.
The remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability comprise actuarial gains
and losses, return on plan assets (excluding interest described below), and any
change in the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding interest described below).
The remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset) arerecognizedin
other comprehensive income and accumulated in retained earnings. Net interest
expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) is calculated using
the discount rate determined at the beginning of the reporting period on the
beginning balance of the net defined benefit liability (asset). The net interest
expense and other expenses are recorded in profit or |oss.
The company recognizes losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined
benefit plan when the curtailment or settlement occurs. The loss is measured as
any resulting changeinthefair value of plan assets and any changein the present
value of the defined benefit obligation.

3. Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are expensed during the period in
which employees render services. The amount expected to be paid for short-
term employee benefits is recognized as aliability if the company has a present
legal or constructive obligation to make such payments asaresult of past service
provided by the employees, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Income taxes

Income tax expenses include both current taxes and deferred taxes. Current and
deferred taxes are recognized in profit or loss unless they relate to business mergers
or items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income.,

Current tax is the expected tax payable or refundable on the taxable income or loss
for the year and any adjustments to tax payable or refundable in the previous years.
The best estimates is assessed using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, that is, temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilitiesfor financial reporting purposes and the amounts for taxation purposes.
Exceptions to the requirement to recognize a deferred tax asset or liability are:

1. Temporary arising from theinitial recognition of an asset/liability other thanin
abusiness merger which, at the time of the transaction, does not affect either the
accounting or the taxable profit;

2. Temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures to the extent that the company is able to control the timing of the
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reversal of the temporary differences, and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

3. Temporary differences arising from initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities may be offset against each other if the following
criteria are met:

1. Theentity hasthelegal right to settle tax assets and liabilities on anet basis; and
2. The amounts of deferred tax assets and liabilities are:

(1) Levied by the same taxing authority; or

(2) Levied by different entities that intend to realize the asset and settle the

liability at the same time.
A deferred tax asset is recognized for deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can
be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the benefit of part or all
of that deferred tax asset to be utilized. Any such reduction is subsequently
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available.
Earnings per share (the "EPS")
The basic and diluted EPS attributabl e to sharehol ders of the company are disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing net
income attributable to shareholders of the company by the weighted-average
number of common stocks outstanding during the year. In calculating diluted EPS,
the net income attributable to shareholders of the company and weighted-average
number of common stocks outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects
of dilutive potential common stocks. The company's dilutive potential common
stocks include employee stock option warrants.

Segment information

The company has disclosed information on operating segments in its consolidated
financial statements; hence, no further information is disclosed in the parent-
company-only financial statements.

Main Sources of Uncertainty in Material Accounting Judgments, Estimates, and

Assumptions

The preparation of the parent-company-only financial statements in conformity with the
"Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers’ requires
the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
the accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed by the management on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is
revised and in the future periods affected.
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VI.

Information on critical accounting judgments resulting in a material adjustment in the
consolidated financial statements of this year: None.

Information on key estimation and assumption uncertainties that have significant risks of
resulting in amateria adjustment in the next reporting period isincluded as follows:
Inventory valuation

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The company estimates
the net realizable value of inventory, taking unmarketable items into account at the reporting
date, and then writes down the cost of inventories to net realizable value. The estimation of
net realizable value is based on current market conditions. Changesin market conditions, such
aspolitical, economic and real estatetax reforms, may have amaterial impact on the estimation
of the net realizable value. See Note VI(5) for details of inventory valuation.

Valuation method

In its accounting policy and disclosure, the company adopts fair value to measure financial
and non-financial assets as well as liabilities. To make valuation close to market conditions,
the company tests measurements with independent data sources and verifies that the data
sources are independent, reliable, and consistent with other data as well as represents
exercisable prices. To ensure valuation results are reasonable, the company regularly
calibrates valuation models, performs retrospective testing, updates valuation models with
necessary inputs and data for fair value measurement. The valuation of investment property is
in accordance with valuation methods and parameter assumptions published by FSC and is
reassessed by the management or appraised by athird party on aregular basis.

In the fair value measurement of its assets and liabilities, the company applies observable
market inputs as much as possible. A fair value hierarchy categorizes the inputs used in
valuation techniques into three levels:

M Level 1 inputs: (unadjusted) quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.
() Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted market prices included within Level 1 that

are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. quoted prices of similar
assets or liabilities) or indirectly (derived from such prices).
(1 Level 3inputs. inputs for assets or liabilities not based on readily observable inputs

on the market (unobservable inputs)
Any transfers between the fair value hierarchy are recorded at the reporting date.
Disclosures on assumptions applied in the fair value measurement are as bel ow:

1. Refer to VI(9) Investment Property
2. Refer to VI(24) Financia Instruments
Description of Significant Accounting Items

()] Cash and cash equivalents
2019.12.31 2018.12.31

Petty cash and cash on hand $ 252 305
Bank deposits

Checking deposits 670,405 1,396,808
Demand deposits 13,781 317,646
Cash equivaents 1,327,940 579,024
Cash and cash equivalentsin the parent-  $ 2,012,378 2,293,783

company-only statement of cash flows
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These cash equivalents are short-term notes expiring on March 2020 and January
2019, respectively; interest rate of these cash equivalents ranges from 0.52% to
0.55% and from 0.60% to 0.61%.

Refer to Note VI(24) for the details on interest rate risk and sensitivity analysis of
the financial assets and liabilities of the company.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
2019.12.31 2018.12.31

Financial assets mandatorily measured at
fair value through profit or loss

Listed stocks $ 23,445 23,773

Fair value remeasurement was recognized in profit or loss. Refer to Note V1(23) for
details.
As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, no financial assets were pledged as collateral.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI)

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Equity investments measured at
FVTOCI
Listed stock - Clientron Corp. $ 656 351
Unlisted stock - Everterminal Co. Ltd. 2,003 2,674
Tota $ 2,659 3,025

1. Equity investments measured at FVTOCI

The company designated the aforementioned investments as financial assets at
FVTOCI because these equity instruments are held for long-term strategic
purposes and not for trading.

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the amounts of dividend
income for these equity investments were NT$ 200 thousand and NT$ 96
thousand, respectively. For the year ended on December 31, 2018, because
Clientron Corp. withdrawn investment and received capital return in the amount
of NT$ 51 thousand, the company recognized its proportion of capital reduction
and reclassified the related profit or loss as retained earnings.

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, no disposal of investments
was conducted and hence no transfer of cumulative profit or loss was recogni zed.

2. Refer to Note VI(24) for details on credit risk (including impairment on debt
instruments) and market risk.

3. Nofinancial assets measured as FV TOCI were pledged as collateral.

Notes and accounts receivable

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Notesreceivables - resulting fromnon-  $ 2,157 -
operating income
Accounts receivables - measured at 233,089 500,346
amortized cost
$ 235,246 500,346

The company applies the simplified approach on the estimation of expected credit
losses, that is, aloss alowance is recognized based on lifetime of expected credit
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losses. To measure the expected credit |osses, notes and accounts receivables were
grouped based on shared characteristics of credit risk on remaining payments before
due date, and forward looking information was incorporated as well. As of
December 31, 2018, analysis of expected credit losses on notes and accounts
receivable in Taiwan was as follows:

2019.12.31
Carrying Weighted L ossallowancefor expected
amount averagelossrate credit impairment of the period
Current $ 235,246 - -
2018.12.31
Carrying Weighted L ossallowancefor expected
amount averagelossrate credit impairment of the period

Current $ 500,346 - -

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, no loss allowance on doubtful
accounts and reversal of receivables written down were recognized.

Inventory

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Prepayment for buildings and land $ 4,235 5716
Land held for construction 1,239,027 4,683,217
Construction in progress 16,647,598 12,482,269
Buildings and land held for sale 14,768,799 15,713,320
Total $ 32,659,659 32,884,522

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the amounts of reversal of

inventory written down to net realizable value were NT$ 30,262 thousand and NT$

4,085 thousand, respectively, and those of loss on inventory written down to net

realizable value were NT$ 0 and NT$ 26,934 thousand, respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the capitalization rates applied

in the calculation of construction in progress were 2.101% and 2.218%. Refer to

Note VI1(23) for details on the amounts of capitalization.

Refer to Note VIII for details on collateral pledged for inventory as of December

31, 2019 and 2018.

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the amounts of inventory of legal parking

spacestrusted to third partieswere NT$ 16,332 thousand and NT$ 17,905 thousand,

respectively.

Investments accounted for using equity method

Investments of the company under equity method at reporting date are listed below:
2019.12.31 2018.12.31

Subsidiary $ 4,553,884 4,222,649

1. Subsidiaries
Refer to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended on December
31, 2019.

2. Collateral
Refer to Note VIII for details on the investments accounted for using equity

208



KINDOM DEVELOPMENT CO. LTD Notesto Parent-Company-Only Financial Statements

method and pledged as collateral as of December 31, 2019 and 2018.

3. Jiayu International Co. Ltd. (the "Jiayu International”) was a subsidiary of
Global Mall, the company's investment accounted for using equity method.
Jiayu International suffered losses from failure in business development and
filed for termination of its Build-Operate-Transfer (BOT) investment contract
with Hsinchu City Government on June 30, 2016. The contract was rescinded
with approval of Hsinchu City Government on July 11, 2016, and the
termination was completed in September 2018.

4. Globa Mal (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. (the "Global Mall Tianjin") is a subsidiary of
Globa Mall, the company's investments accounted for using the equity method.
On May 31, 2019, Global Mall Tianjin singed with Tianjin Chongbel Property
Management Co., Ltd. (Lessor) an agreement in which the |ease was terminated
on the same date, and the termination wasto be completed by July 2019. Gains
and losses in relation to this rescission were recognized in investment profit or
loss according to its percentage of ownership.

(V1) Property, plant and equipment (PP&E)
The cost, depreciation, and impairment loss of PP& E of the company for the years

ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018 were as follows:
Other equipment

(including
transportation
Building and L easehold and other
Land constructions  improvement equipment) Total

Cost or identified cost:

Balance &s of Janusary $ 138,488 266,478 1,178 12,359 418,503

1, 2019

Additions - 725 - 474 1,199

Disposal - - - (5,390) (5,390)

Balance as of

December 31, 2019 $ 138,488 267,203 1,178 7,443 414,312

Balance as of January $ 138,488 265,322 2,195 11,555 417,560

1, 2018

Additions - 139 - 804 943

Reclassifications - 1,017 (1,017) - -

Balance as of

December 31, 2018 $ 138,488 266,478 1,178 12,359 __ 418503
Depreciation and
impairment |oss:

Balance as of January

- 121,504 773 8,167 130,444

1,2019 ¥

Depreciation for the 5,318 203 1,567 7,088

year

Disposal - - - (4,042) (4,042)

Balance as of

- 126,822 976 5,69 133,490
December 31,2019 2 2 13340
Balanceasof January $ - 116,244 570 6,642 123,456
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Other equipment
(including
transportation

Building and L easehold and other
Land constructions _improvement equipment) Total

1, 2018
Depreciation for the 5,260 203 1525 6,988
year
Balance as of

121,504 77 167 130,444
December 31, 2018 2 20 2 210 =

Carrying amount:

December 31, 2019 $ 138,488 140,381 202 1,751 __ 280822
December 31, 2018 $ 138,488 144,974 405 4192 __ 288059

Refer to Not V111 for detailson collateral pledged for financings as of December 31,

2019 and 2018.
(VII)  Right-of-use asset
The cost and depreciation of |eased transportation equipment were as follows:
Transportation
equipment
Cost:
Balance on January 1, 2019 $ -
Additions 4,342
Balance on December 31, 2019 $ 4,342
Depreciation and impairment |oss:
Balance on January 1, 2019 $ -
Depreciation 241
Balance on December 31, 2019 $ 241
Carrying amount:
December 31, 2019 $ 4,101
(1X) Investment property
Land and Building and
improvements construction Total
Cost or deemed cost:
Balance as of January 1, 2019 $ 282,087 213,814 495,901
Balance as of December 31, 2019 $ 282,087 213,814 495,901
Balance as of January 1, 2018 $ 380,564 253,938 634,502
Disposal (98,477) (40,124) (138,601)
Balance as of December 31, 2018 $ 282,087 213,814 495,901
Depreciation and impairment |oss.
Balance as of January 1, 2019 $ - 16,766 16,766
Depreciation for the year - 4,193 4,193
Balance as of December 31, 2019 $ - 20.959 20.959
Balance as of January 1, 2018 $ 25,867 32,333 58,200
Depreciation for the year - 4,509 4,509
Disposal (25,867) (20,076) (45,943)
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Balance as of December 31, 2018
Carrying amount:
December 31, 2019
December 31, 2018
Fair vaue:
December 31, 2019
December 31, 2018

X)

Land and Building and
Improvements construction Total
$ - 16,766 16,766
$ 282,087 192,855 474,942
$ 282,087 197,048 479,135
$ 1,057,839
$ 1,062,031

Investment properties are commercial real estates leased to third parties. Refer to
Note VI(16) for details.

Fair value of investment propertiesis determined by the valuation of anindependent
appraiser (licensed in related professions and currently experienced in appraising
similar properties) or by the company's self-assessment (referring to the sales price
of similar real estate transactionsin the neighborhood). These inputs used in thefair
value measurement were classified to Level 3.

The fair value measurement is assessed using the market approach and income
approach. When quoted prices in an active market are not available, fair value of
investment properties is determined by the present value of total future cash flows
generate over the property'slifetime, discount at rates reflecting special risks of such
cash flows. The discount rate applied for the years ended on December 31, 2019
and 2018 were both 1.95%.

Refer to Note VI for details on investment properties pledged as collatera as of
December 31, 2019 and 2018.

Intangible assets
The cost, depreciation, and impairment loss of intangible assets of the company for
the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

Computer software

Cost:
Balance as of January 1, 2019 $ 8,520
Capitalized R&D 1,603
Reclassification of prepayments 975
Balance as of December 31, 2019 $ 11,098
Balance as of January 1, 2018 $ 8,520
Balance as of December 31, 2018 $ 8.520

Amortization and impairment loss:
Balance as of January 1, 2019 $ 8,358
Amortization for the year 466
Balance as of December 31, 2019 $ 8824
Balance as of January 1, 2018 $ 7,060
Amortization for the year 1,298
Balance as of December 31, 2018 $ 8,358
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(X1)

X1

(X1)

Computer software

Carrying amount:

Balance as of December 31, 2019 $ 29274
Balance as of December 31, 2018 $ 162
Amortization

For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, the amounts of amortization
expenses of intangible assetswere included in the following line items of the parent-
company-only statements of comprehensive income:

2019 2018
Operating expense $ 466 1,298
Other financial assets - current and incremental costs of obtaining a contract
2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Other financial assets - current $ 3,187,328 1,940,390
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract 144,525 103,350
$ 3,331,853 2,043,740

1. Other financial assets
Refer to Note V111 for details on collateral pledged on restricted assets (reserve
accounts and trust) and refundable deposits on constructions.

2. Incremental costs of obtaining a contract - current
The company expected to recover the commissions paid to third-party real estate
agent and bonus paid to internal sales department and recognized these costs as
assets. These costs are amortized upon revenue recognition of real estate sales.
For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, the amount of incremental
costs were NT$ 132,950 thousand and NT$ 213,168 thousand, respectively.

Prepaid lease
The cost, depreciation, and impairment loss of prepaid lease of the company for the
years ended on December 31, 2018 were as follows:
Surfaceright toa
land in Pingtung

Cost or identified cost:

Balance as of December 31, 2018 $ 63,000
Amortization:

Balance as of January 1, 2018 $ 25,657

Amortization for the year 1,578

Balance as of December 31, 2018 $ 27,235
Carrying amount:

December 31, 2018 $ 35,765

As of December 31, 2018, no prepaid |ease was pledged as collateral.

Short-term borrowings
Details of the company's short-term borrowings were as follows:

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Unsecured bank |oans $ 4,500,000 3,250,000
Secured bank loans 14,245,374 15,934,508
Totd $ 18,745,374 19,184,508
Range of effective rates 1.40% ~2.55% 1.45% ~2.64%
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(XIV)

(XV)

(XVI)

Refer to Note VIII for details on assets pledged as collateral for secured bank
borrowings.

Bonds payable and convertible corporate bond due within one year or one operating

cycle, and current portion of convertible corporate bond
Details on bonds payable were as follows:

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Secured ordinary bond $ 4,500,000 4,500,000
Less: Expiring within one year - (1,000,000)
Bonds payable - non-current $ 4,500,000 3,500,000

The company issued a secured corporate bond on December 12, 2019, in the amount
of NT$ 1,000,000 thousand, at the rate of 0.80%, for the duration of 5 years.
The company issued a secured ordinary bond on January 15 and October 15, 2018,
in the amount of NT$ 1,000,000 thousand, at the rate of 1.05% and 0.88%, for the
duration of 5 years.
Lease liability
The carrying amount of lease liability is as follows:

2019.12.31
Current $ 4,108

Refer to Note VI(24) for the details on the anaysis of maturity profile of the
company's lease liabilities.

The amount of lease liability recognized in the parent-company-only statements of
comprehensive income was as follows:

2019
Interest expense on lease liability $ 15

The amount of lease liability recognized in the parent-company-only statements of
cash flows was as follows:

2019
Total cash used in lease $ 249

Operating Lease

1. Thecompany as lessee
As of December 31, 2019, future lease payables under non-cancellable
operating leases were as follows:

2018.12.31
Not later than 1 year $ 15,213
Later than 1 year but not |ater than 5 years 19,916
Later than 5 years -
$ 35,129

The surface right of the land on Minzu Road in Songshan District of Taipei City
was leased from Political Warfare Bureau of the Ministry of National Defense
(MND) under a service concession contract. The lease payment was 3% of the
value of land assessed by the Government. The contract was sold on November,
2018 and hence, the lease payment was carried by the buyer.

As of December 31, 2018, the rental expenses of NT$ 21,260 thousand were
recognized in profit or loss.

2. The company as lessor
The company leased its investment properties and recognizes the |eases that do
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not transfer of the substantial risks and rewards incident to ownership of an
underlying asset under as operating leases. Refer to Note VI(9) for details.

The analysis of due dates and non-discounted future cash flows of lease
receivable after December 31, 2019 is asfollows:

2019.12.31
Not later than 1 year $ 10,526
Later than 1 year but not |ater than 2 years 10,526
Later than 2 years but not later than 3 years 6,556
Later than 3 years but not later than 4 years 4,571
Later than 4 years but not later than 5 years 4,590
Later than 5 years 9,440
Non-discounted future cash flows of |lease $ 46,209

As of December 31, 2018, future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating |eases were as follows:

2018.12.31
Not later than 1 year $ 10,526
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 32,179
Later than 5 years 14,030
$ 56,735

For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, the rental income from
investment property amounted to NT$ 10,526 thousand and 10,558 thousand,
respectively; no significant repair and maintenance expenses were recognized.

(XVII)  Employee benefits

1. Defined benefit plan
The reconciliation between the present value of defined benefit obligations and
the fair value of plan assets for defined benefit plans was as follows:

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Pre;eent_ value of defined benefit $ 12,049 12.805
obligations
Fair value of plan assets (6,268) (1,694)
Net defined benefit (assets) liabilities ¢ 6.681 11.111
Details on employee benefit liabilities were as follows:

2019.12.31 2019.12.31
Short-term compensated absences $ 3104 $ 3,104
liability

The company makes defined benefit plan contributions to the pension fund
account at the Bank of Taiwan that provides pensions for employees upon
retirement. The plans covered by the Labor Standards Act entitle a retired
employee to receive retirement benefits based on years of service and average
salary for the six months prior to retirement.
(1) Composition of plan assets
The company allocates pension funds in accordance with the "Regul ations
for Revenues, Expenditures, Safeguard and Utilization of the Labor
Retirement Fund,"” and such funds are managed by the Bureau of Labor
Funds, Ministry of Labor. With regard to the utilization of the funds,
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minimum earnings shall be no less than the earnings attainable from two-
year time deposits with interest rates offered by local banks.

The company’s Bank of Taiwan labor pension reserve account balance
amounted to NT$ 6,268 thousand as of December 31, 2019. For
information on the utilization of the labor pension fund assets, including
the asset allocation and yield of the fund, please refer to the website of the
Bureau of Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor.

(2) Movementsin present value of the defined benefit obligations
For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, the movements in
present value of the defined benefit obligations of the company were as

follows:
2019 2018
Defined benefit obligations as of January 1 $ 12,805 12,461
Current service cost and interest 147 150
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liabilities (assets)
- Actuar!al loss (gain) arising from changes in financial 197 o84
assumption
- Experience adjustments 172 487
Benefits paid by the plan (372) (577)
Defined benefit obligations as of December 31 $ 12,949 12,805
(3) Movementsin fair value of plan assets
For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, the movementsin the
fair value of the defined benefit plan assetsfor the company were asfollows:
2019 2018
Fair value of plan assets as of January 1 $ 1,694 1,368
Interest income 21 7
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liabilities (assets)
- Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net 84 162
interest expense)
Contributions paid by the employer 4,841 734
Benefits paid by the plan (372) (577)
Fair value of plan assets as of December 31 $ 6,268 1,694

(4) For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, there was no effect
of the asset ceiling.

(5) Expensesrecognized in profit or loss
For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, the expenses
recognized in profits or losses were as follows:

2019 2018
Inte_:res@ costs of defined benefit $ 147 150
obligations
Net interest from net defined
benefit assets (liabilities) (21) (7)
$ 126 143

(6) Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liabilities (assets) recognized in

other comprehensive income
The company's remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability
recognized in other comprehensive income were as follows:
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()

(8)

2019 2018
Cumulative balance as of January 1 $ (9,884) (9,275)
Recognized for the year (285) (609)

Cumulative balance on December  $ (10,169) (9.884)
31

Actuarial assumptions
The principal assumptions of the actuarial valuation were as follows:

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Discount rate 1.00% 1.15%
Future salary increase rate 1.75% 1.75%

The company expects to make contribution of NT$ 200 thousand to the
defined benefit plans in the year following December 31, 2019.
The weighted average lifetime of the defined benefit plansis 10.5 years.
Sensitivity analysis
On December 31, 2019 and 2018, if the actuarial assumptions had changed,
the impact on the present value of the defined benefit obligation shall be as
follows:

Effect on defined benefit obligations

I ncrease by Decrease by
0.25% 0.25%

December 31, 2019

Discount rate (change by 0.25%) (326) 337
Future salary increases rate

(change by 1%) 1,394 (1,246)
December 31, 2018

Discount rate (change by 0.25%) (337) 350
Future salary increases rate

(change by 1%) 1,454 (1,288)

Reasonably possible changes to one of the relevant actuaria assumptions,
holding other assumptions remain constant, would have affected the defined
benefit obligation by the amounts shown above. However, in fact, many
assumptions are correlated. The method used in the sensitivity analysis is
consi stent with the calculation of pension liabilities in the balance sheets.
There were no changes in the method and assumptions used in the
preparation of sensitivity analysis for 2018 and 2017.

2. Defined contribution plans

The company allocates 6% of each employee’s monthly wages to the labor
pension persona account at the Bureau of Labor Insurance in accordance with
the provisions of the Labor Pension Act. Under these defined contribution plans,
the company allocates a fixed amount to the Bureau of Labor Insurance without
additional legal or constructive obligation.

For the years ended December 31,2019 and 2018, the pension costs incurred
from the contributions to the Bureau of the Labor Insurance amounted to NT$
4,260 thousand and NT$ 4,321 thousand, respectively.
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(XVII) Income tax

1. Income tax expense
For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, the details of income tax
expenses were as follows:

2019 2018
Current tax expenses
Current period $ 49,998 89,680
Surtax on undistributed earnings 8,777 5,064
Adjustment for the prior periods 13,791 (42)
Land value increment tax 104,694 94,432
177,260 189,134
Deferred tax expenses
Origination and reversal of - 6,537
temporary differences
Deferred tax income - 6,537
Income tax expense $ 177,260 195,671

For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, no income tax expenses
are recognized in equity or other comprehensive income.

For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, reconciliation of income
tax and profit before tax is as follows:

2019 2018
Net income before tax $ 1,460,786 702,919
Income tax using the company's
domestic tax rate $ 292,157 140,584
Non-taxable incomes on land (155,448) (107,925)
_T| ming differences on recognition of 14,026 i
income and cost
Deferred tax on interest expenses (41,108) (15,524)
Loss (_gal n) on investments accounted (90,681) 27.902
for using equity method
Impairment losses on financial assets 66 369
measured at FVTPL
Changes in unrecognized temporary
. - 6,537
differences
Unqler (over) provision for the prior 13791 (42)
periods
Land value increment tax 104,694 94,432
Surtax on undistributed earnings 8,777 5,064
Others 30,986 44,274
$ 177,260 195,671
2. Deferred tax assets
(1) Unrecognized deferred tax assets
2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Deductible temporary difference  $ - 27,337

(2) Recognized deferred income tax assets
The deferred changesin tax assets were as follows:
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Deductible |osses

Balance on January 1, 2018 $ 6,537
Debit on income statements (6,537)
Balance on December 31, 2018 $ -

(3) The company's tax fillings was assessed for the years ended on December
31, 2017.

(XIX)  Capita and other equity
As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the total value of nominal ordinary shares
amounted to NT$ 6,500,000 thousand, with a par value of 10 per share, consisting
of 650,000 thousand shares issued. There was 503,791 thousand shares of ordinary
shares already issued.

1. Capital reserve
The balance of capital reserve was as following:

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Additional paid-in capital $ 827,906 827,906
tlf)’(;irgls um on conversion of convertible 236,408 236,408
Treasury stock transactions 254,535 243,911
Gains on disposal of assets 34,912 34,912
Others 26,112 25,728
$ 1,379,873 1,368,865

According to the Company Act, capital reserve can only be used to offset a
deficit, and only the realized capital reserve can be used to increase the common
stock or be distributed as cash dividends. The aforementioned realized capital
reserve includes capital reserve resulting from premium on issuance of capital
stock and earnings from donated assets received. According to the "Regulations
Governing the Offering and Issuance of Securitiesby Securities Issuers," capital
increases by transferring capital reservein excess of par value should not exceed
10% of the total common stock outstanding (paid-in capital).

2. Retained earnings
The company's Articles of Incorporation stipulates that the company's earnings
should first be used to offset the prior years' deficits, if any, before paying any
income taxes. Of the remaining balance, 10% is to be appropriated as legal
reserve, and a special reserve shall be set aside in accordance with applicable
laws and regulations. The remaining balance, if any, can be distributed to the
shareholders as dividends, and bonus dividends according to the distribution
plan proposed by the Board of Directors and submitted to the shareholders
meeting for approval.
(1) Legal reserve
When a company incurs no loss, it may, pursuant to a resolution by a
shareholders meeting, distribute its legal reserve by issuing new shares or
by distributing cash, and only the portion of legal reserve which exceeds
25% of the paid-in capital may be distributed.
(2) Special reserve
A portion of current-period earnings and undistributed prior-period
earnings shall be reclassified as special earnings reserve during earnings

218



KINDOM DEVELOPMENT CO. LTD Notesto Parent-Company-Only Financial Statements

3)

distribution. The amount to be reclassified should equal the current-period
total net reduction of other shareholders equity. Similarly, a portion of
undistributed prior-period earnings shall be reclassified as specia earnings
reserve (and does not qualify for earnings distribution) to account for
cumulative changesto other shareholders' equity pertaining to prior periods.
Amounts of subsequent reversals pertaining to the net reduction of other
shareholders equity shall qualify for additional distributions. As of
December 31, 2019, the remaining amount of special reserveisNT$ 25,546
thousand.

Earnings distribution
For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, the earnings

distribution resolved in the sharehol ders meeting held on June 10, 2019 and
June 27, 2018 were as follows:

2018 2017
Dividend per Amount Dividend per Amount
share(in dollars) share(in dollars)
Dividends distributed to
shareholders of common
stocks:
Cash $ 1.00 503,791 0.50 251,896
3. Treasury stock
As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the company's common stock held by the
Group were as follows:
Unit in thousands of shares
2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Number of  Carrying Market Number of  Carrying Market
Subsidiary name shares amount value shares amount value
Kedge Construction 500 $ 1,222 15,950 500 1,222 10,225
Jiequn Investment 8,518 55,384 271,739 8,518 55,384 174,202
Guangin
El ectrqomgechani cal 1,607 14,590 51,263 1,607 14,590 32,863
10625 $ 71,196 338,952 10,625 71,196 217,290

4. Other equity items (net of tax)

Exchange differences
on trandation of Unrealized gain (l0ss)
financial statements  from financial assets

of foreign operations measured at FVTOCI Total
Balance as of January 1, 2019 $ (25,910) 364 (25,546)
Exchange differences on translation of net
assets of foreign operations (354) - (354)
Shares of unrealized gain (loss) from - 96 9
financial assets measured at FVTOCI - -
Balance as of December 31, 2019 $ (26,264) 460 (25.804)
Balance as of January 1, 2018 $ (32,521) - (32,521)
Effects of retrospective application of - - (1,538) (1,538)
new IFRSs
Adjusted balance as of January 1, 2018 (32,521) (1,538) (34,059)
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Exchange differences
on trandation of Unrealized gain (10ss)
financial statements  from financial assets

of foreign operations measured at FVTOCI Total
Foreign currency translation differences 6,611 - 6,611
Shares of unrealized gain (loss) from - 1,902 1,902
financial assets measured at FVTOCI - -
Balance as of December 31, 2018 $  (25910) 364 (25,546)

(XX) Earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share for years
ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

1. Basic earnings per share
(1) Netincome éttributabl e to the shareholders of common stocks of the company

2019 2018
Operating units Operating units
Net income attributabl e to the shareholders of common stocks : 1 283 526 507 248

of the company

(2) Weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding

2019 2018
Number of ordinary sharesissued as of January 1 503,791 503,791
Effects of treasury stocks (10,625) (10,625)
Weighted-average number of outstanding ordinary shares as
of December 31 493,166 493,166
Basic earnings per share $ 2.60 1.03

2. Diluted earnings per share
(1) Net income attributable to the shareholders of common stocks of the

company (diluted)

2019 2018
Unitsin Unitsin
continuing continuing
operations operations
Net income attributabl e to the shareholders of common $ 1,283,526 507,248

stocks of the company (diluted)
(2) Weighted-average number of outstanding ordinary shares (diluted)

2019 2018
Weighted-average number of outstanding common stocks 493,166 493,166
(basic) as of December 31
Effect of employee remuneration in stock 1,049 56
Weighted-average number of outstanding common stocks 494,215 493,222
(diluted) as of December 31
Diluted earnings per share $ 2.60 1.03

(XX1)  Revenuefrom contracts with customers
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1. Disaggregation of revenue
isaggregation of revenue for years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018 were

asfollows:
2019 2018
Revenue from contracts with customers $ 8,103,874 7,489,121
Revenue from investment properties 13,562 13,651
$ 8,117,436 7,502,772
2. Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
2019 2018
Primary geographical markets:
Taiwan $ 8,117,436 7,502,772
Main products/services.
Sales of real estate developments $ 7,848,371 7,489,121
Sales of construction contracts 227,813 -
Revenue from services rendered 27,690 -
Other income 13,562 13,651
$ 8,117,436 7,502,772
Timing of revenue recognition:
Upon transfer of products $ 7,876,061 7,489,121
On the basis of stage of completion of contract activity 227,813 -
On the basis of time passed for services rendered 13,562 13,651
Tota $ 8,117,436 7,502,772
3. Contract balances
2019.12.31 2018.12.31 2018.1.1
Accounts receivable $ 233,089 500,346 376,694
Less: Loss alowance - - -
Total $ 233,089 500,346 376,694
Contract assets - construction $ 151,622 - -
Less: Loss allowance - - -
Tota $ 151,622 - -
Contract liabilities - construction $ 18,415 - -
Contract liabilities - buildings 5,177,387 3,937,293 1,128,473
Total $ 5,195,802 3,937,293 1,128,473

Refer to Note V1(4) for details on accounts receivable and rel ated | oss all owance.
The beginning balance of contract liability on January 1, 2019 and 2018, were
NT$ 397,232 thousand and NT$ 737,636 thousand, respectively.

Changes in contract assets and liabilities were mainly driven by the timing
difference between when the transfer of products and services rendered were
completed and when client's payments were received. For the years ended on
December 31, 2019 and 2018, no material changes were recognized.

As of December 31, 2019, the prepayments of real estate pre-sales and the
related interests were retained in trust accounts of identified banks and
recognized as other financial assets - current in the amounts of NT$ 1,454,941
thousand. Details on the trust accounts were as follows:
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Project code 2019.12.31
103G $ 656,526
105A 12,893
950B 93,521
101C 672,891
100C 5,700
980F 13,410
$ 1,454,941

Employee compensation and directors' and supervisors remuneration
The company’s Articles of Incorporation stipulates that, after annual earnings first
offset against any deficit, a minimum of 0.5% shall be allocated as employee
compensation and a maximum of 2% as directors remuneration. However, if the
company has accumulated deficits, the profit should be reserved to offset the deficit.
For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the company accrued its
employee compensation amounting to NT$ 30,433 thousand and NT$ 7,247
thousand, respectively, and its directors remuneration of NT$ 30,433 thousand in
2019 and its directors' and supervisors remuneration of NT$ 14,493 thousand in
2018. The aforementioned amounts are cal cul ated based on the net profit before tax,
excluding the remuneration to employees, directors and supervisors of each period,
multiplied by the percentage of remuneration to employees, directors and
supervisors as stipulated in the company's Articles of Incorporation. These
remunerations were expensed under operating expenses for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018. When an issuance of common stocks for employee
compensation is resolved by a Board meeting, the number of sharesissued for the
stock-based compensation is cal culated based on the closing stock price at the date
before the Board meeting. Related information is disclosed on Market Observation
Post System of TWSE. The aforementioned amounts of employee compensation
and directors' and supervisors remuneration, as stated in the parent-company-only
financial statements, are identical to those of the actual distributions for 2019 and
2018
Non-operating income and loss
1. Other incomes

Details on other incomes for the years 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

2019 2018
Interest income
Bank deposits, including interests on repurchasable bond  $ 8,079 2,197
and its deposit
Refundable deposit on constructions 1,431 2,444
Others - 11
Dividend income 1,211 1,259
$ 10721 5911
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2. Other gains and losses

Details on other gains and losses for the years 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

2019 2018
Net losses on financial assets measured at FVTPL $ (328) (1,845)
Gain on disposal of assets 81 365
Foreign exchange losses 4) -
Other incomes 20,018 24,784
Other expenses (10,093) (7,278)
$ 9,674 16,026

3.

Financing cost
Details of financing costs for the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018
were as follows:

2019 2018

Interest expense
Interests on bank loans and deposits $ 421,393 442,843
Transaction fees and interests on corporate bonds 86,563 118,726
Other financing costs 15 -
Others - 170
Loss: Capitalization of interest (165,200) (202,918)
$ 342,771 358,821

(XX1V) Financia Instruments

1.

Credit risk

(1) Credit risk exposure
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum amount
exposed to credit risk.

(2) Concentration of credit risk
The company is engaged in the development and sales of rea estate. Its
clientele is primarily the vast majority of individual consumers and is not
concentrated on single key accounts or in particular regions. Consequently,
the credit risks in relations to these receivables are determined to have no
significant concentration concerns.

Liquidity risk

The following table shows the contractual maturities of financial liabilities,

including estimated interest payments but excluding the impact of netting

agreements.

Carrying Contractual
amount cash flows Within ayear 1-3years 3-5years-
December 31, 2019
Non-derivative financia liabilities
Secured bank loans $ 14245374 14,723,203 5,666,754 6,676,625 2,379,824
Unsecured bank loans 4,500,000 4,719,330 1,090,143 2,614,946 1,014,241
Notes , accounts and other 2,473,266 2,473,266 2,473,266
payables
Ordinary corporate bonds
(including current portion due 4,500,000 4,627,523 - 1,522,568 3,104,955
within one year)
Lease liabilities 4,108 4,235 1,495 2,740
Guarantee deposits 3418 3418 - 3418
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Carrying Contractual
amount cash flows Within a year 1-3years 3-5years
$ 25,726,166 26,550,975 9,231,658 10,820,297 6,499,020
December 31, 2018
Non-derivative financia liabilities
Secured bank |oans $ 15,934,508 16,317,017 10,343,765 5,973,252
Unsecured bank loans 3,250,000 3,485,681 323,622 1,616,754 1,545,305
Notes, accounts and other payables 3292055 3,292,055 3,292,055
Ordinary corporate bonds
(including current portion due 4,500,000 4,633,138 1,010,192 1,538,318 2,084,628
within one year)
Guarantee deposits 1811 1811 1811
$ 26978374 __ 27,729,702 ___ 14971445 9,128,324 3,629,933

The company did not expect the cash flows included in the maturity analysis to
occur significantly earlier or at significantly different amounts.

Interest rate analysis

Refer to the note on liquidity risk management and the interest rate exposure of
the company's financial assets and liabilities.

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the exposure to the interest rate
risk of derivative and non-derivative financial instruments at the reporting date.
Regarding liabilities with variable interest rates, the analysis is based on the
assumption that the amount of liabilities outstanding at the reporting date was
outstanding throughout the year. The expected changes in interest rates at plus
or minus 1% is reasonably assessed by the company's management and also
used in internal reporting.

For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, an increase (decrease) of
1% in interest rates is estimated, assuming al other variables remain constant,
to cause decrease (increase) in the net profit before tax by NT$ 187,454
thousand and NT$ 191,845 thousand, respectively, and after considering
capitalization of interest, to cause decrease (increase) by NT$ 126,491 thousand
and 103,586 thousand, respectively. This changeis mainly dueto the company's
borrowings in variable rates.

. Other market price risk

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the sensitivity analyses for
the changes in the price of equity securities, at the reporting date, were
performed using the same basis for the profit or loss, with al other variable
factors remaining constant, asillustrated below:

Prices of securities at the

reporting date
Increasing 10%
Decreasing 10%

2019 2018
Other Other
comprehensive  Netincome comprehensive  Net income
income after tax after tax  incomeafter tax  after tax
$ 266 2,345 303 2377
$ (266) (2,345) (303) (2,377)
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5. Fair value measurement
(1) Categoriesand fair value of financial instruments
The fair value of financial assets measured at FVTPL and FVTOCI is
measured on a recurring basis. Shown below are the book value and fair
value of the company’s financial assets and liabilities, including the
information on fair value hierarchy, but excluding lease liabilities and
financial instruments that are not measured at fair value but the book value
of which is reasonably closely to itsfair value (disclosure not required):

2019.12.31
Fair value
Book value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets measured at FV TPL
Non-derivative financia assets
. 2 2 - - 23,44
mandatorily measured at FVTPL 3 3445 3445 3445
Financial assets measured at FVTOCI - ¢ 2659 656 ) 2003 2659
non-current ’ ' '
Financial assets measured at amortized
cost
Cash and cash equivaents $ 2,012,378
Notes and accounts receivables
(including receivables from related 235,246
parties)
Other financial assets - current 3,178,328
Subtotal 5,425,952
Total $ 5,452,056 24101 - 2,003 26,104
Financial liabilities measured at amortized
costs
Short-term borrowing $ 18,745,374
Notes, accounts and other payables 2,473,266
Bonds payabl e (including current 4,500,000
portion) T
Leaseliabilities 4,108
Guarantee deposits 3,418
Total $ 25,726,166
2018.12.31
Fair value
Book value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets measured at FV TPL
Non-derivative financia assets
. 23,77 23,77 - - 23,77
mandatorily measured at FVTPL 3 37713 3173 3173
Financial assets measured at FVTOCI -, o 351 ) 2674 3025
non-current ’ ' '
Financial assets measured at amortized
cost
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,293,783
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Notes and accounts receivables

(including receivables from related 500,346
parties)
Other financial assets - current 1,940,390
Subtotal 4,734,519
Totd $ 4,761,317 24,124 - 2,674 26,798
Financial liabilities measured at amortized
cost
Short-term borrowing $ 19,184,508
Notes, accounts and other payables 3,292,055
Bonds payable (including current 4,500,000
portion) T
Guarantee deposits 1,811
Total $ 26,978,374

(2) Valuation techniques of financial instruments measured at fair value
(2.1) Non-derivative financial instruments

Financial instruments traded in active markets are based on quoted
market prices. A quoted priceof afinancial instrument obtained from
main exchanges and on-the-run bonds from Taipei Exchange can be
used as a basis to determine the fair value of the listed companies
equity and debt instruments, asit isaquoted pricein an active market.
If a quoted price of afinancial instrument can be obtained in time
and often from exchanges, brokers, underwriters, industrial unions,
pricing agencies, or governing authorities, and such price can
actually reflect those traded frequently in the market, then the
financial instrument is considered to have aquoted pricein an active
market. If a financial instrument is not in accordance with the
definition mentioned above, then it is considered to be without a
guoted pricein an active market. In general, low trading volumes and
high or increasing bid-ask spreads are indications that amarket is not
active.

The categories and characteristics of fair value measurement for the
financial instruments with active markets were as follows:

The fair value of financial instruments that have active markets
and standard terms and conditions are determined with reference

to quoted market prices (e.g., publicly traded stocks).
The categories and characteristics of fair value measurement for the
financia instruments without active markets were as follows:

Equity instruments without active market quotes: thefair valueis
derived from comparable companies in the market and is
determined by multiplying investee's EBITDA with P/E ratio of
comparable companies listed in the market. The caculation is
then discounted for lack of marketability.

(3) Movement in financial assetsincluded in Level 3 fair value hierarchy
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Financial assets measured at FVTOCI

Equity instruments without Debt
active market quotes instruments Total
January 1, 2019 $ 2,674 - 2,674
December 31, 2019 $ 2,003 - 2,003
January 1, 2018 $ 421 - 421
December 31, 2018 $ 2,674 - 2,674

The aforementioned total gains or losses were included in "unrealized gain
(loss) from financial assets measured at FVTOCI." Among those listed, the
gains or losses attributable to the financial assets held on December 31,
2019 and 2018 were as follows:

2019 2018
Total gains or losses
Recognized in other comprehensive income (listed under $ (671) 2,253
"unrealized gain (loss) from financial assets measured at
FVTOCI")

(4) Significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) of fair value measurement
Some of the company's financial assets at FVTOCI are classified as measured in Level 3.
Among the financial assets classified as measured in Level 3 the mgjority
have only one significant unobservable input, except for equity instruments
without active market quotes, which have several significant unobservable
inputs. The significant unobservable inputs for the equity instruments
without active market quotes are independent of each other and are not
correlated.
Quantitative information of significant unobservable inputsis as follows:
Valuation Significant unobservable  Relationship of the

ltem technique inputs inputs and fair value
Financial assets measured Comparable + Pricelearningsratio - Thehigher theratio,
a FVTOCI - equity company (10.6 for 2019, 9.3 for the greater the fair
instruments without valuation 2018) value.
active market quotes « Discount for lack of « The higher the

marketability (15% for discount, the lower the
2019, 27.2% for 2018) ~ farvaue.

(5) Sensitivity analysis of reasonably possible alternative assumptions on fair
value measurementsin Level 3
The company's measurement on the fair value of financial instruments may
change if different valuation models or inputs are used. For fair value
measurementsin Level 3, changesin one or more of the assumptionswould
have the following effects on profit or loss or other comprehensiveincome:
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Changes  Changesof fair valueinthe Changesof fair valuein other

upwar ds or current profit or loss comprehensive income
Input downwards Favorable  Unfavorable Favorable  Unfavorable
December 31, 2019
Financial assets measured at FVTOCI
Equity investments without active market Prl_ce/earnmgs 10% ) ) 182 (182)
quotes ratio
Equity investments without active market Discount for_ I_ack 10% ) ) 236 (236)
quotes of marketability
December 31, 2018
Financial assets measured at FVTOCI
Equity investments without active market Prl_ce/earm ngs 10% ) ) 267 (267)
quotes ratio
Equity investments without active market Discount for_ I_ack 10% ) ) 267 (267)
quotes of marketability

(6) Transfer between different levels of Fair value hierarchy
Some of equity instruments held by the company have active market quotes,
and therefore, those are classified in Level 1. For the years ended on
December 31, 2019 and 2018, no changesin fair value hierarchy occurred,
and therefore, no transfer were recognized.

(XXV)  Financia risk management
1. Overview

The company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial

instruments:

(1) Creditrisk

(2) Liquidity risk

(3 Market risk

The company has disclosed the information on exposure to the af orementioned

risks in the previous section; the information on objectives, policies and

procedures of risk measurement and management of the aforementioned risks

are disclosed below. For more details, please refer to the related notesto parent-

company-only financial statements.

2. Structure of risk management

(1) Risk management policy
An enterprise often face many uncertainties in its operation that can be
potential threats to its existence. A good risk management policy is
required to enable early detection and timely control of risks that could
cause damages to operations. Considering operation strategy, business
environment and planning of each business units, the company's Board of
Directors established risk management policies in relation to business
environment, to design and procedures of internal and external controls,
and to strategy decision-making. In addition, the Board is expected to
provide management reports on various resolutions, action items,
monitoring and on-going performance of risk control activities, so that
when facing similar circumstances, the company can propose better
solutions based on past experiences.

(2) Organization structure of risk management
Every level in the organization structure or every department in the
company has responsibility for risk management. A discovery of any risk
shall be reported to the internal audit and senior management, who then
shall take related actions in the first place.
The organization structure of risk management is as follows:
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Department Responsibilities

Board of Establish risk management policy

Directors Ensure effective operation of and sufficient resources allocated to risk management

Senior Execute risk management policy determined by Board of Directors

Management | coorginate cross-functional risk control activities

Internal Audit | perform routine audits on risk control
Monitor risk control activities and report them to Board of Directors and Audit
Committee

Others

Compiling results of risk control activities

Perform routine activities on risk control
Evaluate risk types based on circumstances and propose corresponding action plans

3. Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk of financial losses resulting, when the company's

customers or counter-parties of its financial instruments fail to meet ther

contractual obligations, principally from the company’s receivables from clients

and investment securities.

(1) Accounts receivable and other receivables
The company's exposure to credit risk varies among individual clients.
Taken into considerations are client related information including, among
others, the industry and nature of the client's business, country risks, and
other factors that the management believes would affect the company's
exposure to credit risk. The company's revenue for the years ended on
December 31, 2019 and 2018, weresolely  from domestic consumers. The
company is engaged in the development and sales of rea estate. The
receivables arisen from real estate sales are paid by individual consumers
through wire transfers, cashier’s or certified checks and mortgages.
Consequently, the credit risksin relationsto these receivabl es are estimated
to be minimal.
The company aso recognized losses allowance for bad debts to reflect the
estimated losses of its accounts receivable, other receivables and
investments. The allowance account consists of two components; the main
component refers specific losses associated with individual significant
exposure to credit risks; and the other component refers to a portfolio of
aready occurred but yet to have identified losses of a group of similar
assets. The portfolio of loss allowance account is determined by historical
statistics on payments eventually received for similar financial assets.

(2) Investments
The exposure to credit risk in relation to bank deposits, fixed income
investments, and other financial instruments, is measured and monitored
by the company’s finance department. Since the company only deals with
banks with good credit rating aswell asfinancial institutions, corporations,
and government agencieswith investment-grade credit ratings, no concerns
on the fulfillment of its counterparty's obligations and no significant
exposure to credit risk were recognized.

(3) Guarantees
Policies of the company stipulates that guarantees can be made available to
subsidiaries and counterparties of whom the company owns more than 50%
of shares. Asof December 31, 2019 and 2018, no endorsements/guarantees
were recognized.
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4. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk istherisk of unfulfilled obligations occurring when the company
cannot settle its financial liabilities with cash or another financial asset. The
company's approach to managing liquidity is to monitor its capital demands
through cash flow forecasting, maintain sufficient non-disbursable loan
commitments at all times, and aways ensure that it has sufficient liquid assets
to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking its reputation.
5. Market risk
Market risk is the risk of changes in the company's profits or value of its
financial instruments resulting from changes in market factors, such as foreign
exchange rates, interest rates, and prices of equity instruments. The company's
objective of market risk management is to control its market risk exposure
within a bearabl e range while optimizing the investment return.
(1) Interest raterisk
The company adopts the most cost-effective strategy in maintaining an
appropriate portfolio of fixed and floating interest rates and conducting
such assessment regularly.
(2) Other market price risk
The company is exposed to the risk of market price fluctuation in its equity
instruments held for sale with the intention to cover the unfunded portion
of its defined benefit obligations. The company's management adjusts the
ratio of equity to debt in its investment portfolio according to fluctuation
in market priceindex. Any material investment in the portfolio is managed
Separately.
(XXVI1) Capita management
The company’s objectives of capital management is to ensure itS capacity in
operation continuity, to return profitsto its sharehol ders and other stakeholders, and
to optimize its capital structure to reduce cost of capital.
In maintaining or adjusting the capital structure, the company may settle liabilities
through adjustments in dividend payment or capital return to its shareholders,
issuance of new shares, or disposal of assets.
The company, like its peer companies, control capital management on the basis of
debt-to-capital ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital. The net debt is the
total liabilities less cash and cash equivalents. The total capital is tota equity
(including share capital, capital reserve, retained earnings, other equity and non-
controlling equity) plus net debt.
For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, the company had the same
policy on capital management and maintai ned the debt-to-capital ratio between 69%
to 71% to ensure reasonabl e cost of capital. Asof December 31, 2019 and 2018, the
debt-to-capital ratio were as follows:

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Total liabilities $ 31,201,320 31,276,346
Less: Cash and cash equivaents (2,012,378) (2,293,783)
Net liability 29,188,942 28,982,563
Total equity 12,627,504 11,836,993
Capital after adjustment $ 41,816,446 40,819,556
Debt-to-capital ratio 70% 71%
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(XXVII) Non-cash investing and financing activities
The company's non-cash investing and financing activities for the year ended on
December 31, 2019, are to acquire right-of-use assets through leases. Refer to Note
VI(8) for details.

VII. Related Party Transactions

()] Names of and relationship with related parties
Related parties that had transactions with the company during the reporting periods
were as follows:

Name of related party Relationswith the
Company
Kedge Construction Co., Ltd (the "Kedge Construction") Subsidiary
Global Mall Co., Ltd. (the "Global Mall") Subsidiary

Guan Cheng Co., Ltd. (GLOBAL MALL BANQIAO STORE) (the  Subsidiary
"Guan Cheng")

Jiequn Investment Co., Ltd. (the "Jiequn Investment™) Subsidiary
Dingtian Co., Ltd. (the "Dingtian") Subsidiary
Guanqing Electromechanical Co., Ltd. (the "Guanging Subsidiary
Electromechanical")

KGM Internationa Investment Co., Ltd. (HK) (the"KGM") Subsidiary

Guan Hua Co., Ltd. (GLOBAL MALL NANGANG STORE) (the Subsidiary
"Guan Hua")

Global Mall (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. (Note) Subsidiary
Subsidiary

Guan You Co., Ltd. (GLOBAL MALL ZUQOYING STORE) Associate

(the "Guan You")

ReadyCom eServices Co. Ltd. The entity’s chairman is the
second-degree relatives of
the company's chairman

Retrieving data. Wait afew seconds and try to cut or copy again. Other related party

(1 Significant related-party transactions

1. Purchases of goods from related parties
Detail of the company's significant purchases with its related parties were as

follows:
Total Contract Purchase Cumulative
2019 Amount (beforetax) (Current Price) Amount
Subsidiary - Kedge Construction  $ 20,037,538 5,000,015 10,158,533
2018
Subsidiary - Kedge Construction  $ 25,156,833 6,858,591 12,753,510

The construction projects contracted to the related parties by the company was
in accordance with related party's contracting regulations, according to which,
the contract price is calculated on the basis of construction budgets plus
reasonable management expenses and profits and, after price comparison and
negotiation processes, approved by the management.

The payment term of related-party transactions is either 95% due immediately
and 5% due in 90 day or 100% due immediately or in 90 days.

231



KINDOM DEVELOPMENT CO. LTD Notesto Parent-Company-Only Financial Statements

2. Purchases of services from related parties
Purchase
2019 2018
Associates $ - 975

3. Payablesto related parties
Detail of the company's significant accounts payable with its related parties
were as follows:

Category and Name
Accounting subject of Related Party 2019.12.31 2018.12.31

Notes payable - related parties Subsidiary - Kedge $ 1987 602 1899951

Construction B T
Accounts payable - related parties Subsidiary - Kedge 642 097 770.072

Construction ’ '
Accounts payable - related parties Subsidiary - Dingtian 5,170 10,339
Accounts payable - related parties Associates - 307
$ 1,934,869 2,680,669

4. Endorsements/guarantees
Detail of the company's endorsements/guarantees provided to its related parties
were as follows:

Category of related party 2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Subsidiaries $ 28,384 28,384
5. Lease

(1) Leasing from related parties
The company leased office buildings and parking lots from subsidiariesin
a lease term of one year. The rental incomes for the years ended on
December 31, 2019 and 2018 were both NT$ 3,360 thousand.

(2) Leasingto related parties
Part of the company's office building was leased to subsidiaries and other

related partiesin alease term of one year. The rental incomes for the years
ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018 were both NT$ 2,482 thousand.

6. Others

(1) The company signed an agreement for the surface right to a land in
Pingtung in the second half of the year 2011. According to the agreement,
the payments for the surface right to be received before the end of the
agreement and when the agreement is extended were in the amount of NT$
31,464 thousand and NT$ 16,000 thousand, respectively. The total
amount was NT$ 47,464 thousand over a period of thirty years. As of
December 31, 2018, the remaining balance after amortization was NT$
35,765 thousand and was recognized as long-term prepaid leases. For the
year ended on December 31, 2019, all rights and obligations related to the
identified |ease asset were transferred to the subsidiary.

(2) For the years ended on December 31, 2019 and 2018, the amounts of
donation made to Kindom Y u San Education Foundation were NT$ 4,000
thousand and NT$ 5,500 thousand, respectively, for the purpose of
promoting the foundation's services.

(3) For the year ended on December 31, 2019, sales of the company's assetsto
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the related parties amounted to NT$ 1,429 thousand before tax, and the
related payables were settled as of December 31, 20109.

(1 Transactions with key management personnel
Compensations for key management personnel were as follows:
2019 2018
Short-term employee benefits $ 30,500 39,366
Post-employment benefits 117 83
$ 30,617 39,449
VIIl. Pledged Assets
Carrying values of pledged assets were as follow:
Assets Collaterals Pledged 2019.12.31 2018.12.31
buildings and land held for sale Bank loans $ 9,347,838 11,257,912
Land held for construction Bank loans 211,953 3,318,550
Construction in progress Bank loans 13,458,598 10,085,022
Investment properties and net Bank loans 753,810 762,597
PP& E
Other financia assets- current  Bank loans, pre-sales 2,639,130 1,724,615
payments in trust accounts,
guarantees, and bonds payable
Long-term equity instruments Bank loans and guarantees 3,515,098 3,201,147
accounted for using equity
method
$ 29,926,427 30,349,843
N A~~~ NPAll~tAvAl A DL AAAAA

IX. Material Contingent Liabilitiesand Unrecognized Contract Commitments

XI.
XII.

Significant unrecognized contract commitment:

1.

Total amount of sales contracts signed before and after the completion of construction were

asfollows:

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Amount of sales contracts signed $ 14,898,155 13,474,401
Amount of payments received per contracts $ 5,177,387 3,937,293

Details on refundable deposits and notes paid for co-devel opments with land owners and
third-party developers as follows:

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Refundable deposit $ 538,675 217,759
Refundabl e notes $ 982,599 1,040477

In December, 2019 and 2018, the company's Board of Directors approved the donation to
Kindom Y u San Education Foundation in the amounts of NT$ 5,500 thousand in 2020 and
4,000 thousand in 2019 for the purpose of promoting the Foundation's services.

Material Disaster L osses None
Material Post-period Matters: None

Others:
A summary of employee benefits, depreciation, depletion, and amortization expenses, by
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By function 2019 2018

Employee benefits

Salaries - 131,527 131,527 - 119,392| 119,392
Insurance - 8,109 8,109 - 8,472 8,472
Pension - 4,386 4,386 - 4,455 4,455
Directors remuneration - 32,398 32,398 - 15,645 15,645
Others - 7,510 7,510 - 8,624 8,624
Depreciation 4,610 6,912 11,522 4,927 6,570 11,497
Amortization - 466 466 - 1,298 1,298

Additional information of employee head counts and benefit expenses for the years ended on
December 31, 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

Employee head count
Number of Board members who are not employee
Average employee benefit expense
Average salary expense

Average salary adjustment

XI1l. Supplementary Disclosures
M Information on Material Transactions

2019 2018
100 101
5 )
$ 1,595 1,468
$ 1,384 1,244
11.25%

In accordance with the "Regul ations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports
by Securities Issuers," the company discloses the information on significant
transactions as follows:

1. Loaning of fund to other parties: none
2. Providing endorsements/guarantees to other parties:

Endorsement/guarantee Ratio of
Receiver Cumulative
Limitson Actual Amount Balance of En?g;?;rt\;n/ Enig;ﬁ?;“/Endormmt
Endor sement/| Endorsement/g| Maximum Endin Amount | Collateralize Endor sement/gu| Maximum Pgr]ovided b Pgr]ovided b guarantee
No.| guarantee Nature of uarantee Balance for 9 . aranteeto Net | Amount Y /100 DY | provided to
- Company - B ; f Balance Drawn d with . Parent Subsidiary to e
Provider Relationship| Provided to A | the Period Equity as Stated| Allowable Subsidiary in
Name . - Property . Company to Parent ]
(Note 1) Single Entity initsLatest Subsidiar Compan China
Financial y pany
Statement
The Parent
1 (Construction  [Company company and|$ 5,481,922 14,192 14,192 14,192 0.52%| 5,481,922 N Y N
subsidiary
The Parent
2 Compan company and 53,430 14,192 14,192 14,192 26.56% 53,430 N Y N
PaY | subsidiary
Kedge Parent
2 | Dingtian c e company and 8,014,571 1,376,500( 1,376,500 1,376,500 2,576.27%| 16,029,141 N Y N
onstruction subsidiary
3 |Global Mall  |Guan Yo 3 2,738,260 200,000( 200,000 20,000 4.38%| 5,476,520 Y N N
3 |Global Mall  |Guan Hu 2 2,738,260 150,000 150,000 65,000 3.29%| 5,476,520 Y N N
Global Mall
3 (Global Mall  |(Tianjin) 3 2,738,260 646,500 - - - - %| 5476520 Y N Y
Co., Ltd.

Note1l: Types of relationship that the endorsement/guarantee provider has
with the guaranteed party:

(1) Anentity with which it does business.
(2) An entity in which it directly and indirectly holds more than 50
percent of the voting shares.
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Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

(3) An entity that directly and indirectly holds more than 50 percent
of itsvoting shares.

(4) Anentity in which it holds, directly or indirectly, 90% or more of
the voting shares.

(5) It fulfills its contractual obligations by providing mutual
endorsements/guarantees for an entity in the same industry or for
joint builders for purposes of undertaking a construction project.

(6) All capita contributing sharehol ders make endorsements/guarantees
for their jointly invested company in proportion to their shareholding

percentages.

(7) Companies in the same industry provide among themselves joint
and severa security for a performance guarantee of a sales
contract for pre-construction homes pursuant to the Consumer

Protection Act for each other.
Tape City Government requested the company to provide joint and
several security, so Kedge Congtruction, approved by the Board on
March 21, 2002 and March 25, 2010, provided endorsements/guarantees
for the company.
Per Kedge Construction's policies and procedures on
endorsements/guarantees, the maximum aggregate amount allowable
for endorsements/guarantees to third parties shall not exceed 200% of
its net equity as stated in its latest financial statement, and limits on
endorsements/guarantees provided to a single entity shall not exceed
200% of its net equity as stated in its latest financial statement. The
aggregate amount of endorsements/guarantees on all construction
projects shall not exceed 10 times of its net equity as stated in itslatest
financial  statement, and the aggregate amount  of
endorsements/guarantees on a single construction project shall not
exceed 5 times of itsnet equity as stated in itslatest financial statement.
Per Dingtian's policies and procedures on endorsements/guarantees, the
maximum aggregate amount alowable for endorsements/guarantees to
third parties shall not exceed 100% of its net equity as stated inits latest
financid statement, and limits on endorsements/guarantees provided to a
single entity shal not exceed 100% of its net equity as stated in its latest
financid statement. The aggregate amount of endorsements/guarantees
on al construction projects shal not exceed 300 times of its net equity as
dated in its latest financid statement, and the aggregate amount of
endorsements/guarantees on asingle construction project shall not exceed
150 times of its net equity as stated in its latest financia statement.
Per Global Madll's palicies and procedures on endorsements/guarantees,
the maximum aggregate amount allowable for endorsements/guarantees
tothird parties shall not exceed 120% of itsnet equity asstated initslatest
financid statement, and limits on endorsements/guarantees provided to a
single entity shall not exceed 60% of its net equity as stated in its latest
financid statement..
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3. Marketable securities (excluding equity investments in subsidiaries, associates,

and joint ventures) held at the reporting date:
Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars or Thousands of Shares

Ending Balance
Relationship with Percentage Number
Investing Category and Name of the Security Number of Carrying of Fair Value of
Company Security | ssuer Financial Statement Account Shares Amount Ownership (Note) Shares

The company Stock - Fubon Financial Financial assets measured at o

Holding Co Ltd. FVTPL - current 505 23445 % 23445
The company Stock - Everterminal Co. Ltd. Financial assets measured at

EVTOCI - non-current 198 2,003 0.20% 2,003

The company Stock - Clientron Corp. 29 656 0.05% 656
Kedge Beneficiary certificate - Fuh Financial assets measured at o
Construction Hwa Aegis FVTPL - current 733 22474 % 22474
Jiequn Investment | Stock - Fubon Financial o

Holding Co Ltd. 472 21,878 % 21,878
Jiequn Investment | Stock - SinoPac Securities 211 2744 % 2744

Corporation
Jiequn Investment | Beneficiary certificate - Fuh

Hwa China New Economy A 766 7,590 % 7,590

Shares
Jiequn Investment | Stock - Huei Ding Computer Financial assets measured at 205 0.78%

FVTOCI - non-current

Guanging Stock - Fubon Financial Financial assets measured at o
Electromechanical [Holding Co Ltd. FVTPL - current 419 19,432 % 19,432
Guanging Stock - Commonwealth Financial assets measured at o
Electromechanical | Publishing Group FVTOCI - non-current 132 5,920 0.59% 5,920

Note:

If market price is not available, the carrying amount of the security at
the reporting date is determined as the market price.

4. Marketable securities for which the accumulated purchase or sale amounts for

the period exceed NT$ 300 million or 20% of the paid-in capital:
Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Beginning Balance|  Acquisitions Disposals (notel) Ending Balance
Gain
Category| (Loss) on
and | Financial Number Number Number Disposal |Number
Company| name of | Statement Nature of of of of Book on of
Name | security | Account [Counterparty|Relationship| Shares| Amount | Shares| Amount | Shares|SalesPrice| Value Disposal | Shares [ Amount
Global [Stock  [Investment [KGM Sub- - 727517 - 392,926 - 906,638 906,638 | - - 213,766
Mall accounted subsidiary (HKD| (HKD|
for using 180,263K) 54,435K),
equity
method
KGM Stock Investment |Global Mall  {Sub-sub- 727,478 392,926 906,638| 906,638 213,766
laccounted ((Tianjin) Co., |subsidiary (CNY] (CNY]
for using  |Ltd. 149,728K) 48,000K)
equity
method

Note 1: Capital reduction was made for the year ended on December 31, 2019
to mitigate losses in the amount of NT$ 906,638 thousand.

Note 2: Ending balance includes investment losses.Acquisition of real estate at
costs exceeding NTD 300 million or 20% of the paid-in capital: None

5. Acquisition of rea estate at costs exceeding NT$ 300 million or 20% of the
paid-in capital: None
6. Disposal of rea estate at prices exceeding NT$ 300 million or 20% of the paid-
in capital:
Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars
Gains Purpose Detl:rariﬁ:er;tion
Property [Transaction| Carrying | Transaction Receivable (Losses) on Nature of of of theSales | Other
Company Name|  Name Date Acquisition Date Amount Amount Collection Disposal _[Counterparty| Relationship | Disposal Price Conditiong
IThecompany  |Inventory - 108.05 |Not applicable: Not 704,747 704,747 Not Morethan onel Not related [Selling Refer to None
buildings and inventory produced, applicable applicable |[third party inventory |Appraisal or
land held for not acquired Based on
sale Market Price
Note: The amounts above are expressed before taxes.
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7. Receivables from related parties with amounts exceeding NTD 100 million or
20% of the paid-in capital:

Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Transactionswith Terms  Notes or Accounts
Transaction Details Different from Others | Receivable (Payable)
% of Total
Notes or
% of Total Accounts
Company Name of Nature of Amount | Purchases Payment Ending |Receivable
Name [Counter party| Relationship [Purchases/sales| (note 1) (Sales) Payment Terms | Unit Price| Terms Balance | (Payable) | Note
The Kedge Investee Purchases for 5000,015 88.84 %(50% due immediately | Equivalent |[Equivalent to| (1,929,699) 79.05%Note 2|
Company  |Construction |accounted for [101C and other land 50% due in 90 to Other |Other
using equity  [project codes days/100% due TransactiongTransactions
method immediately and 100%)
due in 90 days
Kedge The company |Investor in  |Purchases for (5,000,015) | (47.24) %|Per Payment Schedule |[Equivalent |Equivalentto| 1,929,699 63.56%
Construction| hich Kedge |041B and other in Contract or to Other Other
Construction [project codes Equivalent to Other  [TransactiongTransactions
is accounted Transactions
for using
lequity method

Note 1. Amount as of December 31, 2019.
Note 2: Thedifferencein receivables (payables) is recognized in contract assets.

8. Receivablesfrom related parties with amounts exceeding NT$ 100 million or
20% of the paid-in capital:

Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Receivable Overdue |[Amount Received Loss
Company Name Related Party Nature of Relationship Ending Balance Turnover Rate| Amount |Action Taken n Sgl;siegduent Allowance]
Kedge Construction |The company !nveﬂor inwhich Kedge C_onstructlon 1,929,699 247 R R 445,601 R
is accounted for using equity method

(In

9. Engaging in the trading in derivative instruments: none

Information on Reinvestment
Investments of the company and its investees for the year ended on December 31,

2019 isasfollows:
Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars or Thousands of Shares

Original Investment Share of
) Main Busin Amount Balance as of December 31, 2019 Net Income Investee's
Investor Investee L ocation| esses - (L oss) of the )
and Products  |December | December |[Number of | Percentage of | Carrying | nvestee Profit (L 0ss) Note
31,2019 | 31,2018 | Shares | Ownership | Amount Recognized
The Kedge Taiwan |[Comprehensive 0 -
company  [Construction constructions 374,353 374,353 36,248 34.18% 558,791 402,348 103,642 | Subsidiary
The Global Mall Taiwan [Supermarkets,
company department stores,
internationdl trading, | 5 509 395 3909305 320,105 84.0294 3,850,352 395,008 331,950 Subsidiary
land wholesales and
retails of medical
lequipment
The Guan Cheng Taiwan [Department stores,
company supermarkets, and 102,000 102,000 10,200 51.00% 135,741 34,926 17,812| Subsidiary
non-store retailing
Kedge  \Jiequn Investment|Taiwan - (Investment 163935 163935 16,396 90.08% 369,801 11,617 11,614 Second-tier
Construction| subsidiary
Kedge Guanging Taiwan |Installation and
Construction|Electromechanical lengineering of o Second-tier
electrical and fire 81,326 81,326 7,747 99.96% 203,204 11,976 11,972 subsidiary
safety equipment
Jiequn ~  |Dingtian Taiwan (Comprenensive 16500 16500 - 30009 16,029 5,592 1,678 Thirc-tier
I nvestment constructions subsidiary
Guanging  |Dingtian Taiwan [Comprehensive Third-tier
Electromech constructions 11,105 11,105 - 70.00% 37,401 5,592 3,914 bsidi
nical subsidiary
Dingtian ReadyCom Taiwan (Information software
eServices Co. Ltd. services and business| 15,000 15,000 1,400 46.67% 20,506 2 1 -
consultation
Global Mall (Guan Cheng Taiwan [Department stores,
supermarkets, and 98,000 98,000 9,800 49.00% 130,418 34,926 17,114 Subsidiary
non-store retailing
Global Mall |Guan You Taiwan (Department stores, Second-tier
supermarkets, and 5,000 5,000 500 3.70% 1,640 (33,725) (1,248) e
i subsidiary
non-store retailing
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Global Mall |Guan Hua Taiwan [Department stores, .
supermarkets, and 140000 140090 14000 1000004 137,359 (3,201) (3,201 | Second-tier
i~ subsidiary
non-store retailing
Original Investment Share of
) Main Businesses Amount Balance as of December 31, 2019 Net Income Investee's
Investor Investee L ocation| - (L oss) of the A
and Products  |December | December |Number of | Percentage of | Carrying I nvestee Profit (L oss) Note
31,2019 | 31,2018 Shares Ownership Amount Recognized
Global Mall [KGM Hong  |Investment and 213766 727,517 g 100.00% 29,975 55,671 55,671 | Second-tier
Kong  |operation of (HKD| (HKD| (Co. Ltd.) subsidiary
shopping mall in 54,435K)| 180,263K)
China, including
master planning,
supporting
lengineering
consulting, and
|leasing planning and
consulting
Guan Cheng (Guan Y ou Taiwan [Department stores, 130,000 130,000 13,000 96.30% 42,680 (33,725) (32,477) | Second-tier
supermarkets, and subsidiary
non-store retailing

) Information on Investments in Mainland China:
1. Names, main businesses and products, and other information of investees in

mainland China:
Unit: Thousands of USD, HKD, CNY or NTD

Investment Cash Flows | Cumulative

Cumulative Investment Percentage Cumulative
Investment Outflow of the Remittance]
Outflow from Outflow Inflow from Taiwan Company's| Shareof Carrying |of Earningg
Amount of Taiwan as of as of Net Income | Direct or | Investee's | Amount as as of
Name of Paid-in  [Investment| January 1, December 31, (Loss) of the| Indirect |Profit (Loss)|of December| December
Investee Main Business Items Capital M ethod 2019 2019 Investee |Ownership| Recognized | 31, 2019 31, 2019
Global Mall [Business management
(Tianjin) Co.,|(including rentals of
Ltd. commercial facilities) in
holesales, retails and
import/export of
household items and
appliances, sports goods, 213,766 55,667 55,667 30,270
loffice supplies, watches, . 727,474 392,926 906,638 213,766 ; ; :
glasses, todtiles etc. - |(CNY 48000 Note2 (CNY 149,728)|(CNY 88,059)(CNY 189,787)[(CNY 48,000)|( KD 14.111)  100.00%(HKD 14,111) (HKD 7,864)
property management;
business consulting;
icorporate marketing
planning; conference
services; exhibition
services ; parking lot
management

Note 1. Capital reduction was made for loss mitigation.

Note 2: Theinvestment in mainland Chinais made through an investee outside
of Taiwan and mainland China.Limitation on investment in mainland
China:

2. Limitation on investment in mainland China:

Cumulative I nvestment Outflow from|Investment Amounts Authorized| Upper Limit on Investment
Taiwan as of December 31, 2019 by Investment Commission, Authorized by I nvestment
MOEA Commission, MOEA
CNY 48,000 uUsh 11,100 7,576,502

Note: The limited amount is capped at 60% of the company's net equity.
3. Significant transactions with investees in mainland China: none

XIV. Segment Information

Please refer to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended on December 31,
2019.
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V1. Any Financial Difficulties Experienced by the Company or its Affiliated Enterprises during the
Most Recent Fiscal Year as of the Date of thisAnnual Report: None.
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Chapter 7. Review and Analysis of Financial Position and Operating Results, and

Risk Management
l. Financial position:

Comparative analysis on the Consolidated Financial Position
Unit: NT$ Thousands

Year Difference
Item 2018 2019 Amount %
Current assets 43,341,299| 45,563,542 2,222,243 5.13
Property, plant and equipment 6,979,157] 6,703,794 (275,363)| (3.95)
Other assets 842,852 3,557,629| 2,714,777| 322.09
Total assets 51,163,308| 55,824,965| 4,661,657 9.11]
Current liabilities 30,898,165 31,849,885 951,720 3.08
Non-current liabilities 6,697,580 9,562,171 2,864,591 42.77
Total liabilities 37,595,745 41,412,056| 3,816,311| 10.15
Equity capital 5,037,910, 5,037,910 - -
Capital reserves 1,368,865 1,379,873 11,008 0.80
Retained earnings 5,526,960, 6,306,721 779,761 14.11
Other equity interest (25,546) (25,804) (258) 1.01]
Treasury stock (71,196) (71,196) - -
Non-controlling equity interest 1,730,570 1,785,405 54,835 3.17,
Total shareholder's equity 13,567,563 14,412,909 845,346 6.23
Cause of anincrease or decrease of 20% or more;
Other assets and non-current liabilities: Mainly from the transition to IFRS 16, recognition of right-to-use
assets and lease liabilities on the date of initial application.

I1.  Financia performance:

()] Comparative analysis on the consolidated income statement:
Unit: NT$ Thousands

Y ear 2018 2019 Increase | Change as
Item (decrease) | percentage
Operating revenue 14,435,680|15,326,899| 891,219 6.17|
Operating costs 10,436,554|11,298,605 862,051 8.26)
Gross operating profit 3,999,126| 4,028,294 29,168 0.73
Operating expenses 2,089,225| 1,829,565 (259,660) (12.43)
Operating benefits 1,909,901 2,198,729 288,828 15.12
Non-operating income and expenditure (829,483)| (384,465)] 445,018 (53.65)
Pre-tax net profit of continuing operations 1,080,418| 1,814,264 733,846 67.92
Less: Income tax expenses 407,105 268,041 (139,064) (34.16)
Add: Cumulative implications of changesto GAAP - - - -
After-tax net profit of continuing operations 673,313| 1,546,223 872,910 129.64
Cause of anincrease or decrease of 20% or more:
1. Non-operating income and expenditure: Mainly from impairment losses caused by reversal disposal of

rea estate, plant and equipment.
2. Pretax net income of continuing operations: Mainly from the decrease of non-operating expenses.
3. Incometax expense: Mainly from recognition of realized investment losses.
4. Netincome after tax of continuing operations: Mainly from reduction of operating expenses and non-
operating expenses.
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(1)

Analysis on the change in gross operating profit
Unit: NT$ Thousands

Cause of the difference
Selling price Cost Sales portfolio| Quantity
difference difference variance variance

Variation from the
previous period

Gross operating profit 29,168 - - - -

Analysis shows that such a variance was resulted from an increase in the operating income of the building
operation segment, the construction and operation segment and the department store segment.

(1)

Estimated sales volume in the coming year and its basis:

There are more than 10 projectsincluding 980K, 980L, 980M, 102B, 8301, 950B, 103G,
105A, 103B, 980F, 100C, 101C and 101B completed in the construction operation
segment, under construction or on pre-sale, with atotal number of saleable households
exceeding 1,200. The building operation segment has implemented nearly 20 projects
from external customers, with atotal contract value over NT$25 billion. With the sale,
progress in construction and completion of the aforesaid projects, revenue and profits
will be generated in the coming years. The department store segment can still maintain
the momentum of operation and growth due to its ownership in seven shopping malls,
the establishment of shopping malls in excellent areas of transportation hubs, the
convenience of providing consumers with ONE-STOP SHOPPING, and the
establishment of a full-customer shopping center in the sub-capital to meet customers
all-round needs such as shopping, feasting, entertainment and leisure, aswell as various
competitive niches such as spacious and elegant shopping environment, convenient
parking, commodities meeting local consumption needs and rapid adjustment of the
configuration of counter-based businesses.

Cash Flows:

(1)

Analysis of liquidity for the last two years:

Y ear 2018 2019 Increase (decrease)
Item as percentage

Cash flow ratio (%) 6.3 10.04 59.37

Cash flow sufficiency ratio (%) 58.26 88.96 52.69

Cash re-investment ratio (%) 74 10.23 38.24

Cause of amaterial increase or decrease:

1. Cash flow ratio: Mainly dueto increased net cash inflow from operating activities.

2. Cash flow sufficiency ratio: Mainly due to the increase in net cash inflow from operating
activitiesin the last five years.

3. Cash reinvestment ratio: Mainly due to the increase of net cash inflow from operating
activities.

(1) Improvement Plans for Insufficient Liquidity:

In 2019 - the cash inflow for the year was NT$689,828 thousand, and the cash balance at
the end of the period was NT$6,229,385 thousand yuan, liquidity is normal.

241



an

Analysis of cash liquidity for the last year:
Unit: NT$ Thousands

, Estimated Net Cash . Estimated Remedies for estimated cash
ca;pf)rz;\l" gr?ce Fl ow f_rom Operating Eit;gaéﬁﬂag\?vial cash surplus shortage
(1) Activitiesfor the Y ear 3) (shortage) Investment Wealth
2 D+2-(3) plans management plans
6,229,385 6,461,761 4,803,892 7,887,254 - -

1.

Analysis of changesin cash flow in the coming year:
Operating activities: It is expected that the new completion, construction or pre-sale cases will

be completed one after another in the next year, resulting in a net cash inflow from operating
activities.

Cash outflows for the year: Taken into consideration of the impact of investment activities and
financing activities, including the payment of cash dividends

IV. The Implications of Major Capital Expenditures to Finance and Business in the Most Recent

Year:

(1)

(In

Application of the Magor Capital Expenditures and Capital Source:

In 2019, the department store segment needed more than NT$95,156 thousand to carry
out the decoration project of the store, which was provided with bank loans and funds
generated from the operation.

Estimated potential benefits:

After a shopping mall renovation and introduction of new brands, the department store
segment will provide consumers with more diversified goods, services and visual
experience, and their operating income and profit growth can be expected.

The Latest Annual Reinvestment Policies, the Main Reasons for a Profit or Loss, Improvement

Plans and Investment Plans for the Coming Year:

(1)

(In

The Company's reinvestments include an investment in Global Mall Co., Ltd., Guan
Cheng Co., Ltd. and Kedge Construction Co., Ltd.. In 2019, for which the Company
recognized the investment benefits respectively in the amount of NT$331,950,000,
NT$17,812,000 and NT$103,642,000 in proportion to the Company's shareholding
therein.

Global Mall Co., Ltd. set up Globa Mall(Tianjin)Co., Ltd. in Tianjin, mainland China
through KGM International Investment Co., Ltd. to lease the planned shopping mall
from real estate developers Tianjin Chongbel Property Management Co., Ltd. and
Tianjin River Property Management Co., Ltd. (Lessors). As the lessor failed to fulfill
the commitment on the original lease conditions, it exercised the right to rescind the
contract in July of 2018 and filed to the China International Economic and Trade
Arbitration Commission for arbitration. The first arbitration tribunal was held on Dec.
24th, 2018. According to the assessment, the possibility of rescinding the contract was
high, so the relevant losses arising from the termination was recognized in 2018. The
arbitration mediation was completed on Jun. 28th, 2019. Both parties rescinded the lease
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contract and completed the shopping mall handover in July of 2019. The lessor will
return the deposit in accordance with the settlement agreement.

VI. Risk Issuesin the Most Recent Year as of the Date of this Annua Report and an Anaysis and
Evaluation thereof:

)

(In

()

Theimpact of interest rate, exchange rate changes and inflation on the company's profits
and losses and future countermeasures:

The short-term and long-term borrowings of the Consolidated Company are debts with
interests at "benchmark interest rate" plus a "fixed overcharge'. At present, the
benchmark interest rate of financia institutions is slowly declining, and the
Consolidated Company will actively strive for preferential interest rates from financing
banks in the future to reduce interest costs for customers as the Consolidated Company
is acustomer wanted by financial institutions. In addition, the exchange rate risk to the
Consolidated Company mainly comes from cash denominated in foreign currency and
approximate cash, which generate foreign currency exchange gains or losses during
conversion, so exchange rate changes have no significant impact on the consolidated
gains or losses. The domestic inflation is still moderate, and the extent to which the
profits and losses of the Consolidated Company are affected by it is not evident.
Policies for engaging in high-risk, high-leverage investments, loan of funds to others,
endorsement and guarantee, and derivatives trading, main reasons for profits or losses,
and future countermeasures:

The Consolidated Company is committed to the development of the industry and has
not engaged in high-risk, highly leveraged investments, loan of funds to others and
derivativestransactions. In addition, the Consolidated Company shall, depending on the
business needs, handle external endorsement and guarantee in accordance with the
"Endorsement and Guarantee Procedures’ and the regul ations of the competent authority.
The target mainly includes related companies, joint partners and companies with
business contacts. Its operation and financial conditions are normal, and its performance
capacity and solvency is not at risk.

Future R& D plans and estimated R& D expenditures:

The Consolidated Company does not have a dedicated research and development
department, but the technical research department or planning and design department is
responsible for the planning and design of construction products, and the planning
department and development department are responsible for the collection and
development of market information.

In recent years, the building operation segment of the Consolidated Company has not
only introduced the public works management system for site management, but also
actively developed or introduced new construction methods and improved construction
technologies to achieve the goals of shortening construction period, reducing pollution
and improving efficiency. In order to improve competitiveness, it is estimated that
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(V)

V)

(V1)

(VI
(V1)
(IX)

NT$1,500,000 will be invested in the following projects in the coming year:

[tem

No. Research planning

1 |Application and development for project information system integration.

BIS-BIM certification and promotion of BIM projects according to international
standards

Research and devel opment on quantity output of BIM -aided engineering

Application of BIM in implementing safety and health measures

Research and introduction of the FIM maintenance platform

Introduction of conversion of UAV agerid images into numerical terrain datainto
research on BIM mapping data

Research and introduction of civil engineering CIM (Civil 3D / Infraworks)

Development of 10T control system for construction personnel positioning.

© |O|N] O O~ |Ww

Introduction of BIM mapping datain researches on 0T technology application

platform.

In addition, since the construction industry and department store industry do not require
R&D and design of new products for general manufacturing or high-tech industries,
thereis no related research and development cost incurred.

The impact of magjor policies and legal changes at home and abroad on the Company's
finance and business and the countermeasures :

The management department of the Consolidated Company attaches great importance
to information on political and economic developments and legal changes at home and
abroad, and has a proper response capability. It has aways abided by the relevant laws
and regulations promulgated by the government and adheres to the principle of prudent
operation to maintain sustainable development. Significant policy and legal changes at
home and abroad in the recent year have not had a significant impact on the finance and
business of the Consolidated Company.

The impact of technological and industrial changes on the company's finance and
business and countermeasures:

In response to technological and industrial changes, the Consolidated Company keeps
abreast of market changes and actively obtains industrial information through various
means to expand its business. At present, the Consolidated Company has not
experienced any significant impact on the company's finance and business due to
technological or industrial changes.

Impact of Corporate Image Change on Corporate Crisis Management and
Countermeasures.

Since its establishment, the Consolidated Company has been committed to the business
philosophy of "integrity, service, innovation and sustainability” to create a high-quality
corporate image. The Consolidated Company has witnessed no change in its corporate
image.

Expected benefit and possible risks from M& A and countermeasures: None.

Expected benefit and possible risks from plant expansion and countermeasures. None.
Risks from centralized purchase and sale and countermeasures:

Due to the industrial characteristics and the need to control the quality of new
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X)

(X1)

(X1

construction projects, the construction operation segment appoints related company to
undertake construction projects. Its construction technology level and financial
condition are good. The construction and construction segment only needsto strengthen
the control on its construction quality to avoid the risk of centralized purchase In
addition, the salestarget of construction projectsisthe general public and firms, so there
isno centralized sales.
The building operation segment carefully evaluates the reputation, technical level and
financial status of contractors and building materials suppliers. When necessary, it also
contracts or supplies relatively large quantities of projects or building materials to
several manufacturers to ensure the smooth progress of the project. In addition, the
building operation segment will conduct a credit investigation on the owners before
undertaking the project, and the owners are mainly government agencies, well-known
electronic technology manufacturers and the parent company Guande Construction.
Thereisno risk of centralized sales.
The department store segment rents stores to hundreds of manufacturers to operate
general merchandise, catering and entertainment. There is no centralized purchase and
sales.
Effect upon and risk to the Company associated with transfer or change in the equity
held by directors, supervisors or substantial shareholders holding more than 10% of the
shares and countermeasures being or to be taken: None.
Effect upon and risk to the Company associated with any change in the right of
management, and countermeasures being or to be taken: None.
In case of alitigation or non-litigation event, if there has been any substantial impact
upon shareholders equity or prices for the Company's securities as a result of any
litigation, non-litigious proceeding, or administrative dispute involving the company
that was finalized or remained pending, the facts in dispute, amount in dispute,
commencement date, main parties involved, and current status of the case up to the
publication date of this annual report shall be disclosed: None.
1. Major pending litigation, non-litigation or administrative proceedings involved the
Consolidated Company:

Implications to
Subject matter Cause and current status financial
business

The Consolidated Company leased the shopping mall|There should be
planned and under development by Tianjin Chongbeilno significant
Property Management Co., Ltd. and Tianjin River Property|implications.

Management Co., Ltd. (the "Lessors') for 20 years from

Global December of 2016. Due to the lessor's failure to fulfill the
Mall(Tianjin)Co.,j]commitment on the original lease conditions, the
Ltd. Consolidated Company exercised the right to terminate the

contract in July of 2018, and at the same time filed to the
China International Economic and Trade Arbitration
Commission for arbitration, requesting to terminate the lease

contract and return the performance bond, compensate for
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the book losses of decoration and liquidated damages, etc.
totaling CNY 230,057,000. The lessor filed a counterclaim
for arbitration on Sep.26th, 2018, requesting cancellation of
the lease contract, restoration of the leased property to its
original state, without return the security deposit, and
payment of liquidated damages, depreciation loss of the
project and loss of expected benefits totaing CNY
248,299,000. The first arbitration tribunal was held on Dec.
24th, 2018 and the Consolidated Company estimated and
presented the relevant losses in 2018. Upon completion of
arbitration and mediation on Jun. 28th, 2019, both parties
rescinded the lease contract and completed the shopping
mall handover in July of 2019, the lessor will return the
deposit in accordance with the settlement agreement.

041A In 041A project contracted by the Consolidated Company,| There should be
Project the construction firm of the neighboring factory owner\no significant
claimed that damages were caused to the structure and floor|implications.

of the factory building due to improper construction of the
Consolidated Company. Both parties tried mediation for
times but failed. So the construction firm of the neighboring
factory owner sued the Consolidated Company for damages|
totaling NT$15,665,000. The Consolidated Company will
continue to deal with the issue depending on the judgement.

031C The Consolidated Company is sued for repayment of |oans| There should be
Project in an amount of NT$2,032,000 due to the projectino significant
undertaken. The consolidated Company will continueto deal [implications.
with the issue depending on the judgement.

If a director, supervisor, genera manager, substantive person-in-charge, major
sharehol ders holding more than 10% of the sharesand affiliated companiesinvolves
amajor decided or pending litigation, non-litigation or administrative proceeding,
and the results may have a significant impact on shareholders' rights or securities
prices, the facts of the dispute, the amount of the subject matter, the date of
commencement of thelitigation, the major partiesinvolved in thelitigation, and the
handling status up to the date of publication of this Annua Report shall be disclosed:
None.

(X111) Other significant Risks and Countermeasures:

1.

Risk management policies:

Enterprises often encounter many uncertainties that may threaten their operations.
In order to find and control them as early as possible and reduce the losses caused
by risks, good risk management policies are required. The Board of Directors of the
Consolidated Company formulates the overal risk management policy in
accordance with the operating strategy, operating environment and departmental
plans, the main contents of which include the environmenta aspect, internal and
external operation process aspect and strategic decision-making aspect, etc. In
addition, the Board of Directors shall submit risk management reports on various
risk management resolutions, delivery matters, supervison and follow-up
implementation, so that when future operation and management face similar or
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identical problems, they can refer to past experience and propose better solutions.
2. Organizational structure for risk management:
Every level or department of the Consolidated Company is responsible for risk
management. Once any risk is discovered, it shall be promptly reported the audit
office or senior management and seek solutions as soon as possible. The decision
makers shall also take actions in the shortest possible time.
The organizational structure for risk management of the Consolidated Company is
asfollows:
Organization
name
Board of Directors |To develop risk management policies.
To ensure the effective operation of the risk management mechanism
and the allocation of resources.
Senior To implement the risk management decision of the Board of
management Directors.
To coordinate in cross-departmental risk management.
Auditing Office  |To conduct inspect the day-to-day risk management.
To supervise risk management activities and report the
implementation to the Board of Directors and supervisors.
Other departments | To sort out the results of risk management activities.
To perform day-to-day risk management.

To determine the risk categories and draw up a commitment plan
based on the changes in the environment.

Authority

VII. Other important matters: None.
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Information of Affiliated

Chapter 8. Specia Disclosure

Companies:

(I) Organization Chart of Related Companies (Note 1):

Dec. 31st, 2019
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: Kedge Construction | ! Global Mall Co., 49.00% (GLOBAE MALL

! Co.. Ltd ' Ltd. . | BANQIAO STORE)

! o l o Shareholding ratio:

| Shareholding ratio: 34.18% [ Shareholding ratio: 84.02% 51.00%

E \ 4 '

| | )

: v \ A A 4 3.70%

Guanging Jiequn Guan Hua Co., Ltd. KGM International Uniga International Guan You Co., Ltd.
Electromechanical Investment Co., (GLOBAL MALL Investment Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd. (GLOBAL MALL

Co., Ltd. Ltd. NANGANG STORE) ZUOYING STORE)
Shareholding ratio: Shareholding ratio: Shareholding ratio: Shareholding ratio: Shareholding ratio: Shareholding ratio:
99.96% 99.98% 100% 100% 100% 96.3%
(Note 2)
70.00% 30.00%
\ 4
_ Global Mall(Tianjin)
Dingtian Co., Ltd.
Construction Co., Shareholding ratio:
Ltd 100%

y
ReadyCom Information
Technology Service
Co., Ltd.
Shareholdir}g ratio:
46.67%

Note 1.

In accordance with Article 369-2 of the Company Act, it is presumed that a company holding the majority of

the total number of the outstanding voting shares or the total amount of the capital stock of another company
is considered the controlling company, while the other company is considered a subordinate company.

Note 2.
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(1)

Basic information of affiliated companies:

Dec. 31st, 2019 (Unit: NT$ Thousands )

Company name . Date Of. Address Paid-in capital Main businesses
incorporation
Kindom Development Co., Ltd. 1979.11 |2F, No.131, Sec. 3, Heping East Rd, Taipei City 5,037,910|1. Housing and building devel opment, lease and sale.
(RO.C) 2. Investment in public construction.
3. Section acquisition and rezoning of municipal land.
4. Sale of immovable property.
5. Lease of immovable property.
Kedge Construction Co., Ltd. 1982.04 |6F, No.131, Sec. 3, Heping East Rd, Taipei City 1,060,357 |comprehensive construction etc.
(R.O.C)
Guanging Electromechanical Co., 1997.12 |3F, No.131, Sec. 3, Heping East Rd, Taipei City 77,500|electrical equipment installation and fire safety equipment
Ltd. (R.O.C) installation, etc.
Jiequn Investment Co., Ltd. 1998.01 |3F, N0.131, Sec. 3, Heping East Rd, Taipei City 164,000(general investment etc.
(R.O.C)
Dingtian Construction Co., Ltd. 1983.07 |8F, N0.131, Sec. 3, Heping East Rd, Taipel City 23,000|comprehensive construction etc.
(R.O.C)
ReadyCom Information Technology| 2008.05 |[6F.-1, No. 207, Dunhua N. Rd., Songshan Dist., 30,000|information, software services and management consulting etc.
Service Co., Ltd. Taipel City 105, Taiwan (R.O.C.)
Global Mall Co., Ltd. 2002.11 |8F, N0.131, Sec. 3, Heping East Rd, Taipei City 3,810,000|Supermarket, department store, international trade, wholesale
(R.O.C) and retails of medical equipment, etc.
Guan Cheng Co., Ltd. (GLOBAL 2009.03 |-1F, 1F, 2F, 24F and 25F, No. 7, Sec. 2, Xianmin 200,000|Department stores, supermarkets and retail without stores, etc.
MALL BANQIAO STORE) Blvd.,, Bangiao Dist., New Taipei City 220,
Taiwan (R.O.C)
Guan You Co., Ltd. (GLOBAL 2011.10 |F24, No. 7, Sec. 2, Xianmin Blvd., Bangiao Dist., 135,000|Department stores, supermarkets and retail without stores, etc.
MALL ZUOYING STORE) New Taipei City 220, Taiwan (R.O.C.)
Uniga International Co., Ltd. 2012.09 [No.6, Sec. 3, Guangfuli Highway No.5 Rd., East 175,000( T he liquidation was completed on Nov. 5th, 2018.
Dist., Hsinchu City 300, Taiwan (R.O.C.)
Guan Hua Co., Ltd. (GLOBAL 2015.07 |8F, No0.131, Sec. 3, Heping East Rd, Taipe City 140,000(|Department stores, supermarkets and retail without stores, etc.
MALL NANGANG STORE) (R.O.C)
KGM International Investment Co.,| 2011.10 |Unit 1502,15/F,Jubilee Centre, 46 213,766|Overall planning for investment in and operation of shopping
Ltd. GloucesterRoad,Wan Chai,Hong Kong mallsin mainland China, supporting project consulting,
shopping mall rental planning and consulting, etc.
Globa Mall(Tianjin)Co., Ltd. 2014.02 (101, ZoneA, 1F, BLD 2, Zhonglian Industria 213,766|Commercial management (including renting commercial

Park, Xiging District, Tianjin City, PR.China.

facilities), wholesale, retail, import and export of daily
necessities, sporting goods, household appliances, office
supplies, clocks, glasses, textiles, etc. Property management;
Business consultation; Enterprise marketing planning; Meeting

services; Exhibition service; Parking lot management.
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(1) Information of shareholders determined to be in controlling and subordinating rel ations with the Company:

Unit: NT$ Thousands

Presumed reason

Name

Shareholding

Number
of shares

Shareholding
ratio

Date of
incorporation

Address

Paid-in capital

Main businesses

None

(IV)  Industries covered by business of affiliates:
1. Generdly, the business of affiliates is dominated by housing and building development, lease and sale, comprehensive construction

and shopping center.

2. Most construction projects of Kindom Development Co., Ltd. are undertaken by Kedge Construction Co., Ltd. and Dingtian

construction Co., Ltd.
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(V) Information on directors, supervisors and general managers of the affiliates:
Dec. 31, 2019 (Unit: NT$ Thousands ; 1,000 shares; %)
Shareholding/
capital contribution
Company name Title Name or representative Number of | Shareholding/capital
shares/capital | contribution ratio
contribution
Kindom Development  |Chairman Yu-De Investment Co. 96,305 19.12%
Co., Ltd.
Legal Representative: Mike, Ma 14,491 2.88%
Director Yu-De Investment Co. 96,305 19.12%
Legal Representative: Mei-Chu, Liu 61,105 12.13%
Director Yu-De Investment Co. 96,305 19.12%
and General  |Legal Representative: Ching-Chin, (Note) -
Manager Hung
Director Yu-De Investment Co. 96,305 19.12%
Lega Representative: Sheng-An, 8 -
Chang
Director Yu-De Investment Co. 96,305 19.12%
Legal Representative: Ching-Fen, 31 0.01%
Chang
Director Yu-De Investment Co. 96,305 19.12%
Legal Representative: Ming, Chen 2,494 0.50%
Independent  |Shen-Yu, Kung - -
Director
Independent  |Hung-Chin, Huang - -
Director
Independent  |Kuo-Feng, Lin - -
Director
Kedge Construction Chairman Kindom Development Co., Ltd. 36,248 34.18%
Co., Ltd. Lega Representative: Ming-Nai Ma 1,919 1.78%
Director Kindom Development Co., Ltd. 36,248 34.18%
Lega Representative: Mei-Chu, Liu 2,825 2.66%
Director Kindom Development Co., Ltd. 36,248 34.18%
Lega representative: Yi-Fang Huang - -
Director Kindom Development Co., Ltd. 36,248 34.18%
Lega representative: Ai-Wei Yuan - -
Director Kindom Development Co., Ltd. 36,248 34.18%
Legal representative: Shih-Hsuan Chou 74 0.07%
Director Kindom Development Co., Ltd. Legd 36,248 34.18%
representative: Ming-Tao, Chen - -
Director Kindom Development Co., Ltd. Legd 36,248 34.18%
representative: vacancy - -
Independent  |Shen-Yu, Kung - -
Director
Independent  Hung-Chin, Huang - -
Director
Supervisor Hua-Peng Long - -
Supervisor vacancy - -
Generdl Hui-Jen Huang 24 0.02%
Manager

Note: Holding 144 shares.
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Shareholding/
capital contribution

Legal Representative: Kuo-Ping
Chen

i . Number of |Shareholding/capital
Company name Title Name or representative chares/ contribution
capital ratio
contribution
Guanging Electromechanical  |Chairman Kedge Construction Co., Ltd. 7,747 99.96%
Co., Ltd. Legal Representative: Shau-Ling - -
Ma
Director Kedge Construction Co., Ltd. 7,747 99.96%
Legal Representative: Jung-Tai - -
Chen
Director Kedge Construction Co., Ltd. 7,747 99.96%
Legal Representative: Chin-Hua - -
Fan
Director Kedge Construction Co., Ltd. 7,747 99.96%
Legal Representative: Chien- - -
fang Huang
Director Kedge Construction Co., Ltd. 7,747 99.96%
Legal representatives: Ho Chin- - -
Fu
Supervisor Ming-Nai Ma - -
Global Mall Co., Ltd. Chairman Kindom Development Co., Ltd. 320,105 84.02%
Co., Ltd. and Genera Lega Representative: Mike, Ma - -
Manager
Director Kindom Development Co., Ltd. 320,105 84.02%
Lega Representative: Ming-Tao, - -
Chen
Director Kindom Development Co., Ltd. 320,105 84.02%
Legal representatives. Ching- - -
Sung Tseng
Director Kindom Development Co., Ltd. 320,105 84.02%
Legal Representative: Jung-Tal - -
Chen
Director Kindom Development Co., Ltd. 320,105 84.02%
Legal Representative: Shau-Ling - -
Ma
Director Kindom Development Co., Ltd. 320,105 84.02%
Legal Representative: Hui-Jen - -
Huang
Director Kindom Development Co., Ltd. 320,105 84.02%
Lega Representative: Chin-Hua - -
Fan
Director Kindom Development Co., Ltd. 320,105 84.02%
Lega Representative: Sheng-An, - -
Chang
Director Qilu Enterprise Co., Ltd. 54,095 14.20%
Legal Representative: Chang- - -
Jung Huang
Supervisor Ho Chin-Fu - -
Supervisor Qiyang Development Co., Ltd. (Note) -

Note: Holding 100 shares.
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Company name

Title

Name or representative

Shareholding/
capital contribution

Number of
shares/
capital

contribution

Shareholding/capital
contribution

ratio

Jiequn Investment Co., Ltd.

Chairman

Kedge Construction Co., Ltd.
Legal Representative: Shau-Ling
Ma

16,396
1

99.98%
0.01%

Director

Kedge Construction Co., Ltd.
Legal Representative: Chun-
Ming, Chen

16,396

99.98%

Director

Kedge Construction Co., Ltd.
Legal Representative: Wen-Yen
Lin

16,396

99.98%

Director

Kedge Construction Co., Ltd.
Number of legal representatives:
Shu-Yuan Lin

16,396

99.98%

Director

Kedge Construction Co., Ltd.
Lega Representative: Vacancy

16,396

99.98%

Supervisor

Ko-Hou Kuo

Supervisor

Wen-Hsiung Chou

Dingtian Construction Co., Ltd.

Chairman

Guanqing Electromechanical
Co., Ltd.

Legal Representative: Shau-Ling
Ma

1,610

70.00%

ReadyCom Information
Technology Service
Co., Ltd.

Chairman

Ta-Lung Ho

Director

Yu-Chang Li

Director

Ming-Nai Ma

Supervisor

Dingtian Construction Co., Ltd.
Lega Representative: Shau-Ling
Ma

1,400

46.67%

Guan Cheng Co., Ltd.
(GLOBAL MALL BANQIAO
STORE)

Chairman

Kindom Development Co., Ltd.
Lega Representative: Mike, Ma

10,200

51.00%

Director

Kindom Development Co., Ltd.
Lega Representative: Chuan-
Chieh Tan

10,200

51.00%

Director

Kindom Development Co., Ltd.
Legal Representative: Yi-Hwa
Chen

10,200

51.00%

Supervisor

Global Mall Co., Ltd.
Lega Representative: Ming-Nai
Ma

9,800

49.00%

Guan You Co., Ltd. (GLOBAL
MALL ZUQYING STORE)

Chairman

Guan Cheng Co., Ltd. (GLOBAL
MALL BANQIAO STORE)
Legal Representative: Mike, Ma

13,000

96.3%

Director

Guan Cheng Co., Ltd. (GLOBAL
MALL BANQIAO STORE)
Legal Representative: Chin-Tang
Po

13,000

96.3%

Director

Legal representative of Guan
Cheng Co., Ltd. (GLOBAL
MALL BANQIAO STORE):
Hsuan-Chun Chiu

13,000

96.3%

Supervisor

Legal representative of Global
Mall Co., Ltd.: Li-Ya Chen

500

3.7%
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Shareholding/
capital contribution

Legal representative: Shu-Lian,
Chang

) . Number of |Shareholding/capital
Company name Title Name or representative chares/ contri bugti/o?lp
capital ratio
contribution
KGM International Investment |Director Globa Mall Co., Ltd. 213,766 100%
Co., Ltd. Legal Representative; Mike, Ma (Note) -
Director Ta-Sung Liu - -
Globa Mall Executive KGM International Investment 213,766 100%
(Tianjin)Co., Ltd. director Co., Ltd. (Note) -
Legal Representative: Mei-Chi, -
Su
Supervisor KGM International Investment 213,766 100%
Co., Ltd. (Note) -
Legal representative: Ta-Sung -
Liu
Guan Hua Co., Ltd. (GLOBAL |Chairman Globa Mall Co., Ltd. 14,000 100%
MALL NANGANG STORE) Legal Representative: Mike, Ma - -
Director Globa Mall Co., Ltd. 14,000 100%
Legal representative: Te-Chien - -
Weng
Director Globa Mall Co., Ltd. 14,000 100%
Legal representative: Hsiu-Hsia - -
Chu
Supervisor Global Mall Co., Ltd. 14,000 100%,

Note: The amount represents the capital contribution.
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(VI) Anoverview of the operations of each affiliate
Dec. 31st, 2019 (Unit: NT$ Thousands) (earnings per share excluded)
Company name Capital Total assets Totd Net Operating Operating | Current profits | Earnings per
liabilities revenue (losses) profits or losses share
(After-tax) (NT$)
(After-tax)

Kindom Development Co., Ltd. 5,037,910 43,828,824 31,201,320 12,627,504 8,117,436 1,329,758 1,283,526 2.60
Kedge Congtruction Co., Ltd. 1,060,357 8,146,681 5,405,720 2,740,961 11,362,618 460,038 402,348 3.79
Guanqing Electromechanical Co., Ltd. 77,500 323,866 120,584 203,282 382,113 8,176 11,976 1.55
Jiequn Investment Co., Ltd. 164,000 370,596 713 369,883 13,855 11,836 11,617 0.71
Dingtian Construction Co., Ltd. 23,000 173,797 120,367 53,430 285,523 4,185 5,592 (Note2)
ReadyCom Information Technology 30,000 57,411 13,469 43,942 74,130 114 2 0.00
Service Co., Ltd.
Globa Mall Co., Ltd. 3,810,000 9,601,606 5,037,839 4,563,767 1,017,352 437,044 395,098 1.04
Guan Cheng Co., Ltd. (GLOBAL
MALL BANQIAO STORE) 200,000 1,173,042 906,883 266,159 286,278 98,972 34,927 1.75
Guan You Co., Ltd. (GLOBAL MALL
ZUOYING STORE) 135,000 162,991 118,671 44,320 44,048 (10,374) (33,725) (2.50)
Uniga International Co., Ltd. (Notel) 175,000 87,530 - 87,530 - (43 (22) (0.00)
Guan Hua Co., Ltd. (GLOBAL
MALL NANGANG STORE) 140,000 768,888 631,529 137,359 93,456 6,200 (3,201) (0.23)
Et(;M International Investment Co., 213,766 30,375 400 20,975 ; (31) 55671  (Note2)
Globa Mall(Tianjin)Co., Ltd. 213,766 120,244 89,974 30,270 - (64,409) 55,667  (Note?2)

Note 1.

Note2. Itisalimited liability company.

Uniga International Co., Ltd. completed liquidation on Nov. 5th, 2018.

(VI1) Consolidated financial statements of related companies: The same as the Company's consolidated financial statements, so there is no need
to repeat the preparation work.
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(VI Related Company Report

Statement

This is to state that the Company's Related Company Report in 2019 (from January 1, 2019 to
December 31, 2019) was prepared in accordance with Criteria Governing Preparation of Affiliation
Reports, Consolidated Business Reports, and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated
Enterprises, and information disclosed and the related information disclosed in the Notes to
Financial Statements in the aforementioned period do not contain material discrepancies.

Hereby declare by

Company name: Kindom Development Co., Ltd.
Chairman: Mike, Ma

Date: Mar. 23rd, 2020
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CPA' Review Opinion on the Affiliation Report
To: Kindom Development Co., Ltd.

The Affiliation Report for 2019 of Kedge Construction Co., Ltd. has been reviewed by the
accountant in accordance with the provisions of Ministry of Finance Securities & Futures
Commission Letter No. Taiwan-Finance-Securities-(6)-04448 issued on November 30, 1999. This
review work, is based on whether the Affiliation Report for 2019 of Kedge Construction Co., Ltd.
is prepared in accordance with the Criteria Governing Preparation of Affiliation Reports,
Consolidated Business Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises, and
whether the disclosed information is not materially inconsistent with the information disclosed in
the notesto the financial statements of the period audited by the accountant on March 23, 2020, with
the review opinions issued.

According to the review result of the accountant, no violation has been found in the preparation
of the above affiliation report to the provisions of the Criteria Governing Preparation of Affiliation
Reports, Consolidated Business Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated
Enterprises, and no material discrepancy has been found between the information disclosed in the
foregoing affiliation report and the information disclosed in the notes to the financial statements of
the same period.

KPMG Taiwan

Certified Public
Accountant

The original Ministry of : No. (88) Taiwan-Finance-

Finance Securities & Securities-(6)-18311

Futures Commission : Financial Supervisory

Letter No.Certified No. Commission Order No.
Financial-Supervisory-
Securities-Corporate-
0940100754

March 23, 2020
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Kindom Development Co., Ltd.
1. Organizational chart of related companies

Yu-De Investment Co.

19.12%

Kindom Development Co., Ltd.

2. Summary of relations between subsidiaries and controlling companies:
Dec. 31st, 2019 (Unit: shares; %)

Shareholding and share pledge of | Directors, Supervisor or managers
controlling company appointed by the controlling
Name of company
controlling Reason Number
company Holding |Shareholding| of shares Title Name
shares ratio subject to
pledge
Chairman Mike, Ma
Director Mei-Chu Liu
Directorsin the Director and Ching-Chin,
Yu-De Company General Manager Hung
Investment | appointedby | 96,304,670 19.12% - Director Sheng-An
Co. the controlling Chang
company Director Ching-Fen,
Chang
Director Ming, Chen
3. Transactions:
(1) Purchase and sale of goods: None.
(2) Property transaction: None.
(3) Capital financing: None.
(4) Asset leasing: None.
(5) Other significant transactions: None.
4. Endorsement and guarantee: None.
5. Other Matters with a Significant Effect on Finances and Business: None.
6. Private placement of securitiesin the most recent year as of the date of this Annual Report: None.
7. Holding or disposal of the Company's stocks by a subsidiary in the most recent year as of the date
of thisAnnual Report: None.
8. Other Necessary Supplements: None.
9. Events of significant impact on shareholders’ equity or on prices of securities as specified under

Subparagraph 2, Paragraph 2 of Article 36 of the Securities and Exchange Act in the Most Recent
Year as of the Date of thisAnnual Report: None.
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[1.  Private placement of securities in the most recent year as of the date of this Annual Report:
None.
[1l. Holding or disposal of the Company's stocks by a subsidiary in the most recent year as of the
date of thisAnnual Report:
Mar. 31st, 2020 (Unit: NT$ Thousands ; shares; %)

Number and
amount of shares
) NUange" thnnger } held as of the Endorsed | Amount
Name of L .. | Shareholding| Date of Gain (loss)| end of the year
e Paid-in |Capital ) -~ _|amount of |amount of amount | loaned to
subsidiaries . ratio of the |acquisition from or the Pledges
capital | source - shares shares |. - for the the
(Note 1) Company |or disposal . : investment| publication date - L
acquired | disposed subsidiary|subsidiary
of the
(Note2) | (Note2)
prospectus.
(Note 3)
1,607,000 shares|
2019 NT$51,263,000 '\O"e
The
Guanging current
i 0,
Electéc:)mefganlcal 77,500| Cash 34.17% t)r/;a& :ISe%ff 1,607,000 shares None
T this NT$36,399,000
Annua
Report
500,000 shares|
2019 NT$15,950,000 NOne
The
Kedge current
Construction Co., | 1,060,357 Cash 34.18%
Ltd ’ tﬁ?&éﬁ%& 500,000 shares None
’ - NT$1,325,000
this
Annua
Report
8,518,450 shares|
2019 NT$271,739,000 'O
The
) current
Jiequn Investment 0,
Co., Ltd. 164000} Cash |- 34.17% ) year as of 8,518,450 shares| |\
this NT$192,943,000
Annua
Report

Note 1. Pleaselist separately according to the category of the subsidiary.
Note 2. The amount herein refers to the amount actually received or disposed.
Note 3. Holding and disposal shall be listed separately, including the final adjustment upon evaluation.

V. Other Necessary Supplements: None.

Chapter 9. Events of Significant Impact on Shareholders’ Equity or Securities Prices
in the most recent year as of the date of thisAnnual Report: None
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